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We are the Genuit Group

We‘re helping Construction
build better, by being the UK'’s
leading provider of sustainable
water, climate and ventilation
management solutions for

the built environment.

Sustainability is at the heart of how we run our
businesses, ensuring we have the most talented,
empowered, and diverse teams focusing on our
key objectives around growth, innovation and
addressing the challenges facing construction.
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Farward-looking statements

This Annhugl Report contains vorious
forword-looking statements that
reflact management’s current

view with respect to tuture events
ond tingnciol and opearational
performance. All staterments reflect
knowledge and information available
as at the date of preparation of this
Annugl Report and thera can be

no assurance thot forward-looking
staterments will prove to be accurate,
as agctual rasults and future events
could difter matericlly from those
anticipatadin such statements.
Therefore, nothing in this Annual
Report should be construed s
profit forecast.
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~Highlights —

The Group has continued to outperform
the construction market, and made
strong progress against its ESG targets.

Revenue

49.1% 1

Profit before tax

164.3% 1

Underlying basic earnings
per share

126.7% 1

Underlying cash generated
from operations

45.5% 1

Underlying operating profit

125.8% 1

Net debt

£138.0m 1t

Highlights

Revenue increase of 49.1% due to
significant increase in demand and
robust price leadership in the market

QOngoing recovery in underlying
operating profit margin despite
cost heodwinds and supply
chdir constraints

Underlying basic earnings per share
of 308p, anincreasa of 1267%

Strong operational cash
management and balance sheet,
net debt 1.2 times pro forma EBITDA

Continued strategic investment in
business, net capital expanditure
of £341m

Proposed tinol 2021 dividend of 8.2p
per share

The three acquisitions made in the
year {Adey, Nu-Heat and Plura)
performed well, with Adey
exceeding expectations

A strongly supported £86.3m capital
raise to help fund the Adey acquisition
Centinuing to invest in market
leading brands and growth drivers
underpinned by sustoinability,
resilience and adaptation

ESG Highlights

The Group is making progress against
its 2025 ESG targets ond senior
management's incentive
pregrarrimes are now aligned to these
Continued focus gn serving the
needs created by four key
sustainability drivers:
+ increasing need for

resilient drainage;

= Need for green urbanisation;

+ Increased tocus on clean haalthy
indoer air ond ventilation; and

- Armove towards a low, ar zero
carbon, built environment.

As well as serving the needs of our
sustainability-based growth drivers,
we continue our pragress on
operating sustainably:

Material consumed from recycled
inputs increased to 49.4%, against
o target of 62.0% by 2025;

44.0% reduction in CO2 intensity,
signed up to Pledge to Net Zevo 1.5
Degree Scheme and we are in the
process of gaining SBTi verification;

Increqased sales of new products to
a value of £120.0m (2018: £77Im)
resulting in a Vitality Index of 20.2%,
against our target of 25.0% by

2025; and

3.2% of our workforce were in
accredited earn and learn
programmes and we were awarded
Silver Status within The 5% Cluts
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Genuit Group helps to create a better built environment.
We recognise the role that the built environment has in
meeting the requirements of climate change adaptation
and resilience, and we develop and manufacture
sustainable solutions to the key challenges faced

within water, climate and ventilation management.

Our Vision

Genuit Group has o clear goal to be the leading, Uk-focused,
provider of sustainable construction procducts.

Our Purpose

Qur colleagues across afl of our businesses are focused on 'Helping
Construction Build Better'. We bring a collaborative and problem-solving
mindset to the challenges faced by our customers in improving the builk
environment. This Covers averything from buitding in mere sustcinable
ways, and creating better spoces, through to helping the promotion of

rmadern metnods of construction. Genuit Group is port of the construction

community, with a Clear sense of purpose and role within it.

Our Culture and Values
Genuit Group is a decentralised group. We believe that our key expertise

sits in our businesses, close to our custemers ond the opportunities within

their sectors. Therefare we enabile and empower our people so that
dacision-making is performed tn a timely manner, by those close to our
markets. We promote a culture where people understand how they
contribute to owr success, so that their decision-mmaking takes account
of all the relevant stakeholders.

When the Group re-iranded to Genuit Group in 2021, we created a name
which would gllow people to recognise a connection to the key values
and ways of working which exist across all of our businesses. The themes
of being genuine and prablerm-solving ngenuily, dre referred to across
the Group and efthough the businesses sometimes articulate these

slightly differently in their focal values, nonetheless they are characteristics

which go to the haort of how we operate.

Winning Sustainably

we focus on providing solutions for
climate change adaptation ond
resilience. We believe that in doing so,
itis imperative that we operate our
Group in the most sustainable woy
possible in order to be consistent with
cur commercial objectives. Therefore,
in 2020 we communicated g broad
range of sustainability-based
objectives, covering the near,
medium, and lenger term.

Genuit Group has raised the bor

ir the way we hold ourselves
accountable ogainst these targets,
whether in our rermuneration, via
incentive programmes, Or in our use
of third party verification. wWorking
together, we will moke the built
environment more sustainable

for generations 1o come.

We hoid market leading positions
across key segments in residential,
commerciol and infrastructure sectors,
and our brand portfolio comprises
some of the most respected names

in the construction incdustry.

3,658

colleagues

29

G3
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Investment Proposition

Genuit Group is the UK's leading provider of

sustainable water and climate monogement

solutions for the built environment.

Market leadership positions
across a portfolio whichhasa
balanced exposure to all
sectors of the construction
market and its cycle.

The Group has leading positions in its
key markets, including commercial
ventilation, underfloor haating, above
ground drainage, hydromc filters, and
plastic plumbing systermns. We manage
our portfolio ocross residential,
commerciol, and infrastructure
sectors, in both new build and RMI, in
order to balance against moarket
cyclicality.

D Read more on pages8to13

2,

Successful business model,
with barriers to entry and
experienced colieagues.

Genuit Group is o decentralised
business modei, which allows our
experienced management teams to
make market driven decisions in
timely monner, and o best serve the
needs of their customers. Thae Group
suppoerts its busingsses with
invastment in technology, and the
devetopment of its people to ensure
we combine agility with the scale
benetits cur Group con provide. This
business model creates barriars to
entry and protects our market
positions.

O Read mare on pagaes 8to 23

3.

Significant structural
growth opportunities.

Genuit Group is focused on sectors
supported by clear drivers which con
sustain a growth rate of 2% to 4%
Gbove the construction market
average, ocross the cycle. We pursue
these growth drivers both organically
and inorganically. Regulatory and
environmental factors continue to
provide significant growth
oppoertunities in both water and
climote management, and wilt drive
adaption and greater penetration of
new tachnologias such as underfloor
heating and hydronic filters. The Group
is atso well placed to benefit from
policies airmed ot uddressing the
ongoing structurof housing deficit.

D Read more on pages 22t 23

4.

Strong ESG credentials
with clear targets and
sustainability at the heart
of our business.

Genuit Group has set ambitious
sustainability targets for 2025, ond will
be publishing Science Based Targets
which take us beyond that as part of
cur commitment to the Pledge to
Net Zero. As well as being cleor on
reducing the impact of our business
on the envircnment, Genuit offers a
vroad range of solutions to help with
the mitigation of, and adaptation to,
the chalienges that climate

change bring.

O Read mare on pages 14 to 18

A strong, proven,
financial track record.

Qur above market growth rate, and
ability to use our scale delivers strong
profitability and cashflow The Group
has o strong M&A record, delivering
thres transactions in 2021 and
continues ta see oppoertunities for
further expansion into adjacent
sectors, as well as portfolio complsetion
within its existing segments. The Group
has a balance sheet capable of
supporting future growth and has nc
defined benefit pension scheme,

D Read more on pages 45to 50

3 years: profit before tax

Sales by Sector 2021

Experienced
and skilled teams

Q@
L)

Committed

targets for 2025

A/

2-4%

construction market
average across the cycle



Business
Overview

Governance

Chairman and Chief Executive

Ctficer Review

Marketplace Review

Our Business Model

Qur sustainability frarmework
Advancing the circular ecanomy
Tackling climate change
Developing sustainable solutions
Investing in an engoged
and diverse workforce

Six Strategic Growth Orivers

Key Performance Indicators

Sustainable Solutions

Qur sustainability framework

Sustainable Operations

Task Force on Climate-related

Financial Disclosures Report

Peaple

Health, safety and welibeing

Engagerment with our stakeholders

Section 172 Statement

Chief Financial Officer's Report

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

20
22
24
26
28
30

33
36
38
40
a2
45

S1

Rermuneration

Financial
Stotements

Hoday 21691p43S

0s



06

Genuit Group pic Annual Report & Accounts 2621

Chairman and
Chief Executive
Officer Review

The Group is focused on real growth
drivers and providing innovative
solutions that our customers value.

Ron Marsh Joe Vorih
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

We are delighted to report thot the
Group has delivared a record
performance in the yeor with revenue
49.0% higher than prior year at £694.3m
(2020: £398.6m) and 32.8% above 2015
(€4476m). CPA statistics show the UK
maorket was 3.6% below 2019 levels,
and so it is pleosing to see us
outperforming the market with
like-for-like volume growth of 26%
versus 20149 This is o raflection of our
businesses being focused on real
growth drivers and providing
innovative solutions that our
customers value. The acquisitions we
compieted early in 2021 are all
pertorrming well, with Adey ahead of
expectations and all are well
established within the Group. We are
now focusing on leveraging their
performance further. In common with
the rest of the manufacturing sector,
the speed of recovery from 2020
placed stress upon our supply chains,
both with cost and avoilability of
components Our tleoms worked
incredibly hard to satisfy custormer
needs and, due to our brand strengths
and product offerings, we were abie to
take price leadership positions across
our key sactors.

We remain committed to market
autperformance via organic ond
inorganic growth, and our financiai
performance and strong shareholder
support enables us to pursue our
M&A objectives.

With strong fundamentails in our
markets, the strangth of our talent
and our focus on innevation, this is
an exciting time for the Genuit Group.

Environmental, Social
and Governance

At our Copital Markets Eventin
Novernber 2020, we exploined how our
focus on addressing growth drivers
relating to the sustainability agenda
woutd be matched by our
commitment to operating sustainably.
We have continued to mcke strong
progress against the various ESG
targets we announced then,

We reduced our like-for-like carbon
intensity by 44.0% during the year,
which is excellent progress toward cur
2025 goo'! of 0 66.0% reduction and of
course we have also signed up to the
ambitious 15 degree warming target
as part of cur Pledge to Net Zero.
Operating sustainabily is now deeply
embedded across our businesses
ond within our cuiture.
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Marketplace Review

Following a 15.0% decline in 2020, the construction market showed
some resilience, with 13.3% growth in 2021. The market continued to
have momentum, and is forecast to grow by a further 4.3% in 2022.

summary

Qverall UK construction grew by 13.3%
versus 2020 (source: CPAJONS), as

the canstruction sector continued to
show resilience in the face of Covid-18,
and also the instability and issues
surrounding the Brexit implamentation
process, Although this is a slight
growth downgrade on some earlier
estimates, in reality this is largely
becouse 2020 performed better

than the basis upon which those
forecasts had been formed. Excluding
infrastructure, which is slightly distorted
by the impact of marquee pProjects
such as H52 and Hinckiey Point, the
ather sectors grew by o combined
total of 1L6%, which is a stronger
recovery than thot shownin 2014
when the sector emerged from the
financial crisis. The outlcok shows a

.cantinuation of this recavery, with

a total sector growth rate of 4.3%
forecast for 2022, or 3.2% if
infrastructure is excluded.

The 2021 residential
RMi market, worth

£61.8bn

was the largest
on record

Demand drivers

UK

90%

Overseas

10%

RMI

32%

Infrastructure

5% ®

New build

33%

Commercial

20%

— @

- e

4%
Eurcpe

6%
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Overview

We are engoged with Scisnce Bosed
Targets and are part of the cohort that
will have independently verified targets
and measuras by Summer 2022 as
part of our governance process of
assessing climate risk and impact,

our 2021 Annual Report & Accounts
includes Task Force on Climate-reloted
finoncial Disclosures {("TCFD").

Qur commitment (0 employee
development and social mobility is
reflected in our membership of The 5%
Club with 3.2% ot qualitying colleagues
participating in accredited training
schemes thus earning us Silver Status.

Qur use of recycled material in the
year increased to 49.4% of our totat
tonnage consumption, 8y 2025,
racycled materials should represent
62.0% of our total polymer
consumption; the maximum possible
under current regulations ocross

our ranges. We have cormmitied

to expanding our ability to utilise
recycled materials in 2021 by initiating
a £25m investrment in @ new multi-
layer extrusion line at our Aylesford site.
We are aiso seeking to brouden the
potential for products containing
recyclate, by using our influence within
vartous stondards and cpprovols
bodies, so that they recagnise the
societal requirement for these
products, which offer equivatent
parfarmance levels but with the

lower carbon content our customers
increasingly value. We continue

to place innovation ct the heart of

our business, ensuring we have the
solutions for the emerging challenges
foced by the construction sector.

Our new brand

In April 2021, Polypipe Group plc
changed its name to Genuit Group
pl¢. Our new brand was credted to
reflect that our different businesses,
who make us who we are, are ail
port of something bigger. Cur
businesses share the same vision,
values and aspirations. We work
collaboratively to provide our
employees with a sense of
belonging, both to the businegs
within which they operate,

but alsa to the wider Group.

WLeen

Strategic

Report Governance

Our sates of products launched in the
last five years totalied £120.0m in 202,
or 20.2% of net revenues. We will
continue to drive this toward our
2025 target of 25.0%.

Qutlook

Wa have a balanced exposure to UK
construction markets with robust
growth drivers, and continue to
execule our strategy investing
organically ond by acquisition. Our
recant acquisitions ore performing
well. The housebuilding sector hos
had on encouraging start to 2022
with a greater level of starts versus
completions. Residential repairs,
maintenance and improvement
(*RMI”) remains strong with
improvenment in the commaercial
and infrastructure markets.

The Group is offsetting input cost
inflation with necessary market
leading price increases, and has
already taken a number of actions
to address the lag impact of the
price increases.

The Board is mindful of the global
macro-economic uncertainty from
the ongoing tragic events in Ukraine.
whilst early in the current financial
year, the Group continues to have
strong momentum ond is well
positioned to make further grogress
in full year 2022.

Ron Marsh
Chairman

Joe Vorih
Chief Execytiva Officer

As the Genuit Group, we want to
levarage our collective successes,
create new oppaortunities and
centinue to 'Help Construction
build better

UIT

GROUP

Rermuneration

Financial
Stotements

All three acquisitions
performing well, with
Adey ahead of
expectations

Adey

UK ieading provider of
magnetic filters, chermicals
and related products

Nu-Heat
Leading provider of sustainable
underfloor heating solutions

Plura

Manufacturer of chambers,
platform accessories

with transferabla
pultrusion technology

a7
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Qverview

Key features

2021 was the highest teve! of
Private Housing RMI cctivity

onrecord and 2022 is set to
remain ot thot ievel

after two years of a rush to
completions, 2021 saw a focus
on housing storts, which is set to
continue for the next two years

The road and rail sectors
underpina huge boostin
infrastructure spending

Structural changes in retail and
our use of office space have
provided challenges in the
commercial new build market

Public sector expenditure is set to
increase in education and health

What this means
for Genuit Group

Givan our spread across the
sactors, Genuit is poised to
benefit from overail market
growth. Within housing, our
products ore generclly early

in the build cycle, and so will
benefit from o bias toward starts

Strategic
Repart Governance
The Residential Sector

The structural need for more
affordable homes remains as valid

as ever. Following 17.0% growth in
private residential construction in 2021,
the sector is forecast to grow by 3.0%
in 2022,

Buayant private homes sector
Much of the stimulus activity from 2020
carried on into the first haif of 2021 and
50 this coused o significant rush to
complete housing transactions. As an
indicotor uf the level of volatility in this
sector, completions in England in Q2
2020 were 61.4% below Q2 2019, yel by
Q1 2021 they were running at 13.2%
higher than Q1 2019. Slightly more than
181,000 hocmes were completed during
2021, This was significantly ahead of
the starts figure of 152,800, despite the
starts figure itself being 30.0% greater
than the 2020 level.

The race for space

One of the consequences of the
pandemic has been the so-called
race for space, and to thot end the

mix between houses and flats has
continued to move toward the former,
with B6.0% of net additicnal dwellings
being houses (source: DLUHC). This also
means thot new houses have played o
larger part in new dwellings, with
conversions ond change of use
suffering the detrimantal effects ot that
ongoing trend. The outiook for 2022 in
the private sector is for some
continued rebaloncing toward starts;
CPa estimate 5.0% growth in starts in
2022 in comparison with 2.0% growth in
completions. This impetus on starts is
likely to be greatest in the first few
months of the year, as developers may
clso seek to ostablish sites that can be
rolled out under the governance of the
existing Building Regulations, prior to
the intreduction of Parts L & F

160k

private new home
starts in 2022 are
forecast to be 10.1%
above the 2019 [evel

Financiat

Remuneration Statements o9

Supply chailenges

On the supply side, there were well
publicised issues in 2021 relating to
shortages across a range of building
materials, as well as construction
labaur, which was experiencing
post-Brexit challenges. Nonetheless,
despite these headwinds, the sector
showed robust growth. Whilst there
continuas to be some fragility on the
supply side, and short-term issues of
consumer inflation, the structural
issues remain, and so growth is
expected with starts continuing to
grow through 2022 ond at 3.0% into
2023 (source: CPA).

The public sector

The public sector also bounced back
sharply in 202 with 39,51 starts (source:
C#a) baing ahead of the 2018 figure.
Completions atso grew 17.0% versus
prior year, however, due to the 231%
drop as ¢ result of the pandemic, did
not recover to pre-pandemic levels.
Adjustments to the Affordable Homas
Pregramme, ond the Shared
Ownership & Affordable Homes
Programme, reflect Government’s
preference for facilitating home
ownership in the private sector, rather
than directly raising new housing
supply. Conseguently, shared
ownership and sales via housing
associations and private developers
hove seen more focus than traditional
social housing for rentat. In the neor
term, whilst moderate growth is
expected, there is an expectotion that
financing will need to be shifted to the
various remediation and fire safety
improvements, so the outlook for 2022
is 0 return to growth in starts of 2.0%,
with completions growing at 3.0%.

At the same time, the shift towards
that remediation activity sees public
housing RMI forecast to grow 7.0%

in 2022 and 50% in 2023.
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Ma rketplace Review continued

Private housing RMI

Private housing RMIis estimated ta
have grown by 17.0% in 202! The
narrative around the accumultation of
househoid savings through 2020, and
the lack of opportunity to spend on
foreign holidays, has been well
documented. Itis certainly the case
that residential RMI has been a
significant beneficiary of this increase
in disposable income. Tha sector has
also benefited from historically high
levels of property transactions, since o
lot of RMI activity occurs within the first
year of a house move, The various
stimulus policies such as those on
stamp duty, undoubtedly drove high
volatility in transactions, as well as a
high overall total. For example, June
2021 saw 199,300 transactions, which
waos the highest on record (source:
HMRC}. 2021 was the highest output
value this sector has seen since
records began, ond soc althoughiit is
forecost to be flat through 2022, this
perspective should not be forgotten.

Commercial and Public
Non-Housing Construction

The commercial construction sector
had seen two years of decline, even
before the pandemic, due to the
various issues around politicol
uncertainty and Brexit, and 2020 sow a
further decline of 22.4%, meaning that
the market was 30.0% below its 2017
highpoint. 202t saw some recovery
with growth of 2.6% from that low base.
Therg Qre ongeing post-pandemic
structural questions reloting to office
space, which rapresents 30.0% of this
sector ond the role of retail in the

high street, and although there is
ongoing growth in the leisure and
entertainment sub-sectors,
commercial construction is not
expected to reach pre-pandemic
levels during the next two yeors. within
the public sector, it is unsurprising that
the health service saw a considerable
short-term hike in activity with a 261%
increase in new build activity in 2021, as
well as health playing a significant role
in the 10.0% increose in public secter
RMl seen in the year.

A slowing of growth

Although public sector growth is
forecast at 2.9% in 2022, it is stili below
its pre-pondemic levels, as the
gradient of that growth slows dug to
the completion of hospital projects
and the significant activity relcted to
the Commonwealth games in
Birmingham is completed. The
mid-term outlook is more positive
howaever, with the CPA forecasting a
2023 growth of 121%, led by the
initiatives in the School Rebuilding
Programme, and the Hospital
Rebuilding Programme. These
programmes are well triclled, ond the
impacts significant, although as ever
thera remain questions around the
timetable of delivery, given the
muiti-year delays in flogship projects
such as the Royal Liverpoo! Hospital
and the Midland Metropeliton Hospital.



Education
construction
expenditure is
settorise by

10.4%

in 2022
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Infrastructure

infrastructure is the sector that was
least impacted during the pandemic,
with the large outdoor projects seeing
ralGtivaly minor productivity impacts
due ta the rules around sacial
distancing. Given this, and the
significont capital projects currently in
place, it is no surprise that this sector is
already at pre-pandemic levels with
2021 growth of 23.5%, and an

expectation of growth intc 2022 of 9.7%.

This would put the 2022 activity tevel at
291% above the 2019 exit level. As aver,
some marques projects dominate this
space, with HS2, large wind farms,
Hinckley Point and the Thomes
Tideway Tunnsl project all having
material impacts on the sector.

Financial

Remuneration Stataments

For completeness, it should also be
notad that due to the way ONS
measure octivity on these major
projects, the granular dota and timing
can be prone o errcr, even though the
total picture is representative. The
roads sector is also set 1o see
significant growth, with the RIS2 now
secuning o funding envelope of
£240bn between 2020-2025. Eisewhere
in infrastructure, the regulatory
investmant periods covering the key
utilities, such as the water industry AMP.
are also set to see a growth phase
continuing into 2022,
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Our Business Model

K»

Our purpose We address the challenges caused by climate change and urbanisation
by providing water and climate management solutions, We're helping
construction build better.

Ourresources

People IP/expertise Strong leadership Capital investment

Clear direction and focused Disciplined capitat allocation
rasource allocation enables our 1o fund sustainable

colleagues to delivar our profitable growth, consistent
strotegic vision. with our strategic objectives.

J

Experts knowledgeable o Innovaton, continuous
our customers’ applications improverment and unique P
and empowered 1o act. deftends our market pasitions.

How we create value

Smart solutions

Digtal taols provide contrals,
maonitoring systems ond dala
management expertise, which

odd value tor customers.

Engineered solutions

Design and enginaering expertise
combine mechaonical performance with
economic volue Many of our solutions
are bespoke tor particutar customer or
project neads, where we can use

our knowledge of opplicatons and

Discrete products

Proclical solutions to practicat
challanges. Our focus and passion for
excedlsnce beagins with some of the
simpilast praducts in our ranges. Our
scale offords outornetion and high levels
ot efficiency in thase high volume lines.

translate that inte tailored offars.

2

Driven by competitive advantage

Trust Value Capability Sustainability
- Market leadership + Imtelligent engineered = industry authority + Sustainable products
+ Respecied bronds solutions = Product innovation ond practices
- Smarter thinking - Addressing environrmental
ond better solutions chatenges

Range Support
+ Breadth and depth « leading-edge design
of product systems expertise
- Apphcgtion-based

Competence
» Manufacturing
and logistics scale
= Bespoke product solutions

Our
sustainability
framework

technicql support

2

Advancing the
circulareconomy

We want to lead the industry in recycling
and waste. It is ow ambition to increose
recyclability fo its maxirmum threshold

and to becomae a zero-to-wasta oparation.

Developing sustainable sotutions
inarder to drive new greas of growth,

we want to scale innovation for sustainable
products, increase the proportion of new
and braakthrough products, and use digital
technology to add value.



create sustainable, engineered
wdter and climate management
solutions for the built environment.

Contract instollers
Civil engineers
and cantractors
M&E specifiars

.

+ Civits and

T

With four environmental growth drivers

Requirements of
resllientdrainage

A wGrmer, wetter world with
unexpected and more
trequent weather events wilt
neeqd innovative floodwaotar
drainage systems better
suited to the climate.

Climate management
solutions for cleaner air
Ponution, porticulotes ond
viruses in the air pese o threat
ta health and wellbeing,
particularly in cities. intelligent
climate management systems
dsliver cleaner and more
hygienic qir indoors

The need for green
urbanisation

Growing cities, impacted by
clmaote chunge, suffer trom
the ‘heat island effect’.
Green urbanisation solutions
mitigata this and help
reduce water scarcity

and increase biodiversity.

T

Tackling climate change

We are committed to reducing the carbon
faotprint from our operations and products
by focusing an reducing overall emissions
without resorting to corbon offsetting.

Investing in an engaged

and diverse workforce

we cre determined to bring in different
perspectives through building o much more
divarse tatent pool and supporting our colleagues
and communities to ‘build bock better”

Business Strategic Fimancial
Overview Report Goavernance Remuneration Statements
Y]
N
. .
Creating sustainable value for our stakeholders

" Customers Shareholders Employees suppliers Communities and
Quality and Dividend, capital growth Training and skills tong-standing the environment
innovative products, opportunity, responsible development, relationships, working towards
engineered solutions  and ethical investmant. commitment to diversity,  fair negotiation, a sustainable buift
that enable cﬁrec( engagement certainty onpayment.  anvironment,

. @sustainoble built and smpowerment, reputation, visibility sustainable progducts
envi{onment, providing ¢ chance on revenues. and practices,
support, vaiue, to make a differenca. anhancing the

_ fange, bespoke environment,
solutions, market while angaging
leading brands. with cammunities

o - and charities.
To help our customers
P Customers Who then deliver
Genuit Group helps professionals * Cne-off installers to the end user

= Housebuilders

Commercial

sector developers
« Agset owners ond seif-builders

Low/zero

carbon heating

As aresult of the energy
transition, there is increasing
nead for low and zero
carbon heating solutions in
the context of the move
towards o more sustainable
built environment.



14

Gemit Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2021

Our sustainability
framework

Advancing
the circular
economy

Genuit Group continues to demonstrate We have a stated objactive of baing

at that level by 2025. As product mix

leadership in its commitment to recycling. fiuctuotes then this ceiling does otso

move, and unfortunately this

For example, the Group is the largest user happened to a small extent in 2021
of recycled materials within its European 2 fotus o Somplations in 2020, saw
plastlc PIpINg peer group. The use of reaction with @ significant increase in
B . starts in 2021 which led te a major uplift
recycled polymers is constrained by in gemand for underground products,

product standards, such that the maximum e o o

product is less, due to the prevailing

we can use within our mix of products would  standards. bespite this headwind, our

2021 tonnage comprised 49.4%

be 62.0% of our total polymer consumption.  recycied matsriols.

Target:
Recycled
materials

62.0%

by 2025



Business
Overview

"

Our investments
inrecycling
capability allow
us to convert
waste into
products

with a design
life of over

100 years.

Strategic
Report Governance

We remain extrermely active in

pursuing ways to increase this number.

During the year we approved copital
expenditure at Polypipe Building
Services for a £2.56minvestmentin g
new extrusion line to allow us to bagin
to make multilayer soil pipe using
recyclate through its core; we remain
cormnmitted to ensuring our capital
expenditure programmaes are focused
upon technology which improves the
sustainability of our products. We are
also activaly working to influence
changes o histarical standards to
increase the proportion of cur ranges
that can be made using recyclote.

Financial

Remuneration Statements

Modern technology means that
products using recyclate no longer
have perfermance disaodvantages,
and it is our view that standards need
ta reflact the interests of society. Genurt
Group is working hard with regulators
and industry bodies to push these
boundaries further.

In 2021 Genuit Group
invested inits ability
touse recycled PVC

£2.5m
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Our sustainability framework

Tackling
climate
change

As well as providing products and solutions
which improve resilience and adaptation to
the effects of climate change, Genuit Group
is also committed to reducing the impact
of its own activities and processes. In 2020
we announced that we would reduce our
like-for-like Scope 1 and 2 carbon impact
by 66.0% by 2025.

Target:

66.0%

by 2025

In 2021 we reduced our like-tor-fike
carbon intensily by 44.0%, using the
market-based methodology of |
measurement. Acress the Group we
reviewed our socurces of electricity
supply, and switched all possible
contracts to being supplied through
renewable-only sources. Once we
have unwound legacy Contracts in
our acquired businesses, this will be
completely rclled out QCross

the Group



Business
Ovarview

strategic
Report

During 2021, we also signed up to the
Pledge to Net Zero process, and have
committed to being aligned with the
more ambitious L5 degree Business
Ambition process. As part of that
process, we have also committed the
business to Science Based Targets.
We are working to subrmit thase targets
by the summer of 2022, which will then
be third-party verified and audited by
SBTi, and will form the backbone of our
journey post-2025 to being Net Zero.
Unlike our near-terrn targets, this will
also include our Scope 3 impacts.

During 2021, as well as our energy
management activities we have also
trialled bio-diesel in our cornmercial
fleet; the findings of that trial suggest
a helptui reduction in our tailpipe
amissions, ond provide aninput into &
broader investigation of moving away
fromn fossil fuels in that fleet. We are
undertaking a change to the
management of our company cars,
and will begin to migrate to Plug-in
Hybrid Electric Vehiclas and Electric
Vehicles over the coming months.

a

We have reduced
our carbon intensity
by 44.0% without
using offsets.
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Our sustainability framework

Developing
sustainable
solutions

Genuit Group recognises that the future Many of aur existing product ranges in

. . ater and climate management are
challenges of resilience and adaptation addrassing the issues created by

. climate change. From the large
will not Only be addressed by the stormwater sglgtipns ofRidgigtorm XL
products and solutions of today - that is o toth o the heat
why we see innovation as having a key pump powered Under Floor Heating
. . . systemns from Nu-Heat, we are

part to play in developing a sustainable supplying solutians to evar changing
bUSineSS fOf the future. weather events, or providing efficient

heat from renewable sources.

Sevaral innovation programmaes werg
disrupted by the Covid-18 pandemic in
2020, as well as some of the supply

Target: . . chain challenges seen arcund the

An ongoing Vitality Index of world in 2021. Unfortunately, this
impacted some product launches,

2 5 00/ and dampened progress against this

L [+ ] target. Nonetheless, several exciting

new solutions were brought to market

by 2025 during the year, maybe r?one more so
than the PolySync system, which
connects dreinage cttenuotion

Progress: systems with wegther foracasting

In 2021 our Vitality iIndex was technology to provide a highly

innovotive ond adaptive soiution to

20 20/ urban drainage combined with urban
L (o] greaning.

2020:22.8% Cur R&D pipeline remains strong, and
althaugh prograss versus the Vitality
Index target has been slightly behind
our expectations, our 2021 sotes
included £120.0m of revenue from
products which did not exist five years
ago, ond that £120.0m represents
growth of 55.6% versus our 2019
baseline year of comparison.



Bloc Smart
Biue-Green Roof

Qur work on the instaliation of a
ground-breaking climate and water
resilient research roof in the haart of
Manchester, has been completed.
Cited on Bloc, the smart blug-green
roof {designed by EPG and developed
by Palypipe Civils & Green
Urbanisation), combines Permavoid
and PolySync to store and re-use
rainwater at roof level, which reduces
the volurnea of surface run-off entering
the sewer network. As a result, it will
help lower the risk of flooding
associated with the prolonged
high-intensity storms, which are
becoming more frequent with
climate change

The blue-green roof has tronsformed
a city-centre tower block into the
home of Manchester's first luscious,
wildflower sky-meadow, which has the
potential to influence the future of
urban design and the role it plays in
rmanaging the impacts of climate
change. The local variety of wildflower
(caretutly selected by project partners
STRI) will help to attroct pollinators,
including o particularly rare butterfly,
the Manchester Argus.

Strategic
Report Governance

Using reacl-time high resolution
weather forecasting datg, it heavy
rainfall is forecast in Manchester, the
PolySync systerm will instruct the
attenuation tank to reduce its stored
water volume chead of time to
qccommodate storm flow without
surcharging the local sewer or river
network. Equally, if a prolonged dry
spell is predicted, the system will
maintain maximum velume for re-use
for the irrigation of the green assets
abave and in turn, support Biodivarsity
Net Gain requirements. Additionaiy, it
wili support United utilities (which
co-funded the installation at Bloc) to
develop o greater understanding of
how new construction and data
technologies can support Manchester
to mitigate the impact of climate
change

Polypipe Civils & Grean Urbanisation's
Permavoid solution was used to

create this innovative blue-green

roof structure. The shallow sub-base
attenuation system is comprised of
high strength moedular cells connected
using PermaTias to create a structural
raft. Made from 100% recycled polymer,
the system manages rainfoll at source.

Remuneration

Fingncial
Stotements
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Our sustainability
framework

Investing in

a8

The breadth of
Genuit Group
provides exciting
opportunities for
our people.

an engaged

and diverse

workforce

Genuit Group realises the role that people
play in achieving its success. It is therefore
vital to our ambition that we are able to
recruit from the widest possible talent pool,
and that all of our colleagues feel valued
members of our Group.

Target: Progress:
People in Earn & Lteam .
5.0% 3.2%
by 2025 2020:3.8%

Employee engagement is measured
by way of an annual survey across the
Group. Perhaps unsurprisingly in the
context of Covid-19 and increased
levels of remote working, our
engagemaent level dropped by 4.6%
during 2021. Nonetheless, we have
processes to investigate some of the
causes behind this decraase, and will
be instigating measures for 2022, in
order to return to the positive trend
we had seen previously.

We cortinue to invest heavily in
developing our people, in a varisty of
programmes, focusing an technical
or job specific skills, as well as the
broader requirernents of leadership.
At the end of 202, 3.2% of our
colleagues werg in some form of
occredited Earn and Learn activity;
that s over a hundred peopie
improving therr various skill sets and
capabilities. Our budgets and plans far
2022 will see this number grow further.



Business Strategic Financial
Qverview Report Governance Remuneration Statements

We rgcognise the role diversity and When we rebranded the crganisaticn
inclusion ploy in an orgonisauon, and as Genuit Group pic in 2021, one of our
we want all colleagues present and underlying abjectives was to create a
future to see Ganuit Group as an sense of dual identity for all colleagues
organisation in which they can alt to feel a sense of belonging — both to
thrive. Wa have recording and monthly  the business in which they worked and
reporting measures in place on key the wider Group. This sense of group
areas of diversity and have recently belonging is important in order to
introduced further analysis ond facilitate and improve mobility of
processes within recruitment activities people betwesn our businesses, end
to enable us to be more proactiva in help peapie to have the broadest
ensuring we attract a diverse range of possible coreer paths and
candidates to the business. oppaortunities. We are investing further

in our internal communications

rgsourcas in 2022, to ensure that the

rmomentum of the rebranding of the

Group is carried forword.
Realising the potential of our people
Talent & development Performance Culture, engagement, Reward & recognition
Astrong. customer-focused mﬂnugement inclusion Improved business

organisation is cultivated
through effective leadership,
organisational bench
strength and proactively
creating the right
development opportunities
for our people.

High performance is
achieved through setting
and measuring both
individual and shared
objectives which are
aligned to the strategic
goals and expected

Success is achieved
through consistently driving
the right behaviours and
fostering aninclusive culture
thot promotes positivity,
wellbeing and high levels of
employee engagement.

behaviours of the business.

performance is realised
through incentivising
individuals to crecte
volue, outperform

and demonstrate the
right behaviours.

2
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Six Strate

ic

Growth Drivers

Genuit Group has six

growth drivers

which underpin performance. Providing
solutions for adaptation and mitigation
of climate change is at the heart of our

growth strategy.

In order to achieve our objective of
outperforming the undertying
construction market by 2-4% per
annum, we focus on the key tailwinds
relating to climate change as well as
{wo other trends and opportunities.

The increasing need for
resilient drainage

As our climate chonges, planners
need to cater for more frequent
extreme weather events. This
combines with increased
urbanisation to place higher
demands upon flood and drainage
monagement systems, requiring
ever more sophisticated salutions.
The need to manoge large volumes
of water, in a sustainable way,

is akey 1ssue facing planners

and developers.

©

The need for
green urbanisation

As more peaopl& live in our towns
and cities, society is placing
demands upon solutions which
integrate drainage functionality,
along with providing better urban
environments. The ability to use
green spaces as part of water
management, and as a way

to promote air quality, is a real
oppoertunity to move beyond
basic product functionality and
i to provide added societal value.

The focus on ¢clean
and healthy air

The quality of air we breathe inside
buildings ond in external living
spaces is rightly high upon scciety's
agenda. Thera is increased focus
an the removal of harmful
particulotes, and the Covid-19
pandemic has placed sharp focus
upon the necessity of ventilating
the spaces in which we live and
work. Specifiers ond building
owners now see that air quality
should be given the same focus in
building design as that traditionally
ploced upon heating and lighting,
in terms of the enviconment

it creates. )



Being able to heat our buildings
with a lower carpon impact has
been a key element of
Government’s suite of policies to
rnitigate clirmate change. This has
involved changes to the building
regulotions, such as Part L, as well
as a more Nolistic view on

transitioning from carbon-based .

heoting, 05 expressed in the Heot
& Buildings Strategy published

in October 2021, ahead of COP26.
As well os the carbon impact of
heating, there is also o wider
ccknowledgement of the role

carbon places in construction more

generolly and, in order to meet
clirate change targets, the entire

supply chain needs to play its part

in reducing the carbon impact of
the way we design and build our
homes and workploces.

segments are now substantially
canverted tc modern products,

an opportunity. As moterials
devalop, and attitudes change,
s0 we see continued growth
headroom through the ongaing

move o plastic alternatives.

there are still sorme sectors where
sulbstitution continues to repraesent

Business Strategic Financial
Ovearview Report Governance Rermuneration Statements
Growth drivers driven The increasing need for o
by the sustainability resilient drainage
challenges we face The need for green urbanisation o
The built environment has an impact et | 3
role to play in climate change hezltc‘h‘;“;f" dleanan (3]
adaption and resilience, and we focus —
upon four key growth drivers which The tronsition to low and zero (1)
relate to our core strengths of water carbon heating
management, and vantilation and In oddition to this, we see ongoing
climate management. apportunities for growth based around.
Legocy material substitution o
Geographic reach o
Low and zero carbon Llegacy material Geographic reach
heating, and low substitution Given the international nature of
carbon construction Although the majority of our target our growth drivers, many of aur

rmarkets. Wa see opportunities to
serve these needs via export
models or cooperation with local
partners. Although we remain
focused primarity on UK
opportunities where we can best

we foresee geographic reach

continuing to be a growth driver.

solutions are attractive in ovarseas

leverage our commercial foctprint,

23
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Key

Performance

Indicators

As a Board, we continually review
our performance indicators that
are critical to the measurement
and delivery of our strategic
objectives and sustainable

shareholder returns.

we have defined our Key Performance
Indicators {KPIs) to measure alignment
between our operating activity and
strategic goals.

Non-financial KPIs

Recycling
Link ta strategic ocbjoctivey:

00

The proportion of the Group's overall
polymer consumption satisfied with
recycled materiols.

Importance te Ganuit

The Group has a commitment to achieving
the highest standards of environmental
performance, preventing pallution and
minimising the impoct of its operations
incluging reducing waste to fandfil).

Commentary

Our use of recycied material in the yaor
increased ta 49 4% of our total tonnage
consurnption. In addition, we invested in
increasing our cagability 1o use recycled
potymer, maost notably in our Building
Sarvicas business, which should gccelerate
our progress towards achieving our targeat
of 62.0% by 2025,

Strategic objectives Financial KPIs

Sustoinatle water . . N
management solutions Sales growth Underlying operating margin
Sustainoble climate Link to strategic objectives: Link to strategic objectives:

managemant solutions

Legacy material substitution

Legislative taifwinds

Smart solutions, innovation
and continuous irmprovemeant

Custormer-focused
complete solutions

Geographic reach

The annuoi percentage growth in both
Group and UK (by destination) revenue.
Importance to Genuit

Our strategy is to ensure that investment
in our people and operations drives
salas growth which outpertorms the
construction market, thus enhancing
our market leadership positicn.

Commentary

Group revenue increased significantly due
o the oceretive impact of the Adey, Nu-Heat
and Piura acqusitions, incraased valumes
following recovery from the initial impacts of
Cavid-18, and inflation. On a fika-for-tike
basis, Group revenue increased 29.5%
compared to the overall UK construct:on
market of 13.3%, as suggested in the CPA
winter forecaost, reflecting our strategy te
target those end markats where profitabiie
growth prospects are greatest.

00000

Underlying operating profit as a
percentage of revenue,

Importance to Genuit

Indicatas that we ara investing in the
rightinitiatives and operating efficiontly,
by driving out non-value-added costs
and delvenng productivity gains,

Commantary

Underlying operating margin recoverad
5.4 percentoge points Qs volumas
recoverad following the pandemic. This is
lower than historical fevels Que 1o the
rormal log in effecting price increoses to
recover inflation and ongoing Covid-19
related costs.
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Accidentfrequency Developing our workforce Greenhouse gas emissions
Link to strategic objectives: Link to strategic objectives: Link to strategic objectives:

The nurnber of reported accidents gs a
proportion of the number of production
hours across the whole Group.

Importance to Genuit

Beyond mare compliance, this is on
indicator of the state of health ond safety at
our various sites and the degree to which
the warkers are protected from work-related
hozards at their workplace. Our aspiration is
to achieve zerc octidents every yaar.

Commentary

Accident frequency increased following a
Cowvid-19 impacted 2020, though our
fong-term trend is decreasing. The Group
cantinues to focus on behavioural change
with regulor observational inspections and
encouraging Gn open repurting culture.
Operating businesses across the Group
mgeintain external industry standords,
ensuring legisiation complionce and
adoption of best practice.

Tha proportion of our UK colleaguas aclively
participating in The 5% Club recognised Earn
and Learn schemes such as oppranticeships,
graduate traines prograrnmes and student
sponsorships.

Importance to Genuit

Developing and investing in our colleagues
drives sales growth, operational efficiency
and profitability, whilst facilitating employee
retention and enhancing workforce morale.

Commentary

In 2021, wa ochigved Silver Stotus with The 5%
Club and, at the end of the year, we had over
100 UK colfeagues participating in accredited
Earn ond Leamn schemes. The decrease in
relative terms frorn 2020 primarily reflects the
Adey, Nu-Heat and Plura acquisitions and,

to a lesser extent, the Cowvid-19 disruption.

On a like-for-Fke basis, excluding the 2021
acquisitions, 3.6% of our UK colleagues
participoted in accredited schemes in 2021

000

The intensity ratio is defined as the total
tonnes of Scepe 1 ond 2 CCqe produced
per total tannes of production

tmportance to Genuit

The year-on-ysars improvermentin thig
measure demonstrotes our commitment to
operate in an environMmentally sustainable
manner, as the Group continues 10 grow.

Commentary

Group greenhouse gas emissions have
decreased significantly. Our decision to
switch to certified renewabls efactricity has
directly impacted our @missions intensity.
Moreover, it contributes to reducing our
relionee on fossil fuelsin the wider
environment. The Group continues to
develop its strategy and framework ta
turther reduce emissicns through

snergy efficiency.

Underlying EPS

Link to strategic objectives:

00000

Underlying diluted eqrnings per share.

Importance to Genuit

Provides Genuit's investors, in particular, with
a consistent indication of the Group's
underlying financiol performance.

Commentary

Urderlying diluted earnings per share
increased due to the accretive impoct of the
Adey, Nu-Heat and Plura acquisitions ond
increosed volumes, following recovery from
the initial impacts of Covid-19, offset by the
higher effective tox rate and increased
share count following tha February 202t
equity plocing.

Cash conversion

Link to strategic objectives:

Opserating cash flow excluding non-
underlying terns lass nat copital expenditure
1o underlying operating profit.

Importance to Genuiit

Cur focus on cash conversion demonstrates
our tocus on efficiency, as well os enabling
us 1o fund future orgonic ond inorgonic
growth,

Caommentary

Qur cash conversion was impacted by the
strategic decision ta inGrease inventory
levels o improve customer service
performonce lodowing the recovery in
dernand after the pandemic

Return on capital employed

Link to strategic objectives:

00000

Return on capital employed is the rotio of
undertying operating profit, adjusted for the
full year benefit from acquisitions during the
year, where relevant, to average net assats
excluding logns and borrowings, cash ond
cash equivalents and taxation.

Importonce to Genuit

A key indicator of the efficient deployment
of capital on tha right initiatives and of
Genuit's overalt pusiness performance,

Commentary

The Group's return on capital employed
increqsed significantly, following recovary
from the jnitiol impocts of Covid-19,
although rermained iower than historical
levels cue to the dilutive impact of goodwill
ond other intangible ossets recognised
following the Adey, Nu-Heat and Plura
acquisitions.
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Sustainable Solutions

Genuit Group has sustainability at its core.

As well as operating our business sustainably,

the Group is addressing the key issues
around resilience and adaptation to climate
change within the built environment.

Growth drivers

Climate change poses
new challenges for the
bulit environment

Genuit Group's response
tothese challenges

Adaptation

Although we are fully engaged with
mitigating climate change, there is
an ongoing and increasing need

to acapt 1o the impact that climate
change will continue to have. Even
the most aggressive ciimate goals
still expect impacts, such as
increosed temperatures and
extreme weather events, to be

with us On a permanent basis.

Resilient drainage

Increased, unexpectaed and more
frequent weather avents are testing
the iimits of conventional drainage
und sewage. Adapting to climate
change will require innovative
floodwater drainage systems better
suited to o warmer and watter world.

Resilient drainage

The impact of this is felt no more
sharply than within the built
environment. Drainage designers are
now required to cater for more
extreme rainfall on a more frequent
basis. Qur market-leading solutions
within the Polystorm, Pluvial Cubse,
versavoid and Rigistorm XL ranges,
provide designers with a range of
solutions which ollow them to combine
efficiant drainage design into the
landscaping or broader building
design context We continue to invest
ininnovation to provide smarter
drainage for a warmer, wetter world,
without simply over-engineering
sclutions in a wasteful way. For
example, our racantly launehead
PolySync ranga combines product
functionality with loT technology, so
thot drainage systems can hove
access o waather information.

Climate management
solutions for cleaner air

Pollution and perticulotes in the
qir pose a threat 1o heolth and
welibeing, particularly in cities.
intelligent climate management
systerns deliver cleaner and
more hygienic air indoors.

Climate management solutions
for cleaner air

Air monagerment is not just an issue of
temperature, but also of air quality. The
filtrotion systems such as Noxmaster
ond the Haven range, offered by
Nuaire and Damus, can remove
particulotes and help to ensure clean,
fresh and healthy air is moved arcund
buildings - whether they be officaes,
hemaes or schools. Furthermore, we
can engage with specifiers to propose
integrated solutions such as a
blue-green rocf, alongside a
ventilgtion solution, so that the building
is using the oxygenaoted cooler air from
the roof. The issue of particulates has
been on the agenda for some time,
and, of course, Covid-19 has brought
ventilation and fresh air into even
sharper focus. We continue to innovate
sohutions for both new build and for
retro-fitting, as society recognises the
provision of clean air as being as
important a facet of building design
os the heating and lighting systems.
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Theseissues
need new
solutions

Business Strategic
Cverview Report
Green urbanisation

Growing cities, impacted by
climate change, suffer from

the ‘heat island effect” Green
urbanisotion solutions mitigate
this, but also help reduce water
scarcity and increase bicdiversity.

Green urbanisation

Urbanisation places turther stress

on water management and
infrastructure. The chatlenges of
increased rainfoll ore exacerbated by
increased popuiation density, and this
prasents landscape architects and
drainage consuitants with additional
challenges such as the urban heat
island effect, os warm air radiates
between buildings in close proximity.
Our product ranges of Permavoid and
PolySync allow these challenges to

be met in an integrated way as
blue-green roofs, podium decks and
rain gardens provide ways to monage
rainwater, whilst using urban greening
to give cooling effects, air quality
improvermnents and a visuaily pleasing
anvironmant in which to ive and work.

Low/zera carbon heating
Heating and cooling our homes and
workplaces is alsc an area where the
issues of mitgation ond adaptation
meet each other. In terms of
mitigotion, regulations such as Part L
and the Government's recent Heat
and Buildings Strategy, publishedin
October 202, place much emphasis
on the transition to low and zero
carbon heating. Several Genuit
pusinesses are focusad on this issue.
Nuaire have been involved in
mechanical heot and ventilation
recovery for spme time, both in
commercial and residential
applications; this technology uses
‘waste’ warm air from kitchens and
bathrooms to heat water, or other

parts of @ building. Cur market-lecding

prasence in underfloor heating grew

in 2021 with our acquisition of Nu-RHeat,
which qiso supplies renewabile energy

such as heat pumps ond solar as
a part of its proposition. Adey, also
acquired in 202), are market ieacders

M Low/zero carbon heating

As a result of the energy tronsition,
especially the rermoval of natural
gas frorm households, there is on
increasing need for low and zero
carbon heating solutions in the
context of the move towards a more
sustainable built environment.

in magnaetic filters which significantly
improve the efficiency of water-bosed
haating systems, meaning they can
provide heat from lower energy inputs.
The challenges of adaptation relate
more to cooling, us we seek mora
environmentally friendly solutions than
traditional air conditioning. Nuaire’s air
maonagement solutions can move
naturally cooler air oround buildings,
taking advantage of external shading
or sun direction.

27
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Our sustainability framework

Genuit Group is making the buiit environment more sustainable
by helping create a more resilient planet, society and business.

Genuit Group recognises the positive
and sustainable impoct that we have
on the built environment, both locally
and at the macro scale. During 2020,
a group of senior managers from
across the Group devstoped a series
of granular targets and outline action
plans that apply across the four areas
of our sustainability framework. Some
of these build on what we have been
doing for some time, some stretch us
in new areas, and they combine to
give us a robust approach and series
of targets to accelerate our progress
over the next five years. These targets
are well communicated internally and
externally, and we hold ourselves
accountable for delivery against them
as we ensure a resilient business for
the future. The topics and targets

are embedded in appraisais of staff
and management, and far some
colleagues, form part of performance
evaluotion for remuneration.
Embedding our sustainability agenda
across the workforce is a key focus for
us in achieving our objectivas. At the
same time, we hove to articulate our
sustainobility credentials in order to
recruit and retain talented pecple. We
have committed to roising the bar for
sustainability, for ourselves and for
others, and we want o see smarter
and more sustainable processes right
acrass our industry. Working together,
we will moke the built environment
more sustainable for generations

to come.

Our sustainability
framework
Advancing the
circular economy
We want to lead the industry in
recycling and waste. It is our ambition
to increase recyclability to its
maximum threshold and to become
a zero-to-waste operation.
Our 2025 targets 620/ z
o £LEero
oftonnage waste
fromrecycled tolandfil)
plastics
Our progress
inthe year

Despite @ more challenging product
mix, we increased our proportion of
recycled materials versus prior year

We invested £2.5m to increase our
capability and capacity to use
recyclaed PVCu

in polyethylene ond polypropylene
products, over 75.0% of our material
came from recycled inputs

We continue to lobby for updates
to standards to allow graater use
of recyclate

Recycled
materials:

49.4%

of total tonnage from
recycled materials
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Developing

sustainable solutions

In arder to drive new araas of growth,
we want to scole innovation for
sustainable products, increqase tha
proportion of new and breakthrough
preducts, and use digitat

technology to add value.

Tackling climate change

Wwe are committed ta reducing the
carbon feotprint from our operations
and products by focusing on reducing
overall ermissions without resorting to
corbon offsetting.

investing inan engaged
and diverse workforce

we are determined to bring in
different perspectives through a
diverse talent pool and supporting
our calleagues and communities
to build successful careers.

25%

of sales from productslaunched
within the preceding five years

Innovation continues te be a growth
engine within our businesses, as we
focus on oddressing the challenges
of the future

« Qur Vitality Index measures the
proporticn of sales from products
and ranges lounchad within the
past five years

+ In 2021, those products totalled
£120r, o 55 6% increqase over
our 2019 baseline

Vitality
Index:

20.2%

66%

reductionof CO,
emissions (Scope 1and 2)

During the year, we made
considerable progress toward our
2025 targat, as well as committing to
longer-term goals

- Via green energy sourcing ang
efficiency programmes, we
significantly reduced our
carbon impact

- We signed the Pledge to
Net Zero, using the 1.6 degree
Business Ambition

+ We will publish SBT's during 2022

Carbon intensity:
Reduced by

44.0%

5%

of colleagues tobeinearn
& leam programmes

At the year end, over o hundred
colleagues ware in qualifying
earn and learn programmes

+ Prograrmmes such as our
HGV Driver Academy provicie
opportunities, while oddressing
a skills shortage

Our earn ond learn programmes
cover a spectrum from
engineering apprenticeships
through to digital marketing

and we will see this humber
increase further

People:
Percentagein earn ancleam

3.2%
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Sustainable
Operations

As well as providing solutions which seek to
limit climate change, or provide resilience
and adaptation to it, Genuit Group also
has sustainability embedded in the way

its businesses operate.

In the Autumn of 2020, we
communicated a series of
wide-ranging targets across the
sustainability agenda, which would
form paort of our road map. Since then,
not only have we progressed against
those initiatives, we have also odded
longer-term goails, ond begun
processes to have aur progress
verified by independent third parties.

Reducing our carben intensity

we have committed, as an interim
milestone, to reduce our carbon
intensity in Scopes 1 and 2 by 66.0% by
2025 - without resort to offsets. It is
pieasing to report that in 2021, our
carbon intensity using the
market-based method, reduced by
44.0% compared to prior year. During
the year, we transferred the vast
rmajority of our sites to being supplied
solely from renewable electricity
sourcas. Only the sites which have
been recently acquired, and which
are subject to lagacy supply contracts,
are outside of this scope, and this wilt
change as those contracts unwind,
This will also apply to any future
acquisition activities.

We have otso conducted @ trial of
biedigsel in o section of our
commerciol fleet. Early results suggest
tailpipe reductions in carbon of around
10.0%, as well as reduction in other
harmtul particulates such as Nitrogen
Dioxide. We are taking this trial dota
intc a broader review of our
commercial fleet, alongside other
options to reduce its carbon impact,

and will report mare fully in due course.

We have also committed to a new
leosing contract for our company car
fleet, and wiil bagin a process of
transitioning that fleet to Electric
Vehicles and Plug-in Hybrid Etectric
Vehicles baginning in the first half ot
2022, We will communicate the
timetable for transition and its carbon
impact n due course.

The company car fleet initiative is one
example of us broadening ocur carbon
reduction pragrammes to include
Scope 3. This follows on frem us signing
the Pledge to Net Zere in the first half of
2021. Subsequent to signing the Pledge,
we have since subscribed to the
Business Ambition for 1.5 Degrees,
which is the most ambitious of the
target and measurament ragimaes,
and will be the basis of our Science
Based Targets (SBTs). Genuit Group is in
the 2022 cohart for submitting targets
tc Science Based Target Initiative SRT),
and this will form the framework of our
transition to net zero by 2050.

Increasing the use
of recyclates

For some time, Genuit Group has baeen
leading the way among Europeon
plastic piping producers in using
recycied polymers. In our 2020 Capital
Markets Event, we committed to
achieving 62.0% of our total tonnage
being from recyclote by 2025. The
products we supply are governed by
various stondaords and approvals,
using our baseline product mix, 62.0%
would be the maximum permitted
QCross our ranges under those
stondards. In 2021, the proportion of our
tonnage consumed from recyclote
was 48.4%, an improvement on the
prior year figure of 45.9%. This was
achieved despite product mix
challenges which were more toward
those procducts where standards either
restrict or disallow the use of recycled
maternals. Indaead, within that total
figurs, some of cur ranges are using
much higher levels of recycled inputs.

For example, our polyethylene and
polypropylene ranges both averaged
over 75% recycled content during 2021
We are investing to increase our
consurmption of recycled PVC. During
2021 we committed £2.5m of capital
axpenditure to a muti-layer extrusion
line in our Polypipe Building Services
busingss, which will enabie our Tarrain
brand to include more sustainable
products within its range. As well s
being consistent with our own
sustainability objectives, we are seeing
increasing demand from our
customers for such products and the
supporting data, which allows tham to
reduce the carbon impact of their
construction projects. With that in
mind, we are continuing our efforts to
expand the 62.0% ceiling. We are doing
this by using our positions on industry
and standards bodies to try to drive
change both at a UK and European
level. We are also looking at creating
products that deliver the required
perfarmance levels of those standards,
aithough they ore constructed in
newer, more sustainable woys. We see
our markets being open to accepting
these offarings as being the
apprepriate way to reduce the carbon
impact in canstruction. We are also
working o improve the availability of
carbon data via tools such as
Environmental Product Deciarations
{EPDs), so that customers and project
owners can make informed decisions
about their projects
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Overview

Greenhouse gas emissions

This report details the energy
consumption and greenhouse gas
{GHG) emissions from the activities
of Genuit Group ple during the period
1January 2021 to 3l becember 202,
Genuit Group ple GHG emissions,
reportable under Streamlined Energy
and Carbon Reporting (SECR) during
the period specified above, were
22,725 tonnes CO,e. This figure has
been caiculated using the UK
Government's most recent GHG
Conversion Factors for Company
Reporting (2021). This is in iine with
standard industry practice and
allows fair comparison with other

UK businesses.

This figure includes all the material
Scaopeland 2 emissions, required
to be disclosed by the specified
legislation, plus additional Scope 3
emissions. The Scope 3 emissions
include transmission losses and
weli-to-tank losses and have been
included voluntarily, in line with
previous submissions.

It con be seen in Toble 1 that Genuit
Group GHG emissions were 37.77%
lower than in the 2020 reporting period.
Although there was anincregse in
emissions fromn stationary and
tronsport-related fuel combustion,
refrigerant usage dropped.

Amorket-based methodology has
also been applied to the calculations
in Table 1 and througheut the rest of
this report to reflect Genuit's
investment in a green electricity tariff.
This is the reason for the large
reduction in alectricity, and therefore
Scope 2, emissions.

Genuitis committed to improving the
scope and quality of their dato
collection for GHG calculations across
the Group and this has partially
contributed to the increase in Scopel
activity, as weil as acquisitions made
during the financial year.

It can alsg be seen in Table 1 that the
octivity of the Group increased by
16.76% when compared to the previous
reporting period This resulted in the
Group achieving an emission intensity
of 0152 tonnes CO,e per tonne of
production during 202), a 46.66%
improvement on the previous
submissian year,

Financial
Statements

Strategic
Report

Remunaration

Gaovarnonce

The Group continues to focus on energy efficiency and, in 2022, planned
implementation and integration of formal energy efficiency and carbon
reduction warking groups and committee will be formed to manitor progress,
identify areas of improvement and share best practice.

Table 1 Greenhouse gas emissions (tonnes CO,e) by source and
reporting period

Parcentage

200 Change

Percentage 2020

Ermissions Source 202 2020 share te 2021
F i . 5Ass 4739 .88

13,704 1,252 21.80%

ECI!_:IH[Y operation:

198

-B4i6%

Total emissions (1C020) 22,725 36,516 -37.77%
Output (tonnes of production)  M9490 | 128038 1676%
intensity {tCO=e per tonne of production}) 0152 -46.66%

* The 2021 ernissions figure for purchased electricity above (and used throughout)
reflects our investment in a zero-carbon electricity tariff for the majerity of the estate.
In the terms of the Greenhouse Gas Protoco, this is called ‘market-bosed’ reporting -
as opposed to ‘location-based' reporting. Location-based reporting does not take into
gccount the elactricity supply contraets o company has and instead uses g national
carbon emissions tactor tor atectricity. Following the locaticn-bosed methodalogy
{which is required to be aiso reported under SECR alongside market-based figures),
our 202] emissions from electricity were 20,417 tCQ,e (including transmission and
distribution lesses), giving total emissions of 39,995 tCO.¢ and an intensity of 0.268
tCO,e per tonne of production - g 8.12% decredse on 2030, The remaining elactricity
armissions figure above of 347 1CQO,e is tfrom electricity not covered by our zero-
carbon tariff, and from transmission and distribution losses.

UK legislotion requires the public reporting of Scope | and 2 emissions, Scope 3
emissions for quoted comipanies being optional. As mentioned pravicusly, Scope
3 ernissions resulting from tronsmission and distribution, asseciated with losses
during the use of grid etectricity hove been included, as well as business travel in
private vehicles (grey fleet).

The spiit in reported emissions by scope is shown in Tabie 2 below:

Table 2 Greenhouse gas emissions {(tonnes CO,e) by scope and
reporting period

Percentage

202 Change

Percantage 2020

Emissions Source 2021 2020 Share ta 2021
SOOPRY oo o e e 384T 3937 8O0% | 4025%
Scope2 . o hesr 18337 6S% | J91sek

scope 3 1691 4242 75% -60.13%

Total emissions (tC0sa) 22,125 36,516 100.0% -31.77%

wWhen split by scope, it is Scope | which is associoted with fuel combustion in
transportation and combusticn of fossil fuels at the site that make up the largest
portion of the portfolio (86.0%).

Energy consumption

The introduction of SECR means that companies are required to publish annuat
energy consumption as well as emissions. Tobie 3 below shows the total energy
consumption for the Group and the split in energy source/fuel type.

Table 3 Energy consumption (MWh) by type and reporting period

Percentage

202t Change

Percentage 2020

Emissions Saurcea 2024 2020 Share to 2021
Fuel combustion: Stotionary | 30092 | A88 W7Sw  38I%
Fuel combustion: Transport 60868 45413 & = 354%  3403%

Purchased electricity 81102 77363 471% A483%

Total Consumptich {MwWh) 172,062 144,565 100.0% 19.02%

3
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Sustainable Operations continued

UK & Global Consumption

Arequirement of SECR reporting for PLC companies is that they provide a split of
their Scope | and 2 emissions between those that are eritted by UK sites and
thase emitted by sites in thair portfolio outside of the UK.

Table 4 Energy consumption (MWh) by type and reporting period

Territory Scope tCOe MWh
UK 1 L8018 8088
Globat 3 2

v

Global ! 0 1857
Total 21,034 172,062
Boundory, methodology Energy efficiency initiatives

and exclusions SECR |egislation requires thot every

An ‘operaticnal control’ approach has
been used to define the GHG
emissions boundary’.

This approach captures ernissions
associoted with the operation of
all buitdings such as warehouses,
offices and manufacturing sites,
plus company-owned transpaort,
and includes Genuit Group plc
operations in the UK, Italy, and the
United Arab Emirates.

This infermation was coliected
and reported in line with the
methodology set out in the UK
Government’'s Environmental
Reporting Guidetines, 2019.

Emissions have been caiculated using
the latest conversion factors provided
by the UK Government. There are no
material ornissions from the
mandatory reporting scope.

The reporting period is Jonuary 2021
to December 202, as per the
financial occounts.

1 An operationa! contrel opproach to GHG
ermissions boundary is defined as: 'Your
organisotion has operatianal control
over an gperation it it, or one of its
subsidiaries, hos the fult authority to
introduce and implemant its operating
policies at the operation.’

company provides some bosic
information in their Directors’ Report on
the energy efficiancy initiatives carried
out in the financial year covered by
this Report.

Further to demonstrating their
cormmitment to sustainability through
the recycling of end of life materiol ¢t
the Horncostle facility, the Group have
signed the Pledge to Net Zero and
have set ambitious targets with
milestones in 2025 and 2050.

Genuit {os members of the UK's
Climate Chonge Agreement (CCA)
scheme) have agreed to achieve o
3.797% improvement, on 2018 efficiency,
by the end of 2022 Eight of the Group’s
manufacturing sites fall under CCAs,
with a further two sites signing up to
the scheme at the end of 2022,

To support achieving this target, Genuit
have committed to reviewing their
approach to energy monagement
acioss the Group. Following the efforts
ot selected manufacturing sites, the
Group have additional sites
conforming to iISO50001 certification.
There is ¢ Group plan to further
develop and formalise the energy
management processes, including
regulor monitoring budgeted project
plans werking to facilitate the
identification and implementation

of energy-saving opportunities.
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Task Force on Climate-related-
Financial Disclosures Report

Introduction

The Group understands the serious
threat that climate change poses to
our planet and it recognises its
responsibility in mitigating its impacts
through sustainable business
proctices and climaots resilient
products. The Group’s purpose is to
addrass chailenges caused by climate
change ond urbanisation and has
embedded climate chonge in its
strategy and day-to-day operations.
Erviromrmental growth drivers and
sustainability fraomework and targets
are highlighted in the Group's

Annual Report and Accounts which
demonstrote its commitment to this.

i

However, the Group recognises the
benetits of adopting international
framewaorks such os the Tosk Force on
Clirnate-related Financia! Disclosures
{TCFD} to provide consistent and
transparent information to global
markets ang, as a resull, is committed
to aligning its reporting proctices to
the TCFD. In this first TCFD report, the
Group has outlined its current position
ond identified any changes that will be
implemented during 2022, to enable
full disclosure against all TCFC
recormmendations in our 2022 Annual
Report and Accounts. Where
applicable, the relevant section of our
disclosure is linked to relavant sections
of this Annual Report and Accounts.

As a Group, we recognise the risk of
climate change and the impact it will

have on the

planet and our business,

with sustainability being at the heart
of our growth and operational strategy.

We are committed to continue reducing
our emissions and environmental impact
and will be net zero by 2050, whilst being
transparent on our progress through our
communicated sustainability targets.

Updating our reporting

practices to

align with the TCFD will articulate this
to our stakeheolders in a transparent
and consistent manner. We are fully
committed to continuing to build on
our climate risk reporting framework
to produce high-quality disclosures

in future years.

Joe Vorih
Chief éxecutive Officer

Areas of focus 2022

Perform a detGiled risk assessment

of climate-related risks and
opportunities aver the short, medium,
and long term, using two climate
scenarios (o anaiyse and accurately
assess materiql impact ond further
analyse the resilience of our strategy

Further consider climate-related
risk in strategic decisions and
tinoncial planning

Develop a dedicoted climate risk
maonagement framework to ensure
management are informed of
chmate-related issues and adequately
monitor the associated risks

Continue to regularly menitor
progress made in achieving
our sustainability targets

33
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Task Force on Climate-related
Financial Disclosures Report continued

Governance

Disclose the orgonisation’s governance around climate-related risks and opportunities

a) Describe the
board's aversight of
climate-related risks
and opportunities

b} Descrnbe
rmanagement’s role in
ossessing and
managing climate-
related risks and

The Group recaognises the importance of effective governance in the management of climate- Risk

ralated risks and opportunities. During 202!, Genuit Group updaoted its risk reporting processes so Carnmittee
that risks would be consistently monitored ond scored, ensuring climate-related risks were Report on
effectively embedded across its businessas as port of ongoing improverments [o risk identificotion  pages 78
and mitigation precedures. The Board has overall responsibility for addressing environmental to 80
matters and climate-reloted risks, and delegates the ongoing monitaring and rmanagement of

these risks to its Risk Cormnittee, which is responsible for discussing and addrassing internal

cantrols, and risk managernent systerns and opportunities. Further getail on the membership,

activities, responsibilities and frequency of meetings of the Risk Committee can be found in the

Risk Cornmittee Report. Climata risk hos been recategerised as o principal risk in 202, and

consequentiy will be individually addressed in the context of all strategic decisions considerad by

the Risk Committea. The Board is updated quarterly on the progress made by the Group in

achiaving its sustainability targets, and the Risk Cormmittee will similarty review progress on these

targets specifically in the context of climate-related risk and will implerment any amendrents

requued to copltailse on opportumtles or rurther ml(rgote as clpproprlate

The Group understands thc! taking ownershrp ol climaile chunge risk ot all levels wnthm the Group Prmcnpal

is fundamentat to the accurate identification and mitigation of climate-related risk. Civisionot Risks and
management present to the Risk Committee on a rotational basis which includes any clinnote-~ Uncertointies
related risks, and actions and decisions on climate-related risk and cpportunities are on puges
communicated by the Risk Committee Chair to the Board in the same way as other principal risks 52 to 56

are. Methods and mitigation for managing these risks ore communicatad by senior management

opportunities i - ] ) X .
0 thee business uUnits. This ensures full imtegration and consistency across the Group. Given the
increased prominence climate-related risk will have in Risk Committee meetings going forward,
increasaed reporting and transparency from business units will be required to enabiea the Risk
Committes to hove o consolidated aversight of climate-retated issues across the Group and
report directly to the Board.
Strategy

Disclose (he octual and potentiol impacts of climate-related risks ond opportunities on the organisation's businesses, strategy, and financial
planning where such information is material

0) Describe the
climate-related risks
and opportunities the
organisation hos
identified over the
short, medium, and
long term

Group revenues are primarily genarated within the UK and the Group's production facilitias are Framework
also heovily UK concentrated, therefore assessment of the Group's climate change risk and for
opportunity is perfarmed within that context. Although under periodic review, assessment of the managing
physicol risks is deemed to be immaterial. Serme risk exists in certain internationo! areas of the risk on
Group's supply chain linked to axtrerne weather events, and dual supply orangernents are page 5l
agreed where necessary to mitigate risk. The Sroup recogrises issues of tronsition risk and

therefare has committed its operations to a variety of sustoinability targets ond will submit

Science Bosed Targets (587Ts) in 2022, consistent with the 1.5 degree business ombition. These risks

are assessed in a regulatory and reputation-bosed context, given the importance of these issues

for the Group's stakeholders. These assessments are carried out as part of the risk management

processes. The issues of adapiation and resilience (o climate change provide opportunities for

Group products, and these growth drivers farm core parts of the Group's commarcial strategy

and drive its innovation and Mergers and Acquisitions (M&A) agendas. At the same tima, the

Group con foresee transition risk in some of its products, and theretare itis in the process ot

completing Life Cycle Anolysis (LCA) ond Environmental Product Declargtion {EPD) in order for its

custy embedded carbon

b} Describe the
impact of climate-
related risks and
oppartunities on the
organisation’s
businessés, strateqgy,

Growth
Drivers
on pages
22t023

Tha outcomes of planned scencric Gno#ysas dunng the year wul be rewewed ond reﬂected inthe
Group's business strategy. The identification of maorket changes as o result of climate-related risks
ond opportunities are a consideration in deciding the morkets in which the Group choosesto
opergle Climote-reloted risks are inhergnt and embecdded in four of the Group's six growth drivers,
which focus on addressing issues resuiting from climate change. Innovation and M&A octivities
focus on identifying opportunities and mitigating risk. The Group has signed the Pledge to Net Zera

ang financiol planning  ond, os an interir target, is committed 1o o §6.0% reduction in Scope | ond 2 Greenhouse Gas

(GHG) emissions by 2025. Group initiatives that underpin this centre around energy reduction,

including use of ranewabls enargy sources and reduction in use of fossil fuels in its cormmercial

ond car fleets ond lts tlnancmk plcmntng processas ﬂccommodcte these mmot vas
c) Describe the The Group aims 0 reduce its GHG emissions in ohgnment wuth its smence— bcsed torget to mee! chkllng
resiience of the: its gool of becoming net zero by 2050, in alignment with the UK Government's strategy. The Group Climate
organisotion's has committed to the Science Based Targets Imtiative ($BTi), the current mast amoitious Chonge
strategy, taking into science-based carkon reduction strategy. Plons to enoble this transition are in progress and will anpagel§
consideration be publishad following verification by SBTI. This, alongside its 2025 targets, will ensure thot the
differant climate- Group's operations are consistent with a transition to net zero, and forms part of its strategy to o
relgted sCENarios, achieving this. Tne Group does nat currently see material risk in its revenue streams due to climate  Frncipal
inctuding a 2°C or change, but is committad 1o ensuring this assessment is continually monitored during 2022, as Risks and
lower scenario part of the implementation of 11s climate-related risk managerment framework, Tha product Uncertainties

ranges in water management, climate management, ventilation and fow carbon heating, all g; 5)059693

assistin providing the built erwiranment with resilience to climate change impact, as described in
the Group's Principal Risks ond Uncertainties.
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Risk Management

Disclose how the organisation identifies, assesses, and manages climaote-related risks
a)} Describe the The Group understands the importance of climats-related risk across its businesses ond Principal
argonisotion's manages environmental regulotions through impact assessments and aspect revisws in its risk Risks and
processes for register. Environmental fisk management hos been expanded tainclude climate as a principol sk Uncertainties
igentifying and in 2021, previously categorised as on emerging risk in 2020. Formal review ond ongoing onpages
assessing climate- managesment of the risk register is a responsivility of the Risk Committes, as outlined in the Risk 5210 56
re}oted nsks commnttee Report
b) Describs the Senior monogers romn within the business report their key rlsks which include susmmobwlny ang  Fromewark
organisation’s climata change related risks, to the Risk Cornmittes. These risks are ossessed by the Committee to  for
processas far understand their likelihood and impact, atong with the necessary mitigations and optimal rmonaging

managing climate-
related risks

c) Describe how
processas for
identitying, assessing,
aond manoging
climate-related risks
oreintegrated into the
orgonisation’s overall
risk monogement

controls. Given the prominence of sustainability in the Group's strategy, climote and related risks rigk on
are inherent in everyday operations and decision-making. The Group is currantly inthe process of  page 51
developing o dedieatard climate risk manqagement frarmework. For more detail on the frormewark

I‘o: monoglng nsk pleose refer © me Pnncnpol Rlsks ond Uncertcmnes sectlcn w:thnn mxs Report.

As requlred by the UK Cmporote Govemcnca Code Prmcnple C the Board should estobllsh a Process for
framework of prudent cnd effective controls, which enabie risk to be ossessed and monaged. The  identifying,
responsibility for assessng risk on behalf of the Board was previousty that of the Audit Committee,  ossessing

however, following the creation of the Risk Committee during 2021, the latter is now tasked with ond
ensuring the effectiveness of the risk manogement process, as well as confirming that the mitigating
Principal Risks and Uncertainties of the business are appropriately disclosed extermnally. The Risk risk on

Committea reviews and provides the Board with recommendations on gl risks, including climate pages 78
change. Further details on the Group's overall risk management process are avaitable within the to 8C
Principal Risks and Uncertainties section in this Annual Report and ACCounts.

Metrics and Targets

is materiat

o) Disclose the metrics
used by the

Disclose the metrics and targets used to assess and manage relevont climate-related risks ond apportunities where such information
The Group understands the importance of target setting and aochieving them. Itis developing KPIs on
systems to further improve its data collection and data integrity, with the input of interna resource  pages
and third-party experts. The Group is developing a framework of reguiar energy efficiency 2410 25

organisQtion to assesy
climate-related risks
ond opportunities in
line with its stratagy
ond risk management
process

b) Disclose Scope |,
Scope 2, and, it
appropriate, Scope 3
reenhause gos
GHG) ermissions,
and tha rgloted risks

¢} Describe the
targets used by the
vrganisation 10
manage climate-
ralotad risks and
opportunities and
perforrmance
ogainst targets

reporting of site-specific targets, which will be agreed and measured. As detailed in the SECR, we
use stondard measusas of emissions intensity and monitor perfarmance o1 sité and Group level,
The Group have established both carlbon and recycling targets for 2025, using 2019 as the base
year for respective reduction. The wider data integrity and accuracy review which was started in
202 and will be completa in 2022, provides the Group with the capability to monitor and review
performance on a monthly basis The Group will have a greater depth of understanding to ensure
behaviours and actions are taken to achiave its targets. As with all of its processes, the Group will
continue 1o review and ensure it is able to increase the level of dota and matrices beyond current
targets and objectives, which will further support its journey to net zera and the adoption of

:t SaTs

The Group dlsc!oses rts emnssuons through SECR which is mcluded wathln the annual Report ond Greennouse
Accounts The Group will have a Scope 3 emissions inventory within 2022 gnd has engaged Gas

extemal advisers to verify this as part of our SBTs. Scope 3 ernissions have always beenincluded Ermnissions on
with Scopes | ond 2 as stipulated in GHG reporting, in addition to the conditions in our Climaote pages
Change Agreement, requiring a reduction in carbon mtensity throughout the designated 3tto 32

reporting periods. The Group’s anergy is sourced from renewable sources which has seen its
carbon impact reduced and the Group has experienced an overall improvernent in its operational
energy efficiency and carban emissions. Reporting period changes and improvemants in
em|55|ons are detaited wm'un Ihe SECR

The Group understands the |mportcnce of torget semng to ensure thot \t |s on a rrcjectory to Sustainable
achieving its goals. In 2020, ambitious targets were set, including a 66.0% reduction in like-for-ike Operations
carbon intensity in Scopes 1 and 2, without the use of offsetting. The Group believes that offsetting  on page 30
at this stage does not encourage best practice and shouid be avoided until it has exhousted afl

efforts to reduce its GHG emissions. A target was set to reach 62.0% recycled motericl usage, and

the Group is aware thot its responsibility as a large plastic manufacturer could have a large

positive Impact on tha environment. The target of 52.0% is whot hos been identifiec as the upper

limnit of what can be achieved under current product standards, however the Group wark

constantly to increase this number. The Group's state-of-the-art polymer reprocessing plant at its

Polypipe Civils and Green Urbanisation site in Horncastle, is testament to this amibition to do more

and go further and it has recently invested £2m in incraosing its copability to using recycled PvC.

The Group is aware that setting these goals was an important element of its sustainability Remuneraton
strategy. Its commitment to sustanability is further evidencad through signing Fledge toNet Zero . Reporton
and the setting of SBTs with tha SBTi, in line with the 1.5 degree commitrnent. The Group updoted its pages 105
Remuneration Palicy in 2021, which included the refining of pertormance metncs to include to 116
sustainability targets inits long-term incentive plan. This further rattacts the central importance of

sustainability 1o the Group's future strategy. More detail on how these are structured con be found

in our Remuneration Report. i
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People

We recognise the crucial role that our
people have in delivering our strategy.

Puring 2021, a1 Chief Paople Officer was
appointed to the Executive Teom to
ensure that we have an overarching
and Group-wide approach ta talent,
people development and employes
engagerment, giving focus to these
areas at a senior level and consistantly
throughout the Group. The Genuit
brand enables the creation of an
identity within which il colieagues
would feel on equol sense of
citizenship. In order to be an employer
brand of choice and tc ensure that our
scale provides opportunities for
people to develop, wa nesd paople to
feel a sense of belonging to the
Business unit in which they work and

also to the Group to which they belong.

That way we con truly leverage the
capabilities thot exist within the
organisation, creoting best practice
and knewledge sharing, whilst also
offering real employee development

People development

We continued to moke progress in our
membership of The 5% Club, and were
awarded Silver Status during the year.
Over a hundrad of our employees
were in qualifying development
programmaes ot the year-end. This
represented 3.2% of the total workforce
at that dote. Our plans for the year
ahead, will ensure further progress

n 2022

Qur apprenticeship programmes
continue to flourish. These cover g
range of disciplines beyond those
which might have been raditionally
associated with apprenticeships.

For example, we currently have
apprentices in Digital Marketing, CAD &
Design and Field Scles. Our HGV Driver
Academy programme uses training
as a route to address this specific skill
shortage, which is present across the

industry and beyond. Similarly, our
groduate intake programme 15 geared
around the present and future needs
of the business, and so, for example,
during 2021 we recruited graduates

in sustainability, and material/f
polymer science

Our online Learning Management
Systems are delivering significant
amounts of training every month
and cover important topics, such
as health and safety, compliance,
personal develcpment and on the
job practical skills.

Employee engagement

we believe our organisation performs
at its best when our colleagues are
motivated and engaged, and we
measure engagement levels via a
survey across the Group. 2021 saw

a slight reduction of 4.6 percentage
points, with an engagement rating

of 57.2% Whilst this is sormewhat
axplainable by the lengthy periods of
rermote working and the challenges
of safe working procticas during the
Covid-18 pandemic, nonetheless we
are focusing efforts on understanding
any broader issues, and our local
management teams are developing
plens to turn this arcund in 2022,

a4

Our organisation
erforms at

its best when

our employees

are motivated

and engaged.
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Diversity & inclusion

We want to be able to attract people
from the widest possivle talent pool in
orger to Ochieve our gools and
objectives. This means that people

of all ethnicities, genders, sexual
orientations and backgrounds must
see Genuit Group as a place in which
they can feel welcomed and con
thrive. Therelare, across our various
businesseas, wa endeovour to have cn
ethnicity mix which reflects our local
communities. We have recording/
reporting meosures in ploce on kay
areas of diversity which are reported
on a monthly basis, and have recently
introctuced further reporting and
analysis withirn recruitment activities
to enable us to be more proactive in
ensuring we attract a diverse fange
of condidates to the business. We are
also toking steps to achieve o Group-

Strategic
Report

Governance

wide gender mixin line with the
Hampton-Alexander report guidelines.
Of course, there is same historicat
imbalance given we are o
manufacturing biussinass in the
construction products sector, and we
are exploring programmes and
actions to help redress this. We
recently supported a number of our
fernaie employees to participate in the
‘ves, She Can Campaign’, a workshop
designed to support and facilitate
female leoders in businessfindustry.
We conlinue to monitor gender pay
gop reporting, ond as at 5 April 2021
our median averoge was -11.0% and
mean -15.8% As at the year-end, cur
gender sphit was 75.0% male, 256.0%
fernale, which compares to wider
canstruction sector indicators which
suggest an average of 10.0% female.

Financial

Rermuneration Statements

i

We leverage the
capabilities that
exist within the
organisation,
creating best
practice and
knowledge sharing.
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Health, safety
and wellbeing

Genuit Group is committed to improving
the quality and safety of the working
environment for all of our colleagues.

Health, safety and wellbeing

Manufacturing is on industry with a risk
of significant workploce injuries cnd
long-term heaith hazards, due to the
nature of its manufacturing and
logistics operations. The Group
addresses this through ensuring,
maintaming and continually improving
its health, safety and environmental
standards. The Group's approach
tncludes demonstrable actions

and tollow up and creating an
inclusive culture.

The Group aims o continuously
improve the quality and safety of the

working environment for all ennployees.

The Group has o published Health,
Safety and £Environment policy that
sels out the overriding principles of
health and satfety for all employees.
The Group divisions operate to
axtarnally acereditad 1ISO and OHSAS
standords. Group divisions apply the
standords as ¢ minimum levet of
compliance with additional internal
processes covering aspects such os
training, incident management, audit
and review.

Each operating site undertakes ragular
reviews of health, wellbeing, safety and
environmental performance,
discussing current and emerging risks
and agreeaing mitigation plans. Health,
safety and environmental
perfarmance, including details of
significant incidents, are reviewead
during the weekly Execulive Team
meetings. Details and learning are
communicated across the Group,
ensuring a consistent approach and to
prevent reaccurrence.

The Group recognises the importance
of understanding and improving its
culture. Highly engaged, inforrmed and
trusting employees enhance heaith,
safety and environmental
performance. As such, we continue to
deliver Group wide behaviourgl-based
safety training programmes, the focus
being individual and collective
decision-making and the
consequences of thase. Sofety
ambassadors, together with
established formal consultation tearms,
continually monitor, advise and
improve site HSE performance in
addition ta increasing the positive
profile of the cultural change plan.

The Group operates a formal system
for reporting and recording hazards
ond near misses. The 'See it, Sortit,
Report it schame encourages
individuals across the business at ail
levels to report hazards and suggest
solutions, and ollows trends to be
anolysed. This raporting procedure
continues o be the catalyst for
multiple operational and safety-
reloted projects.

The Group continued the
implementation of a focused,
farmalised salety tour prograrmme for
managemaent. These sofety taurs,
undertaken by Executive Diractors
through to department managers,
engage staff ond further encourage
heaith, wellbeing, safety and
envirocnmental discussion

and improvement.

Covid-19 response and
management

In response to the pandemic and the
changing landscape and
requirements throughout 202}, the
Group implemented o serigs of
measures to ensure that our operating
sitas and offices remainad safe and
secure. Throughout the pandemic, the
Group followed Government advice as
a minimum ond will continue to do so.
Additional inforrmation and guidance
were provided to aid with sofe and
sustainable remote working.
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Significont physical and management
rneasures continue to be implemented
across tha Group including:

Covid-19 specific risk assessments
remain in place, communicated and
under regultar review. Additional and
regular training and
communications to all staff
regarding the measures continue to
be carried out.

The Group centinues to check the
temperature of all employees and
visitors on arrival to site. Those with o
high termperature are refused entry
and advised to have a Covid-19 test.

Established Covid-19 control
measures including face coverings,
social distancing, increcsad hygiene
regimens were applied throughout
2021, based on internal rigsk raviews
and in line with Government advice.

various Group sites have been visited
by the HSE Covid-19 inspection team
as part of their ongoing programme to
check business compliance. The
inspectors noted high lavels of
compliance and best practice

being applied.

Strategic
Report Governance

Heaith and safety
achievements in the year

Following nine consacutive ROSPA
Gold Awgrds, the Group achisved

the Gold Madal Award for exceptional
performance and dedicatad

support for health and sofety

within the organisation.

The Group has introduced two internal
accupational health services to further
support colleagues. Onsite ond remote
physictherapy clinics provide
rehabititation following work and
non-work-related injuries. The
occupational health and physic tecms
have provided further advice and
guidance in reviewing operational
behaviours and controls as the Group
works to reduce musculoskeletal injuries

In 202, the Group enlisted the services
of a counsellor to provide private and
confidential advice and support to
colleagues ocross the Group. The
feedback has been overwhelmingly
positive and is a further commitment
to ensure that individual health and
wellbeing is a business priority.

The table below sets cut the KPis used by the Group 1o monitor

accident performance:

Remunearation

) "E"rebort‘c':bie accidents*

2081 2020 08
S WO .-, 8
048 043

* HSEreportable accidents ore based on specified injuries and the current seven-day
absence from wark reporting requirement in the UK and, Glthough there is no direct
squivatent in Maintand Europe and the Middle East, the same definition is applied.

Financial
Statements

£ %

As well as constantly
improving our working
environment, our
teams are engaged
ininitiatives toimprove
the environment

more broadly

Ouwr employees are actively
encouraged to participate in
initintives which help reduce the
impact of ctimate change,
working with each other, as well
as within the communities n
which we operate.

Operating sites across the Group
are committed to eliminating the
impact of plastic waste in the
wider envircnment The Group
signed the British Plastics
Federation ‘Operation Clean
Sweep, and sites continue

to audit and improve the
management and control

of materials.

we continue to review and
raduce our packaging waste,
working with suppliers and
custoners to reduce waste in
the supply chain; engaging with
local sehools and encouraging
employees to bring their own
plastic waste for recycling at
our polymer processing plant.

The Group's focus on applying
the waste hierarchy has resulted
in a significant reduction in
waste produced, Qs we aim

for zero waste to landfill.

39



49

Genuit Group pic Annual Report & Accounts 2021

Engagement with
our stakeholders

Effective engagement with stakeholders
is an integral part of the process of
decision-making for both the Board and
our senior management teams and is
crucial to the effective execution of the
Group’s long-term sustainable strategy.

Our purpose is to create sustainable,
engineared water and climate
management solutions for the built
environment, We believe that by
considering material stakeholders

in our strategic decision-making, this
will develop a culture ond strategy
that will ensure the long-term success
of the Group, and we recognise that
each stakeholder has a vital role to
play in the Group’s future viability
and success.

To effectively engage with
stakeholders, it is imperative we seek
to understand their needs and the
individual vatue each of them brings
to the Group. By considering the
viewpoints of each respectively, we
can ensure that our customers are
satisfied with our innovative products
and beneafit from Our sarvices; our
employees operate in o safe, diverse
and desirable working environmaent;
our suppliers experiance fair payment
terrns and continue to work alongside
us in a collaborative fashion; our
impact on the climats is minimised
and we continue to engoge with, and
support, the local communities in
which we operate.

7}

By considering

the viewpoints of
each stakeholder
respectively, we can
ensure decisions are
made to promote the

long-term sustainable

success of the Group.

In considering the above, this
approach to decision-making will,

in turn, promote the succeass of the
Company for the benefit of its
members as a whole and create
long-terrm sustainable growth and
success for the Group. Engaging with
ond understanding the needs of our
stakeholders therefore forms an
integral port of decision-maoking for
both the Boord ond our senior
management team. The impact of
Board decisicns on the Company's
stakeholders is regularly considared
by the Board in the context of its

key decisions, and the Company
Secretary acts as a key driver in
ensuring such engagemaent.

The pandemic continued throughout
2021 and we prioritised minimising the
impact of it on our stakeholders
through numerous methods. We
ensured we kept in touch with
customers and suppliers to inform
them of changes in the anvironment
that were beyond our control, as well
as communicating the measures we
would be putting in place to minimise
such impact. Employees wera
frequently kept up o date with ary
developments, and as the regulations
changed throughout the year, thear
safety and wellbeing was at the

forefront of all Board decisicn-making.

Qur efforts in the community were
not dampened and we continued
to creote vaive and rnake
improverments ta the communities
within which we operate, which is
evident from the strong ties each
of our businesses has locally.

Kay Issuas

Customers

solutions

Sustainability

innovation

Ralationship building and
customer service

- Ditfarentioted product
1
1
&

Shareholders

A = Investor returns
= ESG and sustainabifity
.ﬂﬂl]l]. « Innovation
- Risk management

» Strategy

Employees

+ Camenunication

- Retention of staff and
maintenance of culture

+ Learning and development
and future capabilities

+ Health and wellbeing

= lLong-tarm effects of
pandemic

&)

Suppliers

= Continuity of supplies and
@ management of supply
% 9 chain constraints

- Ensuring product quolity
meets agreed standards

- Accurate demand forecast

« Support and utitising local
suppliers

- Sustainability

- Innovation

Community

.

Education

Sustainable operations
and minimising
eanvironmental impact
Charity

Wworklorce of the future
Sponsorship

i
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Outcomes Value created

How we engage

we work collaborativety an project planning
and implementation. We initiate and engoge
through collaborative training, education and
faciitote reguiar cross-community forums and
events. we meet regulary with our customers
to understand the obstacles they face and the
sclutions they require in relation to energy
sfficiency, waste reduction and traditionol
construction methods. Annual surveys are sent
to custormers ta obtan leedback.

Increasad stability and ceainty on project
timeaframes, reduced cost and increased
customer loyalty

Deptoy energy efficient components
dalivaring innovotive designs ard solutions

Safer, higher quality and speedier
instafiations and delivery of value
enginsered solutions

Establishment of long-terrn partnerships
through collaborative working, enabling
delivery ot long-term sustainable solutions

Revenue and profit growth

Improved efficiencies far the customerin
tarms of sarvice, knowledge and
sustainability

Close partnerships and business
relctianehips

Craation of value lor our custamers by
delivery of high quality, efficient ang
innovative products and solutions
improved performance and reputaton tor
our customers with the end users

We hold periodic Capital Markets Events inviting
current and potential investors to attand. we
hold roadshows and salesforce briefings after
aach results onfauncerment and offer
ane-to-one meetings on request. we ragulady
ottend broker and analyst confarences.
informgtion for sharghalders is gvailable an our
investor relations website and through our
various publications. We also engage with
shareholders vio ow Remunergtion Committee
Chair on key remuneration matters.

Continued demand for the Company’s
shares (heightening shareholder returns)

Support for equity placings

Support for strategy including that
pertaining to ESG

Support for investrment decisions
including M&A and copitol expenditure

Acceplance of termporarily higher levels
of debt

Stable blue chip register

Reduced cost of capital
Stable ond sustained share price

Potental for dividend payments

We circutate regutar newsletters, videos and
emails, use DIogs, hoid business update
meetings and host emplayes foaems. Regular
social events are organised by divisional sacial
committges, Wa have o dedicated Lecdership
& Development (L&D) resource and form
partnerships with specialist boining providers.
Increased comMmMunication is Maintained, with
occass b an online wellbeing hub, together with
direct access to on-site health and wellbeing
support. We regularty monitar Suiture and
ensure our Group values are embedded
throughout, We conduct staff surveys and
reguiar appraiscis to engage with employees.

Mvestors in People - Silver Aword
Cormmunication af relevant and timaely
information ond sharing of knowledge
Improved levels of engogement and
employee satistaction, mantaining a
retention of diverse amployees with
improved skill set

Regular access to training at akl levels,
obtaining tronsferable skills

Prominent aworeness and support for health
ond wellbeing issues, enhancing working
conditions for all

Processes impraved, initiotives developed,
management buy-in ot different lavels

Motivated, loyal and engaged workforce
Improved heaith and wellbeing resulting in
reduced sickness gbsentaes, employee
dissatisfaction and improved working
conditions

Knowledgeable ond innovative workiorce
with transferabie skills to future-proof the
Group workforce sectegy

attract ond retain high-quality employees

+ Fosters g culturg of trust, honesty, pasitive
morale and togetherness

we torm and develop strong supplier
relationships at alllevals and across all
discipiines, regularly engoging and partnering
with key suppliers to develop intiatives for
innovative solutions in o coloborative manner.
We conduct regular réviews and gudits,
including virtuol audits where required as a
result of the pandemic and colluborate as
appropriate aninnovative prodyct
development. We communicoti efficiently with
our suppiiers in relation to product quatity and
forward orders.

New and improved products and processes
Muttipte sourcing ond stable and precictable
production for suppliers

Fair payrmeant terms ang astablishment of
long-term portnerships

Reduction n waste frorm our productian
processes vig intarnal recycling, or onward
sales to a third party to reduce landfil
Development of bespoke reformutated
moternal to enhance the performance of our
cureent product range

.

» Reduced risk {o the busingss ond certainty of
a secure supply of essentiol materials and
services

+ Keeping cur supphers leading in their tisld yet
remaining competitive

Innovation (continuous Impravement)

Sustemable and ethical supply chains
Long-term partnerships

Regulor engagement with locol authorities and
businesses, delivering educational ond
vocational initiatives, attending schools,
praviding mentaring and experience sharing
and oppartunities for site visits. annual sdopted
cherities, local sponsorships ang charitable
donations ot products. Participation in
initictives to reduce environmental impact,
monitoring and respending 1o voluntary and
legistative requirements, including
perfarrmance testing of OuUr ProQuets pnorto
launch, group litter picking initiatives and
including ways te reduce environmental
impact in educational piecas.

Donations made to locol and national
charities and participation in kickstoart ond
tempus novo schemes

Support and development af local
educational institutions, winning uwurds
such as Business and Education partnership
at Goncaster Chamber dwards 2020
Long-stonding sponsarship of locol sports
clubs, reguiar charitable events and
fundraising

Cieaner ond friendlier areos for the local
comimunities

Increusing awareness of plastic processing
and recycling

Development of emplayability and financial
copability skills beyond the classroom, to
increase employment cpportunities for low
socio-economic familias

commitmant to the delivery of effective
education to disadvortaged student
poputations in kecal areas

- Driving diversity across STEM-related subjects

Reducing the impact of our overail activities
©n the environment and giving something
back to the local comrmunities within which
we gperate

+ Brond creation, development and Qwaraness

4t
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Section 172 Statement

Our Section 172 statement for the year ended 31 December
2021 gives further insight into how our key stakeholders have
influenced some of the strategic decisions taken by the
Board during the 2021 financial year.

One of the primary areas of focus for
the Board is the impacl its decisicns
or actions may have on key
stakeholder groups which fall under
5172 of the Companies Act 2006.
Board discussions therefore seek to
appropriately consider the impact
and views of these groups, whilst
always ensuring the need ta promote
the success of the Company for the
beneiit of its members as g whole. in
tight of this, the Board confirms that
during the year under review it has
given due regard {amongst other
matters) ta:

Board and management
decision-making

Our key stakehaolders are integral to
the Group's long-term strategy. Their
needs form part of everyday
decision-making and are
considered by the Beard throughout
the financial year when making
strategic decisions. Ultimately, Board
decisions are taken against the
backdrop of what it considers to be
in the bast interest of the long-term
financial success of the Company
and these key stokeholders, using
the information provided to it about
the impaoct of the decision in
question on relevant stakeholders.
Some examples of when this has
taken place are sat cut overleaf.

the likely consequences of ony
decision in the long term;

the interests of the

Group's employees;

This statement aims to halp
stakeholders better uncerstand and
to provide some examples of how
the Directors have discharged their

s172 duties.

the need to foster the Group's

business relationships with suppliers,
custemaers and others;

the impact of the Group’s

aperations on the community
and the envircnment;

the desirability of the Group

maintaining a reputation for high
standords of business conduct; and

the need to act fairly as between

members of the Company.

Customers

we endeavour ta create quality products with engineered

soluttons that enable a sustainable built environment far

our customers, placing our custormars’ needs at the heort

of cur strategic decision-maoking.

Shareholders

Creating o competitive advontoge generates long-term
value for our shargholdess, Qur strategy is to allocate
capital in a disciplined way to fund sustoinable profitable
growth, yielding consistent returns to shareholders over
the long term.

fo| Bl

Employees

As part of owr strategy we ore committed to develoging
the pool of talent of our employees across the Group,
helping to develop their expertise and knowledge in
their specitic fields, fostering @ culture which is diverse,
racognising, as well as acknowledging, that our
employees are a criticol part of the Group's long-

term sustainable success.

Suppliers

We value our suppliers ond understand the benefit of
maintaining long-standing relationsnips across the
Group. we encourage fair negotiation with ail supplhers,
as well 05 certainty on pgyment Protecting these
refationships ensuras positive impaocts on the value
chain and thus promates sustainable success.

Communities and the environment

The impact of our operations on the local comimunities
and environments within which we operate are of
parameunt impartance 1o the Group, in both daily
operations, and also whan maoking strategic long-term
decisions, We recognise the positive differences we can
make in our communities on an ongeing basis and the
importance of regulor engogement,

ing

-mak

£
o
@
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Key Board decisions in 2021 Stakeholders

Approval of appointments of Chief Executive Officer A
and Chief Operating Officer @ aill & QQS’ %

Intine with the requirermnents of the UK Corporate Governance Code, the Board approved the recommendations of the
Nomination Committes in relation to the appointment of Matt Pullan as COOQ, following the announcement of Glen Sabin’s
retirernent, and the appeintment of Joe Vorin as CEQ, following the announcement that Mortin Payne would be stepping
down from the Board during 2022, Having followed o formal, rigorous and transparent recruitment process for both roles,
the Board considered that these appointments were in the best interests of all stakeholdars and would ensure thal the
Board had the right composition, skills, experience and knawledge to centinue to drive and deliver the Group's strategy.

Approval to proceed with the acquisition of Adey ﬁq m g ‘E@? %

In fine with the Group's long-term strategy for growth and purpose, the Board gove approval to proceed with the
acquisition of adey during 2021, having prioritised ond considered the long-term consequences of this acquisition on

its stakeholders. As part of the decision-making process, the Board considered the potential synergies ond financiol
benetits of the acquisition, as well as the environmental credentials of the target business ond the benefit the acquisition
would bring to shareholders ond cther stakeholders in terms of the long-term growth of the enlarged Group and
potential returns.

Decision to carry out a non-pre-~emptive placing of new ordinary shares of A
the Company in February 2021 to partially fund the acquisition of Adey, & | & 2@9
raising gross proceeds of approximately £96m

Following a scencrio analysis exercise, the decision was made by the Board to fund the acquisition cost for Adey viaa
combinobion of existing dekt faciities and the proceeds of an equity placing, representing ¢.8.2% oi the Company’s issued
share capitat at that time. The transaction was signed and completed on the same day, and following the successful
completion of the placing, pro forma 2021 year end leverage will be below L5 times, therely strengthening the Group's
balance shest and reducing overall debt. Funding this acquisition by @ combination of debt and equity prevented

further investment from being constrained and business decisions being influenced by a focus on leverage ond
covenant management, thereby protecting the Cornpany's long-term prospects, Approving this placing also provided
stability and strength to increase competitive positioning to help accelerate growth post-Covid-19, which is beneficial

to ali stakeholders.

Decision to rebrand te Genuit Group pic m ﬁ &l %??

As the Group has continued to grow via acquisition since its IPO in 2014, the Board maode the decision to change its name
fram Polypipe Group plc to Genuit Group plc en 6 April 2021, as the view of the Board and the stakeholders it consulted was
that the Polypipe brand wes becoming less accurate as o descripter for the Group as a whole. In considering all
stakeholders, the decision was made to creote a more inclusive name for the Group os it maoves forwerds; with the aim of
more accurately reflecting the structure of the Group, whilst retaining all leading custorner facing brands (including
Palypipe) to ensure continuity of sarvice with customers and suppliers.

Decision to pay a final 2020 and interim 2021 dividend ﬁ

in light of the severity of the pandemic, the Board took the decision to cancel the final dividend for 2019 and the interim
dividend in 2020. Hoving closely reviewad the performance cf the Group through the pandemic, and having considered
all stakeholders when making decisions in line with thair s172 duty, the Board agreed to recormmend a final dividend for
2020 to shareholders for approval and to approve the payrnent of an interim dividend in 2021, benefiting all shareholders,
including our numaerous employee shareholders.

Decision to relocate Group Head OHice ﬁ &

in light of the increased size and geographic expansion of the Group and the increasing pressure on the office space at
the Group's Brocomhouse Lane site in Doncaster, following a detailed review of available options, the Board took the
decision to relocate the Group Head Office to a new Corporate Headquarters in Leeds.
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Section 172 Statement continued

How the Board complied
with its s172 duty

The duties under si72 form anintegrel
part of the gctivities and decision-
making of the Board. The Board
recognises that each decision it

makes will have an impoct in some
forrmn on ol stakeholders, and thus
integrates this into its culture. To ensure
the Board is fully awore of these
potential impocts and to promate
those initiatives which are expected to
have a positive ocutcome and minimise
those which may hove g negative
outcomae, it requires high-quality
inforenation 1o be provided prior 1o
meetings in a timely manner. This
allows for a detalled ond thorough
discussion at meetings, enobling a
considered, infarmed and balanced
approcch to decision-making. Our

2021 internal Board evaluation results
confirmed thot this is achieved, with
agendas and papers being sufficiently
detailed and designed to ensure
adeaqguate time is aliocated to each
itern as appropriate, as well as
confirming that the dynamic of the
Board allows for apen discussion and
encourages diversity of thought. You
can read mare cbout our 2021 internol
Boord evoluation on pages 72 to 73.

Minimising the impact of the Group's
operations on the environment is core
to cur commerciol strotegy, and thus
forms an integral part of the Board's
strategic decision-making. You can
read more about our sustainability
approach and the impact of the
Group's operations on the environment
in our Strategic Repaort on pages 26

to 35.

Non-financial information statement

The following table details the non-financiol information required by Section 414C8 of the Companies Act 2006,
and highlights where more information can be found elsewhere within the Annual Repart.

Methods of engagement
used by the Board

The Board uses varying methods of
engagemesnt depending on the
stakeholder and the most appropriote
method of engagement for the
circumstonces.

Engagement with stakeholders
includes but is not imited to; press
releases, ANNouNcements, surveys,
one-to-one contact, newsletters,
forums, emails and videos.

Louise Brooke-Smith is the designated
Non-Executive Director responsible for
employee engagement on the Board's
behalf. Mare information about the
Board's plans for improvements to the
methods of engagement can be
found on page 67.

Noa-financial information

Qur iMmpact ond any

reporting requirement Davalopment and actions related principal risks Page
Environmental matters  Providing solutions to the environmental chattenges facing Our Business Model 12
. AFWGHCII’\Q the infrastructure, buildings and communities is at the heart of the Six Strategic Growth Drivers 22
circular economy Group's strategy ond growth agendo, and as a rasult, the Group has set - -
+ Tackiing climate ombitious targets t achieve by 2025, inclucing a reduction af CO, Sustainable Operations 30
change emissions gs part of its Pledge to Net Zero, and an increose in its Sustainable Solutions 26
tonnage of recycled plastics. — -
Principal Risk 6 - 54
Climote change
Employees As part of its efforts 10 consclidate and promate o heaithy culture, People 36
+ investing inan the Group places focus on mctwc_nng and devgiopmg |_ts employees Health, sofety and wellbaing 38
engaged and so they feel volued and engaged in the strategic direction of the Group,
diverse workforce and understand their contribution to its growth, Attracting and retaining _ Stakeholder Engogement 40
+ Education and a diverse workforce and investing in employees’ future opportunities Culture &S

wark schemes
Paersonal
developrment
Health ond satety

.

is of pararnount importance 1o the Group, which can be seen from the
appoeintment of a dedicated Chief Pecple Officer, as well as initiatives
such as the Graduate Scheme, our Apprentice programma and our
membership of The 5% Club,

Principal Risk 7 ~ Recruttmeant 55
and retention of key personnel

Principal Risk 8 - 13
Hegith, safety and
environmental

Social matters The Group is committed to carrying out its business responsibly, Stokeholder Engagement 40
+ Developing and ensuring we promole sustainable cperations ond minimise Culture 65
sustainable adverse environmental and sociolimpocts. Employees are actively
selutions encouraged to participate in initiatives within their communities
which reduce the impact of climate change ond offer support
and education to their lecal cormmunities.
Human rights Whilst the Group does not hove a specific human rights policy, it does
have an Ant-Slovery policy ond Modern Slavery Act transparency
statement which is availoble on the Company's website, within which
we state our zero-telerance approach of any modern slavery or hurnon
trafficking rights violotions,
Anti-corruption Tha Group seeks to prohibit all forms of bribery and corruption withinits  Augdit Committee Report 85
and anti-bribery businesses ond complies with the requirements of all applicable Principal risk 8 - Breach of 55

onti-bribery and corruption laws. The Group requires all relevant
smployees to confirm each year that thay remain in compliance with
the Group's Anti-Bribery policy.

legislotion including UK GOPR,
Competition Low, the Bribery
Act and Sanctions Compliance
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Chief Financial
Officer's Report

The Group experienced a strong performance in the year
despite the pandemic and significant inflationary pressures.

Paul James
Chief Financial Officer

Revenue and operating margin

Group revenue for the yeor ended 31 December 2021 was £594.3m (2020: £3986m),
an increase of 49.1%. UK revenue increqsed by 50.6% following significant demand
as the nation recovered from the Covid-19 pandemic. On a like-for-tike basis,
Group revenue increased by 79.5%. This wos chead of the overall UK construction
market where the Construction Products Association (CPA) Winter Foracast
suggested a year-on-year increase of 13.3%. Private housing new build and raparr,
maintenance and improvements (’RM1) reached a historic high level of growth of
170%. Activity in the RMI sectar slowed during last Summer as supply constraints
reached a peok but sector demand returnad to ‘New normal’ {evels towards the
end of the year Infrastructure activity was again lass affected by the pandamic
than other sectors of the construction industry with growth estimated at 23.5%
(source: CPA Winter Ecrecast/MHCLG).

Cperating profit wos €67t (2020 £30.4m), an increase of 120.7%. Tha Group
underlying operating maorgin increcsed to 168.0% (2020: 10.6%) as volumas
recovered following the pandemic. This is 140 basis points below 2019 as the
Group continued to bear ongoing costs of managing the impact of the
pandemic. Profit before tax was £62.9rm (2020: £23.8m), on increase of 164.3%.

The Group continued to invest in product developmeant and innovation
throughout the pandemic. In 2021, underlying oparating profit benefited from
£2.0m of HMRC approved Research & Development Expanditure Credit, relating to
the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2021

202 2020
Revenue and operating margin £m £Em Change
i Revenue . 5943 3986  4890%
- b 4 12
The Group achieved neo ! , L9830 a2 12Sem
ungerlying operating margin 16.0% 10.6% 540bps
revenue growth of
o 1 2021 2020
490.1 /0 a." a 540 Msls Revenue by geographic destination Em Change
oints lmprovement UK, 3548 S06%
- 276
in Una?flylng Rest of world o 219 164 335%
operaﬂng murgin. Group 534.3 3985 ag1%
Business review
LFL
w02 2020 Change Change
Revatue €m £m %
e kA S L3728 Awe  ses 345
Commercial and Infzastructure Systems T 221.4 747 267 2314
$94.3 3986 491 295
200 ROS 2020 ROS Change
Underlying operating profit £m % £m % %
Residential Systerns : 734 126 298 B3 _.1M53
Commercial and Infrastrecture Systems 222 v a7 790
96.3 16.0 42.2 106 1258
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Revenue 49.1% higherat

£594.3m

2020 £398.6m

Residential Systems

Revenue in our Residential Systems segmenit, which is almost exclusively derived
from the UK market, was 66.5% above the pricr year at £372.9m (2020. £223.9m)
and 43.3% chead of the same period in 2019 (£260.3m). On a like-for like-basis,
revenue was 34 5% ahead of prior year and 15.7% above 2019.

The residantial sector continued its fost-paced recovery, due to a combination of
pent-up demand, and Government stimulus. The second quarter of 2020 was the
maostimpnrted by Govid-18 however, the strength of the housing recovery was
hightighted by the first quarter of 2021 seeing private starts and completions at
368.0% and 21.0% higher than prior year, respectively (source: CPA Summer
Forecast/MHCLG). These trends continued beyond the first quarter with private
starts and completions forecasted at 30.0% and 19.0% higher respectively tor full
year 2021 (source: CPA Winter Forecast/MHCLG). The CPA full yeor 2021 estimation is
that totai housing output will be slightly below 2019, as the gradient of recovery
begins to shallow out, partly reflecting possible constraining factors on the supply
side, including some kay construction materiais as well asiabour. These supply
side constraints have driven cost inflation through the course ot 2021, which was
oftset by our ability to pass on costincreases.

In the RMI sector, demand remained high for home renovation driven by the race
far space’ early in the year with activity slowing towards the end of the year, most
likely offectad by increases in the cost of living and constraints in supply of kay
raw materiols and lobour. The sector wos estimated to hove grown by 170% in the
year (source: CPA Winter Forecast/MHCLG).

Cur acquisitions, Adey and Nu-Heat, performed strongly and increased our mix
toward RMI activity, which was generally less volatile than new housing, Gnd more
profitable. The growth drivers and regulatory framework around fow carbon
heoting, which support both of these businesses, continue to provide confidence
in their ability to deliver against their strategic plans.

Residentiol Systems delivered underlying operating profit of £73.1m (2020 £29.8m),
a significant improvement on prior year and 36.9% ahead of the same period in
2019. Operating margin increased to 19.6% (2020;13.3%)

Commercial and Infrastructure Systems

Revenue in aur Commercial and Infrastructure Systems segment was 26.7%
higher than the prior yaar at £2214m {2020 £1747m), 18.2% ahead of 2019.0n a
like-tor like-basis, revenue wos 231% ahead of prior year and 8.8% above 2019.

Salas of ventilotion products were strong, benefiting from the increased focus on
the importance of fresh air in the workspace, with suitability for retrofitting
minimising the impact of the low level of new build activity. We saw strang
dermand for our water management systems with the expansion of larger
housing development sites, which was necessary due (o the rapid build out rates
and completions which occurred in the second half of 2020. Pluro performed in
line with expectations and is well positioned to bansfit from the near-term growth
in iNnfrastructure activity highlighted above.

Commercial ond Infrastructure Systerns showed somae resilience during the
pandemic, with the larger sites and open spaces moking continued operation
eqsier than the housing sector. However, differing trends have bean develeping
as we emerge from the pandemic, os the impact from wider structural
canstroints starts to be seen.

The commercial sector was affected by the move toward heme working during
the pandernic, as well as online shopping. This trend was particuiarty evident in
London, which accounted for over a third of commercial new build activity
(source: CPA). Latest projections forecast growth in this sector of §.4% in 2022
and 31% in 2023

Infrastructure was the strongest performing sector with continued growth in the
reguloted sectors such as roads Although some project delays hove caused a
slight moverment of work from 2021 to 2022, the CPA estimate for 2021 rernains
23.5% abead of prior year, and 18.0% ahead of 2019.
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£95.3m

2020: £42.2m
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Commercial and Infrostructure Systems delivered an underlying operating profit
of £22.2m (2020 £12.4m) and operating margin increased to 10 0% (2020: 71%).

Acquisitions

On 2 February 202, the Group acquired Nu-Heat, the leading supplier of
sustainable underfloor heating solutions, air and ground source heat pumps and
other renewable heating systems. for o consideration of £270m on a cash-freea,
debt-free basis. On 5 February 2021, the Group acquired 51% of the voting rights
and shares of Plura Compaosites Limited {Plura) for an initiol consideration of
£1.26m. Plura provides a range of products for utility companies, road and rail
operations, network builders ond designers in the construction and maintenance
of thair networks. These acquisitions were both funded entirely from the Group’s
Revalving Credit Facility. Acquisition costs have been charged to non-underlying
tems.

On 16 February 2021, the Group acquired Adey for a consideration of £2100mona
cash-free, debt-free basis. Adey is the UK's leading provider of magnetic filters,
chemicals and related products, which protect ogainst magnetite and othar
performance conskraints in water-based heating systermns and improve enargy
efficiency.

During February 202, the Group successfully raised £96.3m through an equity
placing of its shares, tunds which were used along with a drawdown oniits
Revolving Credit Facility to acquire Adey.

Non-underlyingitems

Non-underlying iterms before taxation increased to £28.2m (2020: £11.9m} primarily
relating to the acquisitions of Adey, Nu-Heat and Plura in February 2021, These
consist of non-cash amortisation charges of £14.2rm {2020, £7.8rm) in respect of
intangible assets arising from acquisitions since 2015, £66m (2020: £3.0m) of
casts reloted to acquisitions and othar M&A costs, a product liobility claim of
£2.6m, and restructuring costs of £11m {2020: £11m). There wos olso £3.7m of far
value odjustments associated with the Adey acquisition.

Non-underlying items comprised:

2021 2020
£m £m
Amortisation of intongibleassets - - W2 7B

Acquisition costs

Restructuring costs T R
Non-underlying items before taxation

I'r'npuct of change in statutory tox rate
Non-underlying items after taxation 34.1 10.9

Exchange rates

The Group trades predominontly in Sterling but has some revenue ond costs in
other currencies, mainly the US Dollar and the Euro, and tokes appropriate
forward cover on these cash flows using forward currency derivative centracts in
accordance with its hedging policy.

Finance costs

underlying finance costs decreased to £4.2m (2020: £65m) due to lower interest
rates and the prior yecr included costs related to the full draw down of the
Group's Revolving Credit Facility (RCF), a £50m Covid-19 facility and a £100m Covid
Corporate Financing Facility, which was repaid in fullin September 2020. Interest
cover was 31.3x for the year {2020: 78x).

interest was payabile on the RCF ot LIBOR plus an interest rate margin ranging
fram 0.90% t0 2.75%. The interest rate margin at 31 December 202t was 1.40% (2020
1.40%). With etfect from 4 January 2022, LIBOR was replaced by the Stondard
Qvernight Index Average {SONIA).
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Final dividend of

8.2pps

2020: 4.8pps

Taxation

Underlying taxation

The underlying tax charge in 2021 was £16.0m (2020: £6.3m) representing an
effective tox rate of 17.6% (2020: 176%). This was below the UK standard tax rote of
19.0% (2020:19.0%). Patent box relief contributes to a lowering of the underlying
effactive tox rate by some 1.8 percentage points.

Taxation on non-underlying items

The non-underlying net taxation charge of £5.9m (2020: £1.0m crodit) represents
on effactiva rate of 209% (2020 B 4%). The charge includes £9.3m in respect of the
restatement of the deferred income tax liability on intangible ossets as a result of
the change in the mgin UK corporation tox rote.

Earnings per share

2021 2020

Pence per share:
8o
'Undedying't')'osic T 306 135
il o 185 )
Uh'derlying diuted S Y ) 133

The Directors consider that the underlying basic earnings per share (EPS}
medasure provides a better and mareg consistent indication of the Group's
underlying financial performance anc more meaningful ccrnparison with prior
and future periods to assess trends in our financial performance.

Underlying basic EPS increased by 126.7% in 2021 due to o significant increase in
the underlying operoting result after taxation following the Group’s 5trong
recovery from the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic.

Dividend

The final dividend of 8.2 pence (2020: 48 pence) per share is being
racammendad for payment on 25 May 2022 to sharehoiders on the register at
the close of business an 22 April 2022 The ex-dividend date will be 21 April 2022,

Qur dividend policy is normally to pay a minimum cf 40% of the Group's annual
undaertying profit after tax. Tha Directors intend thot the Group will pay the total
annual dividend in two tranches, an interim dividend and a final dividend, to be
announced at the time of announcement of the interim and preliminary results,
respectively, with the intarim dividend being appraximately one half of the prior
years tinal dividend.

Balance sheet
The Group's balance sheet is surmmarised below:

200
£m

Proparty, plont and equipment
Right-of-use assets
Goodwil o
Otﬁﬂe;inﬂtdhgiblg @ssetsr 7
Networking copital
Tox

Other current and non-current assetsand liabiities ~ (63) (a1
Net debt {loans and borrowings, and lease liabilities, net of cash and

cash equivatents) (165.7) (27.7)
Net assets 617.7 500.9

The net vatue of property, piant ond equipment has incraased by £17.5m following
the acquisitions in the year and the Group's continued strategic investment in its
businesses. The valug of right-of-use assets has increased by £77m.

The acquisitions in the year had an impact on both geodwill and other intangible
assets, with increases of £122 3mand £126 7m, respectively. Net working capital
increased by £20.0m. Net debt is discussed on page 49.



Businass
Overview

Net capital expenditure of

£34.Im

2020: €245m

Financial
Governance Remuneration Stoterments

Pensions

The Group does not have any defined benefit pension schemes and only has
defined contribution pension arrangements in place. Pension costs for the yaar
amountad to £5.4m (2020; £4.2m) reflacting the inclusion of the acquisitions
made in the year and an overallincreasa in the number of schermne participants.

Cash flow and net debt
The Group's cash flow statement s summarised below:
2021 2020
Em Em
Operating cash flows before movement in net working capital ma4 500
Add back non-underlying cosh iterns 69 23

Underlying cperating cash lows betora movement in nat working
capitol

'éopitc! expenditure, net
Underlying cash generated from operations after net
copitel expenditure

pa e (7). -
Proceeds from exarcise of share options net of purchase ot own
shores A U TRRORE - SO LI
other T (5.7} {42)
Movernent in net debt - excluding FRS16 (130.3) 135.2
T e e e e e
Movement in net debt — inctuding IFRS 16 (138.0) 1371

Delivery of good cash generation remains core to the Group's strotegy
Underlying cash generated from operations after net capital expenditure at
£57.2rm (2020: £39.3m) represents a conversion rate of 60.0% (2020: 931%). The prior
year included the benetit of £9.8m of HMRC approved VAT deferral from April and
Juty 2020, which was paid in February 2021,

Working capital movement in the year was driven by a rebuilding of inventory to
improve customer service performance following the recovery in demaond after
the pondemic, as well as the effects of costinflotion and the acquisitions.

Net capital expenditure investment increased to £34.1m (2020: £24.5m) as the
Group continued to focus on investing in key, strategic ond innovative projects In
2022, we anticipate that copital expenditure will be approximately £45.0m.

Net debt of £165.7m comprised:

B
< cash equivolenfé
Net dabt (excluding i

Unarmortis . A
IFRS 16 (129) +7)
Net debt (165.7} (27.7) (138.0)

as

N
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Underlying basic earnings
per share increased to

30.6pence

2020:; I3.59ence

Financing

The Group hos an RCF committed through to Novernber 2023 with two further
uncommitted onnual renewals through to November 2025. The facility limit is
£300.0m with an uncommitted ‘accordion’ facility of up to £500m on top. At
31 Decembzar 202t £198 Om of the RCF was drawn down,

The Group is subject to two finoncial covenants. At 31 December 202), there was
significant headroom and facility interest cover and net debt 1o EBITDA covenants
woro comfortably achiovod:

Position at
Covenant J1December
Covenant reguirament 2021
Interest cover ~ R
Leveroge
Going concern

The Group centinues to meet its day-to-day working capital and other funding
requirements through a combination of long-term funding and cosh deposits.
The Group’s bank financing facilities consist of a £300.0m RCF with an
uncommitted ‘occordion’ facility of £50.0m. The extanded committed Covig-18
faciity of £50.0m expired in May 2021. £102.0m of the RCF was undrawn ot 31
Decermber 2021 At 31 December 2021, liquidity headroom (cash and undrawn
committed banking facilities) was £154.3m (2020: £284.1m). Our focus will continue
to be on deleveraging, and our net debt to EBITDA ratio stood at 1.2x times pro
farma EBITDA at 31 December 2021 (2020: ©.3x}, increasing to 14x (2020: 0.5x) times
pro forma EBITDA including the effects of IFRS 16. This heodroom means the Group
is well-positioned with o strong balance sheet.

As a rasult, the Directors have satisfied themselvaes that the Group has adequolte
financial resources to continue in operational existence for a period of at least the
next 15 months. Accordingly, thaey continue to adopt the going concern basis in
preparing the consolidoted finoncial staterments.

Forward-looking Statements

This report contans various forward-looking statements thot reflect
management’s current views with respect to future events and financial and
operational performance. These forward-looking staterments involve known and
unknown risks, uncertainties, assumptions, estimates and other factors, which
may be beyond the Group’s control, and which may cause actual results or
performance to differ materially from those expressed or imptlied tfrom such
forward-looking statements. Al staterments (including forward-looking
statements) contained herein are made and reflect knowledge and information
available as of the date of preparation of this report and the Group disclaims any
obligation to update any forward-looking staterments, whether as o result of new
information, future avents or results or otherwise. There can be no assurance that
farward-looking statements will prove to be occurate, as actual results and future
events could differ materially from those anticipated in such statements.
Accordingly, readers should not place undue relignce on torward-icoking
staterments due to the inherent uncertainty therein. Nothing in this report should
be construed as a profit forecast.

Paul James -
Chief Financial Officer .
r
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Principal Risks
and Uncertainties

The Board seeks to mitigate the Group’s
exposure to strategic, financial and
operational risk, both external and internal.

Framework for managing risk

The Board is respansible for ensuring
that the Group maintains an effective
risk management systemn, enabling it
to deliver its strategic objectives. It
determines the Group's culture and
approach to risk management and is
responsible for maintoining
appropriate processes and controls.
The Board sets the risk appetite and
determines the policies and
procedures to mitigate exposure to
risk. The Board is central to the Group’s
risk review process, including the
scenario planning and detailed stress
testing associated with the Group's
Viability Statement. The Beard is
assisted in this role and its
responsibilities by the Risk Committes,
a formal sutb-committee of the Board,
established during 2021.

Process

Top down

Identifying, assessing
and mitigating risk
at Group level

N
A

Bottom up

Identifying. assessing
and mitigating risk
at businass
operctional kevel

Process

The Beard continually assesses ond
monitors the key risks in the business
and the Group has developed a risk
management framework to identify,
report, and monage its principal risks
and uncertaintigs, and emerging risks.
This process includes the recording of
all principat risks and uncertainties on
a Group Risk Register. Emerging risks
are those that could significantly
impact our industry and/or our
business. These emerging risks ore
avolving and oftan new, and thus, their
full potential impact is still uncertain.
The Boord regularly reviews these
amerging risks and, where deemed
appropriate, they are added to the
Group's Risk Register, In that regard, the
emerging risks frorn prior year of cyber,
Cavid-19, labour availchility and
climate change were assimiloted

into the Group's Risk Register and
principal risks dusing the current year.

The Board

Financial

Remuneration Staterments

Principal and emerging risks are
analysed, allocated owners, scored
for both impact and probability,
prioritised, assessed for what
mitigation is required, and updated
at least every six months.

External risks include macroeconemic
conditions, the weather, Government
action, policies and regulations, raw
material supply and gricing, cnd
infarmation systems disruption.
Internal risks include relionce on key
customers, and recruitment and
retention of key personnel. The Bocard
seeks to mitigate the Group’s exposure
to both external ond internal risks. The
effectiveness of key mitigating contrals
is continually monitored and subjected
to rotational testing by the internol
auditors

The ongoing impact of the Covid-19
pandearnic on the Group ond the return
process (o business as usual are
continually assessed Tha growth

in market dernand ond external
challenges in the wider supply chain
have increased the risks of raw
material supply and pricing,
recruitment and retention of key
perscnnel, and a shortfall in haulage
capacity. We ore proactively
maonoging these issues and
maintaining our focus on cyber
security risk.

The Board continually assesses and moniters the key risks in the business and the
Group has developed a risk managemaeant framework to identify, report and manage
its principal risks and uncertaintias; and emerging risks.

This includes:

The recording of atl principal nsks and uncertainties on a Group Risk Register,

and an amerging risks register, which are updated at Ieast every six months.

Analysing risks and allocating owners.,

Internal audit

Scoring risks for impact and probability to determine the exposure 1o the business.
Outlining which risks should be prioritised and what mitigation is required.

The effactiveness of key mitigating controls is continually monitored and subjected
to rotational tasting by the Group's internal ouditars,

Operational level

The risk management processes are embedded iNto the different operational

araas within the Group.

sl

N
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The heat map oppesite highlights the
principal risks and uncertainties that
could have a material impact on the
Group's performance and prospects
and the mitigating octivities which cre
aimed at reducing fhe impact or
likalihood of a maojor risk mcterialising.
These risks have ali been considered
by the Board when developing the
Group's Viability Statement. The Boarg
does recognise, however, that it will not
tlways be possible 10 eliminate these
risks entirely. (n addition, the principal
and emerging risks listed below do not
comprise all of the risks that the Group
moy face.

Risk appetite

The Board determines the appropriate
level of risk for operating the business
and delivering its strategic objectives.
A key focus of the Board is minimising
exposure to operational; financial;
regulatory and compliance; health,
safety and the environment; and
people risks.

Savare

impact

Minor

1
2.

3.
4.
s.

6.

HEW

Low Probability
Raw materials supply and pricing
Macroeconomic and

political conditions

Business disruption

Reliance on key customers

Failure of information systems or

cyber breach

Climate chonge

-2
High

7. Recruitment and raetention
of key parsonnel
8. Health, Safety and Ervironmental
9. 8reach of legistation including UK GDPR,
Competition Law, the Bribery Act
and Sanctions Compliance
10. Product failures
. Liquidity and funding
12. Acquisitions do not perform
as expected

Emerging risks
Industry
Recycling As more manufacturers seek to use recycled material and demand for it more generally increases, existing supply

may become constrained. The Group wilk

+ diversify suppliers whilst maintaining good quolity of supply,
+ continue to monitor pnce and market behaviour, aleng with recycling performance, to identify trends early, and
- consider the strotegic ocquisition of recyclers

Counterfeiting

Copycat andfor counterfeit products coutd erode the Group's market share and/or product raputation. The Group will:

+ continue to carefully rmanage its trademaorks, potents and ficences over its products and challenge ony

infringements, ang

- enhance existing products with added benefits and patent protection whilst developing ¢ new range of products.

Regulatary The Group may be affected by changes in regulotory requirements which could potentially have an adverse impact
onits reputation. The Group will:
* closely menitor the ever-gvolving regulctory enviranment, including, but not imited to, the Building Safety 8ili, and
- invest in its digital capobilities.
Customer
Customar Customer perception - in the post-Grenfell environment there may well be the perception that the Group's,
perception and its compelitors), progucts contribute to an undermining of fire safaty. The Group wik

* continue to monitor the avolving regulatory environment and respond accardingly, ond
» continue to design and lounch improved products that satisfy existing and tuture market needs.
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Change in
. potential impoct
Risk Potential impact Mitigations andjor probability

1. Raw materials supply and pricing

The Group is exposed to
security of raw material
supply risks, ond volatile raw
material and haulage costs,
due to fluctuations in the
market price of crude oil ang
other petroleum feedstacks,
supply-demand imbalances
tollowing poest-pandemic
demand surges, foreign
currency exchange rate
movements, and changes to
suppliers’ copacity.

The incredsed costs could
reduce marging and the risk
of market demand
exceeding raw material
supply and/or haulage
capacity coutld lead to
inefficient producticn and
distribution which could
odvarsely affect the Group's
finoncial rasuits

The Group benefits from the diversity of its business Increased

and end markets.

The Group utilises sales pricing and purchasing
policigs, such gs dual sourcing, to mitigote these risks.
The Group focusas on supplier relationships, Hexible
contracts ond the use of hedging instruments to
mitigate supply and CosL 1isks.

The Group owns and mangges a significant
proportion of its required haulage capacity.
Significont contracts are reviewed by the Graup Legal
Crunsel and Company Secretary 1o avoid
untavourable andfor inflexible Terms.

2. Macroeconomic and political conditions

The Group is dependent an
the level of activity in its end
markets, especiolly the
construction industry, and s
therefore susceptible to any
changes in its cyclical
QTANoOIMIc conaitions,
Government palicy, interest
rates, and any paolitical andg
economic uncertainty,

Lower levels of activity within
our end markets, espacially
the construction industry,
could reduce sales and
preductian vaiumaes, thereby
adversely atfecting the
Group's tmancial rasults.

The Group benetits from the diversity af its business
and end maorkets; and the prooctive development of
its brands, products and services.

The Group continues to target those end markets
wherg profitable growth prospects are greotest,

The Group closely monitors rends and lead indicotors,
invests in rmarket research and is an active memier of
the Construction Products Associotion,

The Group closely manages its demand forecasts ond
costs through weekly opérational review meetings.
The Group focuses on supplier relationships, Hexibie
contracts and the use of hedging where desirable.
The Group undertakes scendario planning to support
business rasilience.

No change

3.8usiness disruption

The Group's manufacturing
and distribution operotions
could be subjected to
disruption due to incidents
including, but not limitad to,
tire, failure of equipment,
power outages, workforce
strikes, pandemics, or
unexpected or pralanged
periods of severe weather,

Such incidents could result
in the temporary cassotion
in activity, or disrupltion, ot
one of the Group’s
production facilities
impeding the ability to
deliver its progucts to its
customers, thereby
adversely affecting the
Group's financial resuts.

The Group has established business continuity, cnsis No change

response, and disaster recovery plans.,

The Group performs regulor mointenance to minimise
the nsk of equipment failure.

Finished goods holdings across the operatons act as
a imwted buffer in the event of an operational failure.
The Group continudily invests in the maintenance and
upgrade of IT infrastructure and information systems
which, amongst other matters, lacilitates remaote
WOorking.

The Group maintains sufficient liquidity 1o meet

its hobilties when due under both normal and
strassed conditions,

The Graup maintains a significant gmount of
insurance to cover business interruption and damage
to property from such incidents.

Independent insurer inspections tuke place Across clf
sites to identify and assess potential hazards ond
business interruption risks. '

4.Reliance on key customers

Some of the Group's
businesses are dependent
on key customers in highly
competitive markets.

Failure to mManage
relationships with key
customers, whilst continuing
to provide high-quality
products delivered on time
in full, and developing new
innovative progucts, could
lead to aloss of business,
thereby cdversaly aHtecting
the Group’s financicl results,

The Group's strotegic objective is to broaden its No change

customer base wherever possible.

The Group focuses on delivering exceptional customer
service, which is constantly monitared, and mainiains
strong relationships with major customers through
direct engagement at ail levels

The Group continually seeks to INNovate and deveiop
its bronds, products and services to better meet the
needs of its customers.

The Group closely manages its customer pricing,
rebates and credit terms to ensure that they remain
Doth competitive and commercial. These are
negetioted and approved by experienced senior
management and reviewad by the Group Legal
Counsel and Company Secretory.

53



5S4

Genuit Group plc Annudl Report & Accounts 202

Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Risk

Potentio' impact

Cchange in
potential impact

Mitigations and/or probability

5. Failure of Information systems or cyber breach

The Group is increasingly Disruption or failure of the Firewalls are in place to protect the perimeter of the Increosed
dependent on the information systerns could Group's networks and any off-site occess to the
continued efficient atfect the Group's ability to Group's servers and applications is through secure
operation of its inforrmation conduct its ongeing Virtuol Private Network connections.
systems and is therefore operations and/or resultin Ernail and internet traffic filtering is 1n placa to protect
;ru]nsrable to potential dataloss, whichcould against potential wiruses or malware entering the
qilures due to power losses, qdversely offect the Groyps Group’'s networks. User and server computing devices
telecommunication foilures, financial results, reputation hove anti-virus software instalted ta protect from
or from a secufity breach and compliance with dota potentiol infection,
including the increasing protection ragulalors. . )
levels and evalving tactics The Group undertakes cyber security risk audits and
of sophisticated cyber penetration testing performed by internal and
criminals targeting externol specialists, including the expedient
busingsses. intreduction of mugation controls and othar
recommended procedure updates.
The Group contracts with several third-party
providers to supply off-site, business continuity
arrangements for wholesale or partial recovery of
the key servers and applicotions which are used
within the various business units of the Group.
These continuity arrangements are subject ta
validation and testing.
The Group continually invests in the maintenance
and upgrade of T infrastructure and information
systerns. All upgrades are carsfully plonned and
actively managed by senior personnel to minimise
potential business disruption.
Empiloyees are subject to continuous awaraness
training, including that of cyber rigk.
6.Climate change
Theincrease in frequency, Adverse weather events Climate change risk analysis has been developed Increased

intensity and irmpoct of
weathar events such as
flooding, drought and
coastal erosion.

The longer-term
imptications of climate
chonge give rise to the
wransition risk to address the
chatienges expediently.

could damags, disrupt or
180a 10 temporary closure
of the Group's production
andfor office tocitities.
Prolonged periods of severe
weather couid resull in

a slowdown in site
canstruction activity thus
reducing demand for the
Group’s products.

Growing stakeholder focus
on corperate oction to meet
emissions reduction targets
may result in increased
reputationol risk and
reduced customer andfor
employee loyalty, investor
divestment and impacts to
custorner activity levels.

All of the above potential
impocts could adversely
affect the Group's

financial results.

and gssociated actions ore being undertaken
where relevant.

A clearly defined sustainabitity framework has been
developed. A series of measures, oction plons and
targets have been introduced (o accelerote the
Group's progress over the naxt five years.

Embedding its sustainobility agenda ocross the
worktorce is a key focus for the Group in achieving

its objectives. The Group’s products and services
pertfclio is focused on addressing the Causes and
results of climote change including resilient drainage,
cimate management solutions for cleaner air, green
urbanisation and iow/zero carban heating.

in the event of floading in the short-term, production
of certain products can be transferred to other sites.
In the longer-term, climote change impact is
manitored and, where deemad appropriate,

Hood defence systemns will be installed.




Financiol

Business Strategic
Overview Report Governance Remuneration Statemenits
Change in
‘ potentialimpact
Risk Potential impact Mitigations andjor probabilty

7. Recruitment and retention of key personnel

The Group is dependent on
attracting and retaining
people with the right skil's,
experience and capability
as well as the continued
wallbeing and mental
heaith of our people.

Loss of any key personne)
without cdequate and
timely replacernent, andfor
skills shortages, coutd
disrupt business operations,
increcse salery inflation, ond
adversely impact the
Group's ability to profitably
implerment and deliver its
growth strategy.

Appointment of a Chief People OHticer into o newly Increased

created Executive role.

Newiy created Boord approved People Strategy:
implementation of actions underway.
Remunergtion benchrmarking of senior and eritical
roles undertaken leading ta improved remuneration
pockages for critical roles.

Engagement survey completed and associoted
action plan being devetoped.

Manthly tracking of staff turnover and key

people indicators.

Succession planning in place for critical roles.
Continued roll out of iearning and development
programmes across the business.

Mental heolth policy and associated training

in place, as well as Employee Assistance and
wellbeing Programmes.

8. Health, Safety and Environmental

The Group is subject 1o the:
raquiremants of UK and
European environmental
and occupotional safety
and heqith lows and
regulations, including
obligations 1o take the
correct meagsures 1o
prevent fatalites or serious
injury, and investigate ond
clean up envirpnmental
contamination on or

fram properties.

Lack of management focus,
poor cultural attitude or
failure of the Graup to
comply with heaith, safety
and environmeantal
reguiations and cther
obligotians relating 1o
environmental matters
cauld resultin the Group
being liable tor fines,
suffering reputational
damaoge, requiring
rnodification to ogerations,
increasing manufactuwing
ond delivery costs, and
could resultin the
suspension or termination of
necessary operational
permits, thereby adversely
affecting the Group's
financial results.

The Group has o formal Health, Safety and No change
Ervironmental policy, and proceduras are in place to

maniter compliance with the policy.

There is o Group Health, Safety and Environmental
Diractor {with a team throughout the Group) with
clear accountability for health, safety ond
emvironment {HSE}. HSE perforrnoncs is regularly
tracked, repornted and reviewed by all levels of
management including the Board.

The Group performs internal HSE audits and is subject
to external HSE audits.

Investigations are performed toidentify couse ond
key learnings. If employees have foiled to adhere to
HSE palicies, then they may be subject to disciplinary
action. Key messages are constantly reinforced
throughout the Group.

9. Breach of legislation including UK GDPR, Competition Law, the Bribery Act
and $anctions Compliance

Foilure to comply with
elerments of a significantly
increased and still evalving
governance, legislativa and
ragulatory business
environment including,

but not limited to, the UK
General Data Protection
Regulation, Compaeiition
Law, the Britery Act and
Sanctions Compliance.

Significant increcses inthe
penalty regime across alt
areas of business could {ecd
to significoant fings ond
financicl penalties in the
event of o breach, alongside
damage to the Group's
reputation and potential
current and future business.

The Group's in-hause legal departrment and other No change
specialist functions, supported by specialist external
advisers, are responsible far manitoring changes to
laws and regutations that affact the business and
ongoing monitasing and training.

specific polices are in place in respect of UK GOPR,
Competition Law, a Code of Ethics (including the
Bribery Act), Sanctions Compliance, etc.

Reqgular declarations of comptiance are undertaken
in respect of Competition Law and the Bribery Act.

All business in higher risk countries requires apgroval
by the Group Legol Counsel and Company Secretary.
An external agency (Refimitiv) is used to chack
sancltions against companies ond}or individuals.
Training is provided to all relevant new amployees on
Compatition Law, including those changing roles.
The independent third-party Safecall helpling is
avoilcbie to employees.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties continued

Change in
potental impact

Risk Potentiol impact Mitigations andfor probability
10. Product failures
The Group manufactures A product tailure or recall The Group operotes comprehansive quality No change
products that are could resultin a licbiity assurance systems and procedures at each site.
potentially vital o the safe’ claim for personal injury or Wherever required, the Group obtains certitications
operation of its customers other darnags leading © aver its products to the relevant nationot and
products or processes. substantial financial European standards including Kitemarks, BBAS,
Thate products are often settlernments, Anmnge nthe WRCs wnd WRACS
incorporated into the fakric Group's brands, COsts and L o
af a building or dweliing or expenses and diversion of The Group rmaintains product liability insurance to
buried in the ground a5 part key management’s cover third-porty claims arising from potential
of aninfrastructure system attention from the operation  Product failures os recalls.
and in each cose, it would of the Group, which could all
be difficult to access, adversely affect the Group's
repak, recall or replace financial results.
such products.
11. Liquidity and funding
The risk that the Group will Insutficient cash depesits The Group's cpproach to managing liquidity is to No change
net be ale 10 Meet its ondfor tinance facilities ensure that it will alwoys have sufficient liquidity to
short-term liquidity and could result in the Group meet its liabilities when due, under both normal and
lang-term funding financial nat being able ta fund stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptcble
obkgations as they fall due. its operations. losses or risking domage to the Group's reputation
This is achieved through suitable committed ond
uncommitted banking facilines with significant
headroom, reguiar communication with the Group's
investars and relationship banks (ncluding visits to
the Group's busingss units), regular review of its
banking covenants and capital structure, ensuring
s future cash flow is sustoinoble through detailed
budgeting procasses and reviews, robust forecosti ng
and budgeting processes, ond ensuring that credit
risk arising from cash deposits with bonks is mitigated
by investments of surpius funds only being made with
banks thot have, as a minimum, a single A-credit rating.
12. Acquisitions do not perform as expected
Tha monagememnt of Ingttective managermeant of Formai Board level approvals ore required in No change

ocequisitions activity and
their integration play a
portin delivering the
Group's growth strategy
ond thars is ¢ risk that
ony ocquisitian May not
perform as expected.

acquisitions could lead te
management distraction, a
drain on financicl resources,
and impact on the Group's
ability to successfully
implernent and deliver its
growth strotegy.

oecordance with the Group's delegation of autharity
matrix for any acquisition activity.

Full due diligence is pertormed before any acguisition
is made.

The Group seaks contractual assurances fram

the sellers to mitigate agdinst any identified

IS5UES Of risks.

Where appropriote, the Group will pay defarred
considerqtion linked to the ongoing performance of
the acquisition,

The progress of any integration is closely moniterad
ot Beard and senior management teom level,

Joe Vorih
Chief Executive Otficer

15 March 2022
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Chairman’s Letter

Good governance provides the
infrastructure to improve the quality of the
Board's decisions and enables the more
effective creation of long-term value.

RonMarsh
Chairman

a1

Sustainability is
at the heartof our
growth agenda.

2021 in review

I am pleased to presant the Genuit
2021 Annual Report and Accounts
following a strong and resilient
perfarmance by the Group, despite the
ongoing challenges during the year as
a result of the Covid-19 pandernic. The
pandemic has continued ta impact
the UK and global ecenomy, which has
resulted in inflation, difficulties with row
material supply, and supply chain
issues being seen across all industries
and sectors. As a result, 2021 continued
to bring economic and potitical
uncertainty and difficult markst
conditions in UK construction os o
whole, but our businesses performed
well in the circumstances. This strong
performance is down to the hard work
of our colleagues around the Group
who have risen to, and avercome, the
challenges we faced in the aftermath
of 2020 and throughaout 2021 The
Group aiso completed thrae
acquisitions during the first quarter of
202), welcoming new colleagues from
Adey, Nu-Heat and Plura, diversifying
the product offering and culture of the
Group as o result.

Board changes

We made a new appointment during
the year, with Matt Pullen joining as
Chiet Operating Officer (COO) and
member of the Board on | November
202! following Glen Sabin's retirement
from the Board. Glen served as an
Executive Director for tour yeors and
was an employee for 17 years, and |
would like to thank Gtan on behalf of
the Board and the Group for his
important contribution during this
time, and wish him well for his future
endeavours. Malt is o valuable new
addition to the Executive team and |
believe that we have a strong, diverse
and multi-skilled Board in place with
the necessary motivation and an
appropricte balance of experience
tc continue to lead the Group dunng
the next phase of its strategic
development.

t am also pleased to welcomae Joe
Vorih to the Group, having been
appointed as Chiet Exacutive Officer
{CE0) ond o member of the Board on
28 February 2022 following o thorough
recruitment process. further detail on
this process is outlined on page 77.
On behalf of the Board and the Group,
I would like to thank the outgoing CEO,
Martin Payne, for the significant
contribution ha has made to the Group
during the last six yaars, including
steering it successfully through the
Covid-19 crisis and implementing a
strategy that has seen the Group
broaden in scope and size during his
tenure. Wa wish Martin all the best for
the future.

Dividend

The Board is pleased to report that
business performance has recovered
such that it is recommending a final
dividend far 2021 of 8.2 pence per
share, payable in May 2022

Sustainability

Sustainability continues to be at the
heart of our growth agenda We wilt
continue to invest in innovative
solutions to capitalise on key
environmental drivers, as well as drive
growth through ongoing legacy
miaterial substitution and increasing
our gacgraphic reach. Our acquisitions
during 2021 showcase our dasire 1o be
the leading, UK-focused, sustainable
construction products group, offering
our customers solutions for the
environmentol chollenges facing
infrastructure, buildings and
communities. Our growth drivers

will continue to drive performance in
the years to come and sustainability
will be at the heart of haw we run our
businesses, so they are fit for the future.
We have been monitoring the progress
towards achieving our 2025
sustainability targets, and have
successfully incorporated these into
our long-term incentive arrangements
for the Executive Directors ond senior
management. We are committed to,
and will continue to make changes

to ensure that wherg possible,
sustainability underpins everything

we do.
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We seek to

attract people

of ali ethnicities,
disabilities, genders,
sexual orientations
and backgrounds so
that they see Genuit
Group as a place

in which they can
feel welcomed and
capable of achieving
their goals.

Strategic

Repart Gaovernance

People

Following the appointment of Clare
Taylor, our Chief People Officer
(pictured above), in March 2021, the
Board has received ragular detailed
updates on employee matters. We
continue tc be impressed by the
knowledge, enthusiasm, loyolty end
cammitment of cur employees across
the Group. Diversity and inclusicn
remain a priority as we seek to attract
people of all ethnicities, disabilities,
genders, sexual orientotions and
backgrounds so that they see Genuit
Group as a place in which they can
fesl welcomed and copable of
achigving their goals.

Succession planning continues to
be an area of focus on the Board's
agenda, and further details an

this con be found in the Nomination

Financial

Remuneration Staternents

Committee Report. There is o praference
for promaoting and recruiting internai
caondidates, os we recognise the
significant pool of talent across the
Group and subsequently endeavour
to create training and development
opportunities for ennployeses to encbie
thermn to progress. As port of our
sustainability drivers, we hove joined
The 5% Club, as a commitment to
ensuring cur employees are actively
involved in‘earn and learn’ schemes,
and for 2021 1 am pleased o repart
that 3.2% of our employees are
enrolled in qualifying ‘earn and

teamn’ schemes.

Wwe have seen the benefits during 2021
of having a dedicated Chief People
Officer driving the people agenda, and
we look forward 1o continued progress
in this area over the coming years.
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Chairman’s Letter continued

Section 172 Statement

In accordance with the 2018 UK
Corporate Governance Code
and the Companies Act 20086,
the Board, in its decision-making
process, considers whatis

most likely to promote the
success of the Company for its
shareholders in the long term, as
well as considering the interests
of tha Group's employees and
ather stokeholders ond
understanding the importance

of toking into account their views.

The Board also considers,

and takes sefriously, the
Group's impact on the local
communities within which it
operates, as well os reviewing
actions being token to mitigate
any negative impacts our
operations have an the
environment. Considering this,
the Directors have acted ina
way that they considered, in
good faith, to be most likely to
promote the success of the
Company for the benefit of its
members as awhole The
Board's activities and
considerations in meeting this
raquirament are covered in
detail in our 5172 Statement.

Read more on pages 42 to 44

Culture

The Board continues to align the
Company's purpose, values and
strategy to the culture of the Group, to
enable the delivery of long-term
business and economic success. The
Board is responsible for shaping,
monitoring and overseaing that
culture, and recognises that for the
right culture to exist across all of our
businesses, our core values must be
embedded in the ieadership,
management and long-term strategic
decisions of the Group. We delegate as
much decision making as possible (o
those people who ore closest to their
respective custormers and who ore
experts in their fields. As a result, the
Board understonds the importance of
promoting a culture whereby
employees understand the common
Group purpose and strategy, but also
feel empowered to act, and Gn open
and transparent culture is encouraged
across the Group which is responsive
to stakeholder expectations ond
needs You canread more about the
culture of the Group and some
examples of the way in which the
Board encourgges and engages
within this Governance Report on
pages 65 to 67.

There was regular interaciion during
the year betweean the Board and
members of the senior management
teams across the Group through
presentotions, Board and Commitiee
meetings and the annual strategy day;
as well as direct engagement with

employees. Louise Brooke-Smith is our
designated NED for workforce
sngagernent, and has attended local
employee forums oeross the Group to
gatn on insight into those issues of
concern. This helps the Board ensure
effective employee engagement on o
reguior basis, a5 well as providing a
mechaonism fer a workforce voice at
Board level.

Board evaluation

Curing the 2021 financial year we
undertook an internal evaluation of the
Board and its Committees, and the
results of this evaluation were
discussed by the Board at its meeting
in December 2021. The evaluation
followed the same structure as in 2020,
focusing on four areas: Board Structure
and Functionality; Board Meetings;
Board aaministration and Corporate
Govarnance; and Perscnal
Effectiveness and Overall Board
Effectiveness. As noted in our 2020
Annual Report and Accounts, progress
on areas identified for improvernent in
2020 would be reviewed os part of the
2021 svatuation, and an additional
section was therelore added to
understand progress made. This
method of evaluation allows Directors
to have an opportunity to provide
comments on those areas they feel stili
require improvement, as well as
confirming those areas where the
necessary improvements had been
seen. We also intreduced an additicnal
evaiuation for new Directors on the
inducticn and onboarding process, to
allow them to provide direct feedback
on their expertance since joining the
Group and allow us to formally
evaluote our induction process. The
resuits of the evaluation concluded
that the Boerd and its Committees
continue to operate etticiently and
effectively, and that Executive and
Non-Executive Director views are
generally aligned Further detail on the
results of the evaluation is set out on
page 72 of this Govarnance Report.
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Board composition
and diversity

The compaosition and size of the
Board continues to be kapt undar
review. We believe that cur Board is
well-bolanced and diverse, with the
right mix of skills, experience,
independsnca and knowledge to
allow 1t to discharge its duties and
responsibilities effectivaly.

The Board is commitied to ond
supports diversity in the widest sense,
acknowledging the advantages that
come from having diverse viewpaints
across the Group's businessas and in
the decision-making process at Beard
and senior management level. The
Cermpany currently has 33% women
on its Board and is committed to
waorking towards having 33% women
in senior mancgement positions.

Strategic
Report

Following the recruitrment of a Chief
People Officer whe joined the
Compaony in Morch 2021, the Compony
now has 26% fermale representation at
sanicr manageément level, being the
executive comrnittee and its direct
reports. The Company remains
committed to achieving the 33% target
but acknowledges that given the
relatively small size of this Group and
the limited turnover of those withinit,
there is limited scope for immediate
change. Cur Nomination Cormmittee is
continuing to further develop its strong
succession plans for the Board ond
senior mancgement in conjunction
with the Chief People Officer. You can
read more about the work of our
Nomination Committee on poges
T4to 77

Financial

Remuneration Staternents

Looking at 2022 and beyond

During 2022, we will continue to
address the challenges caused by
climate change and urbanisation by
developing and producing sustcinable
solutions, focusing on our
environmental growth drivers, trends
and opportunities. We will continue to
toster a culture across our businesses
that will result in the right decisions
ond actions to promote the success of
the Group for the long term, and for the
benefit of our members as a whaole,
whilst holding ourselves cccountable
against o sustainability targets,
raising the bor for sustainability to
promote the generation of smarter
ond more sustainable policies and
practices across our industry. Working
together, we will moke the built
environment maore sustainable for
genarations 1o come, whilst
maintaining a robust governgnce
structure which continues to address
ond understand the needs of ¢l

our stakeholgers.

Corporate Governance Report

tam olso pleased to present the
Company’s Corporate Governance
Report tor the year ended 31 December
2021, on behalt of the Board.

The following poges of this
Governance Report and the Directors’
Rermuneration Report set cut in greater
detail how the principles cnd
provisions of the 2018 UK Corporate
Governance Cods (the Code) have
been applied and how the Board and
its Committees have fulfilled their
responsibilities during the year to
ensure high levels of governance are in
place acrass the Group. Engaging with
our stakeholders is a priovity, and
further detatl on how we hove done
this during 2021 can be found on pages
40 to 4. As always, we welcome
gquastions or comments from
shorehoiders either vio our website or,
if appropriate, in person at the Annual
Genercl Meeting (AGM} schedulad to
be held at the Leeds Marrictt Hotel on
19 May 2022,

Ron Marsh
Chairman
15 March 2022
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Directors

and Officers

committees

In addition to the Genuit Group plc
Board, there are four Committees:

Audit Committee A
Nornination Comemittae N
Remuneration Committae R
Risk Commities Ri
Chairman of Committee .

A

N
Mark Hammond

Senior independent Director

Appointed: 16 April 2014

Mark Hammond's executive carear spanned
over 25 years inbanking ond private equity,
maost recently as Deputy Monaging Partner
of Caird Capital LLP at the time it led the IPO
ot Genuit {formerty Polypipe) in 2014, He has
teen ¢ member of the Institute of Chartered
Accountonts of Scotland since 199t and was
previously a director of David Lloyd Leisure
timitad and Tuftnell Parcels Express. Mark

is currently a director of Chaftin Holdings
timited ond serves as Chaoir of Governors

of deechwood Park School, Markyote,
Hertforashire. Mark was appoeinted Seniar
Independent Director on 22 June 2020.

Louise Hardy
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: 25 June 2018

Louise has over 25 years' experience in the
construction sector, including working for
Laing ¢'Rourke as Infrastructura Director
within CLiM, the consortium delivery partner
tor the Olympic Delivery Authority for the
London 2012 Olympics. She has olso worked
at Bechtel Limited, AECOM and London
Underground Limited, and is a Non-~
Executive Director of Crest Nicholson pic,
Severtield pic and Ralfour Beatty plc. She
has a Bachelor of Science from the
University of Warwick and is a fellow of the
Institution of Civil Engineers. Louise is Chair
of the Remuneration Committee.

Ron Marsh
Independent Non-Executive
Chairman

Appuointed: 27 May 2015

Ron Marsh was appointed to the Board on
28 March 2014 gs the Senior Independeant
Girector, and become Indepandent
Non-Executive Chairman on 27 May 201S5.
Ron is currently a Non-Executive Director of
R. Faerch Plast AfS, the Senior tindependent
birector of walstead Group Limited ond was,
frorm 1989 until 2013, Chief Executive of RPC
Group. Ha is also Chairman af the UK-based
Paockaging Federation and the Allionce

tor Eurapean Polymers which was
established under the auspices of EuPC
(European Flastic Converters) in 2015

Ron has a Bachelor of Arts in History

frorm Oxtord University ond is Chair

of the Nominatian Committee.

Kevin Boyd
Non-Executive Director

Appeinted: 22 September 2020

Kevin Boyd has extensive listed ple
experience in the engineering cnd
manufacturing sectors, bringing a strang
combination of financial, strategic and
multi-organisational expertise to the Boord.
He waos previousty the Chief Financial Officer
of global engineering group Spirax-Sorco
Engingering plc and, prior to that, Chief
Financial Officer of Oxtord Instruments plc
and Radstone Technology pic. Kevin has

a BEng from Queen's University Bellast,

is a Chartered Engineer, a Chortered
Accountant and a Fellow of the Institute

of Chortered accountamts in England ard
Wales and the Institution of Engineering and
Technology. He is currently a Non-Executive
Director and the Audit Cormmittee Chair

of EMIS Group plc and @ Non-Executive
Director of Bodycote ple. Kevin is Choir

of the Audit Committes.
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Joe Vorih
Chief Executive Officer

Appointed: 28 February 2022

Joe Varih is our Chief Executive Officer. Joe
joined Genuit from Spectns plc, a FTSE 250
cempany, where he was president of HBK,
o standatone division ond key platiorm
business within the Group from January
2019, having joined Spectns in 2016. Prior to
that, he worked for Clarcar Corporation,

o NYSE listed busingss delivering filtrotion
solutions and Danaher Corporation, also
a US listed global business in industrial,
test ond medical equiprment. He has a
Bachelor of Science, a Master of Science
in Mechanical Engineering from the
Massachusetts Institute of Technotogy
and on MBA from Rensselaer

Polytechnic Institute.

Lisa Scenna
Non-Executive Director

Appuointed: 24 September 2019

tisa Scenna hos over 25 yeqrs' business
experience working at executive director
level in large private and publicly listed
multindational Corporations with a strong
background in strategic and financial
business change, with ber most recent
executive role being with the Morgan Sindalf
Group as Manoging Director of MS
Investmants. Prior to this, she held executive
roles with Laing O'Raurke, Stockland Group
and westfield Group in Australio. She is @
Non-Executive Director of Horworth Group
ple, as well as Cromwell Property Group,

an austratian listed company. liso has a
Bacheior of Cormnmerce frorn the University
ol NSW, andt is o fellow of the Australion
Institute of Compaony Directors and

the Institute of Chartered Accountonts

in Australio.
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Paul James
Chief Financial Officer

Appointed: 5 March 2018

Before jeining Genuit, Paul Jarnmes served
as Group Financial Controller of Dixons
Carphonae pic, and prior 10 this role held the
position of Group Financial Cantraller ane
Treasury Diractor of Inchcope plc following
an international career ot British American
Tobacco ple. including markets in wastern
Europe and Russia. He is a Fellow of the
Institute of Chartered Accountants in
England and wales, has an MBA and a
Bacheior of Science in Civil Engineering
from Edinburgh University.

Louise Brooke-Smith
Non-Executive Director

Appointed: 24 September 2019

Louise Brooka-Smith has extensive expertise
in the property, construction ond
infrastructure industries, being an
experienced property and planning agviser,
post Global President of the Royal Institution
of Chartered Surveyors and member of the
Royal Town Planning Institute. She was
formerly a partner at Arcadis LLP and is
currently Globol Development ond Strategic
Planning Adviser and Dirgctor for Consilic
Strategic Consultancy Limited. Sheisa
Geoverning Board member of Birrningham
City University, Chair of the 8card of all We
Con (International Relief & Developrnant
Agency), a regional Boord member of the
CBY, and o Board Trustee of The Land Trust
and a Trustee of Brrninghom hMuseum & Art
Gaollery. Louisa hetds a Bachsaior of Sclience
from Sheflield Hallom Unwersity and an
hanarary doctorere, ond is a Freerman of
the City of London. Louise is our nominated
workforce engagement NED.

Financici
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Matt Pullen
Chief Operating Officer

Appointed: 1 November 2021

Matt Pullen is our Chief Operating Officer
and was appeinted on | Navernber 2021
Before joining the Group, Matt was
Managing Director of British Gypsum, a part
of the Sqint-Gebain Graup, based in the UK.
Pricr to that, he worked for AkzoNobel for
eight years undertaking various commercial
and leadership roles of increasing seniarity
in the UK, Ireland and Northern Europe with
his last role as Managing Director, UK &
treland. Prior to that Matt held various
operatioral rotes within the FMCG sector.
He is a Trustee of the Canstruction

Industry charity CRASH and an tindustriol
Cadets Aambuassador.

Emma Versiuys
Group Legal Counsel and
Company Secretary

Appointed: 28 June 2017

Ermma Versluys is our Group Legal Counsel
ond Company Secretary and is Secretary
to the Board ond the Audit, Remuneration
and Nomination Committeas Before joining
Genuit, Emma was Deputy Compony
Secretory ot Pravident Financial pic, and hos
aiso held company secretorial roles gt
Serco pic and Allionce UniChern plc. Sha is
an Associate of The Chartered Governance
Institute ond 15 glso a solicitor.
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Statement

This statement outlines the processes the Company has undertaken
throughout the year to apply the UK Corporate Governance Code
and demonstrates compliance with each provision.

Compliance with the UK
Corporate Governance
Code (the Code)

This Report, which is also available on
the Company's website, explains key
features of the Company's
governance structure and is designed
to provide a greater understending cf
how the principles of the Code,
published in July 2018 by the Financial
reporting Council (FRC), have been
applied and the areas of focus during
the year. The Cade can ke faound on
the FRC's wabsite ot www.frc.org.uk.

In accordanca with the Listing Rules of
the Financial Conduct Authority, the
Board confirms that throughout the
year ended 31 Deceamber 2021 and as
at the date of this Raport, the
Company has complied with the
principles of the Code.

The Report also includes items
required by the FCA's Disclosure
Guidance and Transparency Rules.
The Board has ultimaote responsibility
for the approval of the Annual Report
and Accounts. it has cansiderad the
content of the Annual Report and
Accounts and confirms thot, taken
as a whole, it is fair, botanced and
understandable and provides

the necessary information for
shareholders to ossass the Company’s
position and performance, business
modal and strotegy.

Section 1: Board leadership and compaony purpose

nages B8 1o 73

A Effective cnad entrepreneurial board to promote the long-term sustainable succass
of the compaony, generating value for shareholders and contributing 16 wider society

C Rasources for the cormpany to meet its objectivas and measure performance
Controls frar'newon( for ‘manogement and assessment ct nsks

D Eﬂ'ectwe engugemem wnth shareholders and stukeho!ders

E Con515tency of workforce polrcnes ond prcscnces to support Iong term susmlncble success

Culture 6510 67
Risk framework 51
Staokeholder engagement 4010 4

Section 2: Division of responsibilities poges 66 to 67

F Leodershlp of boord bv chcnr

G Board composmon cnd responS|b tles

H Role ot non executlve dlrectors

) Compuny secrelury, pol:cuas pro::esses |nformcmon time and resources

Diractors’ biogrophies 821063

Roles and responsibilities 66

Section 3. Compesition, succession and evaluction pages 7210 77

4 Board oppomtmems ond succession plans for board and senior management

L Annudal evoluatian of board and directors and demenstration of whether
each director continues to contribute effectively

Board evaluation 721073
Diversity 75
Succession ptanning 76 t0 77

Section 47 Audit, risk and internal controls

M tndependence and effectivenass of internal and external audit functions
und mtegnty of fmancncl or\d narrcmve stoternents

N Furr bcrcnced cmd understundu ble ossessmenl of the componys posmon nnd prospects

O Rrslc mnncgemenl and |nterno| control frcmework cmd principal tisks company
is willing to take to achieve its long-term objectives

Fair, balanced, understandable 83
781080
811085

Risk management

internal control framework

poges 92 10 HE

Section 5. Remuneration

P Rermmuneration policies and practices to support strotegy and promoete long-term
sustmncble succass with executive remunerotlon aligned to campany purpose | cnd volues

Q Procedure for executrve remunerctton dlrector and senlor mancgemem remunerotlon

R Authonseuon of remunerotuon outcomes

97 to 104
105 to 116

Remuneration Policy

Remuneration Raport




gusiness
Overview

Board Leadership

The Board

The Boord is responsible for the
leadership ond direction of the Group
and is ultimately respansibie to the
Comnpany’s shareholders for the
Company's long-term success. The
Board takes the lead in areas such as
establishing the Company’s purpose,
values, strategqy, financial policy and
ensuring thot a sound systerm of
internal controt is maintained, whilst
continually seeking to represent the
interests ol all mutenul slukeholders.
By delegating authority tc its
Commitiees, the Board directs and
reviews the Group's operations within
on agreed framework of controls,
allowing risk to be assessed and
managed within defined parameters.

The Board has established a farmat
schedule of matters reserved forits
approve! which are detailed later in
this Report, and has delegated other
specific rasponsibilities to its principal
committess. the Audit, Nomination,
Remuneration and Risk Committesas.
The Risk Committee was established
during 2021, turther detail of which can
befound in the Risk Committee Report
on page 78. Each Cormmitiee’s
responsibilities are cleorly defined
within their Terms of Reference, which
are reviewed on an annual basis to
ensure they remain oppropriate and
that the Committees continue to
operate effectively.

Strategic
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The Board has also delegated to the
Chief Executive Officer (CEQ) the
rasponsibility for implementing the
Group's business modet and for the
day-to-day operational manogement
of the Group, supported by the Chief
Financial Officer (CFO), the Chief
Operating Officer (COO) and the senior
management team. The Board has
direct access to the Company
Secretary, who is responsible to the
Boord for ensuring that Baard
procedures are complied with and
that the Board has full and timely
access to relevant information.

The Board may take independent
professional advice in the furtherance
of its duties, if nacessary, at the
Company’s expense.

Board Committees

The Board has delegated specitic
responsibilities to its Committees to
ossist it in successfully performing its
duties. The Committees discuss and
propose matters to the Board to allow
it to make reasoned decisions, and if
required, lake appropriate actions.
Each Committee has reported onits
contributions to the Board's
decision-making during the year,
details of which can be found later in
this Report Biographies of the Chairs of
each of the Board Committees, as well
cs all other Directors, are set out on
pages 62 ond 83

Reinforcing a healthy corporate cuiture

Empowered employee
engagement
+ Monitoring health
and wellbeing
+ Providing learning and
development opportunities

Employee understanding

+ Group purpose ond strategy

- Core values of trust, support,
axperience and innovation

» Reqular engagement thraugh
dedicaoted NED

w

1

How the Board
monitors culture
in a decentralised

Group

Financial
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Culture

The Board is conscious of, and
understands the importance of,
aligning the Company's purpose,
values and strategy to the culture of
the Group to enable ong-term
business and econamic success. This
has been even more prevalent during
2021 with the rebranding of Palypipe
Group to Genuit Group and the
imtegration of the three acquisitions.

It has been a priority for the Board tc
ansure that the culture of the Group is
clear and understood in all of the
Group's businesses as it continues to
grow under its new brand.

Our culture is unique as we are

a decentralised Group where
day-to-day decision making and
product expertise is close to our
customers and our markets. As ¢
result, the Board prermotes a culture
whereby employees understand the
commeon Group purposs, strotegy and
decision-making hierarchy, but also
feel empowered tc act. We recognise
thot our ernployees are our greatest
asset in helping us achieve our vision
of being the leading UK-focused,
provider of sustainable construction
products. The Board 15 aware of the
role it plays in shaping, monitoring and
overseeing our culture, and recognises
that for the right culture to exist across
the Group, our care values must be
embedded inits approoch to
leadership, management and
long-term strategic decisions,

setting and implementing culture
using a top-down approach.

Risk management

+ Assisted by the Risk Committee

+ Risk appetite reviewed
regularly by the Board

Remuneration and culture

+ Assisted by the
Remunerotion Committee

« Alignment of remuneration
with strotegy



66 Genuit Group ple Annual Report & Accounts 2021

Corporate Governance Statement continued

Roles and responsibilities

The Board

The Board is responsible for the leadership ond direction of the Group and is ultimately responsibie 1o the Company's shareholders for
the Company’s long-term success

Chairman Chief Executive Executive Directors | Non-Executive Company
- Provides overall Officer = The CFO implemeants, Directors s€crefary
leadership and - Exgcutive manages and controls | . gerutinise and + Provices advice
governance manogement of the the Group's constructively o the Board on all
- SetstheBoardagendd |  Group's business fincncial-related chatlenge the governance and
- Promotes a culture - Develops and activities, includingthe | sartormance of legai-related matters,
of openress, implemeants Group developrnent of Executive Directors aswell as advising
chailange and strategy and oppropriate financial and contribute to Diractars on their duties
constructive debate commercial objectivas |  Strotegies and the setting strategy, - Assists with all Board
- Ensures Directors - teads senior rmanocgement of succession plans and and shareholder
understand the views monagement team investor relations remuneration strategy meetings and related
of majer sharehotders in effecting decisions | * The COO isresponsible [. ganior Independent paperwark
and stakeholders of the Board for the effective and Diractor acts as a + Facilitates induction
« Communicates afficlent manogement | sounding board tor and training
with the Board, of operations across Choirmon, approises progrornmas
shareholders, the Group his performance, for Directors
employees and leads the other NEDs,
other stakeholders and is a direct contoct
tor shareholders
itnecessary
Board
of Directors
Board
.
Committees
Board Committees

Tha Board has delegated specific responsibiities to its Committees to assist it in successtully performing its duties.

Audit

Coemmittee

Nominatien

Committee

Remuneration
Committee

Risk
Cammittee

Qverseaing financial
reporting

Reviewing structurg, size
and cormposition of the

Setting remuneration
policy tor Executive: Directors

setting the risk appetite,
risk tolerance and risk

+ Intarnal control systemns Board and its Committaes » Operating the Company's strategy of the Group
+ Internol and external + Board succession planning share incentive « Reviewing and reporting an
audit functiong + Determining the skills and arrangements risk managemant, principal

risks ond unceartainties
and emarging risks
Overseaing and
implementing internal
risk controls and risk
management systems

characteristics needed in
Board candidates to ensure
a diverse skill set
Considering stakehoider
perspectives when deciding
on recruitment processes
and selection criteria

Senior monagement
rermuneration

Owversight of remunearatian-~
related policies




Business
Overview

Our core values of trust, support,
experience and innovation underpin
our culture. Cur businesses therefore
adopt these core valuas and articulate
themn in a way which suits them, their
customaers, their employees and the
communities in which they operate.
These nuances are what makes our
culture unigue, becouse despite these
sublie adaptations across our
businesses, our core values do not
chonge and each business is working
towards the saome purpose.

The appointmant of a dedicated
employee engagemant Non-Executive
Director means there is a mechanism
in place for employee views to be
considered by the Board in its strategic
decision-making process. The
Executive Directors then communicate
the ogreed strategic direction, in terms
of how we can fulfil our purpose
through our values, to the senior
managerment teams across the
Group, ensuring there is a consistent
appreach at all levels.

Employee engagement is therefore
one of the key methods to ensuring a
unitied culture exists across the Group.
Our methods of engagement come in
a variety of forms and from all levels.
On o regular basis, emphasis is placed
on the heolth and wellbeing of our
employees to ensure they feel safe
and supported. We provide regular
opportunities far our employees to
develop their skills through training
and development, encouraging
innovation, experiance and career
devefopmaent, as well as ensuring ata
local tevel thot employses understand
our goals end the role that they can
play s achiaving them. We are
committed to corrying out our
business responsibly and ensuring we
promote sustoinable operations and
minimise adverse environmeantal and
social impacts.

This is embedded in mancgement
and employee reward schemes, where
health ond safety matters remain one
of the key performance parameters.
In addition to regular engagement,
additional engagement takes piace
when required. Further efforts will be
made during 2022 to increase the
exposure of everyday engagement
with the dedicated Non-Executive
Director, to ensure she is fully
appraised of as wide a range of views
as possible and can approprately
inforr Board discussion ond
decision-making as a result.

Encouraging an open and transparent
culture gcross the Group o promote
our values, help achieve our purpose
and vision, as well os fostering ond
maintaining a culture which is

Strategic
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responsive to stakeholder expsactations
and the external environmant will
continue to be a priority for the Boord,
It will continue to work to ensure this
remains successtully embedded inits
operations and to promcte a culture
whereby our employees understand
thair value ond contribution to the
Group's overall succass, motivating
them ond bringing them cn our
journey in addressing the challenges
caused by climate change and
urbanisation.

Board composition,
qualification and experience

At the year end, the Board comprised
the independent Non-Executive
Chairman, three Executive Directors
and five Non-Executive Directors. The
Non-Executive Directors were
appointed for the diversity of their
backgrounds as well as their personal
ottributas and experience. The current
Boord members bring o wide range ot
skills and experience to the Beard and
actively contribute to discussions.
During 2021, Matt Pullen was appointed
as Chief Operating Officer, and in
February 2022, Joe Vorih was
appointed as Chief Executive Offcer.
More details obout the recruitment
and induction process for both Joe
and Matt can be found loter in this
Report as well as in the Nomination
Committee Report cn pages 74 to 77.
Bicgraphical details of the individual
Directors can be found on pages 62
and 63.

The Nomination Committee and the
Board have considered the
independence of each of the Non-
Executive Directors. The Board
considered the Chairman and afl the
Non-Executive Directors to be
independent throughout the periad (or
where applicable, from appointment).
in accordonce with Code Provision 18,
all of the Directors are subject to
annual re-slection. Jee Vorih and Matt
Pullen will offer themselves tor election
at the 2022 AGM and for re-election
annually thereafter

Separation of the
roles of Chairman and
Chief Executive Officer

The roles and responsitilities of the
chairmon and the Chief Executive
Officer are separate and clearly
detined, with a distinct division

of responsibilities.

It is the Chairman’s duty to provide
overall leadership and governance of
the Board. in gerforming this role, the
Chairman sets the Board agenda,
ensures that adequate time is
available for discussion of ¢il agendas

finoncial
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iterms and promotes a culfture of

—opennass;-challenge-and-debate.at—

Board meetings. The Chairman is also
respansible for ensuring thot the
Directors have an understanding of
the views of major shareholders.
Supported by the Company Secretary.
the Chairman keeps under review the
adequacy of the training raceived by
all Directors (particularly on
stakeholder-related matters), the
induction received by new Directors
{especiclly those without pravious
Board experience), os well as
determining how best to ensure that
the Board's decision-making
processes give sufficient consideration
to material stokeholders.

The Chief Exacutive Officer is
respensible for executive
management of the Group's businass,
consistent with the strategy and
commercial objectives agreed by the
Board. He leads the senior
management tearm in effecting
decisions of the Board and its
Committees and is responsible for the
maintenance and protection of the
reputation of the Group.

The Chief Executive Officer is also
responsible for ensuring that the
aftairs of the Group are conducted
with the highest standards of integrity,
probity and corporate governance.

whilst the roles of the Chairman ond
Chief Executive Otficer are separate,
the partnership between both is based
on mutudal trust and facilitated by
regular contact between them. The
separation of gutharity enhances the
independant ovarsight of the executive
management by the Board ond helps
1o ensure that no one individual on the
Board has unfettered authority.

Role of the Senior
Independent Director

Mark Hommond was appeinted Senior
independent Director (SID) of the
Company in June 2020 He is ovailabls
to shoreholders if they have concearns
thot cannot be addressed through
normal channels. The role of the SID s
to act as a scunding Board for the
Chairrman and an intermediary for the
other Diractors when necessary. The
SIDis also available to chair the Board
in the absence of the Chairmon and
has authority to odd items to the
agenda of any reguiar or special
meeting of the Board. The role of the
510 is considerad to be an important
check and balance in the Group's
governance structure.

&7
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Appointment and tenure

The Non-Executive Directors serve on
the basis of letters of appointment,
which are available for inspection at
the Company's registered office. The
tetters of appointment set out the
axpected time commitment of the
Non-Exacutive Directors who, on
appointment, undertaka that they
have sufficient time ta carry out

their duties.

There is no fixed expiry date. The
Executive Cirectors’ service contracts
are olso avaiiakle for inspection at the
Company's registared office. The
notice period for the Executive
Directors is 12 months.

External appointments

As outlined in the Code, all
Non-Executive Directors should

hove sufficient time to meet their
Board responsibilities. To ensure this

is monitored regularly, all external
appeintments, including those of the
Chairman, are reviewed at every Board
meeting. The Board has reviewed the
nature of each appcintment and the
expected time commitrment far each
Director and concluded that none of
these appoeintments compramise the
effectiveness of the individual Director
or the Boardg, and is satisfied that each
Non-Executive Director has sufficient
time to discharge their duties to the
Company. Further details of our
Non-Executive Directors’ external
appointments can be found in their
biographies on pages 62 and 63.

Directors’ induction ond
training/professional
development

The Chairman, with the support of the
Company Secretary, is responsible for
the induction of new Directors and the
ongoing developmaent of all Directaors.
Matt Pullen joined the Board during the
year and received an induction which
involved visits to all operational sites,
product briefings and training, and
individual meetings with the membpers
of the Board, the executive team,
members of senior management

and the Company’s brokers,

Joe Vorih joined the Board in February
2022 and is in the process of
completing his induction.

As the internal and external business
anvironment changes, it is important
to ensure that Directors”’ skills and
knowledge are refreshed and updated
regularly. Theé Board was therefare
given presentations during the year
by the Company’s financial odvisers,
brokars and lawyers, as welf as several
presentations by senior management,
in addition to the annual strategy day.
At Boord meatings held during the
year, the Company Secretary updated
the Board on new legislation and
regulations as wall as changes to the
current lagislative and regulatory
regimes to which the Cormpany

is subject.

Directors’ conflicts of interest

Each Diractor has a duty under the
Companies Act 2006 to avoid a
situation where he or she may have a
direct or indirect interest that contiicts
with the interests of the Company. The
Company has robust procedures in
place to identify, authorise and
manage such conflicts of interest, and
these procedures have opsrated
affectively during the year.

All potentiol conflicts opproved by the
Boord are recorded in a conflicts of
interest register which is maintained by
the Company Secretary and reviewed
by the Board on a regutar basis.
Oirectors have a continuing duty to
update the Board with any changes to
their conflicts of interest.

Directors’ indemnity
and insurance

The Company maintains Directors’ and
Officers’ liability insurance to cover
legal proceedings against Directors
and Otficers acting in that capacity.
Details of the Directors’ indermnnity
orrangements can be found on pege
87 of the Directors’ Report.

Internal controls
and risk management

The Boord is responsible for
determining the nature and extent of
the significant nisks it is willing to take in
achieving its strategic objectives Itis
also responsibte for maintaining sound
rigk and internal control systems in
accordance with the Code and
contirms that:

+ there is an ongoing process for
identifying, evaluating and
managing the principal risks

faced by the Group;

the systems have beenin place for
the year under review and up to the
date of approval of the Annual
Report and Accounts;

the systems are regularly reviewed
by the Board, and

the systems accord with the FRC
guidance on risk management,
internal contral and related financial
and business reporting.

The effectiveness of these systemsis
also reviewed through the work of the
Risk Committee described on pages
78 to 80. The key rnsks which the Board
has focusaed on this year, together with
their potentialimpact and mitigating
actions afe set out on pages 51 to 56.

The Company has a risk management
framework which adopts a top-down
and q bottom-up view of the key risks,
which involves both the downward
cascade and upward escclation of
risks between the Group and the
business units. It comprises a risk
registar template, a risk profiie
tornplate and ossessment guidelines
to be used by both the Group and
business units when considering risk. It
aiso includes ¢ detailed approach to
formally recording and independently
assessing Group level risks. Given the
increased size of the Group ond the
remit of the Audit Committee, o review
was conductad of the risk
rmanagement framework and
reporting structure and a separate Risk
Committee wos established during
202), with responsibility for risk
management on behalf of the Board.
Further information about the work
and structure of the Risk Committee
can be found in the Risk Committee
Report on pages 78 to 80.

The Board has conducted a review of
the effectiveness of the system of
internal controls and risk
management, following a detailed
review undertaken by the Risk
Committee and the Audit Committes,
as appropriate, and is saotisfied that it
complies with Provision 28 of the Code.
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Qverview

Board and Diractor
Recruitment and
induction Process

Search

Review

\ 4
Identify
\
As5058
\ 4

Appoint

\ 4

Induct
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In light of the active year with the
recruitment of our new Chief
Cperating Officer and Chief Executive
Officer, we have taken the
opportunity to outline our appreach
to recruiting and onboarding
Directors, ensuring a successful
induction is provided following
uppointment. The recruitment
process is designed to ensure the
search for new Directors is thorough
and inclusive, and ensures recruits

Financiatl
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not only have the necessary
experience and skills to support the
Company’s strategic direction, but
also showcase an understanding of
the Group's culture and purpase.
Thair induction then provides cn
effective intreduction to the
boardroorm and facilitates o
comprehensive understanding

of the diverse portfolio of
businesses across the Group.

The Chairman leads the Nomination Committee to develop a candidate
specitication. The candiciate brief is then placed with an executive search
agency who must be a signatory to the Voluntary Code of Conduct for
Executive Search Firms in line with our Board Diversity Policy.

The executive search agency reviews the specification and, tollowing
extensive desktop resecrch, produces a long list of potential candidates
from various backgrounds and industries.

The Chairman identifies a short list of condidates following discussion with
the Sanior Independent Director and other mambers of the Committas
{or oppointed sub-committee, as appropriote).

The candidates are interviewed and assessed cgainst pra-determined
criteria and in lina with the specific candidate brief. This typically also includes
meeting various Board members on a more informal £osis to determine

imterpersonal dynamics.

The successful candidate is then recommended for appointment ta the
Board, with the Company Secretary tasked with the formalities.

The Company provides the new Director with a comprehensive and tailored
induction process, which includes visiting sites, meeting with Executive and
Non-Executive Directors and the Chairman and having introductory meetings
with senior management and external advisers where appropriate. if
necessary, new Directors are provided with training to address their role

and duties as a Director of a quated public company.

in addition to meeting with key personnel ond having access
to training where required, the newly onboorded Director has immediate

access o the following key documents:

Budget and five-year plan

ond emerging risks

.

ond Non-Executive Director tenure

Historic Board and Committee meeting papers {0s oppropriate)
Management accounts and divisional MD reports

Recent broker reports and analyst reports

Information on our sustainabiiity strategy and growth drivers,

along with any targets where relevant

The Group's risk appetite, risk register, principal risks and uncertainties

Crganisation charts, overview of all Committee membership

Matiers reserved for the Board and the Cammittees,

including access to the Terms of Reference for each

Board dotes and scheduling
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Financial and husiness
reporting process

The Board recognises its duty to
ensure that the Annual Report and
Accounts, taken as o whaole, is fair,
balanced and understandable and
provides the inforrnation necessary for
shareholders to assess the position
and parformanca, strategy and
business model of the Company. In
addition to the Annuagl Repert and
Accounts, the Caompony also ensures
that other price-sensitive reports
and other infarmation are

published externally.

The Group has a thorough assurance
process in pface in raspect of the
preparation, verification ana approval
of periodic finoncial reports, which s
set out in the Report of the Audit
Committee on pages 81 to 85.

This process inctudes

the involvement of qualified,
professional employees with an
appropriate level of experience
(both in Group Finance and
throughout the Group’s businesses);

formai sign-off frorm appropriate
business unit senior executivas;

comprehensive review ond,
whare appropriate, challenge
from appropriate Group
senior management and
Executive Directors;

a transparent process ta ensure full
disclosure of information to the
external auditor;

oversight by the Audit Committee,
invalving (Gmongst other duties);

a detailed review of key financial
reporting judgements which have
been discussed by management;
review and, where appropriats,
challange on motters inclading:

tha consistency of, and any
chonges g, significant accounting
policies and proctices during

the yeuar,

+

signiticant adjustments resulting
from on externat audit;

the viability staternent
assumptions; and

the going concern assumption.

tn order to ensure aur financial and
business reporting is fair, balanced
and undearstandable, the Company
follows the process outlined below:

Fair
» Is the report fair?
+ 1s the whole story presented?

+ Are the k@y messages in the narrative
reflacted in the financial reporting?

Batanced

Is there a good level of consistency
between the narrative reporting in
the front and the financicl reperting
in the back of the report?

Are the statutory and adjusted
measures explained clearly with
appropriate praminence?

Understandable
- ts there a clear and understandable
framework to the report?

~ Are the importont messoges
highlighted appropriataty
throughout the document?

Board and Committee attendance during 2021

This process provides comfort to the
Board that the annual Repert and
Accounts, taken as a whole, is fair,
balonced and understandobie, and
following its review, the Board was of
the opinion that the 2021 Annual Report
and Accounts is representative of the
year and presents a fair, balonced and
understandable overview.

Board meetings

In total, there were 16 Board meetings
held during the year, the majority of
therm virtuolly, to discuss and review
progress on issues ffecting the Group.
A number of Committee meetings
were also held during the year.

Details of ottendgnce at Board and
Cornmittee meetings are shown in

the able below.

As the table demonstrates, every effort
is made to ensure that all Directors,
where possible, attend schaduled
Board meetings. Howevar, in the event
that a Director is unable to attend a
meeting, they are neverthelass
provided with the meeting papers and
information relating to the meeting
and are able to discuss the issues
arising with the Chairman and

other Directors.

Senior mancgement from across the
Group os well as external aodvisers,
attend some of the meetings for
discussion of spacific iteams in greater
depth, and to provide training

and updates.

Audit Nomination  Remuneration Risk

Board Committeg Commiltee Committee Committee

Girectors Altendonce Altendonce Altendance Attendonce Attendance+
Ron Marsh 18116 ~8fe -
M ayne 816 3

park Hoﬁ'\lrﬁbnd

&v'\;’\'ﬁoy’rd '

efs .

o6 -

8/5

! Joined the Board on 1 Novemper 202

* Retired from the Board on | Novernber 2021
+ The Strategy and Markating Director, Chief People Officer and Company Secretary are also members of the Committee and
attendad oll Risk Committee maatings held during the year
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Overview

In order to provide the Board with
greoter visibility of the Group's
operations and to provide further
opportunities to meet senior
managermnent, the Board will usually
visit the Group’s businass unit locations
on a rolling basis each year. Such visits
allow the Board to gain a deeper
understanding of local market
dynamics and to assess managamaeant
perfermance and potential. However,
due to the restrictions in ploce during
the year as a result of Covid-1g, the
Board was onty able to visit the
Polypipe Civils site in Loughborough
ond the Group's new Head Office in
Leeds. The Board also held a Board
ainner ahead of the scheduled Board
maatings whera possible to provide a
more ralaxad forum for the 8oard
members o have additional
discussions omongst themselves, as
well as with the sanior management
team frormn that locaticon. This improved
the focus of the formel Boord meeting
and allowed for further employee
engagemaent by the Board.

Every year the Board holds an annual
strategy day, where it spends o full day
with senior management to discuss
current performance of the Group and
the strategic ptan. Members of senior
management from across the Group
present the updated strategy and
proposead impiementation of this
strategy within @ach division, The
strategy day during 202! was held on
23 Novermber, with engagement andt
challenge from the Board and senior
management at a high level
throughout the day, and aninfarmal
dinner thereafter to discuss and reflect
on the discussions during the day in

a more infarmal environment During
tha year, the Charman held regular
{virtual) mesetings with the
Non-Executive Directors without

the Executive Directors present, and
the Non-Executive Directors hetd
discussions without the Chairman
being present to oppraise the
Choirman'’s perfermancs, os
discussed later in this Report.

Strategic
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Schedule of matters
reserved for the Board

The schedule of matters reserved for
the Board includes the consideration
and approval of:

strategy and overall management
and leadership of the Group;
finoncial items ~ including the
Group's annual budget, dividend
policy, annual and half-yearly
accounts, accounting policias, and
monetary limits;

the risk management systerm and
internal controls;

contracts with third parties notin the
ardinary course of business;

legal, administration and
pension arrangerments;

the Group's corporate governonce
arrangements;

the operation of the Company’s
share option schemes as
recommended by the
Remuneration Committes,
Directors’ and Officers’ insurance
coveroge ond the commencement
or settlemaent of any major litigation;

.

.

setting and assessing the
approprigteness and ongoing
developrnant of the Group's culture,
and moenitoring behaviour across the
businesses to ensure culture is
alignad with the Group's values,

communications with

shareholders and the issue

of sharehoider circutars,

identifying those who they consider
their key stakeholders to be and why,
keeping this undar regular review,
Board ond senior

rmanagement appointments

and arrangements; and

canflicts of interest where permitted
by the Company's Articles of
Association.

Financial

Rermuneration Statamants 7

Board Committees

The Beard has appointed four Board
Committees: the Audit Committee,

the Nomination Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the

Risk Cornmittee. The role and
responsibilities of each Committee are
set aut in formol Tarms of Reference.
These Terms of Reference have been
raviewed during the year and adjusted
as necessary o reflect lagislative
changes and best practice and to
improve the individual and collective
Committaes’ efficiency and
effectiveness. The Terms of Referance
for each Cormmittee are available on
the Company's website.

The Committeas carry out their
required duties and make
recommendations to the Board

tfor approval. Each Committee Chair
provides an updata to the Board on
the key discussions and decisions
made at the preceding

Commiltee meeting.
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Corporate Governance Statement continued

Board and committee evaluation cycle

Internal

evaluation

Internal evaluation 2021

External

) evaluation
2021

evaluation
2022

Board structure and functionality
The cusrent size and composition
of the Beard is appropriote and
rnokes for effective collective
decision-maoking.

Baard meetings

Board meetings are effective, well
organised and discussions seek 10
apprapriotely consider the impoct and
views of key stakeholder groups.

Board administration and
corporate govemance

The Board gives adequole
consideration to corporatg
governgnce ondis adaptable
in changing environeents.

Personal effectiveness and

overall Beard effectiveness
Directors are fraquently updated on
legislative changes ond best practice
guidance and know where to go to fifl
in gaps in skills or knowledge. This
enables eftective decision-making
and altows Directors to effectivety
cantribute to Board discussions.

Quality and experience

of theinduction process

The induction process is designed to
ensure Directors raceive appropriote
infarmaticn to atlow them o perform
their role effectively, including ensuring
they have access to advice cnmatters
of & stattary or regulatory naturg and
are updated in a timely manner on
naw legisiation and evolving best
practics in relation to Board and
Committee respansibilities.

Overall effactivenass of induction:

L 6.8 & ¢

Areos targeted forimprovement
during 2022

Employee engagement

A more detaited structure for
employee engagement 1o be agreed
Governance review

Review of the Risk Committee to be
undertaken to contirm whathar its
function remains appropriate

informol Board interactions

Moare informal engagement between
Board mernbers and senior
management to be encouraged
Periodic monitoring

A motrix of items for review by the
Board at the half year to be prepared



Business
Ovarview

Board evaluation
and effectiveness

In accordance with Code Provision 21,
which outlines the reguirement to
conduct an external Board evaluation
avery three yaars, following the
external evaluation in 2019 and internal
evaluotion during 2020, the Boord
conducted another internal evaluation
durinng the financial year. This followed
the same formaot as 2020 using an
anonymoeus questionnairg, to aliow

cll Directors to give honest feedback.
The questionnaira focused an faur
different areas: Board Structure ond
Functicnality, Board Meetings, Board
Administration and Corporate
Governance and Personal
Efiectiveness and Overcll Board
Effectiveness. In addition, it contained
a section which specifically targeted
those greas that had been focused on
for improvernent during 202), to give
the Board an indication of prograss.
Foltowing this, the results were
discussad between the Chairman and
the Company Sacretary in the first
instance, and then shared with the
Board atits December 2021 meeting.

Board evaluation process

Strategic

Report Governance

The results showed that the Beard
remained collective in its opinian of
its overail etfectiveness, that it was
operating efficiently and effectively,
ond Executive Direclors’ and
Non-Executive Directors’ views
were largely aligned which was

a positive outcome.

In addition ta the full Boowrd and
Committes evaluations, O seporote
svaluation was conducted which
assessed the quality and experience
of the induction process for newly
appointed Directors. Results of this
evaluation showed the induction to
be effective and the overall induction
process was rated highly. The
Chairmon and Campany Secretary
continue to review the induction
process and endeavour to make
improvements wherever possible tc
ensure ony newly onboarded Directors
successfully intagrate and prove
effective at their role as quickly as
possible. Further details on the
structure of our board eveluation
process are detailed betow.

Questionnaires for the Board ond its Committees
were developed by the Company Secretary in

Stage 1.
Evaluation
design

consultation with the Chairman. Questions were sat
having consideration for retevant recommendations
from 2020, in addition to best proctice and revised
guidance such as the Code and the FRC Guidance
on Board Effectiveness.

Stage 2.
Evaluation
process

Questonnaires were issued to Board members and
responses were collated and draft reports which
summarised the findings and included proposed
recommendations for discussion, were prepared by
the Compaony Secretary. These were thaen discussed
with the Chairman.

Stage 3.
_ Discussion
ond actions

The relevant report of anonymised tindings was
prasented ot the corresponding Board aond
Committee meetings between becember and
March. Through review and discussion, gctions ware
agreed tor implementation and monitoring as
cutlined opposite.

Financial
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Annual General Meeting

The Company's Annual Generol
Meeting (AGMY} is scheduled to be held
on 19 May 2022 All shoreholders have
the opportunity to attend ond vote, in
person or by proxy, at the AGM. A copy
of the notice of AGM can be found on
the Company's website.

The AGM is the Company’s principal
forurn for communication with private
shareholders. The Chairman of the
Board cnd the Chair of @ach of the
Committees will be gvailable to
answer shareholders’ questions at
tha AGM.

The notice of AGM will be sent out to
shareholders at least 20 working days
befora the meeting. Resuits will be
announced to the tondon Stock
Exchange via a Regulatery (nformation
Service announcement and published
on the Company's website.

Re-election of Directors

Al the AGM, all Directors will retire and
submit themselves for election or
re~election. As a result of the Board
evaluation exercise, as Chairman, tam
sotisfied that eoch Director continues
to show the necessary level of
commitmnent to their role and has
sufficient time available to fulfii his or
her duties, to justify their re-election.
Joe Vorin and att Pullen will offer
themselves for election at the 2022
AGM and for re-election annually
theraafter.

Approved by the Board and signed on
its behalf. ﬂ

Ron Marsh
Chairman
15 March 2022

-

N
/
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Nomination
Committee Report

Letter from the Chair of

the Nomination Committee

RonMarsh
Chair of the Nornination Commiittee

2021 Key Achievements

Appointment of Joe Vorih os
Chief Exgcutive Officer

Appointment ot Matt Pulien as
Chief Qperoting Officer

Areas of Focus in 2022

Succession planning for Non-
Executive Directors

Continuation of the development
of succession plons, tolent
managemeant and diversity

N conjunction with the Chied
Pecple Officer

Dear Shareholder

lam delighted to present the Report

of the Nomination Committee (the
Cammittee) for 2021, reporting an the
waork of the Committes during the year,
as wall as its ongoing objectives

ond responsibilities.

The role of the Nomination Cormmittee
is to estaplish and maintain a process
for appointing new Board members
ond o support the Board n fulfifling its
overall duties. Given the numerous
changes to the composition of the
Board during 202) ond early 2022, it hos
been essenticl that the Committee
has operated efficiently and effectively
to enabla the management of o
succeassful recrutment and
anboarding process; ensuring any
appointed Executive Director not only
has the necassary experience and
skills to support the Company's
strotegic direction, but can also show
an understanding of the Group’s
culture and purpose. With the
imptementation of the updated UK
Corporate Governance Code {the
Code) in 2018, the Committee's
importance and prevalence in
maintaining and promoting the culture
of the Compony has become more
apparant, and this is one of the key
ongoing considerations of the
Committee as it implements its
succession planning strategy.

Ouring 202, Martin Payne announced
that he would be stepping down as
Chief Executive Officer and from the
Board after leading the Group for five
years. As a result, and following a
rigorous recruitment process, the
Committee recommended to the
Board that Joe Vorih be appointed os
nis successor and accordingly, Joe
was gppointed as Chief Executive
Officer and a mermber of the Boord cn
28 February 2022 Martin Payne
stepped down as Chief Executive
Otficer, following a period of handover
with Mr Varih. He remains an employee
of thae Company and 1s availabie to the
Board in an advisory capacity until

20 May 2022,

During the year, the Committee afso
oversow the successful recruitment

of o new Chief Operating Officer (COQ),
Matt Pullen, who was appointed as
COO and a member of the Boord on

I Novermber 2021, This follows Glen
Sabin's retirement from the Board and
the Company on 1 November 2021
Glen remained available to the Board
and Company until 31 December 2021
to facilitate an effective handover.
Further details of the recruitrment
process far each of the new Board
members are described in this Report.

The Committee is supported by o
strong Secretanat funclicn ond has
access to the Company Secretary at
oli times, ensuring it is kept up ¢ date
with all recommendead guidance. The
guidance issued by the Financial
Reporting Council (FRC), as well as the
Guidance on Board Effectiveness,
Board Diversity and Effectiveness in
FTSE 350 Componies, and the Code,
recommend that Nemingtion
Committees should look desper into
the Company ta identify future leaders,
adopting a wider outlook in identifying
potential directors. as well as taking a
maore diversity-friendly approach to
Board recruitment. The senior
meanagerment succession plan was
reviewed and updoted at the
Committee meeting in December 2021,
ensuring developments and related
guidance were incorporated into the
future succession planning strategies
of the Cormmittee. in addition, the
recruitrnent of the new executive role
of Chief People Officer in 2021 has
ensured artincreased focus on
recruitment processes and succession
planning at a senior level and provided
invaluable support to the Committee
throughout these processes.

The Committee will continue to focus
an ensuring that individual Directors
and the Board as o whole have the
necessary experience and skills to
support the Company's strategic
direction, as well as the Boord's ability
to successfully oversee its delivery of
such strategy Qur considerations an
these matters when making changes
to the Board during the year are set
out in more detail in this Report.

I will be availoble at the AGM to
answer any questions about the
work of th& Committea.

RonMarsh
Chair of the Nomination Co ittee
15 March 2022
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Ovearview

Committee membership
and meetings

The Cormmittee comprises Ron Marsh
(the Chairman), all the Non-Executive
Directors, being Kavin Boyd, Mark
Harmmond, Louise Hordy, Lisa Scenna
and Louise Brocke-Smith, and Joe
vorih (Chief Executive Officer). Clore
Taylor (Chief People Officer), olso
attends the meetings by invitation.
accordingly, there are seven membars.
The Committee is chaired by the Board
Chairman except when considering
his own re-election.

In accorgance with Codse Provision 17,
the majority of the Committee
members were independent. The
members of the Cormmittee and
detoils of their attendance at all
Commiltee meetings are sat out on
page 70. Biographies of each member
are shown on pages 62 and 63. Under
the Committee’s Terms of Reference,
the Committee will normclly meet not
less than twice o year gnd ot such
other imes as the Chairman shall
require. The Committee held two
scheduled formal meetings during the
year under review and on additional
three mestings to discuss and
progress the appointment of the new
Exscutive Directors. After each
Committee meeting, the Chairmaon
reports to the Board on the mainitems
discussed, as well as reporting on the
noture ond content of its discussion,
recommendations ond action

to be taken.

Role of the Committee

The Committee’'s main responsibilities
are to evaluate the structure, size and
composition (including the skills,
knowledge, experience and diversity)
required of the Board and the
Committess; to give full consideration
to succession planning of Diractors
and other senior exacutives; and to
assist with the selection process for
new Executive and Non-Executive
Directors including the Chairman.

The Comrnittee's Terms of Reference
explain the Committee's role and
responsibilities ond were reviewed

in December 2021 to ensure they
remain appropriate. The Terms

of Reference can be found on the
Compaony’s website.

The Company Secretary aclts as
Secretary to the Committes. In
accordance with its Terms of
Reference, the Committee is
required to:

» review the structure, size and
compaosition of the Board and make
recornmencdations to the Board,
as appropriate;

Strategic

Report Governance

consider succession planning for
Directors ond other senior executives,
taking into account the challenges
and opportunities facing the Group
ond the futura skills and expertise
needed on the Board;

review the leadership needs of the
organisation, both Executive and
Non-Exccutive, with a view to
ensuring the continued obility of the
arganisation to compete effectively
in the marketploce;

igentify the batance of skills,
knowledge, diversity and experience
on the Boarg;

identify and nominate candidataes to
fill Boara vocancies as ond when
they arise and recommend them for
the approval of the Board;

review the time commitment
required from Naon-Executive
Directors;

review the results of the Board
performance evaluation process
that relate to the composition of the
Beard and the Committee's own
perfarmaonce; and

review and approve the Group’s
diversity policy and evaluate its
effectiveness on a regular basis.

Governance

In cceordance with Code Principle L,
the Board and its Committees are
requirad 10 be evaluated on an annual
basis. Following on external evaluction
in 2019, an internal evaluation of the
performance of the Board and its
Cormmittees was conducted during
2021, focusing on how affactively
membars work together to achieve
objectives. Appointments to the Board
are subject to forrnal, rigarous and
transparent procedures ond incluce
consideration, where oppropriate, of
comments and feedback from the
onnual evaiuation of the Board. This
was particularly relevant in the context
of the recruitment of the two new
Executive Directors during 2021.

At its meeting in December 2021, the
Cormmittee considered the contents of
the review ond concluded that the
evaluation had found the Committee
to be operating effectively and
efficiently, cornmunicating as required
with the Boord in relation to matters
within its remit, thereby assisting in

the Board's decision making. Further
detoils of the results ot the Beard
evaluation ¢an be found on page 72
of the Corporate Governance Report.

Financial
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Diversity

Promoting diversity within the
workplace continues to be a key itern
on the UK Corporate Gaverngnie
agendo ond the Carmnmittee
welcomed the Hampten-Alexander
Review which sought te improve Board
and senior leadership diversity Qcross
FTSE 350 companies, as well as the FRC
Board Diversity and Effectivaness in
FTSE 350 Companies. The Company
made good progress towards
ochieving the requirement of 33%
women in its Executive Committes and
direct reports thereto, having achieved
the 33% requirement at Board tevel in
2019. The Company also has 26%
fernale representation at senior
management level, being the
Executive Cemmittee and its

direct reports.

Gender Diversity* (%}

Board* (%)

Executive Committee and
Direct Reports* (%)

*as reported (N Hampton-Alexander
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The Committee supports and
encouroges diversily in line with
Principle J of the Code, acknowledging
the odvantages that come from
having diverse viewpoints and the
influence this con have on
decision-making. It is the aim of the
Committee to always consider the
benetits that arise from a diverse
Boaid when making Board
appointments. The Compary’s
recruitrnent and appointment strategy
is bosed on the merits of the individual
candidates, without bias towards age,
gender, marital or family stotus, race,
sexual orientation, religion ar belief or
any disability. Currently, three of the
nine Directors are fernole, as well as
the Company Secretary.

Divarsity will continue to be o kay
consideration for the Cormmittee into
2022 when assessing the cormposition
of the Board and senior management,
to ensure the continuad development
ol a diverse pipeline for succession
and to devslop our policies and
procedures to help integrate diversity
into strategic decision-rmaking. By
continuing to embrace divarsity, the
Cormmittee balieves the Board and
Group wilt better understand haw
differences in approach, background,
mindset and experience amongst
employeas can benefit the Company
and ultimately its stokeholders, in line
with the Girectors’ 172 duties and
cormmits to working towards the
recomrmendations of the Parker
Review to have at least one
rapresentation of ethnic minority on
the Board by 2024. The Cammittee
does not only consider board
cangidates from a top-down
perspective, it glso manitors the
pipelina from the bottom up. This
ensures diversity is on the hiring and
promaoting agenda at ol levels of the
organisation, to build board patential
as well as building relaticnships
externally with independent directors.

Overall warkforce
who arefemale

25%

2020: 24%

whilst we continue to commit to
rmaking progress on diversity
throughout the erganisation, we
recognise that further progress is still
necessary in order to fulfil our overall
diversity ambitions and as set out
above, it is a priority for 2022 to
achieve more in this area with our
Chief People Officer.

Main activities during the year

Buring the yaar under review, the
Committee carried aut a process to
recruit a new Chief Executive Officer.
In addition, the Committee oversaw
the recruitment process for Glen
Sabin’s successor, Matt Pulien, the
newly appointed COQ. The Committee
olso carried out its duties as listed
above ond hos given particular focus
to succession planning for both

the Board members as well as

senior executives.

As stated in the Corporate Governcnce
Repaort, all of the Company's Directors
will retire and each will offer
themseives for election or re-election
at the forthcoming AGM, in
accordance with Code Provision 18.

The Chairman confirms that the
Committee has considered the
performance evaiuation and the
contribution and commitrment of all
Directors. The Chairman has
confirmed to the Board that their
perfermance ond commitment is such
that the Company sheuld support their
election or re-atection, as appropriate.
In addition, the Board evaluated each
Director’s time commitmeants, and was
satisfied that, in line with the Code,
they each continued to allacate
sufficient time in order to discharge
their responsibilities effectively,
including attendance at Board ond
opplicable Committee meetings as
well as ime needed to prepare for
meelings, and other additionat
commitments that may arise during
the usual course of business.

The Committee recognises the
importance of the time commitment
of each Director to shareholders, and
this will therefore continue 1o be kept
under review for all Directors during
2022. No Director was able to vote

in respect of their own election/
re-glection when consideration was
givan to Director election/re-election
atthe AGM.

Intormation on the Directors’ service
agreements, shareholdings and share
options is set outin the Directors’
Remuneration Report on pages 105

to 6

Duwring the year, the Committee
appeointad Odgers Berndtson to assist
in identifying potential candidates

to succeed Martin Payne as Chief
Executive Officer, and Russeli Reynolds
and Korn Ferry to assist in identifying
potenticl candidates to succeed

Glen Sabin as Chief Operating Officer.
Qdgers Berndtson and Russell
Reynolds confirmed their
independance on appointrnent and
that they had no other connection
with the Company or any individual
Directors. Korn Ferry are the appeinted
advisers to the Remunarction
Committae, but the work carried out in
retation to the oppointment of the COO
was carried out by a team separate
to the remuneration advisory tecirm.

a1

Diversity will
continuetobea
key consideration
for the Committee
into 2022.
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Executive Director
recruitment

The Cormmittee conducted a robust
fecruitment process during the year
for the recruitment of both the Chief
Cperating Officer, and Chief Executive
Officer. Further detail on this process is
outlined bealow.

Chief Operating Officer

Inlight of Glen Sabin's intended
ratirement from the Board in 2021, the
Committae, following on arms length
tender process, appeinted Russel!
Reynolds to identity potential
condidates for the Chief Operating
Officer role.

Russeall Reynolds undertook an
extansive search process using the
brief provided by the Committes,
reviewed CVs and interviewed
numercus internal and external
candidntes.

On the authority of the Committee, a
sub-committee comprising Mr Payne,
ms Hardy and the Chairman ware
oppointed to review the longlist of
candidates. The merits of oll
candidates on the longlist were
discussed in detail by Russell Reynolds
and the sub-committee, including
feedback from the interviews carried
out by them.

Following this discussion, a shortlist of
candidates was prepared by Russell
Reynolds and these candidates,
including two internal candidates, were
interviewed by tha sub-committee.

Following this process, the
sub-committea recommended five
candidates ke interviewed by the
Exscutive Diractors and the other
Committee members. The participants
failed to reach a unanimous
conclusion, and Korn Ferry was then
appointed 1o start 0 second process

A shortlist of four candidotes was
identified from the longlist compiled by
Korn Ferry, who were interviewed by the
members of the newly appointed
sub-committee, comprising Mr
Hammond, Ms Scenna and the
Chairman. As a result, two preferred
condidctes wereg interviewed by the
remaining Committee members ond
the Chiet Financial Officer.

As a result, all Committee members
agreed that Matt Pullen hod the
necessary attributes and skills that
werg being sought for the Chisef
Operating Otficer role, and
recommended his appointment

to the Board.

Strategic
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Chief Executive Officer

in light of Martin Payne’s intention to
step down from the Board in 2022,
the Committee, following an orms
iength tender process, appointed
Odgers Berndtson to identify
potential candidates for the Chief
Execiiiva Dfficer role.

Odgers Berndtson undertook an
extensive search process using the
brief provided by the Committee,
reviewed CVs and interviawed
numerous external candidates.

Cn the authority of the Commitiee,
a sub-committee comprising the
Chairman, Mr Hammond and

Ms Scenna supported by the Chiet
People Officer, were appwointed to
review the longlist of candidates.
The merits of all cendidates on
the longtist were discussed in
detail by Odgers Berndtson and
the sub-committee, including
feedback from the interviews
carried out by them.

Following this discussion, a shorthst
of candidates was prepared by
Odgers Barndtson and these five
candidates were interviewed by
the sub-commitiee ond the

Chief People Officer.

Foliowing this process, the
sub-committea racommended
two candidates be interviewed by
the Executive Directors, the other
Committee members, the Chief
Financial Officer and the
Company Secretary.

As a result, all Committee members
unanimously agreed thot Joe Vorih
had the necessary ottributes and
skills that wera being sought for the
Chief Executive Officer role and
recommended his appointment

to the Board.

Financial
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Succession planning

A key activity of the Carmmittee is to
keep under review the Group's
succession plons for mambers of the
Board and senior manggers across
the Group over the short, medium
and long term to ensure that the
composition of the Board and seninr
management team remains
appropriately balanced between
new and innovative thinking and
longer-term stability. Monagement
training and devalopment plans are
provided to senior and middle
management where appropriate in
order to continue to develop a diverse
pipeline of iInternal talent for the future,

Im addition, the Cormmittee considers
emergency succession plonning and
is comfortable that o framewark is in
place should key management roles
need to be covered on aninterim
basis. Board oppointmant criteria
are considered automatically as
part of the Committee’s review of
succession plonning and matters

of Director tenure are viewed on g
case-by-case basis.

Tenure of Non-Executive
Directors

Appointrents to the Board are
typically made for an initial term of
three years and are ordinarily limited
to three consecutive terms in office,
subject to annual re-election by
shareholders at the AGM.

By order of the Boord.

Ron Marsh
Chair of the Nomination Committee

15 March 2022
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Risk Committee

Report

Letter from the Chair of the Risk Committee

Paul James
Chair of the Risk Committes

2021 Key Achievements

Creation and establishment of
the Committee

Review and updote of the Group's
Risk Appatite

Further developrment of risk
managemeant reporting processes

Areas of Focus in 2022

Ongoing imptementotion of updated
risk monagament processes

Continue 10 monitor and updaote
principal risks and uncartainties and
emerging risks where required

Continue to manage all Covd-19
related risks

Inclusion of TCFD disclosures in the
context of chmate-related risk

Dear Shareholder

|am pleased to prasent the first Report
of the Risk Committee (the Commitiee)
for the yeor ended 31 December 2021,
which provides detoil an the work of
the Committee during the year, as well
as its ongoing objectives and
responsibilities.

As noted in the 2020 Annual Report
and Accounts, following an Internal
Audit conductad by Grant Thornton LLP
(UK), changes were reacommended to
develop the risk reporting processes
previously in ploce. Raising the profile
of risk review and its management
across the Group was one of these
recommendations. It wos therefare
agreed by the Board that the creation
of a dedicated Risk Committee

would sotisfy and improve the

overall risk reporting culture of the
Group, consalidating, standardising
and cementing existing risk

reporting processes.

The membership of the Committee
comprisas the Executive team, being
the three Executive Directors, the Group
Marketing and Strategy Director, the
Chuef People Officer ond the Group
Legal Counsel & Campany secretary.
In gecordance with its Terms of
Reference, the Committee meels o
minimum of twice a year. The Group
Financial Controlier is in attendance at
all Cammittee meetings and divisional
management and functional heads
are invited to attend Commitiee
meetings as and when required.

The requirament for the Audit
Committee to review and monitor risk
management systems no longer
forms part of its duties and
responsibilities, and the responsibility
far monitoring and reviewing such
systemns has passed Lo the Risk
Committee. The Committee hos
oversight of the Group risk profile and
risk appetite as a whole and, unless
required otherwise by regulatian,
carries out the duties below, reporting
to the Board as appropriate:

- reviews, manages ond agrees the
risk appetite, tolerance and strategy
of the Graup;

assists the Board in fulfilling its
reporting responsibilities in the
Annual Report for risk reporting,
including:

- the internal risk management and
control systems in place,

principal risks and uncertainties,

.

.

emerging risks,

risk appetite and any respective
stress testing; and

overseeing and implamenting the
Group's internal controls and risk
management systems.

All proceedings of the Committee are
reported formally to the Beard by the
Chair of the Committee, who reports
on ¢ll matters within the Committee’s
remit, and recormmendations are
made to the Board where action or
approvatl is required.

Despite the Committee being in its
infancy, | arm confident that its
estoblishment further strangthens the
Group's risk management structure,
allowing more dedicated time ond
detailed consideration to be given to
the various aspects of the risk
management pracess and ensuring
its continuing development across the
Group. This will in turn enable specitic
areas of development to be targeted,
further increasing the owareness
across the Group of the importance of
risk nanagement.

Further detail of cur considerations
and the progress which has been
made during the year on our risk
management pracesses and structure
are exploined in more detail in this
Report. Details of our principal risks and
uncertainties as well os ocur emerging
risks, can be tound on pages 51to 56.

{ will be available ot the AGM to answer
any questicns about the work of
the Committee.

Paul James
Chair of the Risk Committee

15 March 2g22-
~



Business
Overview

Committee membership
and meetings

The Committee comprises Paul tames,
Joe Vorih, Matt Pullen, Martin Gisbourne
(strategy and Markating Director),
Clare Taylor (Chief Peaple Officer} and
Emma Versluys {Group Legal Counsel
& Company Secretory), Key members
of the Group Finance team are invited
to ottend all mestings, and Divisiona!
Managing Directors and Finance
Directors, as well as functiona! heads,
are invited to attend and provide an
update to the Committee on a
ratational basis. Accordingly, there

are six mambers,

Code Provision 28 requires risk
management systems ba either
reviewed by the Audit Cormmittge, a
risk comnmittee composed of
independent Non-gxecutive Directors,
or the Boara Althcugh the Committes
ts comprised of Executive DirecCtors and
senior management rather than
Non-Exécutive Directors, it reports on
ali its activities to the Board and the
Board is required 1o approve any
chonges to the risk managemant
structure across the Group. It was
ogreed that the Risk Committee
composition would enable Committee
maatings to be constructive and
effective at reviewing and discussing
the granular detail of risk across
individual divisions and the Group as a
whole, and that the appropricte
oversight by the Beard would bg
gained by the formal reporting
processin place.

Under the Committee’s Terms of
Referance, it will normally meet not less
than twice a year and ot such other
times as the Chairman shall require.
The Committee held three scheduled
meetings dufing the year under review.
After each Committee meeting, the
Chairmaon reported to the Board an
the main items discussed, as well as
reporting on the nature and contant of
its discussion, recommendations and
oction o be taken.

Strategic
Report Governance
Role of the Committee

The Committes’s main responsibilities
are o ensure adequate and effective
risk managerent systems ond
controls are in place across the Group
on beholf of the Board, in accordonce
with Principle O, as wall as ensuring
that the Group is acting in accordance
with its approved risk appstite. It
advises the Board on its risk oppetite,
tolercnce and strategy and provides
recommendations to the Board on the
effectiveness of the internat control
environment. The Committee’s Terms
of Referance explain the Committee’s
rale and responsibilities and were
reviewed in January 2022 to ensure
they remain appropricte. The Terms of
Reference can be found on the
company’s website.

The Assistant Company Secretary
acts os Secretary to the Cormmittee.
In accordance with s Terms of
Reference, the Committee is
required to

rmonitor and review the effectiveness
of the Company’s risk management
and internal control systems;

+

review the Company's procedures
to manage or mitigate principol
risks and to identify emerging risks;
ossistin the Board's assessment

of principal and emerging risks;
review and assess the Company’s
risk appetite ond associoted

stress testing;

evaluate the Company’s principal
risks, to be taken into account by the
Board when ossessing the
Compaony’s prospects;

review and approve the statements
to be included in the Annual Report
concerming internal controls and risk
management;

advise the Board on the Company’s
overall risk appetite, tolerance and
strategy, and the principal and
emerging risks the Company is
willing to take in order to achieve its
long-term strategic objectives; and
advise the Board con the likelihood
ond the impact of principal risks
materialising, and the management
and mitigation of principal risks to
reduce the likelihood of their
incidence or theirimpact.

Financial

Remuneration Stotemnents

Governance

n accordance with the Code Principle
L and Pravision 21, the Board and its
Committees are required to be
evaluated on an annual basis. As tha
Committes was not established until
partway through 2621, it was not
included in the 2021 imterno) evaluation
as it did not have sufticient history

to alfow a full ossassment of its
offectiveness and perforrnance The
Committee will be included in the
axtarnal evaluation to be carried out
in 2022 and the results of this will be
included in the 2022 Annual Report
and Accounts.

Risk management process

The Board, with the support of the
Committee, is responsible for ensuring
that an effective risk managemaent
process is in place, thot itis fit for
purpose, and is effectively operated
throughout the year It is therefore
imperative that the Commitiee
ensures the Board has a clear view

of the tevel of risk throughout the
Group by taking both:

+ atop-down view of the key risks:
identifying, assessing ond mitigating
risk at o Group tevel which could
prevent achievernant of the Group
strategy; and

a bottom-up view of risks identifying,
assessing and mitigating risk at a
business/operationat level which
may have an implication at business
unit level but could also affect
achieverment of the Group stratagy.

Each business unit applies a
systematic risk management process
in line with Group prescribed :
mandatory standards and is
respensible for keeping and
maintaining their own risk registers,
wheraby each risk is recorded and
scorad for bath impoct and probanbility,
allowing the most significant risks to be
identified/prigritised. Business units are
required to formally review the risk
register and risk profile {as o minimum
by the business unit's Managing
Director and Finance Director) at

least twice a year.
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Risk Commiittee Report continued

Risk management process continued

Board

+ Overall responsibility for risk manogement and intamat contrel
+ Reviews and approves the risk appetite stotement drafted by the Risk Committee

+ Sets strotegic objectives

Risk Commiittee

works alongside the Board to set
the risk tolerance levels for the
Group in dratting and maintaining
the risk oppetite statement

Manitors and reviews the Group's
nsk ragister

Identifies and evaluates Principal
Risks and Uncertainties and
emerging ricks, and presents these to
the Boaord for opproval and inclusion
in the Annuai Repart and Accounts,
as well os ensuring they are
appropriately manoged

Senior Management

review of risks

Committee on Q rotationdl basis

.

mitigation plans

Risk registers must be submitted to
Group Finance ot least twice @ year so
that the Group risk register con be
updated every six months. The Group
risk register 1s the consolidation of alt
risks considerad to be significant ot
Group Level. itis maintained by the
Group Financial Controller and is
reviewed and updated annually by
the Committee.

Ermerging risks are included as part of
the reporting and monitering process
described above.

Arobust assessment of the pnncipal
risks facing the Group is performed by
Group Finance following the collation
of the Group risk registers. This process
identities those risks that could
threaten future performance and
solvency or liquidity, as well as the
Group’s strategic objectives over the
coming 12 months. The principal risks
cre then presented to the Committee
and are reviewed, discussed and
approved by its members prior to
submission to the Beord for final
approval and inclusion in the Annuck

Audit Committee

* Monitors assurance and internak
financial control arrangements

+ Manages the external gudit process
and reviews the auditors’ reports

Maintain the Group's nsk regrsters and implament the bottorm-up approach

Manage the Group's risk management proceduras
Monitor the operation and effectiveness of key controls, and report to the Risk

Provide guidance and gdvice to armployaes in identifying risk and implernenting

Report and Accounts. Principal risks
are documented to include
comprehensive overview of the key
contrals in place o mitigate the risk
and the potential impact on strategic
objectivas and KPis. Changes to those
principal risks which are disclosed
annually can only be made with
approval from the Committee and the
Board. Principal risks are presanted to
the Comrnittee at least twice o year to
ensure they are monitored on an
ongaing basis. More detail on those
risks which have been determined as
the Group's principal risks and
uncertcinties can be found on pages
8110 56.

As part of the above process, the
Group also identifies, collates and
assessas emerging risks, being those
that could impact the business in the
medium to long term. Emerging risks
are discussed by the Committee at
eqch meeting and are included in the
annual submitting to the Board clong
with the principal risks and
uncertaintias for inclusion in the
Annuol Report and Accounts.

Following the Committee’s raviews, the
Committee confirms that it is satisfied
that the Group's internal risk control
and management procedures:

operated effactively throughout the
period; and

are in accardance with the guidonce
contained within the FRC's Guidance
on Risk Manoagement, iInternal
Control and Reloted Financial and
Business Reporting.

Key matters considered by the
Committee during the year

Risk appetite, tolerance

and strategy

= Submission of an updated Group risk
appetite statement tc the Board for
review ond approval

Defined accepted tolerance lavels
for individual risk in accordance with
the updated risk cppetile statement

Reviewed rigks in the context of
the overall strotegic direction of
the Group

Reviewed and monitored updates
from Divisional management about
their principal and emerging risks,
thaeir approach to risk managemaent,
rmonitofing and mitigation to ensure
each was aligned with the Group risk
reporting structure

Internal risk controls and
management systems

Reviewad ond approved principal
risks ond uncertointies, emerging
risks ond maode any changes
requirad, prior to submission to

the Board

Updated processes, farms and
ternplates to implement cansistent
reporting processes across

the Group

Reviewed the Group's risk information
and reporting proceduras

*

Governdance

Establishment of the Committee
and its reporting responsibilities
to the Baord

Reviewed the alignment of any
identified risks to Group strategy
and remuneration policy
Reviewed Terms of Reference and
appropriate scheduling for

2022 meetings

By order of the Board.

Paul James
Chair of the Risk Com

15 March 2022



Business
Overview

Strategic

Report Governance

Audit Committee

Report

Letter from the Chair of the Audit Committee

Kevin Boyd
Chair of the Audit Committee

2021 Key Achievements

Oversight of full year and
interim audits

Review of the draft 2020 Annual
Report and Accounts and oversight
ot the external cudst

Review of the interim results

Review and the racormmendotian of
final dividend and reservas

Review of the acquisitions and
financiol process onboarding of
Adey, Nu-Heot ond Plura

Areas of Focus in 2022

Planning for the external audit tender
scheduled for 2023

Dear Shareholder

tam pleased to present the Report of
the Audit Committee (the Committee)
for 2021 Having served as Committee
Chair since September 2020, this is my
first full year as Committee Chair

The role of the Committae 15 Lo support
the Board in fulfilling its governance
rasponsibilities, ensuring that the
interests of our stakeholders are
properly protected (particulorly our
shareholders and customers) in
relation to financial reporting.
Members of the Committee ore
appointed by the Boord on the
recommendation of the Nomination
Committee, from its Non-Executive
Directors, in accordance with the 2018
UK Corporate Governance Code (the
Code) requirements and other
FRC-related guidonce.

The roles and responsibilities of the
Committee hove been reviewed and
updated during the 202! financial year
following the creation of o standatone
Risk Committee, and thus the
assessment, monitoring and
management of risk are discussed in
the Risk Committee Report an poges
78 o 80 This chonge in governance
structure results in the Audit
Committee now focusing on the
integrity of the Group's financiai
reporting practices, internal contrals,
and the quality of the internal and
external audit processes, providing
challenge to the decisions and
judgements made by management.
This separation of responsibilities has
proved to be ettective and we hope
our shareholders recognise and are
assured by this positive change in our
governance structure, We will continue
to keep our activities under review to
ensure we comply with all applicable
reguiations and that we rerndin
confident that the Company continues
to operate in a controlled and managed
way. The main responsibilities and
activities of the Committee are
detailed further in this Repart.

Changes during 2021

2021 has continued to be o year of
ongoing challenges and, as a result, the
Committee was required ta regularly

Financial

Remuneration Statements

consider such challenges and the
financial and operational implicotions
they presented. This Report ocutlines
some of these consideraticns in more
detail. Areas of focus included the
impact of the supply chain constraints,
raw material infiation and the resulting
implications for the interim ond full
year financiol statements as well as
integration of the three acquisitions,
and the Group's financial reporling
processes. Despite such unprecedented
events, the Committee and Board
hove faced these with resilisnce

and dedication, reacting quickly and
appropriately. The creation of the Risk
Committee ond therefore the change
in the remit of the Audit Committgs as
aresult, has been a key change in the
governance structure of the Group.
Further information in this regard is set
out in the Risk Committee Report.

Annual Report 2021

Ag part of its responsibilities under its
Terms of Reference, the Committee is
required, on behalf of the Board o
oversee the process for determining
whether the Anrmuot Report and
Accounts, when taken as a whole, is
fair, balanced ond understandadle,
and provides the informaoticn
necessary for shareholders to assess
the Group's financiol position and
performance, business model and
strategy. The judgements and factors
the Committee considered when
reviewing the 2021 Annual Report are
cutlined on page 84, as well os its
conclusions in this regard.

Performance of the Commiittee

As o result of its work undertaken
during the year and toking intc
account the feedback from the annuat
internal Board and Commiittee
evaluation (further details are set out
on page 73), the Committee considers
that it has acted in accordance with its
Terms of Reference and has ensured
the independence, objectivity and
effactivanass of the external and
internal auditars. This Report autlines
some of the main activities of the
Committee during the financial year.

I would like to thank my Cormnmittee
colleagues for their work and support
during the yaar, and | look ferward to
the future yecrs ahead in this rele as
the Group continues to grow as the
newly branded, ‘Genuit Group’,

I wili be avoilable at the AGM to answer
any quastions about the work of
the Committee.

Kevin Boyd

Chair of tha Audit Committee
15 March 2022 -

/
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Audit Committee Repor‘l: continued

Agenda planning
Adequate planning for the
content of the agenda for the
Committee is imperative for its
success and compliance. With
the change in the Commiitee
Terms of Reference during the
financial year to remove the
responsibiity tor managing and
assessing risk, an updated
review of the Committee
agenda planning was
conducted. Part of the usual
agendo planning process is to
anatyse the Terms of Reference,
breaking down the specific
responsibilities and
requirements of the Committee
during the year ond cross-
referencing thase with the events
in the financial calendar of the
Group. This offers assurancs to
the Board that the Committee is
compliant with its Terms of
Reference, but also that it
discusses specific financial
events af timely points during
the financial year, The process is
completed by the Secretary ond
any raquired updates to the
Committee ogendas
implemented as required, and
approved by the Committee
Chair. A review is undertaken
onnually as part of the Terms of
Reference review, to ensure that
any charges made to the
Terms are reflected in the

sarne Committee agenda
planning review.

Committee membership
and meetings

The Cemmittee comprises five
Non-Executive Directors, being Kevin
Boyd, Mark Hammond, Louise Hardly,
Liso Scenng and Louise Brocke-Smith,
All Committee memiers are
considerad to be independent in
accordance with the UK Corporate
Governance Code.

In accordance with the requirements
of Provision 24 of the Code, Kevin Boyd
is designated as the Committee
member with recent and relevant
finonciol experience. All other
rmembers of the Committee are
deemed to have the necessary ability
and experience te understand the
financial statements.

The Committee as a whole has
competence relevant to the sector in
which the Group operates. The
Committee discharges its
responsibilities through o series of
scheduled formal rmaetings during the
year. Each meeting has a formal
agenda which is linked to the events in
the financiol calendar of the Group.
Attendees at each of the meetings
include the Committee members as
well as, by invitation, the Chairman, the
Chief Executive Officer, the Chief
Financial Officer, the Chief Qperating
Officer, the Group Financial Controller,
the external quditor, Ernst & Young LLP
and Grant Thornton UK LLP who provide
internal audit services (o the Group.
The Compony Secratary is also
Secretary to the Committee.

The Committee held three formal
meetings dunng the year. In
accordance with best practice, the
Committee met with the Ernst & Young
LLP lead audit partner without

executive management being present.

The Committee also met with Grant
Thornten UK LLP without executive
management being prasent.

Role of the Commiittee

The full responsibilities of the
Committee are set out in its Terms of
Reference which are available on the
Company's wabsita. The Terms of
Reference have been reviewed during
the year to reflect the creation of the
Risk Committee and to ensure they
remain approgriate and any relevant
updates made accordingly.

The key responsibilities of the
Committee ore to:

+ assist the Board with the discharge
of its respensibilities in relatien to
internal and external audits;

+ monitor and review the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal audit function
in tha ovarall context of the
Company's risk managemaent
systermn and the work of compliance,
finance and the externol auditor;

+ monitor the integrity of the financicl
staterments of the Group including its
annuol and half-yearly reports,
trading updctes, preliminary results
announcements and any other
formal anncuncements refating to its
financial pertormance, and
reviewing significant tinancial
reporting issues and judgements;

where requested by the Board,
review the contant of the annual
Report and Accounts and advise tha
Board on whether, tuken as a whole,
it is fair, balanced and
understandable and provides the
information necessary for
shareholders to assess the Group’s
financial position and performance,
business medel and strateqy,

ovarsee the relationship with the
externat auditor including their
appointment, reappointment and/or
removal; opproval of the scope of
the annuai audit, their remuneration
and the terms of engagement;
monitor and review their
independeance and objectivity, the
effectiveness of the audit process
and the axtent of non-audit services
perfcrmed; and

+ report to the Board on how it has
discharged its responsibifities.



Business
Overviaw

Governance

tn accordance with best practice, the
effectivensss of the Committee was
evoluated this year as part of the
internal Board and Committee
evatuation. This took the same format
as the 2020 internal evalustion, s an
ancnymous questionnaire to
encourage open feaedback, ensuring
the avaluction provided a valuable
feedback mechanism for identitying
concerns, improving effectiveness and
highlighting oreas for further
improvernent. An external evaluation
was conducted in 2019, thus an
externaily focilitoted evaluation is not
due until 2022 in accorgdance with
the Code.

At its meeting in March 2022, the
Committee considered the results of
the internal evaluation and concluded
that it had found the Cormnmittee to be
continuing to operate efficiently and
oftectively. All responses to the
questicnnaire showed that the
Committee was unoniMmous in its view
of the effectiveness of all functions of
the Comrnittee, which is particularly
reassuring given the changeover in
leadership of the Committee ot the
end of the 2020 financicl year. This
provides the Board with @ high level of
assurance that key issues are being
declt with oppropriately.

Main activities during the year

As part of the process of working with
the Bcard to carry out its
responsibilities and 1© moximise its
effectiveness, maetings of the
Cormmittee normally take piace prior
to the Board mestings, at which the
Chair of the Committee provides an
update to the Board.

Detaqils of the areas focused on by the
Committee ore set out in the
remainder of this Report.

Strategic
Report Governance
Financial reporting

During the year, Cormittee meestings
were heid prior to the Board meetings
to approve the Group's interim and
final resuits onnouncements and to
consider the financial reporting
judgements made by managerment.
These considerations are made
through a review of lhe accounting
paopers and financial reports
prepored by management and
reports prepared by the Group's
external auditor.

Fair, balanced and
understandable

A key raquirement of the financial
staterments is that they are fair,
balanced and understandable, In
reaching a judgement as to whether
this is the case, the Annual Report and
Accounts is reviewed and assessed by
the Committee 1o ensure that the
information being presented to
shareholders is in such a waoy thot
allows them to accurately review and
determine the position of the Group.

As part of this assessment, the
Committee considers and reviews the
disclosuras and the pracesses and
cantrols underlying its production and
ensures that it correctly reflects the
Company's performance in the
reporting year in a cleor and concise
manner, as well as being consistent
throughout. Further datails on this
process can be found in the Corporate
Governance Report on poge 70.

Following this assessment, the |
Committee concluded that inits
opinion, the Annual Report and
Accounts were appropriata ang
consistent and therefore enabled the
Cormnmittee to report to the Board that
it had determined that the Annuc|
Report and Accounts is fair, balgnced
and understandable.

Financiacl

Remunearation Statements 83

viabitity statement

The viability statement is a longer-term
view of the sustaingbility of the
Company's proposed stratagy and
business model, considering wider
economic and market developmaents
as well as giving o clearer and broader
view of solvency, liquidity and risk
management. The Committee
considered the current viability
statement during the year ond the
current three-year period and
remained of the opinion that this
continued to be appropriate, taking
into account the risk scenarios
presented, the sensitivities for the
impact of the combined risks, the
reverse stress testing, and the
available headroom after applying the
sensitivities. The full statement can be
found in the Directors’ Report on page
86, which contains further detail on the
process, ossumptions and testing
which underpin it.

Going concern

In determining whather the Group con
centinue to adopt the going concern
basis, the Committee considers and
reviews the Group's overoll resources
for the foreseeable future covering
period of at least 15 months. Following
this review, the Committee agreed
that the forecasts presented were
recsonable, and therefore the Annucl
Report and Accounts have been
prepared on a going concern basis.
QOur going concern statement for the
Group can be found in the Directors’
Repoart on page 86.
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Audit Committee Report continued

significant financial
reporting risk, judgement
and estimates

The significant financial reporting
risk reviewead by the Committee in
respect of the year under review
was as follows:

Revenue recognition and customer
rebates - the Cornmittee considered
the operating effectiveness of
controls surrounding revenue
recognition and management’s
subjective assassmant and
recognition of customer rebote
liabilities ot the half yaar and

year end.

The significont estimates reviewed by
the Commiittee in respect of the year
under review were as follows:

+ Impairment of non-financial assets
- the Committee considered
o detailed report prepared by
management setling out the
assumptions used in detarmining
whether goodwil, other intangible
assets or property, plant and
equipment required impairment
for any of the business units. This
included o review of the discount
rate and growth factors used to
calculate the discounted projected
future cosh flows, the sensitivity
analysis applied, and the discounted
projected future cash flows used to
support the corrying amount of
the goodwill.

Contingent consideration — the
Committee considered various
reports prapared by management
which assess the likelihood that
targets will be achieved which
trigger a liability to the previous
ownars of Plura, guantify the possitle
range of that lighility, and how that
iiability should be calculated and
disclosed in the consolidoted
financiai statements.

Detailed review of the Group's Cash
Generating Units (CGUs) ~ it was
agreed to ¢consclidate these down to
tour Divisional CGUs, plus four further
separate CGUS.

Business combingtions - the
Committee considered whathar
armounts contingently payable to
previous owners of the businesses
acquired should be recognised as
a remunergtion ¢ost in the income
stotement, or within tetal
consideration that is allocated ta
the fair value of assets ond liabilities
included in the balonce sheet.

internal control and
internal audit

Internal audit performs an integral role
in the Group's govarnance structure
and the Commitiee has reviewed ond
approved the scope of the rolling
intarnaol audit programme in relation to
the Group’s internal controls ond
procedures at each of the meetings
held during the year. The Committee
reviews and challenges the results ang
reports from Grant Thornton UK LLP,
who carry out the internal audit work,
and the adequacy of management’s
responses and proposed resolutions.

As reported in our 2020 audit
Committee Raport, given the
increased size of the Group and the
extensive remit of the Committee,
separate risk committae was to be
established during 2021 with
responsibility tor risk management on
behalf of the Board. Details of how risk
18 assessed, monaged and controlled
as well as an outline af its purpose in
the governance structure of the Group
can be found in the Risk Committee
Report on page 80. Details of the
Group's principal risks and
uncertainties and emerging risks can
be found in the Strategic Repert on
poge Sl

Other activities

Other octivities undertaken by the
Committee during the year inciuded
the following:

.

cansideraticn of the external audit
plen and approval of the qudit fee;

consideration of the internal cudit
plan, internal audit reports and
action tracker;

consideration of the impact of
new tinancial reporting standords
and legistative requirements on
the Group;

receivad requlcr cyber security
updates fram the Group IS Director;

approved the implementation
of an external third-party
whistleblowing hotling;

review of the Committee’s

performance, effectiveness
ond censtitution;

review of the Group's tax strategy;
and

recommending the Report of the
Audit Committee for approval by
the Board.

External audit appointment

The Committee carefully considers the
reappointment of the external auditor
each year prior ta making its
recommendation to the Board. As
port of this process, the Committee
considers the independence of the
external ouditer, the effectiveness

of the externat audit process, its
remuneration, and the terms of
engagement. Having reviewed the
performance of Ernst & Young LLP in
202), the Committee has decided to
recommend to the Board that Ernst &
Young LLP should be reappointed for
the 2022 audit.

In accordance with current
professional standards, the external
cuditor is required to change the lead
audit pertner avery five years in order
to protect auditor independence and
cbjectwity. Ernst & Young LLP were
cwarded the external audit in 2012
foltowing @ competitive tender
process. The lead oudit partner wos
rotated in 2017 and the current lead
audit partner will be rotated in 2022,
In addition, the senicr audit manager
was rotated in 2019 fallowing
completion of tha 20i8 full-year audit.
in accordance with the Codes, the
Competition and Markets Authority
{(CMa) Order and the EU Audit Directive,
it 1s the Company's intention to put the
audit out to tender at least every ten
years from when the Company
became subject to the rotation
requiraments. Accordingly, the
Company plans to run a competitive
tender process during 2023.

Effectiveness of the external
audit process

The Cormmittee operated a formal
process for reviewing the effectiveness
of Ernst & Young LLP during the year
under review. This included:

1. An cssessment of the lead audit
partner and the oudit team

2. Areview of the audit approach,
scope, determination of significant
risk argas and matariality

3. The execution of the audit

4. Intgroction with management
and the Committee

5. The quality ot any
recommendation points

6. A review of independence,
objectivity and scepticism
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Ernst and Young LLP confirmed its
independence in Novermper 2021 and
March 2022 as it presented to the
Committee on its deterrmination of
independence, to enable the
Committge to fully, and appropriately.
assess its independence.

Following this review, the Committee
concluded that the externct auditor
remained independent. As a result,
and after considering the above
mattars, the Committee considered
that the cudit had been effective and
recommended to the Board that Ernst
& Young LLP be reappointed as
axternal guditor to the Group and a
resolution to this effect will be
proposed at the 2022 AGM.

Non-audit services

The Group’'s non-audit services policy
rastricts the external auditar from
performing certain non-audit services
in accordance with the Revised Ethical
Stendard 2016 issued by the FRC. All
non-audit services proposed to be
parformed by the external auditor
must be pre-approvad and sponsored
by @ senior executive with a detailed
written recommendation including the
nature and scope of the proposad
sarvice, the supplier sglection process
and criterig, the chosen supplier ond
selaction rationale, tha relationship of
the individuail within the externacl
auditor to perform the proposed
sarvice with those undertaking the
oudit work, o fee estimate and the
category of non-audit service, if
retevant. In addition, the external
auditor must provide a written
statement of independence approved
by the lead audit partner. All non-audit
services proposed to be performed by
the external auditor with a fea estimate
in excess of £10,000 must also be
pre-approved by the Committee. This
policy and approach further enhonces
guditor objectivity and independence,
and was reviewed by the Committee
at its meeting in Novernber 2021. Thers
ware na exceptions to this policy
during 2021.

Strotegic
Report
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Fraud, whistieblowing
and the UK Bribery Act

The Committee recognises the
importance of effective whistleblowing
policies as being an additional teol to
strengthen governance, by ensuring o
reliable system is in place to identify
ond correct any unlowful or unethical
conduct. The Committee monitors any
reporied incidents under its
whistlablowing policy, ond the
Company has implemented a
third-party reporting provider to
support the internol processes and to
give employees the confidence to
freely report concerns.

This policy is included in the Employee
Handbook as well os being accessible
as a standalone policy, and sets out
the procedure for ernployees to roise
legitimate concerns about ory
wrongdoing in financial reporting or
other maotters such as:

+ sormething that could be unlawful;

+ a miscarriage of justice;

- a danger to the health and safety of
any individual;

+ domoge to the ervironment; and

+ improper conduct.

There were no incidents during
the year which were required to
be brought to the attention of
the Commitiee.

The Commiltes olso reviews the
Group's procedure for detecting froud
ond the systems and controls in place
to prevent a breach of anti-bribery
legisiation, ond policies are in place
across the Group to which all
employees must adhere and are
aimed ot reducing the risk of fraud
occurring. The Group is committed o
a zero-tolerance position with regard
to bribery. Those employees whom the
Group considers are more likely to be
exposed to potential breachas of the
Group's anti-bribery policy and
statutory obligations under the UK
8ribery Act have been provided with
relevant guidance on compliance with
their obligations. The Group will
continue to maintain a record of alt
employaes who have received this
guidance and raquest annual
confirmations fram aach relevant
indivigual stating that they have
complied with the Group’s pohcy.

By order of the Board

Kevin Boyd
Chair of the Audit Committee

15 March 2022

Remuneration
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Implementation of the
Whistleblowing Policy
and reporting process

Committed to maintaining the
highest standords of honesty,
openness and accountability,
activity wos undertaken during
2021 to source a reputable,
independent and confidential
reporting service to enhance
whistleblowing proceduras
Following the appointment of
Safecall, the Group undertock a
full review of its policy and
procedures and organised a roll
out procedure with Safecall’s
experienced input; jointly
designing the reporting londing
page and strong messaging. it
was impartant the independent
service supported the diversity
of our warkforce by providing a
reporting tool In various
languages and availability
across different time zones.
Paramount to a successful roll
out was the clarity around
messaging and oceessibility to
supporting materials. The launch
consistad of a full poster
campaignin prominent places
around all our businesses to
cannect with contractors,
employees and warkers, updates
to our policy and individual
wailet cards and FAQs betng
issuad to each employae.
Messaging was reinforced
through works committees and
toolbox talks. Now in our third
and finak phase, to continue to
reinforce our commitment to
esducation and understanding
around the importanca of
whistleblowing, the Group’s
e-learning modute has been
updated to align to the new
policy design, with a mandatory
completion torget opplied and
monitosed by the Committee.

7
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Directors’ Report

Statutory and other information

Introduction

The Directors prasent their Annual
Report and Accounts for the year
ended 31 December 2021.1n
accordance with the Companies Act
2006 as amended, and the Listing
Rules and the Disclosure Guidance
and Transpaorency Rules, the Reports
within the Governance section of the
Annual Report and Accounts should be
read in conjunction with one another,
and with the Strategic Report. As
permitted by legisiation, some of the
matters normally includad in the
Directors’ Report have instead been
included in the Strategic Report
{poges 6 to 58) as the Board considers
thern to be of strategic importance.

The Company

Genuit Group plcis a public company
limited by shares, ncorporated in
England ond Wales, with registered
number G6059130. Since 16 April 2014,
the Company has been listed on the
premium segment of the Landen Stack
Exchange. While the Group cperates
predominantly in the UK, it does have
operations in Ireland, Italy, the
Netherlands and the Middie East.

Strategic Report

The Companies Act 2006 raquires the
Company to present a fair review of
the development and performance

of the Group’s business during the
finoncial year and the peosition of the
business ot the end of that year. This
raview is contained within the Strategic
Raport on pages 6 tc 56. The principal
activities of the Group are described in
the Strategic Repeort on pages 12 te 39

Financial risk management

The Group's financial risk
management objectives and policies,
including information on financial risks
that materially impact the Group ond
financial instruments used by the
Group {if any), are disclosed in Note 28
to the Group's consolidated financiol
statements on pages 157 to 158

Viability statement

In accordance with Provision 31 of the
Code, the Directors hove assessed the
prospects of the Group over a longer
period than the 15 months required by
the 'geing concern’ provision. The
Board cenducted this review for o
period of three years as the Group's
Strategic Review covers o three-year
period.

During 2021, the Board carned cut a
robust ossessment of the principol
risks facing the Group, including those
that would threaten its businass
model, future perfarmance, solvency
or liquidity.

In their assessment of the viability of
the Group, the Directors have
considered eoch of the Group’s
principal risks @nd uncertainties,
including a combined scenaric which
reflects the impact of multiple risks,
detailed on pages 51 to 56 of the
Strategic Report. The Directors beliove
that the Group is well ploced to
manage its business risks successtully,
having censidered the current
economic outlook In making this
assessment, the Board has assumead
that the Revalving Cradit Facility (RCF)
expiring in Novemnber 2023 will be
extendad or replaced with on
equivalent facility.

Accordingly, the Beoard believes that,
taking into account the Group's current
position, and subject (o the principal
risks faced by the business, the Group
will be able to continue in gperation
and to maet its iabilities as they fall
due for the period up to 31 December
2024, being the period considered
under the Group's current three-yecr
strategic plan.

Going concern statement

The Directors have made enguiries into
the adequacy of the Group's financial
resources, through o review of the
Group's budget and medium-term
financial plan, including cash flow
forecasts. The Group has modelled

a range of scenarios, with the base
forecast being one in which, over

the 18 months ending 30 June 2023,
sales volurnes grow in ling with

or moderately above external
construction industry forecasts.

'n addition, the Diractors have
considered severol downside
scenarios, including adjustments

to the base forecast, a period of
significantly lower like-for-like sales,
profitability and cash flows. Consistent
with our Principal Risks and
Uncartainties, these downside
scenarios included, but were not
fimited to, lcss of praduction, loss of

a maojor customer, product failure,
recession, increases in interest rotes
and increases in raw material prices.
Downside scenarios also included
combination of these risks and
reverse strass tasting. The Directors
have considered the impact of
cimate-related matters on the going
concern assessment and itis not
expected to have a significant
impact on the Group’s going concern

At 31 Decermber 202], the Group had
avalable £1020m of undrawn
cormmitted borrowing facilities in
respect of which all conditions
precedent had been met. These
borrowing facilities are available unti
at least November 2023, subject to
covenant headreorn. The Direclors are
sotisfied that the Group has sufficient
liquidity and covenant headroom to
withstand reasonable variances to the
base foracast, as well as the downside
scenarios. In addition, the Directors
have noted the ronge of possible
additional liquidity options available
to the Group, should they be required.

As a result, the Directors have satistied
themselves thot the Group has
adequate financial resources to
continue in operational existence for a
period of at least the next 15 months.
Accordingly, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing
the consolidated financiol statements.
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Directors

The current Directors’ biographies are
set out on pages 62 and 63.1n
accordance with the Code, each
Director will retire onnuaily and put
themselves forward for re-elaction at
each AGM of the Company. Joe Vorih
joined the Board on 28 February 2022
and Matt Pullen joined the Board on

i Novamber 2021, sc both will offer
themselves for election at the 2022
AGM, and for re-election annually
thereafter.

Appointment and
replacement of Directors

The rules about the appointment and
replacement of Directors are
contained in our Articles of Association
(the Articles). They provide that
Directors may be appointed by
ordinary resolution of the members or
by a resolution of the Directoars.
Directors must retire and put
themselves forward for election ot the
first AGM following their appointment
and every third anniversary thereafter.
However, the Directors wishing to
continue to serve as members of the
Board will seek re-election annually in
accordance with the Code.

Details of the Non-Executive Directors’
letters of appointment are given on
poge 68 under ‘Appointment and
tenure’. The Executive Directors hove
service contracts under which 12
months' notice is requirad by both the
Company and the Executive Director.

Powers of Directors

The general powers of the Directors set
out in Article 104 of the Articles provide
that the business of the Company shall
be managed by the Board which may
exercise alf the powers of the
Comparny, subject to any limitations
imposed by applicable legislotion or
the Articles. The general powers of the
Directors are also limited by any
directions given by special resoluton
of the shareholders of the Company
which ore gpplicoble on the date that
ony power is exercised.

Strotegic

Report Governance

Compensation for loss
of office

The Company does not have
arrangemaeants with any Rirector that
would provide compensation for loss
of office or employment resufting from
a takeover, except that provisians of
the Company's share plans may
couse options and owards granted
under such plans to vest on a takeover.
Further information is provided in the
Directors’ Remuneration Report on
page 103.

Directors’ indemnity
arrangements

Directors ond officers of the Company
cre entitled to be indemnified out of
the assets of the Company in respect
of any liability incurred in relation to the
Company or any associate Company,
to the extent the law allows. in this
regard, the Company is required to
disclose that, under Article 224 of the
Articles, the Directors have the benefit
of on indemnity, to the extent
permitted by the Companies Act 2006,
ogainst liabilities incurred by them in
the execution of their duties and
exercisa of their powers. This indemnity
has beenin place since the
Caompany’s listing in 2014 and remains
in place. The Compony has purchased
and maintained throughout the
financial period Directors” and Officers’
lighility insurance.

Share capital

As ot 31 December 2021, the share
capitat of the Company wos
248,170,247 ordinary shares of £0.001
each, of which 365 ordinary shares
were held in treasury. Details of the
Company's share capital are disclosed
in Note 23 to the Group's consolidated
financial statements on pages 152
ond 153. As at 15 March 2022, the
share capital of the Company was
248,170,247 ordinary shares of £0.001
each, of which 965 ordincry shares
were held in treasury.

Financiat
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Authority of the Directors
to allot shares

The Company possed a resaolution at
the AGM held on 20 May 2021
authorising the Directors to allot
ordinary shares up to an aggregate
nominal amount of £164,779.51
{representing appraximatsly two-
thirds uf the ordinary share capital).
On 4 Moy 202, the Company allotted
500,000 shores and on 19 October

2021 allotted o further S00,000 shares
pursugnt to this authority in
connection with the Compony’s
employee share schemas. This
authority will expire at the Company’s
2022 AGM and the Directors will be
seeking a new authority to allot shares,
to ensure that the Directors continue to
have the flaxibility to act in the best
interests of shareholders, when
opportunities artse, by issuing new
shares. There ara@ no current plans to
issue new shares except in connection
with employee share schemes.

Issue of shares

A special resolution was passed at the
AGM hetd on 20 May 2021 granting the
Directors the authority to issue shares
on a non-pre-emptive basis up tc an
aggregote nominal amount of
£12,358.46 (representing 12,358,460
ordinary shores or approximately 5% of
the ordinary share capital). A special
resolution was also passed granting
the Directors the authority to issue
shares on a non-pre-emptive basis in
respect of an additional 5% of the
ordinary share capital in connection
with an acquisition or specified capital
investment.

These cutharities will expire at the
Company's 2022 AGM ond the
Directors will be seeking a new
authority to issue shares for cashen o
non-pre-emptive basis up to
£165,446.19. In addition to this, the
Directors will seek cuthority to issue
non-pre~emptively for cash shares up
to £12,408.46 (representing 12,408,464
ordinary shares or gpproxirmately 5% of
the ordinary share capital) for use only
in connection with an acquisition or
specified capital investment, in
accordance with the Pre-Emption
Group Statement of Principles as
updated In March 2015,
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Purchase of own shares by
the Company

A special resolution wos passed at the
AGM held on 20 May 2021 granting the
Directors the authority to make market
purchases of up to 37,050,675 ordinary
shares with a total nominal value of
£37.050.67, representing approximaotely
14.99% of the Company's issued
ordinary share capital. The authority o
make market purchases will expire at
the Company’'s 2022 AGM and the
Directors will be seeking a new
Guthority to make market purchases
up to 14.99% of the Cormpany's issued
ordinary share capital, which witl only
be exarcised if the market and
financicl conditions make it
odvantageous to do so. Further details
are set out in the explonatory notes of
the notice corvaning the AGM.

Rights attaching to shares

The rights attaching to the ardinary
shares are summarised as.

the ordinary shares rank equatly for
voting purposes;

on a show of hands each
shareholder has one vote and ona
poll each shareholder has one vote
per ordinary share helg;

each ordinary share ranks equaolly for
any dividend declared;

eoch ordinary share ranks equally tar
any distributions made ona
winding-up of the Compony;

eoch ordinary share ranks equally in
the right to receive a relative
proportion of shares in the éventof a
capitalisction of reserves;

the ordinary shares are freely
transfarable; and

no ordinary shares carry any speciat
tights with regard to control of the
Compony and there are no
rastrictions on voting rights.

.

-

Amendment to the
Company's Articles

The Company may olter its Articles by
special resolution passed ot a general
meeting of the Company. A rasoiution
to amend the Articles was voted on
and passed by shareholders at the
2020 AGM.

Political donations

The Group made no political donations
during the year.

Greenhouse gos emissions

Information on the Group's
greenhguse gas emissions is set out
inthe Strategic Report on pages 31
to 32 and forms part of this Report
by reference.

Future developments within
the Group

The Strategic Report contains details of
likely future developments within the
Group. The Group’s research and
development costs are disclosed in
Note 6 to the Group's consolidated
finoncial staterments on page 142.

Overseas operations

As exploinad in the Strategic Report,
the Group operates in the UK, reland,
ltaly, the Netherlands ond the

Middle East.

Post balance sheet events

There have been no significant post
batance sheeat events to report.

Principalrisks and
uncertainties

The Board has carried out @ robust
assessment of our current kay risks
ond these are summorised in the
Principal Risks and Uncertainties
section of the Strategic Report on
pages 51 to 56.

Results and dividends

Aninterim dividend of 4.0 pence per
share was paid on 24 Septernber 2021
The Board recommaeands G finai 2021
dividend of B.2 penca per share.
Shareholders will be asked to approve
the final dividend ot the AGM, for
payment on 25 May 2022 to
shareholders whose names oppear
on the register on 22 April 2022.

Totct ordinory dividends paid and
proposead for the year amount to
12.2 pence per share or o total return
to shareholders of £30.2m.

Employees

The Group i committed o
ernployment principles which not only
follow best practice, but are based on
equal opportunities for all colleagues,
irrespective of gender, pregnoncy,
race, colour, nationality, ethnic or
national origin, disability, sexua!
orientation, age, marital or civil partner
status, gender regssignment or
religion or belief. Full and fair
consideration is given to applications
for employment from disabled
persons, having regard to their
particular aptitudes and abilities, The
Group encourages and supports the
continued employment and troining,
careear develepment and promotion of
disabled persons employed by the
Group; including making reascnabie
odjustments where required. If any
employee becomes disabled, every
effort is made by the Group to support
and ensure their continued
employment, eithar in the same or an
alternative position, with appropriate
ratraining given if necessary.
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Substantial shareholders

As at 31 December 202 and 9 March 2022, the Company was aware of the
interests in voting rights representing 3% or more of the issued crdinary share
capitat of the Company set out below. This information was correct at the date of
natification. It should be noted that these holdings may have changed since they
ware notified to the Company. However, notificotion of any change is not required
until the next applicable threshold is crossed.

Financial

fRemuneration Staterments

A5 at 31 December 2071 Asat9March 2022
% %
Qrdinary voting QOrdinary Vating
Nome of shorehotder shares rights shares rights
Standard Lite Aberdeen 20,934963 844 20,588,069 830
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Auditor

A resalution to reappoint Ernst & Young
LLP as the Compony's external auditer
and to outhorise the Directors to fix the
ouditor's remuneration will be
proposed at the 2022 AGM.

Directors’ statement of
disclosure of information
to auditor

Each of the Directors has confirmed
that as at the date of this Report:

- Sofar as each Director is aware,
there is no relevont audit intormation
of which the Company’s auditoris
unaware; and

The Directors have taken all
reasonable steps that they ocught to
have taken as Directors in arder to
make themsaives aware of any
ralevant audit information and to
astablish that the Company’s auditor
is oware of that inforrmation. This
confirmation is given aond should be
interpreted in accordance with the
provisions of Section 418 of the
Companies Act 2006.

Requirements of the

Listing Rules

apart from the details of any long-term
incentive schema as required by
Listing Rule 9.4.3 R, which is disclosed

in the Directors’ Rermuneration Report
on pages 105 to 116, disclosure of the
information listed in Listing Rule 9.8.4R
is not applicable.

Annual General Meeting

The 2022 AGM is scheduled to be held
on [9 Moy 2022 A full description of the
business to be conducted ot the
maeling is set out in the separate
notice of AGM.

By order of the Board.

Emma Versluys i
Company Secretary JC

15 March 2022
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Directors’

Responsibilities

Statement

The Diractors are responsible for
preparing tha Annual Report ond the
Group's consolidated financial
stotements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

UK company law requires the Directors
to prepare financial statements for
each finoncial yeor. Under that law the
Directors have elected to prepara the
Group's consolicdated financial
statements in accordonce with
UK-Adopted International Accounting
Standards (IFRSs).

Undear company law the Directors must
not approve the Group's consolidated
financial statements unless they are
satisfied that they give a true and fair
view of the state of affairs of the Group
and of the profit or loss of the Group for
that period.

In preparing the Group’s consolidated
fincncial statements the Directors are
required to:

select suitable accounting policies
in accordance with 145 8, Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors, and then

apply them consistently;

make judgements and accounting
estimates that are reasonable
and prudent;

present information, including
accaounting policies, in o
manner that provides relevant,
relioble, comparable and
understandable inforrmation;

.

provide additicnal disclosures whan
conipliunce with the specihc '
requirarnants in IFRSs is Insufficient to
enable users to understond the
impact of particular transactions,
other events and conditions on theg
Group’s financial position and
financial performance;

state whether IFRSS have been
followad, subject to any material
depariures disclosed ond explained
in the Group's consolidated finoncial
stotemants; and

prepare the Group's consolidated
financial statements on the going
concern basis uniess it is appropriate
to presume that the Group will not
continue in business.

The Directors are responsible for
keeping adequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain
the Group's transactions and disclose
with reasonable accuracy at any time
the financial position of the Group and
enable them to ensure that the
Group's consclidated financial
staterments cormply with the
Companies Act 2006. They are also
responsibie for safeguarding the
assets of the Group and hence for
taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud

and other irregulorities.

Under applicable law and regulations,
the Dwrectors are also responsible for
preparing a Strategic Report, Directors’
Report, Remuneration Report and
Corporate Governance Statement
that comply with that law and

those regulations. The Directors are
responsible for the maintenance and
integrity of the corporate and financial
information included on the
Company's weabsite,

Directors’ responsibility
statement

The Directors confirm, to the best
of thair knowledge:

the Group's consolidated financial
statements, preparad in accordance
with IFRSS, give a true and fair view of
the gssets, liabilities, financial
position and profit or loss of the
Company and undertakings
imcluded in the consolidotion taken
as o whole;

lhe Annual kepert ond Accounts,
including the Strategic Report,
includes a fair review of the
development and performance of
the business and the position of the
Company and undertakings
included in the cansoclidation taken
as g whole, together with
dascription of the principal risks and
uncertainties that they face; and

they consider the Annual Report and
accounts, taken Qs a whole, is fair,
baianced and understandable ond
provides the information necessary
for sharehoclders to assess the
Group's position, perfarmance,
business model ond strategy.

By order of the Boag-
Joe Vorih
Chief Executive Offj¢er

Paul James
Chief Financial Offi¢er
15 March 2022
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Letter from the Chair
of the Remuneration
Committee

Louise Hardy
Chair of the Remuneration Committee

Dear Shareholder,

lam pleased to present the Directors’
Remuneration Report for the year
endead 31 Dacember 2021

The report is split into two sections in line
with fegislative reporting regulations:

.

The Remunaration Palicy {the Policy)
contans details of the various
components of the Palicy, which was
approved by shareholders at our
2021 Annual General Meeting (AGM)
and had effect from thot date

The Annual Report on Rermuneration
contains details of remuneration
recaived by Directors in 2021 and also
cantains full details of how we intend
to implement the updated
Remuneration Policy guring 2022. The
Annual Report on Remuneration will
ke subject to an advisary vote at the
2022 aGM. Further details are set out
on pages 97 to 104.

This Directors’ Remuneration Report
is compliont with Schedule 8 of The
Large and Medium-sized Companies
and Groups (Accounts and Reports)
Regulations 2013, the UK Listing
Authority Listing Rules and the
Compaonies Act 2006 and has been
prepared on a ‘comply or explairy
basis with regard to the remuneration
provisions included in the UK
Corporgte Governance Code 2018
(the Code).

Aligning remuneration with
Company strategy

The Policy is designed to encourage
achievarment of our stratagic goals
and priarities, details of which ¢re set
out on pages 12 to 38, by rewarding in
ling with underlying Cormpany
performance while encouraging
leadership behaviour which carries an
appropriate level of risk. This is
achieved by an annual bonus
arrongament, which is linked to
achieving prcfit targets, working
capital targets ond non-financial
targets, as well as along-term
incentive plan, which only rewards for
shareholder value creation and
delivery of long-term earnings growth.

Executive remuneration
in2021

The Company has delivered a resilient
perforrnance and returns for its
shareholders in tough market
conditions, as set out in the Chairrmon/
Chief Executive Officer {CEO) and Chief
Financial Officer (CFO) reviews on
pages 6 and 45 in more detail, and we
achiavad an underlying operating
profit of £95.3m and an underlying
diluted earnings per share of 30.2
pence per share.

In refation to the Annuaol Bonus Plan for
Executive Directors, performonca was
above the chollenging fincncial
targets set at the start of the financial
yeor. As a result, the Committee
dstermined that, in respect of 202)
parformance, the CEQ during the year,
Martin Payne, earned o bonus of 83%
of the maximum, with Paul Jamas,
Glan Sabin (Chief Operating Officer
{CO0} until 1 November 2021} and

Matt Puiten (for the period from his
appointment as COO on | Nevermnber
2021) each also earning a bonus of 93%
of the maximum potential annual
bonus. In accordance with the
approved Policy, two thirds of this
bonus will be defarred into shares. The
sameé approach was used ta
determine the bonus outcome across
the Group. The Committee is
comfertabie that the formulaic
outcome of the bonus reflects the
wider performance of the business,
and given the Company did not
receive any Government support in
connection with Covid-19 during the
yaar, no aodjustments to the payouts
are required.
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With regards to performance over the
longer term, the 2019 LTIP Awards will
vest to the extent that EPS growth ond
Total Shoreholder Return (TSR)
perforrmmance targets were met over
tha three years ended 31 December
2021. As a result of delivering on upper
quartile total shareholder return
compared against our FTSE 250
industriols comparator group, but the
annualised growth in EPS not reaching
the threshold fevel, the award will vast
in april 2022 at 25% of maximum.

The Committee beleves that the
vesting of the 2018 LTIP Award is
oppropriate on the basis of the
sustained performaoncs delivered over
the three-year perforrmance period. No
adjustments were made to the
performance conditions in light of
Covid-19 with the Company delivering
a three-year TSR of 85 56% versus the
upper quartile TSR generated by the
companies comprising the FTSE 250
Industriols segment which was 75.58%.
in light of the level of TSR created over
the three-year period, the Committee
was comfortable with the vesting
result and considers the level of reward
to be proportionate, having had
regard to the Company's brood ronge
of stakehaotders.

The Committee believes that the Policy
has operated as intended and that
remuneralion within the year was
proportionate and appropriate.

2021 LTP Awards

In May 202), the Committee opproved
the grant of LTIP owords to the
Executive Directors and other senior
management. Award levels were 150%
of annuat saiary for Martin Payne, ond
125% of annual salary tor Paul James
ond Glen Sabin. These award levels are
significantly below the maximum of
200% of annual salary permitted under
the current Policy.

The Committee considered @ number
of possible performaonce mecsures,
and concluded that it wos appropriate
thot @ combination of stretching
sarnings per share (EPS) growth
targets, a relctive Total Sharaholder
Return (TSR) meuasure, and for the first
time, sustainability targets aligned with
the key elernents of Gaenuit Group's
sustoinability strategy. provided an
appropriate basis far rewarding the
successful delivery of longer-tarm
strategic priorities, Company growth
and sharagholder value.

Strategic

Report Governance

Board chonges

There were a number of changes to
the Board announced during 2021. The
Board reached an agreement with
Martin Payne that he would step down
from the Beard and his role as CEC
following the appointment of o
successor. In the cantext of his
departure having been mutually
agreed, he will continue to receive his
contractual entitternents through to his
cessation of employment on 20 Moy
2022 and wilt be treated as a good
tervar in rannertion with his
incentives. In addition, Glen Sabin
retired from his position on the Board
as COQ on 1November 2021 with his
employment ceasing on 31 December
2021.in the context of his retirement
from the Board, he will be treated os 0
good leaver in connection with his
incentives. Both departing Directors will
remain subject to the Company's
post-cessation of employment share
ownership guidelines. Poge N3
provides further details of the terms

of their cassation of employment.

Joe Vorih was appointed as CEQ with
effect from 28 February 2022 He was
recruited on a base salary of £560,000.
When setting his salary, the Committes
considered a number of factors which
included: (i} his previous package at
Spectris; (i) our discussions during our
2021 Remunerotion Policy review about
repositioning the CEQ's salary to better
reflect the current size and complexity
of the Company, which has increased
substantially relative to remuneration
levels since our IPO in 2014; and (jii) the
current market rate for the role. Setting
his salary at £560,000 ensured thot,
allowng for a cost of ving related
increase In line with the typical rate of
increose across the Group for FY 2022,
he was broadly kept whole on o
post-tax income bosis given that his
salary was set to reflect his
internaticnal status at $pectris (being
a US Naticnal working in the UK).

Setting the salary ot £560,000 was
rmarginalty higher than the increase in
solary discussed with our institutional
investors as part of the repositioning of
our previous CEQ's remunaration
during our 202! Rermuneration Policy
review process. Our original intent, as
outlined in our 2021 Remuneration
Report, had been to increase the
salary for the role of CEQ by circa 10%
{prior to any adjustmant for increasas
to the wider workfarce for FY 2022),

Financiol

Remuneration Statements

however the Committee was
comfortable setting the salary at
£560,000 on the basis that, aliowing for
a cost of living related increase infine
with the typical rate of increase across
the Group for FY 2022, this kept Joe
whole from a net salary position, and
£560,000 was within the market ronge
for the role bnsed on an updated
market analysis considered by the
Committee. Noting the solory is ot
market, the Committee intends to limit
sglary increasas to the workforce rate
during the current Policy period.
turther details, including settng his
pension in line with the workforce rate
and limiting compensation for forfait
awards in Spectris to the value he
would have received in remaining in
employment with them, are set cut on
page 109. All other elements of
remuneration are in ling with our
standard Policy.

The Beard alse onnounced the
oppointment of Matt Pullen as COO
with effect from | November 2021 Matt
Pulien's scilary was set at £330,000 on
appointrment. This is a 9% increase in
salary compared to the formar COO's
base salary, which mirrors the rate of
increase indicated for the role of CQO
during our discussions with investors
during our 2021 Remuneration Policy
review work. He received a 3% increase
for FY 2022 in line with the typical
workforce increase. Further details,
including setting his pension intine
with the warkforce rate, and limiting
compensation to thot forfeited on
leaving Saint Gobain o the value he
would have received in remaining in
employment with them, are set cut
on page 109. All other elemants

of remuneration are in line with our
standard Policy. In 2021, Mott

fullen was eligible to receive a
performance-related bonus prorated
for the period of his emnployment.

The performance was caiculated in
line with the other Executive Directors
and, as a rasult, Mott received a bonus
of £63,975.
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Letter from the Chair of the
Remuneration Committee continued

Key remuneration decisions
for 2022

The implementation of the Policy for
our Executive Directors for 2022 is
outlined on pages 106 to 109. Key
decisions made by the Committee
in relation to 2022 include:

* The award of o 3% solary increase for
Martin Payne and Matt Pulien, with
effect from | January 2022, which is
consistent with the average increase
awarded to the Group's UK warkforce
for 2022

« From 1 January 2022, the CFO's base
salary increased by 10.58% from
£307,509 to £340,000. This increase is
consistent with the rate of increase
datailed to institutional investors
during the Policy review process ond
noted in the 2021 Remuneration
Report. The increasea repositions his
fixed remuneration to take account
of the growth in size and complexity
of Genuit ond reflects the
Committee’s view of an appropriate
base salary for tha role.

Whilst market data was considared,
the increase was seat to raflect the
Committee's view of how much
more complex the role has become
as aresult of the growth of the
Company. at the same time as
ensuring appropriate retativities are
achieved internaily.

Maximum bonus potenticl and the
LTiP award level in 2022 will be 150% of
salary for Joe Vorih, consistent with
tha incentive opportunity for the
previous CEQ during 2021 Maxirmum
bonus potential for the other
Executive Directors will remain at
125% of salary, whilst the maxinum
LTIP award fevel will increase to 150%
(from 125%) This increase is the
second and final step of the phased
increases outlined in our 2021
Remuneration Policy, reflecting the
grawth in size and complexity of
Genuit over the period since IPO

in 2014,

The performance measures to be
used to assess Company annua
performance in 2022 will include
Group underlying EBIT, Group EBIT
margin and warking capital
measures which determine 90% of
the annual bonus. Structured health
and safety and customer service
targets will cperate for the
remaining 0%

.

+ In line with the weightings ond
measures for the 2021LTiR, the
proportion of the LTIP subject to
underlying diluted EPS will be set at
50% of tha 2022 awards, with TSR
determining 25% of the vesting of the
awards and the remaining 25%
subject to defined and measurable
long-term sustainability targets.

Thne Cammittee intends to undertake
a final review of the range of targets
to apply o the 2022 LTIP awards pricr
to grant to ensure that any changes
to the external environment con be
taken into account. The current
intention is that the underlying
diluted EPS targets will require EPS to
be at least 31.5 pence for FY 2024 for
threshold vesting to take place, with
maximum vasting requiring EPS to be
atieast 37.3 pence. The TSR targets
will require our performance to be
between median aond upper quartile
versus our FTSE 250 Industrial
compargtor companies for threshold
to maximum vesting to toke place.

The sustainability targets are set to
be similarly challenging to the EPS
and TSR targets and include
increasing the armount of recycled
plostics in Gur products, reducing
our emissions intensity and
achieving membership of The 5%
Club which supports employees with
acquiring the right skills to achieve
future success.

The sustainability targets directly
align with the 2025 targets first set
out to the market at our Capital
Markets Event in Novernber 2020
Overqll, the targets were set after
having regard te the proposed
quantum of award and both internal
planning and external market
expectations for our future
performance so as to strike an
qppropriate balance between being
realistic ond meaningfut for
participants at the lowear end of the
ronge and providing a stretch at the
top end of the range.

The Committee believes that this
combination of short-term and
longer-term metrics and targets will
pravide a fair and rounded
assessment of Company
performance.

a1

The sustainability
targets within our
LTIP directly align
with the 2025
targets first set out
at the Capital
Markets Eventin
November 2020.



Business
Overview

Shareholder engagement

Prior to determining the
implementation of the Policy for 2022,
we engaged with our shareholders.
This was deemed appropriate as,
during the yeor we have announced a
numbar of changes to our executive
leadership team, with the appaintment
of bothy a new CEQ and CO0, We asked
sharehalders to provide feedback on
the increase in salary for the CFQ, the
jaining arrangements for Matt Pullen
and Joeg Verih aond the leaving
arrangements for the departing
Executives, as well as the broader
application of the Policy in 2022.
Further explanation cnd context
regarding the remunerction terms for
the new and departing Executive
Directirs was provided to a small
number of investors that requested
further information, and as at the date
of this report, we are pleased to report
that those sharehaolders that have
responded were generally supportive,
with limited concerns being raised.

Context of Director pay within
the Company

During the year, the Committee
reviewed the analysis of the overall
gender pay gap and equity of
role-based pay within the Company.
The Board and the Committee ware
satisfied appropricte actions were
being taken and will continue to
rnonitor the situation going forward.

As required by lagisiation we have
included pay ratics between the

CEO and our wider workforce using
remuneration earned in 2021, As part
of its discussions on this issue, the
Comrmittee noted that the rotic was
consistent with tha scope and
responsibilities of the different roles
undertaken oy the individuals included
in the analysis and that the ratios were
within the range disclosed by other
FTSE 250 companies to date.

Financial

strategic
Staterments

Report Governance Remuneration

Louise Brooke-Smith is the Company's
oppointed Non-Executive Director with
responsibility for employee
engagement which includes, where
oppropriate, engogement with
employees on how executive
remuneration aligns with wider
Company pay policy. Given that the
remuneration structures were not
raised as g material issue during the
engagement with employees, it was
not consideraed necessary to make any
changes to the current remuneration
structures. Reference to the wider
disclosures of this role is set outin the
Governance section of this Annual
Report on page 67 We have set out our
compliance with Pravision 40 of the
Code in more detail on page 97,

1 will be ovailable to onswer questions
on the Policy and the Annual Repart on
Remuneration at the AGM.

I hope you will find this report to be
clear and helpful in understanding our
remuneration practicas and that you
will be supportive of the resolution
relating to remuneration at the AGM.

Louise Hardy
Chair of the Remuneration Conmmittee

15 March 2022
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Remuneration at a Glance

Total Remuneration

Fult details ore disclosed on page 10

incentive Performance Snapshot 2021 Incentive Timelines

Long-Term incentive Plon Performance 4

Pertormonce

7279p three-year cumulative
underlying diluted EPS

Above upper quartile
Tsh parformance relative
to comparator group

Annualbonus 4
perfarmance
Underlying EBIT and working
capital targets ochieved in full
H&S terget partly achieved

Customer service target
not achieved

Achiavernent (% of mox)

0%

100%

achievamant (% of max)

93%

Implementation for 2022

Annual General Meeting

The Annual Report on Remuneration wili be
subject to an advisory shareholder vote ot
our AGM scheduled to be held on 19 May 2022

Fixed pay

Base sdaldry 4
Increases for ail
Executive Directors
(effective from 1 January):

Joe Vorih - E560,000

{from 28 February 2022)
Martin Payne ~ +3% to
£496,582

Paul Jamas - +10.56% (0
£340,000

Matt pullen - «3% to £338,800

Benefits 4
Nao change

Pension 4

+ 15% of satary tor Martin
Payne dand Paul Jomes

+ 5% of salary for Joe vorin
and Matt Pullen

variable pay

Bonus 4

Jtae Vorih® - 150% of salary
Martin Payne® - 150% of salary
Poul James - 125% of salary
Matt Pulten - 125% of salary

pro-rated for the penod
of emplayrment

Subject to underlying EBIT,
£BIT margin, working capital,
H&S and custarmer

service targets

33% deferred into shares.,
Half the shares vest two
yedrs from grant andg half
three yeors from grant

LTIP 4

Joa Varih - 150% of salary
Poul Yames - 150% of salary
Matt Pullen - 150% of salary

Awards subject ¢ underlying
diluted EPS, relative TSR

and sustainabality
performonce measures

Twa year past-vesting
holding period applies

Share Ownership 4

+ 200% of salary in
employment share
ownership guideline
ond a post-
employment
requirement to retain
the lower of the shares
hald ar cessation of
employrmant and 200%
of salary for two years



Business
Ovearview

Fimancial

Strategic
Staterments

Repart Governance Remuneration

Remuneration Policy

This part of the Report sets out the Directors’
Remuneration Policy (the Policy).

Genuit Group's current Policy was
approved by shoreholders at the 2021
AGM foliowing consultation with
shareholders and the shareholder
advisory bodies. This part of the Report
sets out the Policy. Details of the
changes to the pravious policy can be
found in the 2020 Annual Report and
Accounts. This Policy opplied from the
date of approvol and it is intended that
it will apply for three years from
approval. The informaotion provided in
this saction of the Directors’
Remuneration Report is not subject

to audit.

Qur Policy and practices are designed
to support strategy and prormote
long-term sustainable success
Executive remunerction is aligned
to Company purpose and values,
aspacially with the intraduction

of greater emphasis on health
ond safety, customer service and
sustainability in the applicaticn
of Policy from 2021, and aur
overall Policy 1s clearly linked to
the successful delivery of the
Company's long-term strotegy.

Corporate Governance Code Requirements

In line with the UK Corporate Gavarnance Code, the Policy has been tested
©gainst the six factors listed in Provision 40 of the Code s follows:

Clarity

The Policy is clearly disclosed on pages 97 to 104 and the implementation
of the Policy is set out on pages 106 to 109, The Report is set outin a clear
and straightforward manner.

Simplicity

Remuneration structures are os simple as possible and market typical,
whilst at the same time incorporating the necessary structural features to
ensure a strong alignment to Group performance and strategy.

Risk

The Committee believes that the performance targets in place for the
incentive schemes provide appropriate rewards for stretching levels of
performance without driving behaviaur which is inconsistent with the
Company's risk profile. In addition, the Policy has been shaped to
discourage inappropriate risk taking through a weighting of incentive
pay towords long-term incentives, the balonce batween finoncial and
nor-financial megsures in the annual banus and bonus deferral, recavery
provisions, and shareholding requirements. To avoig conflicts of interest,
Committee members are required to disclose any conflicts or potential
conflicts ahead of Committee meetings. No Executive Director or other
member of management is present when their own remuneration is
under discussion.

Predictability

Elements of the Policy are subject ta caps and dilution limits. Examples of
how remuneration varies depending on perfermance is set outin the
scenario charts. Any incentive payout is ultimately ot the discretion of
the Cormmittee.

Proportionality

There is an equal balonce between short-term and long-term incentives
and performance conditions include both financial ang non-financial
parfarmance linked to strategy. Incentive targets are set to be stretching
and incentivising.

Alignment to culture

The Policy rewards for suppaorting the Company’s growthn focused culture,
in @ way that focuses on health and safety, customers and sustainability.
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Remuneration Palicy continued

Executive Directors

Fixed Pay

Base Salary
Purpese ond link to strategy

Opero'r—i-erm

Mmlmum opportumty )

Perlormcmce ccndmons dnd
provisions for recovery cf
sums paidt?

Benefits

Purpose and link to strcrtegv

Operation

No perl‘ormonce condmons

To prcwde mcrket—competmve benems

Maximum opportunity

Performance conditions end
provisions for recovery of
sums paid®

Pension

Purpose and link to strategy

To appropriately recagnise skills, experience and responsibilities and ottroct ond retain talent by

ensuring salaries are morket competitive.

Generclly reviewed onnually with any lncrease normeily tokmg ertect trom l Jonucry, nhough the
Committee may award ncreases at other times of tha year it it considers it appropriote.

The review takes into consideration g numiber of factors, including (but not limited to):
= The individuol Director's role, experience and performance.

+ Business performance.

- Market dota for comparable roles in appropriate pay cornparators.

. Poy cnd condmons elsewhere |n the Group

.

No cbsolute mcxlmum has been sst for Execunve Drrector bose sulorles Current Execu[lve Dlrector

salaries are sat out in the Annual Report on Remuneration section of this Remuneration Rapaort,

Any annual increase in salaries is at the discretion of the Committae taking into account the factors
stated in this toble ond the following principles.

Salories wouid typically be increased at a rata cansistent with the average salary increase for
UK employees.

Lorger increases may be considered appropnate in certain circumstances (mcludlng, but not
limited to, @ change in an ingividual's responsibilities of in the scole of their role or in tha size and
commplexity of the Group).

Lorger increases may also be considered appropriate if a Director has been initially appointed to
thenr posmon on the anrd Cll a lower thcm typical salary.

Recovery and withhotding provisions do not appiy.

Benafits Currenﬂy include company car {or cor allowance), income protectron insurance, pnvcte
farily medical insuronce, permanent heolth insurance and life assurance of tour times annuat
salory. The Committee has discretion to add to or remave benefits provided to Executive Directors
Executive Directors are antitied to reimbursement of reasonable expenses. Executive Directors also
have the benetit of o qualifying third- party indemnity from the Company as weli as Directors’ and
Otficers’ hebmw msuronce

There is no averall mcxlmum as the level of benem:s depends on the onnucrl cosr. of provtdlng
mdlwduc! |lems |n the relevnnt Ioccl mﬂrker ond tha mdlwduql s specmc role

No performcnce condltions
Recovary and withholding provisions do not apply.

To provnde morket*compelmve reurement benetits.

Operction

Maxirnum opportumty

Performonce conclltlons dnd
provisions for recovery of
sumns paig®

Current pollc [ for the Componv ro contrlbute to the Group Pensmn Plcm a personal pensnon

scherne und or pfovlde o ccsh cllowunce in Ileu of pensron

New joinars erI receive a pensron related contnbutson in 1me wrth the wader workforce (currently 5‘3:.
of sakary). incumbent Executive Diractors will receive a pension-related contribution of 15% of salary,

reducnng to the Ievel ol the wnder workforce w11:h effect I’rom 3| December 2022 (5% of sclcry)

No performence condmons
Recovery and withholding provisions do not apply




Business Strategic Financiat

Overview Report Governance Remuneration Statements
Variable Pay
Annuagl Bonus(it)
Purpose ond link to strategy To link reward 1o key financiol and operational targets for the forthcoming yaar.

Additional olignment with shareholders' interests through the operation of bonus
The Exgcutive Directors are participants in the annual bonys plan which is reviewed annugily to
ensure that bonus cpportunity, perforrmance measures and targets are appropriate and supportive
of the business plan.
No more than two thirds of an Exacutive Director's annual banus is delivered in cash tollowing the
release of audited resuits and the remaining amount is deferred into an award over Company
shares under the Deferred Shareg Bonus Plan,
« Defarred awords are usudlly granted in tha form of condittonal share awards or nil-cost options
{ond may also be settled in cash).
- Deferred owords usuolly vest in two equol tronches two and three yeors ofter oword olthough moy
vest early on leaving employment or on o change of control {see tater sections).
- An cdditional payment (in the form of cash or shares) miay be mdde in respect of shares which vest
under deferred awards to refiect the velue of dividends which would have been paid on those
shares during the vesting period (this payment may assume that dividends had been reinvested in
Company shares on a cumulalive basis}

The maximurm award that can be made ta an Executive Oitector under the annual bonus plan is 150%
of salary for tha Chief Executive CHficer and 125% of salary for other Executive Directors.

Cperation

Maxirnum opportumt;

Perforrmance conditions and The barus is based on performance agssessed over one year using appropriate financial, operational
provisions for recovery of sums and individua| performonce meosures.

idt - N . ) . -
poid The maojority of the borus will be determingd by meosures of Group financial performaonce. A sliding

scaie of targets is set for each Group finoncial measure with payout at ne more than 25% for
threshold financial performance increasing to 100% for maxnmum performance.

The remainder of the bonus will be based an financial, strategic or operational measures
oppropriate to tha individual Executive Diractor.

Details of the bonus measuras operating each year witl be included in the relevant Annual Report ar
Remunerdation. The Rermuneration Committee has discretion, where it beligves it to be appropriate, to
averridea the tarmutaic outcome arising from the annual bonus plan. Any bonus payout is ultimately
at the discretion of the Commitlee.

The cash bonus will be subject to recovery and/or deterred shores will be subject to withhalding at
the Committee’s discretion in exceptional circumstances where, within three yeors of the bonus
daterrnination or betore the vesting of each tranche of deterrad shares, @ rmaterial misstaternent or
miscalculation comes to light which resultad in an overpaymant undar the annual bonusg plan or if
avidignce comes to rght of material misconduct by an individual oF @ matarial frealth and saiety
breach or actions that subsequently gave rise to sericus reputotional damage or insolvency.

Long-Term incentive Plan (LTIP)M

Purpose and link to strategy To link reward to key strategic and business targets tor the longer term and to align Executive
Directors’ interasts with sharehoiders’ interests.

Awards are usuoily granted onnually under the LTIP to selecied senior executives.

Individual award tevels and performance conditions on which vesting will be dependent are
reviewed annually by the Caommittea.

Awards may be gronted as conditicnal owards of shares, nil-cost options or, if appropriate, as
cash-settled equivalents.

Awards normally vest or become exercisable at the end of a pericd of at feast three yaars following
grant aithough may vest early on leaving employrment or on a change of control {see later sections).
Awards to Executive Directors that vest ara subject to o two-year holding period (other thanin
exceptional circurnstances such as death)

an additional payrment (in the tarm of cash or sharas} may be made in respect of shares which vest
under LTIP awards to raflact the value of dividends which would have been paid on those shares
during the vesting period {this payment may assume that dividends had been reinvestad in
Company shares on @ cumulative basis)

QOperation

MOximum cpportunity The maximum annuai award permitted under the LTIP is shares with a market value (as determined
by the Committee) of 200% of saiary. Under the 2021 Remuneration Policy, for incumbent Directors,
awards will be limited to 190% of salary.

Each year the Committes determines the octual award levs! for individue! senior executives within

this lirnit.
Performance condions and All LTIP awards granted to Executive Directors must be subject to a performance condition. Vesting of
provisions tor recovery of Executive Directors' LTiP owards would be dependent on measures which could include Group
sums paid® earnings, return on cepital employed, total shargholder return gnd sustainobility, with the precise

meosuras and weighting of the measures determined by the Cormmitiee ahead of eoch oward.

Pertormnnce will usuaily be measured uver G performance peried of at least three years. For
achieving o ‘threshold’ leval of performance agoinst a perforrmance measure, no rmore than 25% of
the portion of the LTIP award determined by that measure will vest. Vesting then increases on a
sliding scale 10 100% tor achieving a marimum performance target.

The Rernuneration Comemittee has discretion, where it believes it 1o e appropriate, to cverride the
formulcic outcome arising from the LTIE LTI awords may be subject to withholding or recovery ot the
Committae’s discretion in exceptional circumstances where, before the loter of the vesting of an
oward and the sacond anniversary of the end of the pertarmance period, o material misstatemant
or miscalculation comes to light, or evidence comes 16 light that during that performance period
there was moterial misconduct by an individual or a matenal heolth and sctety breach or actions
that subsequently gave rise to serious reputational damage or insolvency.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Executive Directors continued

Variable Pay

sharesave Plan®

Purpase ond ink to stratagy Te create stoff aignment with the Group and promote o sanse of ownarship

Operauon UK tax-approvad monthly savings scheme faciliating the purchase of shares through shafe options
at g discountad exarcise prce Dy oll eligible employeas,
Executive Direclors are el le 'o porbicipote onthe same basis as other UK employees

Maximum oppertumty Manthly savings imit of £500 {or such other lirmit as may be opproved from tme to time by HMRC)

under gl savings centracts heid by an ndvidual

Parfotrionce conditons ong The Srargsove PION 12 STructhured 10 aCcordancs with HMRC requirerments so has no parformanca
provisions for racavery of sums condmans but reguiras participants to make reguiar contributions intg & savings contract

pad Malus and clawback provisions do not apply
Share Ownership Guidsiines
Purpose ond link to strategy To create aignmant betwesn the long-term intarests of Exacutiva Directors and sharehclders

Oparaticn Exacutiva Directors have been required to buld and mantain a shargholding os o percentoge of
solory in the torm ol sharas in the Compony since Admission,

executiva Drrectors ore axpecied I ochieve the shorgholding raquirement within hive yaars of an
indivigual becaming subject 10 tha requirenent

Maximurm opgor tunity Any Exaculive Diractor In employrment s expacted to achieve o shereholding with o volue of 200% of
soiary, aAny Exacutiva Diractor isoving the Company will be expected to fetan the lower of tha sharas
held at cessatan of employmeant ond shares to the value of 200% of salary for a pencd of two years.,

v‘m:_o_.:._o_._nw conditions and Not ou_wmnuu_m.
provisions fof recovary of sums
paid

I. Tha Cemmitlea may amend or substitute ary performance condition{s} it one ar more avents occur which cause it to determine that an
ameanded ar substituted pertormance condltion would be rmore oppropriots, provided thot any such amended or substituted
performance condition wauld not be materially Iass Jifficutt to satisty than the ongingl condition (in its opinion) The Committee Moy also
adjust the calcutation of parformence targats and vesting outcomes (fa instance for materiol acquisitions, disposals of irvestments ond
evants not toresean ot tha time the torgets wera set) 1a ensure they remain a foil refiection of performance over the relevant pariod. in
the event that the Committee was 1 moke an adjustment of this sort, ¢ full explorotion would be previded in the next Directors’
Rernuneration Report

2 Performonce magsures — annual bonus Tha annual borus megsures ore reviewed annually and choser 1o focus exacutive rewards on
delivery of key financiol targets for the lorthgering year os well 68 kay strategic or operationcl Gogls relevant ta an ingivigdual. Spacili
targets fer bonus Mmeosures ara sat ot tha start of each year by the Committaa based o o range of relevont rateranca points, including,
for Group tinancial torgets, the Graup's business plan ond are designad to Se apprapriately stratching,

3. The Committee may: {a] in the event of a variotion ot tha Company's shere coplial, demerger, special dividend or dividend in specis or
any other carporate avent which it reasonably determines justifies such an adjustment, adjust; and (o) omend the termns of awards
granted under tha sharg 5chamas referrad 10 bova in GCCANIENCe with tha rules of tha relevant plons, Shara awords moy be settled by
the issue of new shares or by the transéer of existing shores. In hna with pravai bast proctice ot tha tima this Remuneration Pollcy was
approved, any issuanca at new sharasis lirmited to % ol share capital aver a roling tan-year pariod in relation 10 discrationory employee
shore schames and 10% of share capital over a ralling ten-yeor period in ralation o cli-emgloyee sharg schemas
Performance measures - LTIR Tha LTIP performance measuras will be chosen o provide alignment with gur longer-term stratagy of
growing the business in ¢ sustaincble manne! Mot wili be in the bast (ntarests at sharehalders and athar key staksholdars in the
Company. Usa of @arnings and raturn on capitol employed measuras would reward managament for delivery of key financici maasuras
of Company success thot shoutd rasult in sustainoble value creation. Use of a tatal shorehcider raturn MBosuUra would align
runagement’s interasts with tha intarasts of our sharenolders, Use af sustoinotiity measuras wall olign management with the
Company’s long-tarm cammitment to Ing o sustainable oporating business. Torgsts are considersd ohead of sach grant
of LHP owards by the Cormmitlee, taking into acceunt relevant external and internal retargnce points ond are designed to be
appropriotely stretching.

The Committee resarves the right to make any remuneration paymants andfor payments for less of offica (including exercising any
disaretions avalabie to it connaction with Suth PoYmMants) NoTWIhSONTINgG tho! ey ore nol iniing with tha policy set out obove where
the terms of the payment werg ograed: () before the 2015 AGM {the dote the Cormpany's first shoranoidgr-approved Diractors’
Remuneration Policy carma int elfect); (i) batora the policy set cut above came into effect, provided that the tarms of tha payment were
consistant with the shareholder approved REMUNAration Policy In force 01 the tme they were agread; o {iil) at o fime when the relevant
ingdivdual was not o Director of the Company ond, in tha opinion of the Committes, the paymant was not in consideration for the
ingividual beceming a Directar of the Company For these purposes poymaents’ inclugas the Cormmittes satisfying awords of vanable
rernunaration and, in relation to on award ovar shoras, tha tarms of the poyment are ‘agiaed’ at the hme the award is granted.

. The Commitiee may make minar armendments to the Remunarotion Policy for regulatory. exchange control, tox or administrotive
purposes o 1o 1oke occount of ¢ change in legisiation, without otaining sharehclder appreval ter that amendmant,

a

L

@
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Non-Executive Director (NED) fees

Financial

Strategic
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Repaort Remuneration

Governonce

Purpose and link to strategy

Operctlon

Maximum oppartunity

ond Offlcers Iloblilty mnsurance.

To cppropnmery recognise responsibilities, skills ond experience by ensuring faes are market

NED i‘ees comprise pcymem of an annucﬂ basic fee and odc!itlonc:l fees for further Boord

responsibilities such qs:

= Seniorindependent Director

» Chair of Audit Committee

= Chair of Remuneration Comiminee

* Employee engagement

The Chairman of the Board raceives an all-inclusive fee.

No NED participotes in the Group's incentive arrangaments or pension plan or receives any other
benetits other than where travel to the Company's registered office is racognised as o taxable
benefit in which case o NED may receive the grossed-up costs of trovel as a beneht. NtLJs are
entitlad 1o reimbursement of reasanable expances.

Faps are revigwad annudlly.

NEDs also have the benefit of o quatifying third-party mdemrury from the Company ond Directors’

Fees arg set atan qpproprmte Ievel l:hat is murket r:ompemwe cnd reﬂecnve of the responsnbnlmes
and time commitment associated with specific roles.

No absolute maxirnum has been set for individual NEC fees. Currant fee levels are set out in the
Annual Repert oh Remuneration section of this Rermunerotion Report.

The Compuany’s Articles of Associotion provide that the total aggregote fees paid to the Chairman
ond NEDs will not exceed £2,000,000 per annum.

Hiustrations of application of
the Policy

The 'Implementation of Remuneration
Palicy in 2022' section of the Annual
Report on Remuneration details how
the Committee intends to implement
tha Policy during 2022.

The charts to the right illustrate, in three
assumed performance scendarios, the
total value of the remuneration
package potentially receivable by Joe
Vorih, Paut James and Matt Pullen in
relation to 2022, This comprises salary
and benefits plus an annual bonys of
up to a maximum of 150% of salary for
Joe Vorih, ond 125% of salary for Matt
Pullen and Paul James, and an LTiP
award of 150% of satary for Joe vorih,
Paul James and Matt Pullen.

The charts are for illustrative purposes
only and actua! cutcomes may differ
from thot shown. LTIP owards have
been shown at face value and also
allowing for o 50% increase in share
price under the maximum
performance scenario. All-employee
share plans have been excluded. The
totals shown in the charts relate to the
potential value receivable by the
current Executive Directors in relagtion
to 2022.

Potential remuneration outcomes for the Executive Directors

aAssumed performance Asgumpiions used
All performance scenarios (Fixed pay) - Bosesolary - salary effective for 2022

Consists of total tixed pay, including base - Benefits!? — the volue of benefits receiveadin
salary, benefits and pension 202! have been included

Minimum p performonce
(variable pc:v)

Mo vesting under the LTI®
Parformance in line with precmtlons + 50% of the maximum poyout under the

{variapte pay) cnnual bonus

Maxirnurm performance v
{variatie pay) annual bonus

100% vesting under the LTIP

1. The benefits for Mott Pullen have been pro-ratad.
2. The benefits for Joe Vorih have baen estimated based an the expected benafiltsn FY 2022,
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Remuneration Policy continved

Approach torecruitment
remuneration

Principles

In deterrmining remuneration
arrangements for new appointments
to the Boaord (including internai
promotions), the Committee will
apply the following principles:

+ The Committee will toke into
cansideration il relevant factors,
including the experience of the
indwidual, market date and existing
arrangements for other Executive
Directors, with a view that any
arrangements should be in the best
interests of both the Company and
our shareholders, without paying
more than is necessary.

Typicaily, the new appointment will
have (or be transitioned onto) the
some remuneration structure Qs the
other Executive Directors, in line with
the Policy.

Upon appointment, the Committes
maoy consider it oppropriate to offer
odditional remuneration
arrgngements in order to secure the
appointment. In particulcr, the
Committeg may consider it
oppropriate to ‘buy out’ terms or
remuneration arrangerments
forfeited on leaving a previous
employer (discussed below).

The Committee may provide costs
and support if the recruitment
requires relocation of the individual.

Where an Executive Director is an
internal promeotion, the normal policy
of the Company is that any legocy
arrangements would be honoured in
line with the criginal terms and
conditions. Similarty, if an Executive
Director is appointed following the
Company's acquisition of or merger
with another company, legacy terms
and conditions would be honoured.

.

.

Components and approach

The ramuneration package otfered to
new oppaintments may include any
aelemeant within the Paolicy, or any other
element which the Committee
considers is appropriate given the
particulor circumstances, with due
regard to the best interests of
sharehoiders, subject to the limits

on variable pay set odt above in

the Policy.

In censidering which elements to
include, and in determining the
approaeh for all relevant elements, the
Cammittee will take into account g
number of different factors, including
(but not iimited to) market practice,
existing orrangements for other
Executive Directors and intgrnal
relativities. if appropriate, different
measures and targets moy be applied
to a new appointee’s annual bonus in
their yeor of joining

The Cormmittee would seek to
structure buyout ond voriable pay
awards on recruitment to be in line
with the Company’s remunaration
frameweork so far os practical, however,
if necessary, the Cormmittes may also
grant such awards outside of that
framework as permitted under Listing
Rule 8.4.2 subject to the limits on
variabile pay set out above. The exact
terms of any such awards (eg. the
form of the award, time frame,
performance conditions and {eaver
provisions) would vary depending
upon the specific commaearcial
circumstances.

Maximum level of variable pay
The maxirmum level of variable
rernuneration which may be granted
to new Executive Directors in respect of
recruitenent shall be limited to the
maximunn permitted under the Policy,
namely 350% of their anAauac salary.
This limit excludes any payments or
awards that may be made to buy out
the Executive Director for terms,
awards or other compensation
forfeited from their previous employer
(discussed below).

Buyouts

To facilitate recruitment, the
Committae may make a one-off
aword to buy out compensation
arrangements forfeited on lsaving a
previous employer. In daing so, the
Committee will take account of all
relevant factors, including any
performance conditions attached to
incentive awards, the likelihcod of
those conditions being met, the
proportion of the vesting/performance
period remaining ond the form of the
awaord (e.g. cash or shares). The
overriding principle will be that any
buyout award should be of
comparabile commarciol value to the
compeansation which has besn
forfeited. However, such buyout gwards
would only be considered where there
is a strong caommercial rationale to
do so.

Recruitment of Non-

Executive Directors

In the event of the appointmeant

of a new Non-Executiva Director,
remuneration arrangements will
normally be in line with the Policy

for Nom-Executive Directors. However,
the Committee {or the Board as
appropriate) may include any element
within the Policy, or any other element
which the Committee considers is
appropriate given tha particular
circumstances, with due regard to
the best interests of shareholders.

In particular, if the Chairman ora
Non-Executive Director takes on an
axecutive function on o short-term
basis, they would be able to receive
any of the standard elements of
Executive Director poy.
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Service contracts and letters of appointment
Key terms of the current Executive Directors’ service agreements and Non-Executive Directers’ Jetters of oppeintment are
summarisad in the table belaw. 1t is envisaged that any future oppeintmants would have equivelent contractual

arrangements unless otherwise stated in this Report.

Financial

Remunerotion Statements

Provision Policy

Motice period

Executive Directors -

Non-Executive Directors — at the Company's discretion, Non-Executive Dlrectors may hc\;é & notice parlnd of upr

Jlothree months
Fo!lowmg the setvmg cf notlce by either party, the Company r‘noy term\nute employmem of an Executive

Termination payrment

Director with immediats eftact by paying o sum equal to solary. Executive Directors are not contractually
entitied to any bonus for the period of service in the year in which their arnployment ands

Non Ei(ecutlve Durectots are oniy enmlad to recewe any | fae acc;unng in respect ot the period up to 1erm|nanon )
le] month notice periods S0 have no fixe

Expiry date

“Executive Directors. hcwe

Non-Executive Directors’ letters of opporntment have no lixed expiry date.

In accordance with the Code, each Director will retire annually and put themselves forward for re-election at each AGM of

the Cornpany.

All Executive Directors' service agreements and Non-Executive Directors’ letters of appointment are available for inspaction
at the Company’s registered office Gt 4 Victoria Place, Holbeck, Leeds LS SAE.

Policy on payment for loss
of office

In relation to payments under non-
contractual incentive schemaes, the
Committee would tgke the following
foctors inte account:

The Committee may determine thot
the Executive Director is eligible to
receive 0 bonus in respect of the
financial year in which they cease
employmaent. This bonus would
usuaily be tme apportioned and
may be settlad wholly in cash. In
determining the level of bonus tc be
paid, the Committaa may, ot its
discretion, take into account
performance up to the date of
cessotion or over the financial year
as awhole based an appropriate
performaonce Measures as
determined by the Committee.

The trectment of outstanding
share awards is governed by the
ralevant share plan rules as
summarised bejow.

Deferred Share Bonus Plan

- On cessation of employment,
unvested shares will vest in full
unless the Committee
determines otherwise,

+ On o change of control, unvested
shares will vestin full.

+ if other corporate events occur, such
as a demerger, dalisting, special
dividend, voluntary winding-up or
other event which in the opinion of
the Committee may affect the
current or future value of shares, the
Committee will determine whether
unvested shares should vest.

e
- On cessation of emptoyment,
unvested owards will lapse unless
cessation is as a rasult of death, il
health, injury, disability, transfer of
employing company of businass to
which an individual's employment
relates out of the Group or any other
scenario in which the Committes
determines ot its discretion that

ood leaver treatment is cppropriate
?other than circumstances justifying
summary dismissal). In these
scenarios, unvested awards will
usually continue until the normal
vesting cate unless the Comrnittee
datermines that the award should
vest earlier and will vest to on
extent that takes into account the
performance condition assessed at
the date of vesting and, unless the
Commitiee determines otherwise,
to an extent thot takes into account
the pericd of time between grant
of the award and cessation
of employment.
On a chenge of control, unvasted LTIP
awards will vest immediately to an
extent that takes into account the
performance condition assessed at
the change of control and, unless the
Committee determines otherwise, to
an extent that takes into account the
period of time between grant of the
award and the change of control. if
cther corporate events occur, such
as a demerger, delisting, special
dividend, voluntary winding-up or
other event which in the opinion of
the Committee may offect the
current or future value of shares,

the Committae will determine
whether unvested LTIP awards should
vast. If they do vest, thay will vest
immediately to an extent that takes
into account the performance
condition assessed at the date of the
event and, unless the Committea
determines otherwise, to an extent
that takes into account the period of
time between grant of the award
and the date of the event.

Sharesave Plan

« Options become exercisable
immediately on death, ceosing
employment due tc injury, disability,
retirernent, redtundancy, sale of the
emplaying company or business to
which an individual's employment
relates out of the Group or cna
change of control{voluntary
winding-up of the Company.

The Cormmittee reserves the right to
make any other payments in
connection with a Director's cessation
of office or employment where the
payments are made in good faith in
discharge of an existing tegal
obtigation (or by way of damages for
breach of such an obligation) or by
way of & compromise or settlement of
any claim arising in connection with
the cessotion of @ Director’s office or
employment. Any such payments may
include, but ore not limitaed to, paying
any fees for outplacement assistance
ondj/or the Director's legal and/or
professional advice fees in connection
with hisfher cessation of office

or employment.
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Remuneration Policy continued

Consideration of employment
conditions elsewhere in
the Group

The Committee appreciates the
importance of effective engogement
with the wider worktorce cnd so has

o nominated Non-Executive Director
responsible for employee
engagement. Louise Brooke-Smith has
held this role since June 2020 and
Louise has engoged with empioyees
during the course of the year through
the employee forums across the
Group. This engagement covered

a wide variety of topics and Lauise
reported ¢ the Committee that there
were no concerns raised regarding
the alignment between executive
ramunerotion and wider workforce poy.

The Committes reviews workforce
remuneration and reloted policies,
and is conscious of the importonce
of ensuring that its pay decisions for
txecutive Directors and the senior
management leem gre regarded
as fair and reasonable within

the business

As outlined in the Policy table, pay and
conditions across the Group are one of
the specific considerations taken into
account when the Committee is
considering changes in salaries for the
Executive Directors and the senior
management team.

Differences in policy from
broader employee population

A greater proportion of Executive
Diractors' potential wealth is ‘al rigk’,
either through their existing
shareholding or through LTIP awards
than for our employees generally and
a greater proportion is determined by
performance than for our employees
generally. However, commoan principles
underlie the pay policy throughout the
Company, including for the Executive
Directors. in particular, we place great
emphasis throughout the Company
on reward being linkad to performance
{either Group performance or
performance of an individual's
business unit) and on encouraging
share ownership (through
participation in the LTIP or an
all-employee share scheme).

Consideration of
shareholders’ views

The Company is mindful of general
investor views on certain aspects of
remuneration, and continues to toke
these views into occount, whare
appropriate, when setting Executive
Director remuneration, The Committee
Chair is availobie to meet with any
shoreholders who wish to discuss any
aspect of the Policy in more detail.

Curing 2020 and 2021, o formal
consultation with the Company’s top
20 sharehclders and the shareholder
advisory bodies was carried out in
relation to the updated Policy that was
approved by sharehoiders at the 2021
AGM. The Chair of the Committee and
the Company Secretary met with
those shareholders who raquested a
meeting to discuss the proposed
Poiicy in more detail and to answer
specific queries. The feedback
received from these mestings and the
written rasponses was generally
supportive and was discussed in detail
by the Committee before finalising the
Policy proposals.
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2021 Key Achievementsg

Review and update of Remuneration
Policy in consultation with
shareholders and shareholder
odvisory bodies

Extensive updated benchmarking
carried out for seniocr monagemeant
roles in cenjunction with the

Chief Pecple Cfficer and the
Committee's advisers

Discussion and approval of
remuneration arrangements foe
incoming CEQ and COO, and
autgeing CEQ and COO

Review of remuneration structure
and targets for short and
long-term incentives in light

of the ongoeing pondemic

Areas of Focus in2022

Remuneration Policy
Implementation of updoted
rRermuneration Policy ond fellow on
review of Group-wide remuneration
arrangemants for senior
management

Review of targets

Performance against the targets set
will be reviewed regularly throughout
the year

Wider workforce

Mare formalised and improved
process for wider workforce
engagement in relation 1o
remuneration, in conjunction with
the Chiet People Officer ang
designated NED

The Annual Report on Remunearaticn
describes how the Directors’
Remuneration Policy, approved by
shareholders at the Annual General
Maeting in May 2021, has been
applied in the financial year ended
31 December 2021. This Annual Report
on Remuneration will be put to an
advisory shareholder vote at the
2022 AGM.

Role of the Committee

The role of the Cemmittes is to
determine gll aspects of Executive
Diractor pay, ensuring that the
remuneration framewaork both attracts
and retains leaders who are
appropriately incentivised te delivar
the Group's strategy, aligning with the
interests of members and promoting
the long-term success of the Group for
the benefit of its stakeholders as a
whole. The Committee also reviews
workforce remuneration and related
policies and ensures alignment of its
rewards with culture. it also monitors
pay arrangements for other senior
executives and oversees the operation
of all share plans.

Details about the role of the
Committee are set out in its Terms of
Reference which are reviewed annually
and were last updated in November
2021 These can be found on the
Company’s website.

Financial

Remuneration Staternents

Committee membership
and meetings

The Committee comprises all of the
Non-Executive Directors, all of whom
are considered to be independent,
ond their attendance at mesetings
during the year is set out in the table
con page 70. The previous CEQ,
Martin Payne, was also present

at those meetings during 2021 by
invitation, albait he was not involved
in any discussions in relation ta his
own rermuneration.

The Committae typically meets at
least three times a yeor and thereafter
as required, and in 2021, the
Committee mat six tmes.

External advisers

Karn Ferry were appointed by the
Cornmittee with effect from 1Janucry
2020, after a competitive tender
process te provide adwvice on executive
remuneraticn matters. During the year,
the Committee received advice from
Korn Ferry on market practice, updates
and benchmarking. Korn Ferry
provided other humar capital-related
services to the Group during the year,
but these services were carried out by
a team separate to the remuneration
advisory tearmn with an effective
separotion betwaen the Committee
advisory team and the wider Xorn Ferry
teamns. As @ rasuit, the Committee was
satisfied that the advice provided by
Korn Ferry was objective and .
independent, having clsc noted their
commitment to the Code of Conduct.
During the year, the fees (charged ona
time plus expenses basis) poid to Korn
Ferry were £71,318 (2020: £98,350). Korn
Ferry is @ member of the Rermuneration
Consultants Group and, as such,
voluntarily operatas under the code

of conduct in relation to executive
remuneration consulting in the UK.
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

Unaudited information

implementation of Remuneration Policy in 2022
This saction provides an averview of how the Committee is proposing to impiement the Policy in 2022 for the Executive
Directors, with the increase to the LTIP award levels for the CFO and COO as detailed in the 2021 Rernuneraticn Policy.

Base annual salary

As described in the annual Staterment from the Chair of the Remuneration Cemmiittee, salaries have been adjusted with
affect from 1 January 2022 {or oppointment if iater) as a result of the changes to executive personnel and to reflect the
growth in size and complaxity of Genuit versus market, given the lirmited adjustrments made to remuneration at Genuit since
its IPQ in 2014, The increasas to base remuneration, with the exception of Joe Vorih, were as positioned during the 2021 Policy
review discussions with institutional investors and the leading proxy advisers. The increuses were deferred from the 2021
Policy review process so that they timed with the return to solary increases gwarded across the Group following Covid-19,
The rates of incregse reflect the wider changes to the Policy as detailed in the 2021 Remuneration Report, namely ensuring
that remuneration is set at a rate that is appropriate for the Current size and complexity of the Group, With regard (o Joe
Vorih, his salary was set at a modest premiurn to the salory positioned to the role of CEQ ot Genuit during the 202! Policy
review process,, with his salary set to keep him broadly neutral on a net of tax basis versus his previous employmeant terms
(noting his international status as a US National at Spectris), but aliowing for a cost of living reiated increase in fine with the
typical rate of increase ot Genuil for FY 2022,

Salory Salary %
1 January 2021 1t april 2021 increase
Joe vorin (CEQ) £560,000 WA

e (CEO gang
Pauldames (CFO) e e e+ e E340,000 307509 1056%
Matt Blilen (C00) £338,000 336,000+

*Joe Vorih was appointed on 28 February 2022 The salary for Joe vVerh represeants his base salary oh oppointment.
*= Salary for 202115 the solary an appointrnent for Matt Puilen, who was eppointad on 1 Novermier 202t

Pension

In line with the Policy, Joe Vorih and Matt Puilen will receive a pension contribution in line with the wider workforce (5% of
salary) Paul James will receive a company contribution of 15% of salary until 31 Decernber 2022 when the contribution will
reduce to the wider workforce rate Martin Payne will receive o company pension cantribution of 15% of salary until his
cessation of employment on 20 May 2022

Other benefits
n 2022, the Exacutive Directors will receive a standard package of other benefits consistent with thase received in 2021

Annual bonus
The annual benus plan for 2022 will be operated in accordance with the 2021 gpproved Policy. Key features of the plon for
2022 are:

There will be a maximum bonus opportunity of 150% of annual salary for Joe Vorin and 125% of annual saiary for Paul
Jumes and Matt Pullen. Martin Payne will be entitled to 150% of solory prorated for his period of amployment during 2022,
33% ot any bonus earned will be deferred inta shares under the Defarred Share Bonus Plan {DSBP). Half of these shares will
vest two years post grant and the remaining half will vest three yvears post gront.

In the event that a material Misstatement or miscalculation subsequently comaes to light which resulted in an
overpayment uncer the annual bonus plan or if evidence comes to light of material misconduct by an individual, or it
evidence comes (o light of a material heaith and safety breach or actions that suisequently gave rise (o Serious
reputctiona! damage or insclvency, then the Committes has the flexibility to withnold the value of shares gronted undes
the DSBP and/or to require repayment of an appropriate portion of the annuc! benus cosh award in respect of the ralevant
bonus year.

The Remuneration Committee has discretion, where it believes it to be appropriate, to override the formulaic outcome
arising from the annual bonus plon,

.

with regard ta the performance reasures for FY 2022 these have been updated from those that operated in FY 2021, being
underlying EBIT (70%), working capital (20%), health and safety (5%) and customer service (5%). Following o review by the
Committee, itis clear that whilst underlying EBIT remains irmportant, recovering inflation-reloted costincreases and driving
rnargin are key priorities given the cngoing chalienges in the market. As a result, Executiva Director bonuses for FY 2022 will
be subject to challenging underlying £8IT (37.5%), an underlying EBIT margin percentage target {37.5%) (subject to a threshold
level of underlying EBIT being achieved for this element to poy out), a net working capital target (15%) and structured
strotegic targets using the sarme metrics as in FY 202 (10%). 115 iMtanded thot this structure will then cascade down through
the senior management team. This will help to drive the right behaviours across the Group to recover inflation and margin
and ensure that the Executive Directors and senior managernent teams have incentives that are aligned. These targets will
then be reviewed for ongoing suitability at the end of 2022,
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The targets for these performance measures in relation to the 2022 finoncicl year are deemed to be commaerciolly sensitive.
However, retrospactive disciosure of the targets and performance against them will be provided in next year's Diractors’
Remuneration Report to the extent that they do nat remain cammercially sensitive ot that timae.

e

It is expacled that the Executiva Directars will receive awards under the LT during 2022. As at the time of preparing this
Remuneration Report the Committee’s intention is to grant the awards on the basis described below. Should there ba any
change to the approach set out befow, this would be detailed in the Stock Exchange announcement mode ot the time of
granting the owards and detailed in next year's Remuneration Report.

Joe Veorih, Paul Jarmes ond Matt Pullen will receive an award over shares worth 150% of annual salary at grant.
Awards will become exercisable three yeors atter grant.

In the event that o material misstatement or miscalculation subsequently comes to fight which resuits in too high a level of
vesting under the LTIF, or it evidance comes to light of matarial misconduct by an individual, or if evidence comes to light of
a material health and safety breach or actions that subsequently gave rise Lo serious reputational damage or insolvency,
then the Committee has the flexibility tc withhold or recover the volue of shares granted under the LTIP.

The Remunerqtion Committee has discration, where it Delieves it to be appropriate, to override the formulcic cutceme
arising from the LTIP.

.

Awards will be subject to a two-year post-vesting holding requirerment.

Awards will be subject to a combination of underlying diluted EPS, relative TSR performance measures and sustaincbility
targets assessed cver a three-year pericd as detailed below.

A sustoinability argets {carbon reduction)

V] Sustainability targets {use of recycled plastics)

A Susaincbility targets {The 5% Ciub}
Total aword

Underlying Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) (50% of the award)

The EPS targets Gre ¢ range oround FY 2024 £PS. Setting the targets with reference to the final year of the three-year
performance period mirrors standard market practice and reduces the impact on the condition of the near term
uncertainties caused by external factors {e.g. Covid-19). The targets have been set with reference to both internal and
extarnal expectations for the Company's performance allowing for current market conditions and expected changes to the
Group's tax rate. The range of targets to apply is as follows:

Vesting
FY 2024 Underlying Diluted EPS (% 1otal oward})
Betow 31.5.p 0%

Straight-tine vesting between performance points.

Relative Total Sharehoider Return Targets (25% of the award)

The relative TSR targets remain unchanged from those operated in prior years, with our performance compared against
those companies included in the FTSE 250 Index that are ¢lassified as Industriols’ {circo 40 comporator companies). This
group rernains the most cppropriate set of comparator cornpanies as it includes those companies that are the most
similar in terms of size and business type to Genuil, and so itis likely to be manogement actions that drive out-performance
os opposed to external market factors. Vesting takes place as follows:

Vesting
Relative TSR versus FTSE 250 Industrials (% total award)
Below median 0%
Msdlan e e e e e et e e o St 11 5 e < e e e o8 ot _25%
Upper quartile {or bettar) 7 T e i “oo%

Straight-line vesting betwsaen performance points.
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Sustainability Targets (25% of the awaord)

Sustainability targets align with the kay elements of Genuit's sustainability strategy and require delivery in line with the
Carmpany’s published 2025 targets. The 25% ot the award subjact to sustainability targets is split into three equal
components as follows:

Carbon Reduction Targets (8.33% of the total award)
The range of targets is set bosed on our emissions intensity which is detined as Scope 1and Scope 2 tennes of CO.e per
tonne of output.

Vesting
FY 2024 Emissions Intensity (% total award)
Above D.108 0%
g —— B S Rt

Straight-line vesting between perfarmance points.

The 2021 baseline from which the above targets weare set is 0.14l and so the above targets are considered straetching and in
line with cur 2025 targeted reductions.

Use of Recycled Plastics {8.33% of the total award)
The range of targets relates to the proportion of our products that are manufactured from recycled products.

vesting
FY 2024 % Recycled Mmoterials Used (% total award)
Below 54.4% - B o 0%
544% et e et o i [P e e e ettt s+t s e T 7,_25%
R T e e e e e e e 1 e 5 4 e s e e e s o oo e+ e & o et 1 1o e o 1 e mess

Straight-line vesting between performance points

The 2021 baseline from which the above targets were set is 48.4% and so the abova targets are considered stretching and in
lina with our 2025 targeted reductions.

The 5% Ciub (8.33% of the total award)

The first two susteinability targets directly align with Genuit's focus on improvemants in the way we work with the third target,
afigning with creating a sustainable business culture through our commitment to The 5% Club. This initiotive, to which we
fully subscribe, focuses on the development of greater skills and training through "earn and learn’ job opportunities. Our 2025
objective is to achieve 5% of our workforce in ‘earn and learn’ positions with our FY2024 target set out below:

vesting
Prograss towards The 5% Club (% total award)
w 4.2% o e - . _— 0%

straight-ling vesting between performance points.
The 2021 baseline from which the above targets were set is 3.2% ond so the above targets are considered stretching.

The targets were set after having regard ta the proposed quantum of award ond both internal planning and external
market expectations for future performance so as to strike en oppropriate batonce between being realistic and meaningful
for participants at the lower end of the range, and providing a stretch at the top end of the range. Overall, the targets are
considered at least as challenging as those set in prior years noting the increased size and complexity of the Group
following the acquisitions noted above.

The Committee retains discretion to adjust vesting outcomes (e.g. if TSR vesting is not considered aligned with the
underlying fincncial performance of the Company or EPS vesting outcomes are impacted by relevant events such as
moteriol coquisitions of divestments or moteriol changes in corperate tad rates), Any such giscration would be used to
ensure that the performance targets fulfil their originat intent and were not more or less challenging than intended when set
but for the refevant events in the perfarmance period. Furthermore, as set out in the Policy, awards granted are subject to
malus and clawback provisions.
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Buy-out awards
with ragards to Joe Varih, he is eligible to receive replacement share owards for bott his 2020 and 202t Spectris LTIP awards,
which lopsed in connactian with joining Genuit.

With regards to the 2020 Spectris LTiP oward, he will be granted an aoward over 175,081 shares (cofculuted based on the
maximum number of Spectris shares eligible to vest converted to Genuit shares using the 28 February 2022 share prices,
baing the day he commenced amploymant with Ganuit). The number of shares eligible to vest wilt be determined by the
proportion of the 2020 Spectris LTIP that vests. The structure of this award mirrors what was forfeited on leaving Spectris,
aibeit the corwersion into Genuit shares on joining provides alignment with Genuit shareholders.

With regard to the 2021 Spectris LTIP. he will be granted an award over 124,683 Genuit shares {catcutoted based on the
maximum number of Spectris shares eligible to vest converted to Genuit shares using the 28 February 2022 sharg prices).
These shares will be etigible to vast based on the performance condition applicable to the 2021 Genuit LTIP award (as
detailed on poge N2). This approach recognises that only a relatively short proportion of the performaonce pericd has run its
course and so provides clecr alignment with wider Genuit employees and shareholders.

The vesting dates for each cward rirror those in place ot Spectris and there is an expectation that 1o the extent that the
above awards vest that a minimum propaortion is retained towards satisfying the Company’s share ownership guidelines.

Further details are included in the table below:

Number
Type ol award of shores Expected Vesling date+
Joe Vornik Deferred shores WFELQBI %E)Mcrch 20%3_ e
Deferred shares 124,683 17 March 2024

+ Vesting will 1ake place at the later of the above date and tha date of determining the extent to which the performance conditions have
beer met.

With regards to Matt Pullen, he is eligible to receive compensation for the 2021 bonus of £82,230 that he farfeited on leaving
employment with Scint-Gobain to join Genuit. Accordingly, he will be granted on oword over 12,347 Genuit shares which will
vast immediotely. The number of Genuit shares was calculated using the Genuit share price on the day he commenced
empgloyrment on [ November 2021

In addition, he is also to receive a replacement share award over 30,640 Genuit shares in connaction with the share owards
he had earned but were torfeited in connection with joining Genuit. The shares forfeited wilk be replaced by an equrvalent
value of Genuit shares (calculated based on the maximum number of Saint-Gobain shares converted to Genuit shares
using the | November 2021 share price, Deing the day he commenced employment with Genuit]. The quantum of this award
has been structured to replicate the Saint-Gobain awards forfeited, and can be adjusted by the Committee to ensure that
in the event there would be any performance related clawback, then this can be replicated in what ultimately vests.

Number
Type of gward of sharas Expecled Vesling date+
Matt Pullen Buy-outoward 12347  Ontheewarddote
Buy-out oward 30,640 On the first anniversary of grant

Full details of the buy-out owards granted to both Joe Vorih and Matt Pullen wili be included in next year's Remuneration Report.

sharesave Plan

invitations to UK empioyees (including Executive Directors) to porticipate in the Sharesave Plan have been issued annually
over the past three years and were issued to all Group ernployees in 2021 The Board is prapasing to continue to issus
invitations to join the Plan on an annual basis, and all eligible employees will therefore be invited to join the Plon in 2022,

Non-Executive Director remuneration

During the year, Non-Executive Director fees were reviewed, following which it was agreed to increase the Non-Executive
Dirgctor base fee by 5.0% and the Chairman's fes by 3.0%. The increases to the fees took into consideration the expected
future time commitment of the roles and the typical rate of salary increase awarded across the wider workforce. The table
below shows the fee structure for Non-Executive Directors with effect from 1 Jonuary 2022 Non-Executive Director fees ore
determined by the full Board except for the fee for the Chairrmon of the Board, which is determined by the Committee.

2022 202t
Feas Faes

£154077

Chairman of the Board dll-inclusive fee
Basic Non-Execulive Director fee

£8,000

£10,000

| £10000 | £800O,
£8,000 £8,000
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Audited information

The information providad in this section of the Remuneration Report up until the ‘Unaudited information’ heading on page HS
is subject to audit

Single total figure of remuneration
The following table sets out the total remuneration for Executive Directors and Nen-Executive Directors for 2021 with
comparative figures for 2020.

o0

salqry - Total  Annual Total Total
All figures shown in €000 and tesst? Benefits® Pgnsion® Fixed bonust LHPE Varlable Cthar® remuneratian )
Executive Directors .
ﬁgﬁ‘-nl’oyne phn 12 g e g £ S g

“as L

Matt Pullen®® Ty
Non-Executive Directors o o ) o
o ‘53 e b e _ st 83

Mark Hommond™®

Louise Hardy
Lisa Scenna
Louise Brooke-Smith!®

Kevin Boyd®

2020

salory Totail Annuol Total Jotal
All figures shown in £'000 and fees® genelitst® pension? Fixed bonust TIPS Vvariable Other™ remuneration
Exscutiva Directors.
Martin Payne
Paul mees

Glen Sabin®

- 429

Ron Marsh

Maork Haormmong(®
Louise Hardy

Lisa Scenna

Louisé Brooke-Smithf@ =
Kevin Boyd® 3 FRR - - - T e - p

Notes to the table - methodaleg

. Sgtary ond fees ~ as disclosed in the 2020 Annual Report, Exacutive Directors salaries were increased by 2.2% with effect from | Aprit 2021,

consistent with the average increasas owarded to the Company's UK workfarce. In 202, the Non-Executive Director base fee and the

Chairman’s fae were also increased by 22% with effect from 1 Apnl 2021 As disclosed in the 2020 Annual Report, due to Covid-19, Executive

and Non-Executive Directors waived salories and fees by 20% during the months of April through to August 2020.

Benefits - this represents the toxable value of oll benefits. Executive Directors receive benefits including car allowance, private family

medicol insurance and life assurance of four times annuat salary.

Pansion - the pension provision, in the torm of G cash allowance, for Mr Payne, Mr Sabin and Mr James is 15% of salary. The pension

provision for Mr Pulten is 5% of salary.

Annual bonus = from 2021, the bonus is poid 66.67% in cash and 33.33% defarred inio shares under the DSBF. As a resuit of the Covid-19

pandemic, the annual bonus was not operated for Executive Directors in 2020.

TP - for 202, this rafotes to the estimoted volue of the 2018LT'P award which wos subject to an €% and TSR perlormoncea target over thae

three-year period ended on 31 December 2021 Further details can be found on page 1it. The volue of the 2019 award has been calculoted

using the Company's average share price for Q4 202 (£6.294). The estimated amount of the 2018 award that is attributabie to share price
oppreciotion is £68,252 for Martin Payne, £34,826 for Paul James ond £34,275 for Glen Sabin. The Commitiee did not apply any discretion
as a result of the share price oppreciation,

LTIP ~ for 2020, this relates to the estimated value of the 2018 LTIP award which was subject to an EPS and TSR performance target over the

three-y&ar period ended an 31 Decembar 2020. Further details ¢an be found on page 91 of the 2020 Annual Report. The value of the 2018

award hos been calculated using the Company’s share price on the vesting date (E5.65). The estimated amount of the 2018 award that is

attrlbutable to share price appraciation is £65,871 for Martin Payne, £32,340 for Paul James and £33,701 for Glen Sobin. The Committee did

not apply any discretion as a result of the share price appreciation.

. Other - tor 2020, this column comprises £70,742, being the value of 16,300 shares acquired by Paul James on 16 September 2020 which, os
praviously disclosed, were awarded in partial compensation for long-term incentive awords forfeited when he left his previous employer
Dixons Cerphone pic. The shores have been valued at the share price when the cward was exercised of £4.34.

Other - for 2021, this column comprises £40,268, being the value of 6,040 SAYE sharas which vasted cn t Novemnbar 2021, This option has
not yet baen exercised and the shares have therefore been valued at the share price whan the award matured of £6.66. The estimated
amount of the 2018 award that is attributable to share price appreciction is £65,871,

7. Glen Sobin stepped down from the Board on 1 Novamiber 2021 and retired from the Company on 31 December 2021

8. Mott Pullen joined the Board on 1 Novermber 2021,

9. Mark Hognmond ceased to be ermnployes engagement NED on 22 June 2020 and was appointed as the Senior Independent Director on

22 June 2020.
10.Louise Brooke-Srnith was appointed as the amployee engagernent NED on 22 June 2020,
1. Kevin Boyd was appeinted to tha Board as NED and Chair of the Audit Cornmittea on 22 Septermnber 2020,

12, Total remuneration paid to Directors in respect of 2021is £3,68%,000 {2020: £1,993,000}

LS
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Annual bonus
The maximum annual bonus opportunity for the Executive Diractors in 2021 was os follows:

+ 150% of annual salary for Martin Payne.
- 125% ot annual salery for Paul James and Glen Sabin. Mott Pullen was eligible to receive an annual bonus of 125% of salary
pro-rated for the period of his employrment.

For all Executive Directors, two thirds of the bonus sarned will be paid in cash and one third will be deferred into shares under
the 0DS8P Hall of these shares will vest two years post-grant and haif after three years pust-grant. Maius and clawback
pravisions opply to the bonuses of all of the aforementioned Directors. The performance measures and targets that applied
to the 2021 annual bonus are set out below. This reflects the same approach used to determine the bonus cutcorme for the
senior manogemant team:

Proportian
of benus
deterrnined Threshold Target Maximum Actual % of maximum
Performince measure by meosure performonce perlormance performance  performance Bbonus payable
Group Underlying EBIT  70% £8017m 17.5% of totat bonus poyable £8667m £95.34m £95.34m 70%
35% oftotal  70% of total
bonus bonus
... Ppoyoble  poysble e e e
working Capital 20% Net working copital position ossessed at Target 20%
the end of gach month relative to target. achievedin 12
Moxirmum performance requires the ot i2 months
monthly target to be met at the end
e e O AN IZ TIONRS, —_—
Health&Soteryrargets 5% 828% . A S
Customer service 5% 2% improvement
targets improverment improvement

The total bonus payable to each Executive Director based on the assessment of performance ogainst the targets set out
abaovs, is shown below:

Tatal bonus
payable Total bonus payabie
% of maximum £'000 and % of salery

Mortin figyne e 93% £660,404 (139% of salory earned)
Paul JO"hes ) . Q3% £355,766 (116% of solary earneg)_

Mott Pulienin 93% £63,084 (6% of salary eamed)

1. Retrad on 3t December 2021
2. Appointed on 1 November 2021, The bonus outcome has therefore been pro-rated for the period of @employment.

The Committee has confirmed that it is comfortable with the payments made in relation to the non-financial elements of
the annua! benus scheme in light of the Company's financial performance in the wider macroeconomic environment.

LTIP vesting
The LTIP award granted in April 2019 vests in April 2022 bosed 25% on relative TSR performance and 75% on EPS growth aver
the thrae financial yecrs ended on 31 December 2021. The vested value of the award is thevefore required to be included in

tha 207 single figure table.

% of totol
Acluol oword Vested Estimoted value
Performance measure Threshoid Maoxirmum performonce vesling shares of vested shares®
Three-year cumulotive 91.2 pence 102.3 pence per share 72739 pence 0% Martin Payne -0 MartinPayne - 0
underlying diluted EPS  per share 75% ot award vests Paul Jomes - 0O Paul James —0
18.79% of award vests é| n Sabin®* - 0 Glen Sabin - 0
TSR performonce dion Upper q pper 25% Martin Poyne ~ Martin Payne ~
relative to 0% of award vests award vests quartile 33805 £211510
compOrator group ' Paul James - 17147 Poul Jamas -
3 £107,923
Glen Sabin** - Glen Sabin =
15,876 £108,218

* Estimated volue based on average share price in Q4 of 202 of £6.284.
** Glen sobin stepped down from the Board on | November 2021 and retired from the Company on 31 December 202t

The Comnittee is comiortable that the formulaic outcome of the LTIP reflects wider business performance. Awards must be
held far two years post-vesting,
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Scheme interests awarded during the financial year

LTIP awards
an awaord was granted under the LTIP to setected senior executives, including the Executive Directors, in May 2021. This oward
is subject to the performance conditions described below and will become exercisable in May 2024,

Maximurm Threshald End of
numier Face value vasting performance
Type of award Cote of grant of shares € (%of oword) period
MArtinPOYNE ..o o oo+ e Nilcost  -oMay20% 127996 - €723117
Pouldames . optiorss .20MayJ0X 88037  £38438) 25% of aword 31 December 2023
Glan Sabin 20 May 2021 66,958 £378,313

* The maximum number of shares that could be owarded has been calculated using the share price of £5.65 (average closing shore price
for 17 to 19 Moy 2021) and is stated before the irmpoct of reinvestment of the dvidends paid since grant.

**Inline with the 2020 awards, awards were granted s nil-cost aptions with an exercise date of three years from the grant date. Therefore,
there has been no change in exercise price or dote.

Vesting of the awards is subject Lo satisfaction of the following performance conditions measured aver a three-yaar
performance period. Vesting is calculated on a straight-line basis.

Underlying Diluted Earnings per share (EPS) (50% of the award)

The EPS targets are arange cround FY 2023 EPS. Setting the targets with reference to the final year of the three-year
performance period mirrors standard market practice and reduces the impact on the condition of the near term
uncertointies caused by mattars such as Covid-19 The range of targets to apply is as follows:

Vesting
FY 2023 Underying Ciluted EPS % tata) oward)
Below264p B o R R 0%
26 4p NP o . o e e s ,- -‘ - - Ses
3‘3}3 R . T e e e

Straight-line vesting between performance poinfs.

Relative Total Shareholder Return Targets (25% of the award)

The relative TSR targets rernain unchanged from those operated in prior years with our performance compared against
those cormpanies included in the FTSE 250 Index thot are clossified as ‘Industrials’ {(crca 40 cormparstor companias), This
group remains the most appropriate set of comparator companies as it ncludes those companies that are the most
similar in terms of size ond business type to Genuit, and so itis likely to be managernent actions that drive out-performance
as opposed to extarnal market factors. Vesting takes place as follows:

Vestin
Relative TSR versus FTSE 250 tndustrials (% total award)
Beiow median 7 B o o 0%
quartile {or better) i i ) “io0%”

Straight-line vesting betwegen perforrmance points.

Sustainability Targets (25% of the award)

Sustainability targets align with the kay elements of Genuit's sustainability strotegy and require delivery in line with the
Company's published 2025 targets. The 25% of the award subject to sustainabiiity targets is split into three equal
components as follows:

Carbon Reduction Targets {8.33% of the total award)
The range of targets is set based on our emissions intensity which is defined as Scope | and Scope 2 tonnes of COe per
tonne of output.

Vesting
FY 2023 Ermissians Intensity {% 1ctal award}
AboveON?7 e : 0%

olal

Straight-line vesting between performance points.

The 2020 baseline from which the above targets were set is 0.262 and so the above targets are considered stretching and in
line with our 2025 targeted reductions.
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Use of Recycled Plastics {8.33% of the total award)
The range of targets relates to the proportion of our products that are manufactured from recycled products.

Vesting
FY 2023 % Recycled Materials Used (% totol oward)
Below 51.4%
R . B

Straight-line vesting between performance points.

The 2020 baseline from which the above targets were set is 45.9% and so the above targets are considered stretching and in
line with our 2025 targeted reductions.

The 5% Club (8.33% of the total award)

The firsl lwo sustainability targets directly aign with Genuit's focus onimprovernents in the way we work with the third target,
aligning with creoting a sustainable business culture thiough our commitment to The 5% Club. This initiative, to which we
fully subscribe, focuses on the development of greater skills and training through ‘earn and learn’ job opportunities. Our 2025
objective is to achieve 5% of our workforce in ‘earn and learn’ positions with our FY 2023 target set out below:

vesting
Prograss towords The 5% Club (% total oword)
Below 4.2% 0%
4 ) Y
S‘X oo 1W00%

Straight-line vasting between performance points.

The 2020 basegline from which the above targets ware set is 3.8% ond so the above targets are considered stratching.

Deferred Share Bonus Plan awards
No bonuses were owarded in respect of 2020 and therefore no shares were owarded under the Deferred Share Bonus Plan
in 2021

Sharesave Plan
No Sharesave Plan awards were granted to Executive Girectors during the year.

Payments to past Directors
There were no payments to post Directors during the year

Payments for loss of office

In connection with Martin Payne stepping down from the 8oard, he will be eligible to receive salary, pension and benefits
during the pericd of his @mployment. As sat out in the Chair's statement, as a result of leaving employment by mutual
agreement, and in accordance with the discretions included in the relevant plan ruies, he will be trected as o good teaver
for incentive plan purposes. He is therafore eligible to receive a part-yecr performance related bonus for FY 2022 for the
period of his employment. He will not be eligible for on LTIP award in FY 2022. As a good leaver, Martin Payne will remain
eligible to raceive deferred share bonus owards earned in relation to prior years’ bonuses. With regards to outstanding LTIP
awards, these will remain eligible to vest in line with their normal vesting dates subject to o pro-rota reduction for the period
of ime in employment and following the application of the relevant performance targets. For completeness, Martin Payne
will not receive payments in lieu of notice.

Glen Sabin stepped down from the Board with effect from | Novernber 2021 ond ceased employment on 31 December 2021,
He will not receive any loss of office payments. As a result of his retirerment, and in accordance with the discretions included
in the relevant plon rules, he wos treated as a good leaver for incentive purposes. As a resull, he remained entitied to receive
on annual Bonus in respect of FY 202), which was subject to the achieverment of the performance conditions detoiled cbove
on page . His bonus was payable on the normal peyment date in 2022 and is subject to malus and clawback provisions.
With regard ta his outstanding share owards, granted under the Long Term Incentive Plan (LTIP), he was gronted options over
67,507 ordinary shares on 30 April 2018, 56,622 ordinary shares on 22 June 2020 and 686,958 ordinary shares on 20 May 2021
These will remain eligible to vest on the normal vesting date, subject to the achievement of the relevant performance
criteria and wilt be time pro-rated for his service during the performence period. His awards granted under the Deferred
Share Bonus Plan (DSBP) on 30 April 2019 and 22 June 2020 over 4,026 and 4,420 shares respectively, witl vast on 30 April 2022,
22 June 2022 ana 22 June 2023 In accordance with tha DSBP rutes, he will alsc receive the value of dividends paid in respect
of the vested shares between grant and vesting. The DSBP awards are exercisable for a period of six months from the date
of retirement

All payments that have or will be received will be made within the terms of the tarmination policy as set out in the Policy.

Martin and Glen will retain shares to the value of 200% of salary for two years post-employment in ling with the
Company's policy.

13
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Statement of Directors’ shareholdings and share interests

Executive Directors ore expected to achieve the shareholding requirerment of 200% of salary within five years of an individual
becoming subjacl to the requiremant. The Cormmittee reviews ongeing individua! performance against the shareholding
requirernent at the end of each financial year. Mott Pullen corrrmenced employrment with the Company guring 2021 and will
buitd up his sharehclding in line with the oforementioned five-year timescale. Both Martin Payne ond Glen Sabin met this
reqguirement as 31 Dacember 2021, Martin and Glen will be expected to retain shares to the value of 200% of salory for two
yaars post-employment in ine with the Company’s policy.

The number of shares held by Directors is sat out in the table below:

HNumber of shares ot 31 Cecomber 202}

fnterests in share incentl inshareincentive
Sharea owned L 3 ject to h ded without
Diractor outright performance conditions parformance conditions
Sharasave
S - S kel osaet Pan..
265,48)
Martin Paynelits) e e .. W%oisdry) L. 3een o BBes L 58U
23858
Paut James® _(45% of saiary) 221947 1,256 - 6040

596,574
Glen Sapin®7sl o Auss% of satary) -
Ron Marsh 308707 - -
a7 ) -
- R . i
Kevin Boyd w3 - - S
Notes to the table

1. This relates o shares aworded under the LTIP.

2. This relates to sharas owordad under the DSBF.

This relates to share options gronted under the Sharesave Plan.

4. During the year, Martin Payne had: (a) 35,917 LTIP shares vest, retained net of shares sold to pay personal tax liability, and (b) 15,509 DSBP
shares {inclusive of 521 dividend shares) vest, retained net of shares sold to pay personal tax liability All of these are included in the
‘Shares Owned Qutright’ column.

Matt Pullen joined the Board on | Navember 2021

During the yeor, Glan Sabin had: {g) 18,376 LTIP shares vest and retained net of shares sold to poy perscnal tax liability; and (b) 5,508 DSBP
shares (inclusive of 169 dividend shares) vest, and retained net of shores sald to pay parsondl tax kability. All of these are included in the
‘Shares Owned Cutright’ column,

For the purposes of determining the value of Executive Directar shareholdings, the individual's current onnuak salory and the share prnice
os at 31 December 2021 has been used {£5.86 per share).

Glen Sabin stepped down from the 8oard on | November 202) and retired from the Company on 31 December 2021

The oggreqote gain for Martin Payne in tha yeor from the exercise of awards granted under the LTIP was £65.87, baosed on the respective
share price on the date of vesting of £5.65 per share. The aggragate gain for Glen Sabkin in the yaar from the exarcise of awards granted
under the LTIP was £33,701, based on the respective share price on the date of vesting of £5.65.
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Unaudited information
The information provided in this section of the Directors’ Remuneration Report is not subject to audit.

Performance graph and CEQ remuneration table

The chart below cempares the Total Shareholder Return performance of the Company over the period from Admission to
3 December 2021 to the performance of the FTSE 250 index. Thig index has been chasen because itis a recognised equity
moarket index of which the Company is o member. The base point in the chart for the Company equates to the Offer Price
of £2.45 per share. The table below summarises the CEO single figure for total remuneration, onnual bonus payouts and
long-tarm incentive vesting lavels as a percentage of maximuim upportunity over this period.
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The obie betow summarises the CEO single figure totol remuneration, annucl bonus payouts and long-term incentive
vasting levels as a percentage of maxirmum opportunity over this period.

2004 2015 2016 20170 201713 20189 20198 20201 200@

CEG single figure of
femuneration€000 885 98 8 MM

annyal benus payout {as a

% of maximum tuni 887% 68.2% 69 .
nfa nfa n
(nroaoword (nooward {noaward {noaward {noaward
LTIP vesting out-turn {0s a vested vested vested vested vested
% of maximum opportunity]  in 2014) in 2015) tn 2016) in 2017} in 2017} B18% S45% 25% 25%

1. This reflects the remuneration received by David Hall, CEQ for the period frorm t January 2017 to | October 2017

This reflects the remuneration received by Martin Poyne who was appointed as CEC on 2 October 2017 following the retirement of

Dovid Halt.

The LTIF vasting out-turn percantages show the payout as a percentage of maximum of the LTIP award for which the three financial years
Cver which perfarmance is measured ends on 31 December of the year being reparted on. Therefore the 202 figure shows the poyout for
the 2019 LTIP gward.

~

w

Percentage change in the remuneration of the Directors (audited)
The table below sets cut the parcentage change in base solary, value of taxcble benefits and bonus for oll the Directors
compared with the averoge percentoge change for employees.

Average percentage chonge 2020{21 Average percentage change 2019{20
Taxabia Annuci Taxable Annual
Solaryffees benefils Bonus'®  solaryfiess benefits Banus**

Tapome 0 og | doox 43 o%  -l00%

Mo

n/a
Cnfa el va0w T T ala ke
nfo nfa  230%  nfa nla
na  nfo o
nfa nfa nfa nfa

k"evin Boyad | fO ”ﬂ'—"
Employee average +2.2%* 0% +100% +3.0%* 0% +24%

* The 2.2% increase reflects the salary increase following the decrease after the response to the Covid-19 pandemic. The 3 0% figure in
20182020 excludes the impact of the voluntary salary reduction during the yeor
** The Annual Bonus Plan for Executive Directors wos not gperated during 2020,

s
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Annual Report on Remuneration continued

CEO pay ratio
The table below illustrates the ratio batween CEO pay for 2021 (as shown in the single figure table on page no) and the
indicative full-time equivalent total remuneration for employees ranked at the lower quartile, median and upper gquartile.

CE£O pay ratic 2019 2020 w0
Method B
upper quortie aon
I e =i s ki
lowerquartl!e - L e e e s e s e ot s [ i T P

Inline with the retevant legislation, the analysis has been completed using Ogtion B (i.e. using the Company’s maost recent
gender pay gap information) with tha actual FTE remuneration for these employees calculated for the 2021 full year, The some
methodology used for calcukating the single total figure of remuneration for the CEO has been used for calcuiating the poy ond
benefits of these UK employees. The Company believes that this methodology is appropriate and that the employees
included in the analysis are suitably representativa for the CEO pay ratio comparison. The employees used in tha celculotions
ware identified using the most recent gender pay gap dota for 2021 on 15 March 2022, following the end of the financial yeor.
Included in the data are 2,916 UK employees frorm across all of our businesses. Option B was used as it was deemed the most
appropriate in the circumstances. In FY 2020, the CEQ voluntarity waived 20% of salary duning the months betwaen April and
August due ta the impact of the pandemic. In addition, the Committee mode the decision not to operate the annual bonus
plan for the Execulive Directors in 2020, This resulted in a drop in the CEG pay ratio. As the CEC received his full salary in FY
2021 and the bonus was reinstated, this has resulted in a subsequent increase in the CEQ pay ratio. The ratio is considered
within the expected range for the Company and is consistent with the pay, reward and progression policies for the
Compony's UK employees taken as a whole.

The sakary and total pay for the individuals identified at the Lower quartile, Median and Upper quartile positions in 2021 are
set out below;

Salary Total Pay
CEO singte figura .. fas0000 - Fh449.000
Upper quartile £33509 £36,00
e [ .

Lower quartile

Reilative importance of the spend on pay
The chart below illustrates the total expenditure on pay for all of the Company’s emplayees compared to dividends payabte
to shareholders.

Shareholder voting on remuneration resolutions

Employee remuneration Costs Dividends

Details of the votes cast in relation to our remunération resolutions in 2021 are summarised below:

votes for Votes against_ Votes withhetd
Approval of the Rernuneration Policy ~ 2021 AGM 19846521 (9632%) 7578774 (38B%) 5526
Approval of the Annual Report on Remuneration - 2021 AGM 203,218,615 (98.78%}) 2509,681 {1.22%) 525

External board appointments

Exacutive Directors are not normally entitled to accept a Non-Executive Director appeointment outside the Company without
the prior approval of the Board. With Board approval, Martin Poyne was appointed as a Nan-Executive Director of Stelrad
Group plc in October 2021 and retans the fee from that appointment. During 2021, the fee amounted to £10,000.

Annual General Meeting
This annual Report on Remuneration will be subject Lo an advisory sharehelder vote at our AGM scheduled to be held on
18 May 2022, '

By order of the Boord.

Louise Hardy
Chair of the Remuneraticn Committee

15 March 2022
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Independent
Auditor’s Report

to the Members of Genuit Group plc

Opinion
In our apinion:

- Genuit Group pic's Group firancial
statermments and Parent Company
finoncial statements {tha ‘financial
staternents’) give a true and fair view
of the state of the Group's and of the
Parent Company’s affairs at 31
December 2021 and of the Group's
prefit for the year then ended;

the Group financial statements have
been properly prepared in
accordance with UK-Acopted
Internctional Accounting Standards;

the Parent Company financial
stotements have been properly
prepored in accordonce with
UK-Adopied International Accounting
Standards as opplied in cccordaonce
with Section 408 of the Companies
Act 2006; and

tha finoncial statements have been
prepared in accordance with the
requirements of the Companies

Act 2006,

*

We have audited the financial
statements of Genuit Group pic

{the 'Parent Company’} and its
subsidiaries (together the ‘Group’)
far the year ended 31 Cecember 202t
which comprise:

Group Parent Company
Group fncome Statement for the year Company Balance Sheet ot
ended 3l December 2021 31December 2021

Group Sictement of Coméréhéhsi\ae I

Income for the year ended 31
Decermber 2021 .

Group Balance Sheet at 3 December 2621

Group Statement of Changes in Equity for

the year ended 31 December 202t

ended 3| Decermnber 2021

Reloted Notes 110 2B o the Group Financiat

Statements, including o summary of
signiticant accounting policies

" Company Staternent of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 31 December 2021

Company Cash Flow Stotement for the year
ended 31 December 2021

“Reiated Notes 110 9 to the Company

Fingncial Statements, including a summary

e e e et e e O SIGRIICONT GCCOUNNG pOlicies
Group Cosh Flow Statement for the year

The financial reporting framewaork that
has been applied in their preparation
is applicable low and UK-Adopted
international accounting Standards
and as regards the Parent Company
financial statements, as opplied in
accordance with Section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006,

Basis for opinion
We conducted our audit in

accordance with Internationat
standards on Auditing (UK} (1Sas (UK))

and applicable tow. Our responsibilities

under those stondards are further
described in the Auditor's
Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financiol Stotements section of our
report. We believe thot the audit
evidence we have obtained is
sufticient and appropriote to pravide a
basis for cur opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group and
Parent Compony in accordance with
the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial
statarments in the UK, including the
FRC’s Ethical Standord as opplied to
listad public: interast entities, and we
hove fulfiled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with
these requirements.

The non-audit services prohibited by
the FRC's Ethical Stondard were not
provided to the Group or the Parent
Company and we remain
independent of the Group and the
Porent Company in conducting

the audit.



Business
Overview

Conclusions relating
to going concern

In auditing the financial statements,
we have concluded thot the Directors’
use of the going concern basis of
accounting in the preparotion of the
tinancial staternents is appropriate.
Qur evaluation of the Directors’
assessment of the Group and

Parerit Company’s ability to continue
to adopt the going concern basis

of acceunting included:

» Performing a walkthrough of the
Group's inancial close process to
confirm our understanding of
managerment’s going concern
assessment process and engaging
with management early to ensure all
kay risk factors we identified were
considered in thair assessment;

+ Obtaining management's going
concern assessment, including the
cash fiow forecasts and covenant
calculoticns for the going concern
period which covers the 15 month
period to 30 June 2023, then
performing procedures to
confirm the clerical accuracy
ond oppropriateness of the
underlying modei,

Obtaining the Group's revolving
credit facilty and agreeing the leve!
of facilities available, the opplicable
covenants, and the renewal date of
November 2023 to management’s
assessment;

.

Overview of aur audit approach

Stategic

Report Governonce

Assessing the Group's base case
scenario for consistency with
budgets and cash flow forecasts
approved by the Board of Directors
and those used by the Group in other
accounting estimates such as the
goadwill impairment assessment;

Challenging the cpproprigteness ot
the base case assumptions relating
tc future levels of dernand, row
matericl availability and cost,.and
future energy prices. Our procedures
included analysis of extarnal market
data to consider any contradictory
sector forecasts including
consideration of the ongoing risks
ossocioted with Covid-18 and the
political and economic instability
created by recent events in Ukraine;

Reviewing and repearforming
management's stress test of their
cash flow forecasts and covenant
calculations in order to quantify and
then consider the piausibility of the
downside scenarios required to
exhaust the Group's forecast liquidity
and breach the Group’s covenant
ratios. We specifically considered the
quantum of revenue reduction and
unrecovered cost inflation required
to exhaust kiquidity and breach the
Group's covenant ratios;

Considering the impact ond
feasibility of potential mitigating
activities that are within control of
management, such as reducing
capital expenditure and dividend
payments; and

Financial
Statements

Remunearation

Reviewing the Group's going
concarm disclosures included in
the Annual Report and Accounts
in order to assess their
completeness and conformity
with the reporting standards.

Based on the work we have parformed,
we have nat identified any material
uncertainties relating to events ar
conditions that, individually or
collectively, may cast significant doubt
on the Group and Parent Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern
tor a period of 15 months from when
the financial staterments are
authorised for issue to 30 June 2023.

In refation to the Group and Parent
Company's reporting on how they
have coplied the UK Corporate
Govarnance Code, we have nothing
material to add or draw attention to in
relation to the Directors’ statement in
the finongial statements about
whether the DireCtors consiclered it
oppropriate to odopt the going
concern basis of accounting.

Qur responsibilities and the
responsibilitias of the Directors with
respact to going concern gre
described in the relevant sections of
this report. However, because not ol
future events or conditions con be
predicted, this statement is not a
guarantee as to the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern,

Audit scope

We performed an audit of the eormplete financial information of B componants and review
scope procedures for g further 38 components. S
The components where we performed full scope audit procedures accounted for 86% of
Protit Betare Tox, 85% of Revenue and 89% of Total Assels.

Xey audit motters

Risk of inappropriote revenue recognition.

Risk of inoccurate recognition of customer rebates

Risk of inccourate accounting for acquisiions,

Materiality

Overall Group materiality of £3.9m (2020 £2.5m) which rapresents 5% of Profit Befare Tax
adjusted tor non-recurring iterms.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

An overview of the scope of
the Parent Company and
Group audits

Tailoring the scope

Our gssassment of audit risk, our
evaluation of mateariality and our
allgcation of performance materiality
cetermine our audit scope for each
component within the Group. Taken
together, this enobles us to form an
opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We take into account size,
risk profile including the nature of
Aaccounting estimates recorded within
each component, the organisation

of the Group and effectiveness of
Group-wide controls, changes in

the business environment and other
foctors such as recent internal audit
results when ossessing the level

of work to be performed at

each component.

In assessing the risk of material
misstatement to the Group finonciol
statermants, and to ensure we had
adequate quantitative coverage of
significant occounts in the financial
staterments, of the 46 reporting
components of the Group, we selected
8 componants covering entities within
the UK, which represent the principal
business units within the Group.

Of the 8 camponents selected, we
performed an audit of the complete
financial inforrmation of each of these
companents (full scope components’)
which were selected based on thair
size or risk characteristics. For the
remaining 38 components we
performed other procedures os

set out below.

The full scopa reporting components
where we performed audit procedures
accounted for 86% (2020: 99%) of the
Group’'s Profit Betare Tox, 85% (2020:
98%) of the Group’s Revenue and 89%
(2020 98%) of the Group's Total Assets.
The oudit scope of these components
may not have included testing of all
significant gecounts of the component
but will have contributed to the
coverage of significant accounts
tested for the Group.

Cf the ramaining 38 components that
together represent 14% of the Group's
Profit Before Tax, none are individuolly
greater than 5% of the Group's Profit
Before Tax. For these components, we
pertormed other procedures, including
data analytics procedures in respect
of revenue transactions and manuat
accounting entries to identify unusual
transactions, testing of a sample of
significant transactions including fixed
asset expenditure where significant,
attendance at stock counts where
inventory balances ara significont,
external confirmation of cash
balances, and inquiries of
management to respond to the risk

of material misstatement to the
Group financial statements.

Changes from the prior year
Historically all reparting components
aof the Group with trading revenue in
excess of Group materiality have been
subject to full scope audit procedures
regardlass of risk or relative size to the
Group.in 2021, following the expansion
of the Group through the acquisitions
of the Adey, Nu-Heat and Plura groups
of companies, we agreed d revised
approach to the scoping of the Group
oudit with the Audit Committee. Qur
revised approach is in line with EY's
audit methodology and International
Standards on Auditing (UX).

As a result of the change in our
approach to audit scoping the
number of components subject to full
scope gudit procedures has reduced
from 17 10 B. The 8 full scope
components include Adey Innovation
which is the significant trading
component of the acquired Adey
group. Whilst the Nu-Heat and Plura
groups of companies have not been
identified as full scope due to thair size
relative ta the Group, the acquired
boiance shaets have been subject to
audit procedures as set out below in
our key audit matter relating to the risk
of inaccurate accounting for
acquisitions. In addition, all newly
acqguired reporting components of the
Group have been subject to other
procedures as outined in the
precading section.

20 2020
% Group % Group % Group % Group % Group % Group
Reporting componsris Number PEY revenuc total assets Numbsar PBT ravenue total assats
Fullscope = = o . ... SN .1 89% 7 99% 98% K
Rermaining compbhe"hts S 33 145 T T T g ]%Q%
100% 100% 100% 26 100% 100% 100%

Total reporting camponents 46
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involvement with

component teams

in establishing our ovarall appreach to
the Group audit, we determined the
type of work that needed to be
undertaken at each of the
components by us, as the primary
audit engagement team, or by
component auditors from other EY
global network firms operating under
our instruction, Following the revision of
our scoping approach, Nno overseas
reporting components were identified
as being full scope. Therefore, alf Quait
proceduras supporting the current
year group audit opinion have been
performed by the primary audit
sngagerment team led by the Senior
Statutory Auditor.

The gudit engagement team including
the Senior Statutory Auditor continued
to follow a programme of plonned
visits. During the current year's audit
cycle, visits were undertoken by the
audit engagement team to the main
locations of the full scope reporting
components including Leeds,
Doncaster, Aylesford, Ripley,
toughborough, Horncastle, Gloucester,
Caerphilly, and Ulster. Thesa visits
included meeting with local
management, performing detailed
audit procedures, physical verification
of fixed assets, and inventory counting
procedures. This, together with the
odditionat procedures performed at
Group level, gave us appropriate
evidence for our opinicn on the Group
tinancial staterments.

strategic

Report Governance

Climate change

There has been increasing interest
from stckeholders as to how climate
change will impact Genuit Group plc.
The Group has determined that the
most significant future impacts from
climate change on their operations will
be from transitioning to a lower-
carbon economy (transition risk) and
the physical risk resulting from ctimata
change, whether event driven or
longer-term shifts in climate potterns
(physical risk). These are explained on
pages 33 to 35 in the required Task
Force on Climate-related Financiol
Disclosures and on pages 51to 56in
the Principal Risks and Uncertainties,
which form part of the ‘Other
information,’ rather than the audited
financial staotements. Cur proceduras
on these disclosures therefore
consisted solely of considering
whether they are materially
inconsistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained
in the course of the audit or otherwise
appedr to be materially misstated.

Governmental ond sociatal responises
to climate change risks are still
developing, and are interdependant
upon each other, and consequently
financicl staternents cannot capture
all possible future outcomaes as these
are not yet known. The degree of
certainty of these chonges may also
meaan that they connot be taken into
account when determining asset and
liability valuations and the timing of
future cash flows under the
requirements of UK-Adopted
International Accounting Standards.

Our audit effort in considering climate
change was focused on ensuring that
the effects of material climaote risks
disclosed on poges 34 and 54 have

financial
Statements 12

Remuneration

teen appropriately reflected in asset
values and associated disclosures
where values are determined through
moedelling future cash flows, being
primarily relevant to the annuol
goodwill impairment assessment. We
have not identified any additional key
audit matters as a result of the impact
of applicable clirmaie risks on the
Group's kay judgements and
estimates. we also challenged the
Directors’ considerations of climote
change in their assessment of going
concern and vicbility and asscciated
disclosures.

whitst the Group have stated their
commitment to the aspirations of the
UK's Pledge to Net-Zero Campaign, the
Group is currantly unable to determine
the full future econamic iMmpaoct on
their business model, operational
plans and customers to achieve this
and therefore as set out above the
potentict impacts are not fully
incorporated in these financial
statements,

Key audit matters

Key audit matters are those matters
that, in our profassional judgemeant,
were of most significance in our audit
of the finagncial staterments of the
current period and include the mast
significant assessed risks of material
misstaternent (whether or not due to
fraud) that we identified. These
matters included those which had the
greatest effect on: the overall audit
strategy; the allocation of resources in
the audit; and directing the efforts of
the engagement team. These matters
were cddressed in the context of our
audir of the financial staterments asa
whole, and in our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide o separgte opinion
on these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report continued

Risk

Cur response to the risk

Key observations communicated
1o the Audit Committee

Risk of inappropriate revenue recognition

Refer to the Report of the Audit Committee
(page 8I); Summary of Significant
Accounting Palicies (poge 134); and Note 3.3
to the consolidoted financial statements
(puge 140).

The Group has reported revenue of £594.3m
(2020: £398.6m). Revenuea is stated net of
rebotes payable which are considered in
the subsequent key audit matter.

The timing of revaenue recognition is relevant
to the reported performance of the Group
as a whole and also to the comipleteness

of the rebate expense and related yaar

end labilities. Through rmanual adjustments,
there is the opportunity to misstote revenue
between periods in order to influence
reported results.

We consider the significant risk to be
primarily associated with thase
components contributing more than 5% of
the Group's revenue as any patantial error
could result in a material misstaterment of
the Group finonciol statements.

For the remaining components whilst we
consider there to be arisk of monagement
override of controls to misstaternent
ravenue, we do not consider any individual
componeant 1o represant a significant risk of
material misstatement.

There has been no change in cur
assessmant of this risk when compared to
the prior year.

Procedures to respond ta this risk were pertormad by the
primary audit engogement team.

Of the 8 tull scope cormponents, 7 compoanents recorded
revenue that was material to the Group and are
specifically impacted by the identified fraud risk.

For & of the 7 full scope components with significant
revanue, representing 81% of tha Group's revenue, wa
perfermed dato analytics procedures aver the
correlation of sales and cash receipts to test the
existence of revenua recorded in the generd? ledger
throughout the year.

For the remaining full scope component covering 5% of
revenue wa performead tests of detail over ravenus
recognised in the year by agreeing arepressniative
sample of sales to supporting documentation including
proot of delivery and testing related cash receipts
throughout the year. we also performed procedures to
identify and assess the appropriateness of manual
adjustments.

For all tull scope camponents, wea tested the accuracy of
revenue cul-off at the bolance shest date. Our work
comprised the ogreement of a sample of sales
transactions, including those racognised through
monual journals, either side of the year end by assessing
contract terms and reviewing proof of the timing of the
transactions and identitying then testing manuol
adjustments We have aiso analysed sales credit notes
raised in January 2022 ond teste¢ a sample to
supporting information.

Far those reporting components reporting revenua but
not identified as full scope. including the newly acquired
Nu-Heat and Plura cormponents, we have performed
dota analytics proceduras to identity unusual trends in
revenue recognition and anry significant unusual
transaction flows

Thraugh our procedures
pertormed we have not
idenufied any unsupponed
manual adjustirments

to revenue, or any
unegxploined anomgokes
frarm our revenue analytics.

The current yaar was the first
yaar we perforrmed detoiled
audit procedures in relation
1c the adsy componant
tollowing its acquisition i
Februgry 2021, No significant
manual adjustrments or
unusual accounting entries
were identified through

our testing.

We concluded that revenue
recognised in the year

is apprapriate and

found ne evidence of
management bias.

Risk ofinaccurate recognition of customer rebates

Reter ta the Report of the Audit Commitiee
(page 81); Summary of Significant
accounting Policies {page 134); and Note 3.3
to the consalidated financial statements
{page 140).

The total value of customer rebotes
recognised in the year and accrued for at
the balance sheet dota is materic!,

The Group's pricing structure includes
rgbate arrangements with customers. Mony
of these arrangements are relatively
straightforward, being based on agreed
parcentoges of sales made 1o direct
customers during the period.

A proportion of the Group's rebate
agreements are withindirect customers
and estimation is raquired when
deterrmiring the rebate accrucl ot the
balance sheet dote. This is particularly the
case for indirect rebates within the
Residenticl Systerns operating segment
where the Group is reliant on sales volurme
information from customers which may not
be available, or May not hove been verified,
at the time the tabilities are recognised.

In these instances, management is required
to estimate third party sales volurmes and
the associoted rebate liabiity at the
reporting date.

There hos baen ne change in our assessment
of this risk whan compared ta the prior year.

Procadures to respond to this risk were performed by the
prirmary audit engogement team.

We walked through management's process for
estimating rebate expenses and settling these liabilities
as well as monogement's controls over this process. We
assessed the impact af the Covid-19 pandemic on the
availability of custormer forecasts and the frequency of
claims in order to understand the level of estmation at
the balance sheet date.

we cornpared o sample of indirect rebate settlements
made in the yeor to amounts provided at 31 December
2020 1o assess the accuracy of monagement's
previous estimates.

wWe assessed the accuracy of management's estimates
made during 2021 by comparing initial astimates 1o
subsequent claim amounts ond final settlements. wWe
have then wsed this historic track record to 0s58ss the
reasonableness of the occrual estimates atthe year end.

for a sample of indirect customers, wa have developad
our own expectation of the full year rebate charge and
year end accrual using the Group’s trading performance,
the signed rebate agreements, third party data including
National Housebuilders Associotion informadtion,

and market communications made by indiract
customers in order io identity ond then consider

any contradictory avidence.

We assessed completeness of the year end accrual by
reviewing post year end claims and payments, comparing
historic ciaim activity to the accrued custamers, and
holding discussions with the commercial teom to
undarstand the procass for identifying new agreemants.

we tound no material
difference between the prior
year rebate cccrual and the
actucl rebates incurred. This
provides assurance over
management’s historical
ability 10 accuratealy estimate
the rebate hability.

we concluded that
managemeant’s judgements
weare materially consistent
with cur expectations and
recalculations based on
externql sources, post year
end claim octivity and
fustoric settlerment rates.

We conciuded that the
rsbates expense recognised
during the year and the
ligbility Ot the period end is
oppropriate.
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Qur response to the risk

Kay observalians communicoted
15 tha Audit Commitiae

Risk of inaccurate accounting for acquisitions

Refer to the Raport of the Audit Cormmittee
(page 81); Summary of significant
Accounting Policies (page 135); ond Note 3.1
to the consolidated financial statements
(poge 140).

During 2021, the Group conduded the
acquisition of the Adey, Nu-Haat, and

Plura groups of companies for initial
considerations of £210m, £27m and £1.25m
respectively As part of the Plura sale
purchase agreement there is a contingant
consideration structure which will be
settled in 2024,

In conjunction with a specialist,
management identified and valued the
acguired intangible ossets and recognised
a number of fair value adjustrments As the
identification and valuation of intongible
assets is an inherently complex activity
there exists @ risk that either the intangible
ossets identification or voluation of the
identifiec assets are inaccurote. For other
occquired ossats and ligbilities, this process
can require significant judgement by
management and there is a risk that the
resulting valuation of the acquired ossets
and liabilities is inaccurate.

Furthermore, the financiol staterment
disclosure requirements associated with
acquisitions are extensive and there is o
risk that the discloswre within the financial
statements coes not comply with the
IFRS requirements.

This risk hos been identified as a key audit
rmotter for the first time this year due to the
significonce of the goguisitions to the Group.

Proceduras to respond to this risk were performead by the
primary audit engagement team.

We have reviewed each of the sale and purchase
agreemeants with a focus on terms relating to initial
consideration, deferred and/for contingent cansideration,
and other termns that ceuld ingicate an acquiren osset or
liabkity such as warrantiesfindemnities.

we vouched the flow of funds associated with each
transaction including the repayrment of any toan
balances held by the acquirad companies at acquisition.

Wwe assessed the aliccation of the Plura cantingent
consideraticn etween purchase considergtien and
remuneration and the basis of the estimation of the
contingent amount.

we performed procedures to validats the existence ond
completeness of the acquired ossets and liabilities
including inventary, fixed assets, and cash balances.

We reviewed monagement's speciolist reports along
with our valuation specialists to gssess the
appropriateness of both the valuation methodology
applied and the identified intangible assets. This included
challenging the underlying assurmptions driving the
valuation, and ¢chaltenging the usefuf economic lile
assignad to each class of assets and any potential
impact of risks associated with climate chonge.

we assessed rmanggemeant's treatmant of deferred 1ox
in respect of acquired intangible assets, fair volue
adjustrnents, and any previously unrecognised
deferred tox gssels.

We chatlenged the apprepriatenass of any fair vaiue
adjustments to other assets and liobilities made by
managemeant, ond perfarmed procedures to assess the
completeness of fair value adjustments recorded by
management.

Where intangible assets have been recognised, including
the strategic parinership customer relationships within
Adey, we have made inquiries of non-finance personnel
to understand the usage of brands, Intellectual Property,
ond the latest status of customer ralatonships.

we have reviewad the acquisitions accounting
disclosures and assessed these for comgHiance with
the reporting requirements.

We concluded that the
consideration utilised within
the acquisition occounting
for each acquisition is
materially correct.
Specificolly, we have
concluded thot the
allccation of the Plura
contingent consideraticn
berween purchose
consideration

and remunerauon is
oppropriate basad on the
terms of the Plura sole
purchase cgreament.

We concluded thot the
recognition and valuation
of imtongitle assets is
oppropriate. We have also
communicated ta the Audit
Committee that the useful
economic life of the
acquired intangible assets
are regsonable.

we conctuded that other
tair value adjustments
recognised as port of the
acguisttion accounting are
materially correct.

In the prior year, our guditor's report included a key audit matter in refation to the risk of an unrecognised impairment

of goodwill. In the current year, the risk ossociated with an unrecognised impairment of goodwill hos decreased as the
Group's trading performance and outlogk have recovered from the negative economic impact of the Covid-19 pandemic,
As a result, the headroom within mancgement’s annual impairment assessment has returned to levels seen prior to the

Covid-19 pandemic.
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Our application of materiality

We apply the concept of materiality
in planning and performing the audit,
in evoluating the effect of identified
misstotements on the audit and

in forming our audit opinion.

Materiality

The magnitude of an omission or
misstuternient that, indiviagually or in
the aggregate, could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic
decisions of tha users of the financial
siaterments. Materiality provides a
basis for datermining the noture

and extent of our audit procedures.

We determined materiality for the
Group to be £3.9m (2020: £2.5m),
which is 5% of Group Profit Before Tax
adjusted for non-recurring iterns. We
believe that Group Profit Before Tax
adjusted for non-recurring items
provides us with a consistent basis for
caleulating materiality as it excludes
the impact of one-off items that are
not related 1o the underlying
cperations of the Group. In the prior
year, we colculated materiality bosed
an 5% of normalised Profit Before Tax
adjusted for non-recurring items given
the impact of the Covid-19 pandemic
on the Group's 2020 trading result.

we determined materiality for the
Parent Company to be £3.9m (2020
£3.1m), which is 1% (2020-1%) of totat
equity. As tha Parent Compony isa
non-trading holding company we
consider equity to be the most
appropriate basis for calculating
materiglity Any balances in the Parent
Company financial statements that
were relevant to our oudit of the Group
finoncial statements were audited
using an allocation of Group's
perfermance materiality.

During the course of our audit, we
reassessed initial materiality with the
only change in the final materiality
from our original assessment being to
reflect the actucl reported
perfarmance of the Group in the year,

- Graup Profit Befora Tax of £62.9m

Starting basis

« Adjusted for non-underlying items excluding amortisation

of £14.0m
Adjustmaents

- Totols £769m

- Materiality of £3.9m (5% of Group Fraofit Before Tax adjusted
for non-recurring items)

Performance materiality

The appiication of materiality at the
individual accounl or balance level.
itis set at an amount to reduce to an
appropriately low level the probability
that the aggregate of uncorrected
ond undatected misstatermeants
exceeds materiality.

On the basis of our risk ossassments,
together with our assassment of the
Group's averall contral environment,
our judgement was that performance
materiality was 75% (2020: 75%) of
our planning materiality, namely
£2.8m (2020: £1.9m). We have set
performance motariality ot this
percentage due to our assessment
of the control environment and
assessment that there is a lower
likelihood of misstaterments.

Audit work at component locations for
the purpose of obtaining audit
coverage over significant finoncial
staterment accounts is undertaken
pasad on ¢ percentage of tatal
perfarmance materiality. The
performance moteriality set for each
component is based on the relative
scale and risk of the component to the
Group 0s a whole and our assassment
of the risk of misstaterment at that
cemponent. In the current year, the
range of perfcrmonce matariality
allocated to components was £06m
to £1.8m (2020 £0.4rm to £14m).

Reporting threshold

An amaount beiow which identified
misstatements are considered as
baing clearly trivial.

We agreed with the Audit Committes
that we would report to them all
uncorrected audit differences in
excess of £0.2m (2020: £0.1m), which
is set at 5% of planning Mmoteriality,
as well as differences below that
threshold that, in our view, warranted
reporting on qualitative grounds.
The threshold used for reporting
uncorracted audit differences has
increased year-on-yeaor as A result
of the increase in overall materiality.

We evoluate any uncorrected
misstaternents against both the
quantitative measures of materiality
discussed above and in light of other
relevant qualitative considerations in
forming our opinion.

Other information

The other information comprises the
information included in the Annual
Report and Accounts on pages 1tc 116,
aother than the financial stoterments
and cur auditors repart thareon. The
Directors are responsible for the other
information centagined within the
Annual Report and Accounts.

Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other
infermation and, except to the extent
otherwise axplcitly stated in this report,
we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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Cur responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider
whether the other information is
rmaterially inconsistent with the
financial statements or our knowiadge
obtained in the course of the audit or
otherwise Gppears to be moterially
misstated. if we identify such material
inconsistencias or apparent material
misstateéments, we are required to
determine whether this gives rise to a
ratarial misstatement in the financial
stotements themseilves. If, based on
the work we have perfermed, we
conclude that there is a materici
misstatement of the other information,
we are required to report thot fact.

We have nothing to report in
this regard.

Opinions on other matters
prescribed by the Companies
Act 2006

In our opinion, the part of the Directors’
Remuneration Report to be oudited
has been properly prepared in
accordance with the Companies

Act 2006.

It cur opinion, basad an the work
undertaken in the course of the audit:

« the information given in the Strategic
Report ond the Directars’ Report for
the financial year for which the
finoncial staterments are praparad is
consistent with the finonciol
stotements and those reports have
been prepored in accordance with
applicoble legal requirements;

+ the information about internat
contrel and risk management
systems in relation to financial
reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in
compliance with rules 7.25 and
7.2.6 in the Disclosure Rules and
Transparency Rules sourcebook
made by the Financial Conduct
Authority {the FCA Rules), is
consistent with the financial
statements ond has been prepared
in accordance with applicable
legal requirerments; and

infarmation about the Company’s
corporate governence statemant
and practices and abaut its
administrative, manogement and
supervisory bodies and their
committees compligs with rules 722,
723 and 727 of the FCA Rules.

_ Strategic
Repart

Governgnce

Matters on which we are
required to report by
exception

In the light of the knowledge ond
understanding of the Group and the
Farent Company and its environrment
obtained in the course of the audit, we
have not identified material
misstaterments in:

the Strategic Report or the Directors’
Report; or

the information about internal
control and risk management
systerns in reiation to financial
reporting processes and about
share capital structures, given in
compliance with rules 725 and 726
of the FCA Rules.

We have nothing ta report in respect
of the following matters in refation

to which the Companies Act 2006
requires us to report to you if,

in our opinion:

adequate accounting records hove
nect been kept by the Parent
Company, or returns adequate for
our oudit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

the Parent Company financial
statemnents and the port of the
Directors’ Remuneration Report (G
be audited are not in agreement
with the accounting recerds and
returns; or

certain disclosures of Directors’
remuneration specified by law
are not maode, or

we have not received all the
information and explanations we
require tor our audit; or

a Corporate Govaernances Statement
has not been prepared by

the Cormpany.

+

-

Corporate Governance
Statement

We have reviewed the Directors’
statement in relation to going concern,
longer-term viability ond that part of
the Corporate Governance Statement
relating to the Group and Parent
Company's complionce with the
provisions of the UK Corporate
Governance Code specified for

our review by the Listing Rules.

Financiol
Statements

Remuneration

Based on the waork undertakan as part
of our audit, wg have concluded that
each of the following elaments of the
Corporate Governance Statement is
materially consistent with the financial
statements or our knowledge obtained
during the ayudit:

Directors’ statemeant with ragards to
the appropriateness of adopting the
going concern tbasis of accounting
and any material unceriqinties
identitied set out on page 86;

Directors’ explonation as to its
assessmaeant of the Group and rha
Parent Company’s prospects, the
period this assessment cavers and
why the penod is oppropriote set out
on poge 86;

Director’s statement on whether it
has a recsonable expectation that
the Group will be able to continue in
operation and meets its lidbilities set
out on page 86;

Directors’ stotement on fair,
balanced and understandable set
out on page 80,

Board’s contirmation that it has
carried out a robust assessment of
the emerging and principal risks set
cut an pages 51 to 56;

The section of the Annual Report and
Accounts that describes the raview
ot effectiveness of risk management
and internal control systems set out
on page 68, and

The section describing the work of
the audit Committee set out on
pages 8ito 85.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the Directors’
Responsibilities Statements set out on
pages 90 ond 160, the Directors are
rasponsible for the preparation of the
financiaf stotements and for being
satisfied that they give a true and fair
view, and for such internal control as
the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial
statements that are frese from material
misstaternent, whethar due to froud

or error.

In preparing the financial statements,
the Directors are responsible for
assessing the Group and Parent
Company's ability to continue as o
going concem, disclosing, as
applicobie, matters related o going
concern and using the going concern
basis of accounting unlass the
Directors either intend to liquidate the
Group or the Parent Company of to
cease operaticns, or Nave no reclistic
alternative but to do so

1256



126

Genuit Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2021

Independent Auditor's Report continued

Auditor's responsibilities for
the audit of the financial
statements

Our objectives are to obtain
reasonable gssurance about whether
the financiol stotements as a whole
are free from maoterial misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and ta
issue an guditor's report that includes
our opinion. Reasonable assurance is
a high lavel of assurance butis not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with 15As (UK) will clways
detect o material misstaternent when
it exists. Misstoterments can arise from
fraud or arror and are congidered
material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be
aexpected to influence the economic
dacisions of users token on the basis
of these financia! statements.

Explanation as to what extent the
audit was considered capable of
detectingirregularities,
including fraud

irregularities, inctuding fraud, are
instances of non-compliance with
laws and regutations. We design
procedures in tine with our
responsibilities, outlined above, to
detect irregularities, inctuding fraud.
The risk of not detecting a material
misstaternent due to fraud is higher
thon the risk of not detecting one
resulting fromn error, os fraud may
involve delibarate canceatment by, for
example, fargery or intentional
misreprasentations, or through
collusion. The extant to which our
procedures are capable of detecting
irregularities, including fraud 1s
detaited below.

However, the primary respansibility for
the prevention and detection of fraud
rests with both those charged with
governance of the Group and
managemaent.

+ We obtained an understanding of
the legal and regulatory framaworks
that are applicable to the Group and
datermined that the most significant
are thosa that relote to the reporting
framework (LK-Adopted International
Accounting Standards for the Group
financial statements, and as fegords
the Paorent Company financial
staterments, as applied in
accordance with Section 408 of the
Companies Act 2006, the
Companies Act 2008 and the UK
Corporate Govarnancs Coda) and
the relevant tax complionce
regulations in the UK.

we understood how Genuit Group
plc is complying with those
frameworks by initially maoking
inquirias of Group and component
manogement, as well as those
charged with governonce. we have
further understood the Group's
compliance with those frameworks
through review of minutes of the
Board and key committees. Finally,
through our detatled audit
procedures we have considared
whether any evidence has been
identified that indicates non-
compliance with the relevont laws
and regulations hos occurred.

We assessed the susceptibility of the
Group's financict staternents 1©
material misstatement, including
how fraud might occur by:
understanding the Group's
performance against market
expeciations; understanding the
Group's performance against
internal key parformaonce indicatars
used when calculating
management’s variable
remuneration; identifying key
judgements and estimates
including rebate accounting

that can materially impact the
financial stotements; and
understonding the controls and
processes in place for the prevention
and detection of fraudulent activity
and financial reporting.

- Based on this understanding we
designed our audit procedures to
identify non-compiiance with
such laws and reguiations. Our
procedures included those outined
in the revenue and rebate key acudit
matters above, as well as testing
manual journals recorded at the
component and consolidation level,
understanding unusual and one-off
transactions, cnd where ralevant
corroborating the basis of
accounting judgements and
estimates with employeas and
specialists outside of the finance
functions such as the Caompany
Secratary, the Group IT function, the
Group Health and Safety tearm, and
commercicl management.

A further description of cur
responsibilities for the audit of the
financial statements is tocated an the
Financial Reporting Council’s website
at https:/fwwwirc.org.ukf
acuditorsresponsipilities. This
descriptian farms part of cur
auditor's report.

Other matters we are required
to address

= Following the recommendation from
the Audit Committee, we were
appointed by the Company in 2012
to audit the Group’s financial
stotements for the yeor ending 31
December 2012 and subsequant
financial periods. in 2014, upon the
Group's listing on the Londan Stock
&xchange, the Group become
subject to the rotation requirements
under the UK Corporate Governance
Code, Competition and Markets
Authority and the EU Audit Directive.
The pertod of total uninterrupted
engagement since the Group
was subject to these rotation
requirements is B years. in total the
period of uninterrupted engagement
including previous renewals and
reappointments is 10 years, covering
the years ending 31 December 2012
to 31 December 2021
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The nen-audit services prohibited by
the FRC’s Ethical Stondard were not
provided to the Group or the Parent
Company and we remain
independent of the Group and the
Parent Company in conducting

the audit.

The audit opinion is consistent

with the additional report to the
Audit Committee.

.

Use of our report

This report is made solely to the
Company's members, as a body, in
accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16
of the Companies Act 2006. Our cudit
work has been undertaken so that we
might state to the Company’s
members those matters we are
required to state to them in an
auditor's report and for no other
purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume
responsibility to anyone cther than the
Company and the Company’s
members as a body, for our audit work,
for this report, or for the opinions we

have formed.
Krishd M
(Senior Statutory Auditor)

Christabel Cowling

for and on behalf of
Ernst & YoungLLP,
Statutory Auditor
Leeds

15 March 2022

Notes:

1. The maintenance and integrity of the
Genuit Group plc website is the
responsibility of the Directors; the work
carried out by the auditors does not
involve consideration of these matters
and, accardingly, the auditors accept no
responsibility for any changes that may
have occurred to the financicl
statements since they were initially
presented on the websita,

Legislation in the United Kingdom
governing the preparation and
dissemination of financial statements
may differ from legistation in other
jurisdictions.

R
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Group Income Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Notes

201

2020

Non-

uUnderlying  underlying!
Em £m

Total
£m

Underlying
£n

Non-
underlying!
£m

total
£rm

Revenue
Cost of sales

&8

594.3

(3488

O

5943

ey

L.3986 T
(2425}

3986

" (zazs)

Gross profit

Selling and distribution costs T
Administrotion expenses N

2455

fo8)

OO I

2390

_{ma)
{75.8) )

BB

(650)

(a9

1561

. {es0)
@5y

_(529)

Trading profit

Amortisation of intangible assets

L 9sa

{o)

(12.0)

Gag) "

..

(1a.3)

A22

(40)

8)

382
(78)

Operating profit
Fingnce costs

58

AN

95.3

e

(282)

871

22

ey

_(18)

oy

304 .
(6.8)

Profitbeforetax =

Income tax

81z

9l

(282)

~Ge

62.9

{218)

357

me)
e e

1.0

238
(5.3)

Profit for the year attributable to the owners
of the parent company

75.1

psoy

(34.1)

41.0

294

(10.8)

18.5

Basic earnings per share (pence)

85

Diluted earnings per share {perce)

84

hare ] ncé) ~ final

ce) - interim

48

122

48

' Non-underlying items are presented separateiy. The definition of non-underlying items 1s included in the Graup Accounting Policies on
page 139, Non-undetlying items are detailed in Note 8 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Group Statement of

Comprehensive Income

For the year ended 3! December 2021
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202 2020
£m £
41.0 85

Profit for the year attributable to the owners of the parent company

Other comprehensiveincome: e
fterns which maoy ba reclassifiad subsequently to the income statement.
Exchange differences on

Effactive partion of changes in fair vaiue of interest rate swaps
o ; :

the income statement

Other comprehensive income for the yaar net of tax

Total comprehensive income for tha yedr ottributable to the owners of the parent company
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Group Balance Sheet

At 31 December 2021

31 December 3l Cecember
20 2020
Nates £m £m

Non-current assels
fr i S
Righot-yseassets
Intangiblg ossats ’
Total non-current assets
Currentassets .

Inventories
Tradie ang other recelvable:
incorme t0s receivable

05

Cash and cash equivole'ntsh" T aa)
Total current ossets 158.9
Total assets 6998
Current ligbilitios

22).

Derivative financial instruments
Total current liabilities
Non-current liabliities

5éferred income tax kabilities
Total non-current Habilities
Yotal liabilities

Net assets

Capital and reserves

ot ves . e e -
Retained eqrnings 406.4 3827
Total equity 617.7 5009

The consclidated financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors and signed onits behalf by:

Joe Vorih

Drractar AN

19 March 2022

Paul James
Diractor
15 March 2022

tiatioph No. 06059130

Company Regi
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Group Statement
of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2021

Financial
Statements

Forelgn
currancy
Equity Capltal retrons-
share Share redemption Qwn Hedging Iation Other  Retained Yatal
capitat pramium resarve sharas resonie reserve rasarves eumir\gs oqulty
£ £m £m £m fm £m £m £m £m
At 31 December 2019 02 - 11 - (0.4) a1 - 3604 3614
Profit for the year - - - = - - - 185 185
Other compreheansive income - S _ R T - T T ey
Total comprehensive income
for the year - - - - 04 0.3 - ;25 92
Issue of share capital ) e o ' '
{See Note 23) -
Transaction costs on issue of T
share capital o -
Shara-based payments charge -
Shora-based poyments settled -
Shore-bosed paoymaeants excass
tax benefit - - - - = - - 0.3 0.3
At 3] December 2020 0.2 - 11 - - 04 185 3827 5008
Profit for the year - - - = - = - a1 41.0
Other cormprehensive income Z LT T I ) T ey T LT T T  asy”
Total comprehensive income
for the year = T e oW (@8) - A0 405
Gividends paid o T - - - - @ @
Issue of share capital T T )
{See Note 23)

Transaction casts on issue of
share capital

Share-based payments charge

Share-based poyments settled

Share-bosed payments excess
tox benefit

o1

At 31 December 202}

406.4
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Group Cash Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 202]

92 202¢
Notes £m Em

Operating activities

Profitbeforetax
financecosts
Operating profit ...
I:Jon—r:nsﬁ i%é?ﬁé: ) ’ i

roriton ¢ property, plantand
Transaction costs on issus of share caopital

Inventories

e L 88
p (82)

Net cash flows from operating activities 53.3

Investing activities

o raperty, plant and equips
Patent and development costs expenditure
Nat cash flows from investing activities (270.5) (26.3)

f)rowaéﬁﬁ-éfﬂ:”m‘rﬁk. loan - L
hoasrant of bonkoan " T ———— .
Int aid
6Lvidends';5did -
Proce d "
Setttement of tease liobilities

Net cash flows from financing activities (308)
Net change in cash and cash equivalants 8.3 (36}
Cashand cashequidlents atlonuary e e R 441 877

Net foreign exchange ditference T ey TS
Cash and cosh equivalents at 31 December 22 52.3 441
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Notes to the Group
Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1. Authorisation of financial
statements

The consolidated iinancial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 waere authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 1§
March 2022 and the bolanca sheet
wos signed on the 8card's behalf by
Joe Vorih and Faul Jomes.

Genuit Group plc (previously known as
Polypipe Group plc) is a public limited
company incorporated and domiciled
in England and Wales. The principal
activity of the Group is the provision

of sustainoble water and climate
managament solutions for the

built envircnment.

2. Summary of significant
accounting policies

The basis of preparation ang
accounting policies used in preparing
the consclidated historical tinancial
inforrmation for the year ended 31
Decembaer 2021 are set out helow.
These accounting policies have been
consistently gpplied in all material
respects to all the periods prgsented.

2.1Basis of preparation and
statement of complionce

with IFRSs

The Group's consolidated financial
stotements have been prepared in
accorgance with UK-Adopted
International Accounting Standards
(uk-adcpted 1AS). in preparing the
Group's consalidated financiol
staternents the Directors hove
considered the impact of ciimate
change, taking into account the relevant
disclosures in the Strategic Report,
including thase made in accordance
with the recommendations of the Task
Force on Climete-related Finoncial
Disclosures. This included on
asssessrnent of goodwill and cther
intangible assets and how they could be
impacted by meosures token to address
global warming. N issuas weare
identified thot would impoclt the
carrying values of such assets or have
any other impoct on the consolidated
financial statements.

The gccounting policies which follow
set out those policies which apply in

preparing the consclidated financial
statements for the yecr ended

31 December 2021

The Group's consolidated financial
staterments have been prepared ona
historical cost basis except for
derivative financial instrumeants and
deferred and contingent consideration
that have been meaosured at fair value.
The consoflidated financial stataments
are presanted in Pounds Sterling and
all values are rounded to one decimal
place of a million {£m) unlass
otherwise indicated.

2.2 Going concern

The Directors have made enquines into
the adequacy of the Group's financial
resources, through a review of the
Group's budget ond mediurm-tarm
financial plon, incluging cash flow
forecasts. The Group has modelled o
range of scenarios, with the base
torecast being one in which, over the 18
months ending 30 June 2023, sales
volumes grow in line with or
moderately above external
construction industry forecasts.

In cddition, the Directors have
considered several downside
scenarios, including adjustments to
the base forecast, a pericd of
significontly lower like—for-like sales,
profitability and cash flows. Consistant
with our Principal Risks and
Uncertainties these downside
scenarios included, but ware not
limited to, loss of production, loss of a
mgjor customer, product failure,
recession, increases in interast rotes
and increases in row material prices.
Downside scenaries also included a
combination of these risks, and reverse
stress testing. The Directors have
considerad the impact of climate-
related matters on the going concern
assessment ond it is not expected to
have a signiticont impact on the
Group’s going concern.

Financial
Statements

Remuneration

At 31 December 2021, the Group had
available £1020m of undrawn
committed borrowing focilities in
respect of which ail conditions
precedent had been mel. These
borrowing facilities are available until
at least November 2023, subject to
covenant headroam. The Directors are
satisfied that the Group has sufficient
liquidity and covenant headroom to
withstand reasonable variances to the
base forecost, as well as the downside
scenarios. in addition, the Directors
have noted the range of possible
additional liquidity options ovailabie to
the Group, should they be required.

As a result, the Directors have satisfied
themselves that the Group has
adequate financial resources to
continue in aperationol existence for a
pericd of at least the next 15 months
aAccordingly, they continue to adopt
the going concarn basis in preporing
the consaolidoted finoncial statements.

2.3 Basis of consolidation

The consolidated fincncial statements
comprise the financial statements of
the Group and its subsidiaries ot 3t
Decemnber 2021 Control is achieved
when the Group is exposed, or has
nghts, to variable returns from its
involvernent with the investee and has
the ability to offect those returns
through its power over the investes.

specifically, the Group controls an
investee if, and only if, the Group hos:

power over the invastee (i.e. existing
rights that give it the current ability to
direct the relevont activities of the
investee);

exposure, or rights, to variable returns
fram its involvernent with the
investes, and

the ability to use its power over the
investee to affect its returns.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued

The Group reassesses whether or not it
controis an investee if facts and
circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three
elements of control. Consolidation of a
subsidiary bagins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and
ceases when the Group loses control
of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities,
income and expenses of a subsidiary
acquired or disposed of during the
year are included in the consolidated
finoncial statements from the date the
Group gains control until the date the
Group ceases to control the subsidiory.

Whan necassary, adjustments are
made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting
palicies into line with the Group's
accounting policies. All inter-group
assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expensas and cash flows refating to
transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in fuil

an consolidation.

The Group holds 100% of the equity and
controls 100% of the voting rights in all
subsidiaries, with the exception of Plura
Compuosites Limited, Polydeck Limited,
Equafiow Lid, Sustcinable Water and
Droinage Systems 8V, Sustainable
Water and Drainage Systems Limited
and Water Management Solutions LLC
{which has not traded since
incorperation in Qatar in 2015). The
treatmaent of non-controlling interests
or any other non-voting right foctors in
respect of cantrol is not material to the
consolidated finoncial stetemeants.

2.4 Business combinations
Business combinations are accounted
for using the acquisition method. The
cost of an acquisition is the totat of the
consideration tronsferred, measured
at acquisition fair valua. Acquisition
costs incurred are expensed and
included in administration expenses in
the income statement.

tdentifiobla intangible assets, meeting
either the contractual-legat or
separability criterion are recognised
separately from goodwill.

2.5 Goodwill

Goodwillis initiclly measurad at cost
being the excess of the aggregates of the
acquisition date fair value of the
consideration transferred over the net
identificble amounts of the assets
acquired and the liabilities assumed in
exchangse for the business combination.

After initial racognition, goodwill is
stated at cost less any accumulated
impairrment losses (see Note 2.12).

The carrying amount of goodwill
allocated to a cash-generating unit is
taken into account when determining
the protit or toss on disposal of the unit,
or of an operation within it.

2.6 Foreign currency translation
The Group's consolidated financial
staternents are presented in Pounds
Starling, which is also the parent
company's functional currency. Each
entity in the Group determines its own
functionol currency and items
included in the financial staternents of
each entity are measured in that
functional currency.

Transactions in foraign currencies are
initially recognised by thae Group
entities at their respective functional
currency rates prevailing at the date of
the transaction.

Monetary assets and liabilities
denominoted in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the functional currency
spot rate of exchange at the balance
sheet date. All differences arising on
settlement or translation are taken to
the income statement.

Non-monetary items that ore
measured in terms of historical costin
a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the dates of the
nitial trensactions.

The ossets and liabilities of foreign
operations are translated into Pounds
Sterling at the rate of exchange ruling
at the balance sheel date. incoma
and expenses are transiated at
average exchange rates prevailing.
The resulting exchange differences
are racognised in other
comprehensive income.

2.7 Revenue from contracts with
customers and interestincome
Revenua from contracts with
customers is recognised when control
of the goads is transferred to the
custorner at on amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Group
expects to ba entitled to in exchangse
for those goods. The disclosure of
significant accounting judgements
and estimates relating to revenue fraom
contracts with customers 1s provided
tn Note 3.

2.7.1 Sale of goods

Revenue from sale of goods is
recognised at the point in time when
control of the goods is transferred to
the customer, generally on delivery of
the goods. Cur most cormmoniy used
standard payment terms are 30 days
net end of month.

i) Performance obligations

The Group considers whaether there are
other undertakings in the sales
contract that are separate
performance obligations to which a
portion of the transaction price needs
to be allocated. In determining the
transoction price for the sale of goods,
the Group considers the effects of
variable consideration, the existence of
significant financing compaonents,
nen-cash consideration end
consideration payable to the customer
(if cary).

i) variable consideration

If the consideration in a sales contract
includes a variable amount, the Group
estimates the amount of consideration
to which it will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the goods to the
customer. The varioble consideration is
estimated at contract inception and
constrained until it is highly proboble
that a signiticant revenue reversai in
the amount of cumulative revenue
recognised will not occur when the
associated uncertanty with the
varigble consideration is subsequently
resolved. Some sales contracts provide
customers with sales volume rebates.
The sales volume rebates give rise to
variable consideration.

iii) Sales volume rebates

The Group provides retrospective sales
volume rebates to certain customers
once, amongst other matters, the
quantity of goods purchased during a
pradetermined period exceeds
thresholds specified in the sales
contract. To estimate the variable
consideration for these expected
future rebates, the Group opplies the
maost likely amount method for sales
contracts with a single-volume
thregshald and the expected value
method for sales contracts with more
than cne volume threshoid. The
selected method that best predicts the
armount of varable considerction is
primarily driven by the nurmber of
volume thresholds contained in the
sales contract, The Group then applies
the requirernents on constraining



Business
Overview

estimaotes of variable consideration
and recognises a refund liability for the
expectad future rebates. Sales volume
rebate liabilities, both estimoted and
actual, are netted off against the
associated trade receivobles to the
extent of the individual customer trade
receivable balance. Any remnaining
credit balonces are included in trade
and other payables.

2.7.2 interest income

Interest income is recognised as
interest accrues on cash batances
using the effgctive interest rmethod.
The effective interest rote is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future
cash receipts through the expected life
of the financial instrument to its net
carrying amount.

2,8 Income taxes

Current income tax

Current income tox assets and
ligbilities for the current and prior years
are measured at the amount expacted
to be recovered frorm or paid ta the tax
authorities, based on income tax rates
and laws enacted or substantivety
snacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is recognised on
all temporary differences orising
between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amaounts in
the consolidated financial statements,
with the following exceptions:

- where the deferred income tax gsset
relating to the deductible termporary
difference arises from the initiaf
recognition of an asset or liability in o
transoction thot is not a business
combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the
accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss;

in respect of taxable temporary
differances associated with
investments in subsidiareas, where
the timing of the reversal of the
termnporary differences con be
controlled ond it is probable that the
tamporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future; and

deferred income tax assets are
recognised only to the extent that it is
probakble that toxalle profit will be
avqilable against which the
deductible temporary differences,
carried forward tax credits or tox
losses can be utilised.

.

For deductible tamporary differencas
associoted with invastments in
subsidiaries it must additionally be
probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the
foreseeabie future.

.
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The carrying amount of deferred
income tax assets is reviewed ot each
balance sheet date. Ceferred income
tax assets and liabilities are offset only
if a legally enforceable right exists to
cffset current income tax assets
against current income tax habilities
and the deferred income taxes relate
to the same tax autharity and that
authority permits the Group to make a
single net paymenit.

Ceterred income tax assets and
liakilities are measured ocn an
undiscounted bosis at the income tax
rates that are expected to apply when
the asset is reclised or the liability is
settied, based on income tax rates and
laws enocted or substantively enacted
at the balonce sheet date.

income tax is charged or credited to
other comprehensive income if it
relataes to items that are charged or
credited to other comprehensive
income. Similarly, iIncoma tox is
charged or credited directly 10 equity if
it relates to items that are charged or
credited directly to equity. Otharwise,
income tax is recognised in the
incorme staternent.

2.9 Property, plantand
equipment

Property, plant and eguipment is
stoted ot cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumuicted
impairment losses, if any. Cost
comprises the aggregate arnount
paid and the fair value of any other
consideration given to acquire the
asset and includes costs directly
attributable to making the asset
copoble of operoting gs intended.

Depreciation is pravided on the cost
less residual value of property, plant
and equipment, and is on a straight-
ling basis over its expected useful life
as follows:

il

axpacted useful

ng
lite not exceeding
. } SOYeArs
Piont and other 41010 years

equipmeant

The carrying amounts of praperty,
plant and equipment are reviewed for
impairment if events or changes in
circurmstances indicate the carrying
amount May not be recoverable, and
are written down immediately to their
recoverable amount. Useful lives,
residual values and depreciation
methods are reviewed at each
financial year end, and where
adjustments are required, these are
made prospectively.

Financial
Statements

Rerhuneration

An itarn of property, plant and
eguipment and any significant part
nitially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or where no future
economic benefits are expectsd to
arise from the continued use of the
asset. Any profit or loss arising on the
derecognition of the asset {calculated
as the difference betwaen the nat
disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset) is included in
the income stotement when the asset
is derecognised.

210 intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately
are initiolly measured ot cost.
Intangible cssets orising on business
combinotions are initiaily measured ot
fair value. Following initial recagnition,
intangible ossets ore carried at cost ar
fair vaolua less accurmulated
amortisation and accurmulated
impairment lossas, if any. Internally
generated intangible assets, excluding
copitaiised davelopment costs, are not
capitalised and expenditure is
reflected in the income statement

in the year in which the expenditure
isincurred.

The useful lives of intangible assets are
assessed 0s either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are
arnortised on a straight-line basis over
their expected useful lite and are
assaessed for impairment whanever
there is an indication that the
intongible asset may be impaired.

Amortisotion of intangible assets is
provided over the foliowing expected
useful lives:

Potents and brand names 10 to 20 years
Customer relationships and 5 to 20 years
customer order hook
:qééﬁéé's . AR

.. Oyears
Developrnent costs

4wibyears

Research and development costs
Research costs are expensed os
mncurred. Development expenditures
onindividual projects are recognised
as an intangible asset when the Group
can demanstrate:

the technical feasibility of
completing the intangible asset so
that it will be ovailable for use or sale;
its intention to complete and its
ability to use or sell the asset;

how the asset will generate future
economic benefits;

the ovailobility of resources to
complete the asset; and

the ability 1o measure reliably the
expenditure during development

.

.
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2.1 Govemnmment grants
Governiment grants ore recegnised
where there is reasonable assurance
that the grant will be received, and ail
ottached conditions will be complied
with. when the grant relates to an
expense iterm, it is recognised as
income on a systematic basis over the
periods that the reloted costs, for
which it is irndended to compensote,
are expensed. wWhen the grant reiates
to on asset, it is recognised as income
in equal amounts over the expected
useful life of the reloted asset.

when the Group receives grants of
non-monetary assets, the asset and
the grant are recorded at ngminal
amounts and released o the income
statement over the expected useful life
of the asset, based on the pattern of
consumption of the benefits of the
underlying asset by equal onnual
instalments.

2.12Impairment of non-financial
assets

The Group assesses ot each bolance
shaet date whether there are any
indicators thot an asset may

be impuaired.

If any such indication exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset
is required, the Group makes an
estimate of the asset's recovarable
amount in order to deterrmine the
extent of the impairment loss. The
recoverable amount of an asset or
cash-ganerating unit (CGU) is the
higher of its fair value less costs to sell
and its value-in-use and it is
deterrninad for an individual asset,
unless the asset does not generate
cash flows that are largety
independent of those frorn other
assets or groups of assets. Where the
carrying amount of an asset axceeds
its recoverable amount, the asset is
considered impaired and is written
down to its recoverable amount. In
assessing value-in-use, the estimated
future pre-tax cash llows are
discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects
current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset. In determining fair
value less costs to seil, recant market
transactions are taken into account. If
no such transactions can be identitied,
an apprapriate valuation model is
used. These colculations are
coiroborated by voluation multiples or
other available fair value indicators.

The Group bases its impairrnent
calculations on detailed budgets and
industry forecast calculations which
are prepored separately for each of
the Group's CGUs ta which the
individual ossets are altocated. These
budgets and industry forecast
calcuiations are generally covering o
period of four years. For longer periods,
a long-term growth rate is calculated
ond applied to project future cash
flows after the fifth year.

Impairment losses are recognised in
the income statement in those
expense categorias consistent with the
function of the impaired asset.

Goodwiil

Goodwill has specific characteristics
for impairment and is tested annually
{at 31 December) or when
circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may be impaired.

Impairment is determined for goodwill
by assessing the recoverable amount
of each CGU to which the goodwill
relates. For the purpose of impairment
testing, goodwill is allocated 1o the
related CGUs. Each CGU or group of
CGUs to which goodwill is allocated
represents the lowest leve! within the
entity at which the goodwill is
monitored for internat management
purposas and is not larger than an
operating segment before
aggregation. Where the recoveroble
amount of the CGU is less than its
carrying amount, including goodwill,
an impairment loss is recognised in
the income statement.

Impairment losses related to goodwill
are not reversed in future periods.

2.3 Leasing

Right-of-use assets

The Group recognises right-of-use
assets ot the commencement date of
the lease (i.e. the date the underlying
asset is availlable for use). Right-of-use
assets are meosured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, and adjusted for
any remeasurement of leose liabilities.
The cost of right-of-use assets
includes the armount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred,
and lease payments made at or
before the commencement dote less
any lecse incentives received. Unless
the Group is reasonably certain to
obtain ownership of the leased asset
at the end of the lease term, the
recognised right-of-use assets are

deprecicted on a straight-line basis
over the sharter of its expected usefut
life and the lease term. Right-of-use
assets are subject to impairment.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement dote of the
lease, the Group recognises lease
tiabilittes measured at the presant
value of lease payments to be mode
over the laase term. The lease
payments include fixed payments
{including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives
recaivable, variable lease payments
thot depend on anindex or o rate, and
amounts expected to be paid under
residual value guarantees. The lease
payments alsc include the exercise
price of a purchase option reasonably
certain to be exercised by the Group
ond payments of penalties for
terminating a lease, if the lease term
raflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate. The variable lease
payments that do not depend on an
index or a rate are recognised as an
expense in the period in which the
event or condition that triggers the
payment occurg

In calculating the present volue of
lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the
lease commencement date if the
interest rate implicit in the lease is not
readily determinable. After the
commencemeant datea, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflact
the accretion of interest and reduced
for the lease payments made. in
addition, the carrying omount of ieose
liabilities is remeasured if thereis a
madification, a change in the lease
term, a change in the in-substance
fixed lease payments or o changein
the assessment to purchase the
underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of
low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term
lease recognition exemption to its
short-term legses of mochinery and
equipmant (i.e those leases that have
a lease terrm of 12 months or less from
the commencement date and do not
contain g purchase option). It alse
opplies the lease of low-value assets
recognition exemption to leases that
ore considered of low value. Lease
payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assats are
recognised as anéxpanse ona
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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Determining the lease term of
contracts with renewal options
The Group determines the lease term
as the non-cancellable term of the
lease, togethar with any periads
coverad by an option to extend the
lease if it is reasonably certain to be
exarcised, or ony periods covered by
an option to tarminate the lease, if it is
reasonably certdin not to be exercised.

The Group has the option, under some
of its leases, to lease the assets for
additional terms. The Group applies
judgernent in evaluating whether it is
reasonably certain 1o exercise the
option to renew. That is, it considers all
relevant factors that create an
economic incentive for it to exercise
the renewol. After the commencement
date, the Group reassesses the lease
term if there is a significant event or
chonge in circumstances thot is
within its control and affects its ability
to exercise {or not ta exercisa) the
option to renew (g.g. o change in
business strategy).

2.14 Financial instruments -
initial recegnition and
subsequent measurement

A financial instrument is any contract
that gives rise to a financial asset of
one entity and o financial liability or
equity instrurment of another entity.

i) Financial assets

tnitiof recognition and measurement
Financial assets ara classified, at initial
recagnition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value
through other comprahensive income,
or fair value through profit or loss {FVTPL).

The classification of financial assets at
initral recognition depends on the
financiol asset’s contractual cash flow
characteristics and the Group's
business mode! for managing them.
With the exception of trade receivables
that do not contain a significant
financing cormponent, the Group
initially measures o financial asset at
its fair value plus, in the case of a
finoncial asset not recognised at
FVTPL, transaction costs. Trade
receivables that do not contain a
significant financing component are
maasured ct the transaction price
determined under IFRS15.

In order for o financial asset to be
classified and measured at amaortised
cost or tair value through other
comprehansive incomse, it needs to
give rise ta cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest
(SPRI} on the principal amount
outstanding. This assessment is
referred to as the S5PPI test and is
performed at an instrurment level.

Strategic
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The Group's business model for
managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financiol assets in
crder lo generate cosh flows. The
business rodel determines whether
cash fiows will result from collecting
contractual cash flows, selling the
finoncial assets, or both.

The Group's financial assets include
cash and cash equivaients and trade
and other receivables.

Subsequent rmegasurement

The subsequent measurement of
finoncial assets depends on their
classification. The Group does not
currently hold any fair value through
other comprehensive income financiat
assets.

Financial assets at amortised cost
The Group measuras financial gssets
ot amortised cost if both of the
following conditions are met:

the financial asset is held within a
business rmodel with the objective o
hoid financial assets in order to
collect controctuol cosh flows; ond

the contractual terms of the financiat
asset give rise on specified dotes 10
cash flows that are sclely payments
of principal and interest on the
principal amaount outstanding.

Financiol ossets at amortised cost are
subsequently measured using the
effectiva interest method and are
subject to impaoirment. Gains and
losses are recegnised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised,
modified orimpaoired.

The Group's financial ossets at
arnortised cost includes cosh and
cash equivalents, trade receivobles
and amounts awed by associated
undertakings.

Derecognition

A financial asset {or, where applicoble,
a part of a financial asset or part of @
group of similar financial assets} is
primarily derecognised when:

- the nights to receve cash flows from
the asset have axpired; or

« the Group hos transferred its rights to
receive cash flows from the asset or
has assumed an obligation ta pay
the received cash flows in full without
matarigl delgy to o third porty under
& ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and
either {a) the Group has transferred
substantioliy all the risks and rewards
ot the asset, or (b} the Group has
neither transfarred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.

Financiol
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when the Group has transferred its
rights to receive cash flows froman
asset or has entered into o pass-
through atrangement, it evaluates if,
ond to what extent, it has ratained the
risks ond rgwards of ownership. When it
has neither transferred nor retained
substanticlly all of the risks and rewards
of the asset, nor transferred control of
the asset, the Group continues to
recognise the transferred asset ta the
axtant of its continuing involverment. In
that case, the Group alsQ recognisas an
associated liability. The transferred
assel and the associated liability are
measured on o basis that reflects the
rights ond obligations that the Group
has retoined,

Continuing involvernent that takes the
form of a guarantee over the
transferred gsset is meaasured at the
lowar of the original carrying amount
of the asset and the maximum
amaunt of consideration that the
Group could be required to repay.

impairment

The Group reécognises an allowonce
for expectad cradit logses (ECLs) for all
financial assets not held at FVTPL ECLs
are based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due in
accordonce with the contract and oil
the cosh flows that the Group expects
to receive, discounted at an
approximation of the original effective
interest rate.

For trade receivables, tha Group
applies a simplified approoch in
calculating ECLs. Therefore, the Group
does not track changes in credit risk,
but instead recognises g loss
affowonce based on lifetime ECLs at
sach balance sheet dote. The Group
has established a provision matrix that
is based on its historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward-
looking factors specific to the debtors
and the economic environment.

ii) Financial liabilities

initial recognition and measurement
Financial ligbilities are classified, ot
initial recagnition, as financial liabilities
at FVTPL, loans and borrowings,
payables, laase habilities or as
derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge,

as appropriate.

All finoncigl ligbilities ore recognised
initicliy at fair value and, in the case

of loans and borrowings and payables,
net of diractly attributable

transaction costs.
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The Group's financiol liabilities include
trode and other poyables, lease
licbilities, deferred and contingent
consideration, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, and
derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement

The measurement of financial liabilities
depends on their classification, os
described below:

Financial ilabilities at fair vaiue
through profit or loss

Financial liabilities are classified as
held for trading unless they are
designated as effective hedging
instruments. Profits or lossas on
liabifities hald for rading ore
recognised in the income statement.
The only financial iability ot FYTPL that
is not designoted as an effactive
hedging instrument is the deferred
and contingent consideration (see
Note 18},

toans and botrrowings

After initial recognition, interest-
beanng loans and barrawings are
subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest
method. Profits and losses arising on
the rapurchase, ssttlemant or
otherwise cancellation of liabilities ore
recagnised in tinonce revenues and
finance costs, raspectively.

Oerecognition

A financial liability is derecognised
when the abligation under tha liability
is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is
replaced by another fror the same
lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an axisting liability are
substantially modified, such an
exchange or modification is treated as
a derecegnition of the original liability
and the recognition of a new liability.
The difference in the respective
corrying amounts, together with any
costs or less incurrad, is recognised in
the income statement.

iif} Oftsetting of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial abilities
are offset and the net amount
repcried in the bolance sheet if there
is o currently enforceable legal right to
offset tha recognised amounts and
there is an intention to settle on g net
basts, to realise the ossets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

2,15 Derivative financial
instruments and hedge
accounting

Initial recognition and
subsequent measurement

The Group uses derivative financial
instruments, such as forward foreign
currency exchange contracts and
interast rate swaps, to hedge its foreign
currency risks and interest rate risks,
respectively. The Group doas not use
derivative financial instruments for
speculative purposes. Derivative
financial instrumants are initially
recognised at fair value on the date on
which g derivative contract is entered
into and are subsequently remeosured
at fair value. Cerivatives are carried as
financicol assets when the fair value is
positive and as financial liabilities
when the foir value is negative. A
derivative is presented as a non-
current asset or a non-current liability
if the remaining maturity of the
instrument is more than 12 months and
it is not expected 1o be realised or
settled within 12 months.

For the purpose of hedge accounting,
hedges are classitied as:

Fair value hedges when hedging the
exposure Lo changes in the fair value
of a recognised asset or licbility or
an unrecognisad firm commitment.

Cash flow hedges when hadging the
exposure to variability in cash flows
that is either attributable to a
particular risk associataed with a
recognisad asset or fiability or a
highly probabie forecast transaction
or the foreign currency risk in an
unrecognisad firm commitment.

Hedges of a net investmentina
foreign operation.

At the inception of a hedge
refationship, the Group formally
designates and documents the hedge
relationship to which it wishes to cpply
hedge accounting and the risk
management objective and strategy
for undertaking the hedge.

The documentation includes
identification of the hedging
instrument, the hedged itemn, the
noture of the risk baing hedged and
how the Group wili assess whether the
hedging relationship mesets the hedge
effactiveness requirsments {inciuding
the analysis of sources of hedge
ineffectiveneass and how the hedge

ratio is determined). A hedging
relationship qualifies for hedge
accounting if it meets all of the
following effectivenass requirements:

There is an econamic relationship
between the hedged item and the
hedging instrurnent.

The effect of credit risk does not
dominate the value changes that
rasult from that economic
relationship.

The hedgs ratio of the hadging
relationship is the same as that
resulting from the quantity of the
hedged itemm that the Group actually
hedges and the quantity of the
hedging instrument that the Group
actually uses to hedge that quantity
of hedged item.

Hedges that meet all the qualifying
criteria for hedge accounting are
accounted for as descriced below:

Cash flow hedge

Cash flow hedging matches the cash
flows of hedged iterms against the
corresponding cash flows of the
derivative. The effactive part of any
profit or foss on the derivative is
recognised directly in other
comprehensive income and the
hedged itern is aceounted for in
accaordance with the policy for that
finoncial instrument. Any ineffective
part of any profit or loss is recognised
immediately in the income statement.
Armounts taken to other
comprehensive income are
transferred to the income staterment
when the hedged transaction affects
profit or toss, such as when ¢ foracast
sale or purchose accurs.

Hedge accounting is discontinued
when the hedging instrument expires
or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or
no longer qualifies for hedge
accounting. At that time, any
cumulative profit or loss an the
hedging instrument recognised in
equity is retained in equity until the
forecast transaction occurs. If a
hedged transoction is no longer
expacted to occur, the net cumulative
prefit or loss recognised in equity is
transferred to the income statermant
for the period.

The Group does not currently have any
designated foir volue hedges or net
investrnent hedges.
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Note 28 sets out the dslails of the
fair volues of the derivative
financial instruments used for
hedging purposes.

2.16 Fair values

The Group measures financial
instrurnents, such as derivgtives, ot fair
vglue at each balonce sheet date

Fair value is the price that would be
received to sell an asset or paid to
transter a liability in an orderly
transaction between the market
participants at the measurament date.
The fair value measurement is bosed
on the presumption that the
tronsaction ta sell the osset or transfer
the liability takes place either:

+ inthe principal market for the agset
or liability; or

« inthe absence of a principal market,
in the most advantageous market for
the asset or ligbility.

The principal or the mast
advantageocus market must be
accessibie by the Group.

The fair value of financial instrumeants
that are traded in active markets at the
bolonce shest date is determined by
reference to quoted market prices or
dealer price quotations, without any
deguction far transaction costs.

For inancial instrumeants not traded n
an active market, the fair valueis
determined using oppropriate
valuation technigues. Such technigues
may include using recent arm’s length
rmarket trensactions; reference to the
current tair value of another
instrurment that is substantially the
same; discounted cash flow analysis;
or other valuation models.

An analysis of fair volues of financiol
instruments and further deteils os to
how they arg measured are provided
in Note 28.

2,17 Inventories

Inventories are stoted qt the lower of
cost and net realisable value. Cost
includes oll costs incurred in bringing
each product to its present focation
and condition, as follgws:

= Raw matericls — purchase cost cna
firstin, first out basis.

* Work in progress ond finished goods
- cost of direct materials and labour
plus ctiributable overheads based
on a noimai level of actvity.

Nsat realisable value is based on
estimated selling price less ony further
costs expected to be incurred to
compitetion and disposal.
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2.18 Cash and short-term
deposits

Cash ond short-terrm deposits consist
of cash at bank and in hand.

2,19 Pensions

The Group operates defined
contribution pension plans.
Contributions payobig in the yeor are
¢horged to the income statement. The
assets are held separately from thase
of the Group in an independeantly
administered fund. Differences
between contributions paycble in the
year and contributions actually paid
are shown as either accruals or
prepaoyments in the balance sheet.

2.20 Non-underlying items

Tha Group presents amortisation of
intangible assets arising on business
combinations, the unwind of inventory
fair value adjustrments resulting from
acquisitions, significant profit on
disposal of property, plont and
equipment, restructuring costs,
non-recurring operating costs, finance
costs and tox in respect of acquisitions
as non-underlying items on the face of
the income statement. These are items
of income and expense which,
because of the nature and expected
infrequency of the events giving rise to
them, the Dirgctors consider merit
separate presentation to provide o
better and more consistent indication
of the Group‘s undertying financial
performance and a more meaningful
comparison with prior and future
periods 0 assess trends in financial
performance. The tox effect of the
above is also included.

2.21Share-based payments

In the case of equity-settled schemes,
the fair volue of options granted is
recagnised as an employee expense
with a corresponding increase in
equity. The fair value is meosured at
the date of grant ond spread over the
period during which the employess
become unconditionally entitled to the
options. The value of the options is
measured using the Black-Schales
and Monte Carlo medels, taking into
occount the tarms and conditions
{including market and non-vesting
conditions} upen which the options
were gronted. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by
adjusting the number of aquity
instruments expected to vest ot each
bolance sheet date so that, ultimately,
the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the
number of ogtions that eventually vest.

Financial
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No expense is recoghised for awards
that do not ultimately vest, except for
equity-settled transactions where
vesting is conditional upon a market or
non-vesting condition, which are
treated as vesting irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-
vasting condition is satistied, provided
that all other performance andjfor
service conditions are satisfied.

The dilutive effect of outstanding
options is reflected as additional share
dilution in the computation of diluted
earrings per shore.

2.22 Cashdividend

The Group recognises ¢ liobility lo pay
a dividend when the distribution is
authorised and the distribution is no
longer at the discretion of the Group.
Under UK company law a distribution is
authonsed when it is opproved by the
shareholders. A corresponding
amount is then recognised directly
inequity.

2.23 0wn shares

The Group operates an amployee
benefit trust {EBT). The Group, andfor
the EBT, hoids Genuit Group plc shares
for the granting of Genuit Group plc
shares to employees and Directors.
These shores are recognised at cost
and presentgd in the balance sheet as
a deduction from equity. No profit or
loss is recognised in the income
staternent on the purchose, sale, issue
or cancelation of these shores. No
dividends are ecrned an these shares,
and they are ignored faor the purposes
of calculoting the Group's earnings
per share.

2.24 Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the
Group has ¢ present obligation (legai
or constructive) gs o result of a past
event, it is probable that an outflow of
resources embodying economic
benefits wil! be required to settle the
obligation and a relicble estimate
con be made of the omount of

the abligation.

Restructuring provisions are
recegnised only whan the Group has a
constructive obligation, which is when
o detailed formal plan identifies the
business or part of the business
concerngd, the location and number
of empioyeas affected, a detaled
estimate of the associated costs, and
an appropriate timeline, and the
employees affected have been
notified of the plan's main features
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3. Judgements and key
sources of estimation
uncertainty

The preparation of the Group's
consolidated financial statements
requires management to make
judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported
amounts of revenue, expencos, QSscts
and liabilities, and the accompanying
disclosures, and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities. Uncartainty about
these assumptions and estimates
could result in outcomes that require a
material adjustment to the carrying
omount of assets or liabilities offected
in future periods.

inthe process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies, manogement hos
made tha following judgement(s), in
the consclidated fingncicl statements
in the years ended 31 December 202t
and 2020:

3.1Business combinations

The measurement of fair values on o
business combination requires the
racognition and measurement of the
identifiable assets, licbilities and
contingent liobilities. The key
judgernents invalved are the
identification of which intangible
assets mest the recognition crteria as
set cut in 1AS 38, the fair values
attributable to those intangible ossets,
and the usetul fives of individual
intangible assets. The Group hos
opplied judgement in determining
whether amounts contingently
payable to previous owners of the
businesses we have acquired should
be recognised as a remuneration cost
in the income statement, or within total
consideration that is aliocated Lo the
fair value of ossels and liabilities
included in the balance sheet.

3.2Determination of Cash
Generating Units

Under 1AS 36, impairment of Asséts, the
Group is required to determine its Cash
Generoting Units (CGUs) by identitying
the lowest aggregation of assets that
generate lorgely independent cosh
inflows; and perform impairment
assessments at a chesen annual date
(the Group has historically chosen 31
December) or when a triggering event
in accordance with IAS 38 (Intangible
Assets) coccurs When the Group fiest
adopted IFRS (affective | Janucry 2013) it
determined its CGUs and then
allocated the consolidated gooctwill at
that time to each of those CGUs.

Subsaqgusantly, saparately identitiable
goodwill arose on the acquisitions of
Surestop (January 2015), Nuaire {august
2015), Permavoid (August 2018),
Mantharpe (Octaber 2018), Aiderburgh
{October 2019) and the February 2021
acquisitions of Adey, Nu-Heat and Plura.

During 202|, following the acquisition of
Adeay, Nu=Huol and Plurg, the Group
revised its CGU structure to more
accurately reflect the lowest
aggregotion of nssets that generate
lorgely independent cash inflows. This
revision has resuited in the number of
CGUs consolidating to seven, from 17
previously, but did not necessitate
goodwill to be recllocated between
the revised CGUs. Accardingly, the
Group did not need to perfarm an
impairment review immediately prior
to the revision of the CGU structure.

The key assumptions concerning the
tuture ond other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date, that have a significant risk
of causing o materiol adjustment to
the carrying amounits of assats and
abilities within the next financial year,
are described bslow. The Group based
its assumptions and astimotes on
parameaters avgiloble when the
censolidated financial statements
were prepared. Existing circumstances
and cssumptions about future
developments, however, may change
due to market changes or
circumstances arising that are beyond
the control of the Group. Such changes
are reflected in the assumptions when
they occur.

3.3Revenue recognition

and customer rebates

The Group's pricing structurg involves
rabate arrangements with several of
its direct and indirect custorners. These
can be complex in nature and involve
estimation in determining the required
level of provision for rebate liobilities,
particularly where the Group is reliant
on information from customers which
may not be availoble at the time the
liabilities ore assessed.

3.4 impairment of non-

financial assets

Non-financial ossets include goodwill,
other intangible assets, property, plant
and equipment, ond inventories. In
occordance with IFRS, the Group
considers whether thare are any
indicatars of impairment of these
assets Wherg indicators of impairment
are identified, the Group tests the asset

for impairment, Goodwill is tested for

impairment annually {ot 31 December)
and when circumstances indicats that
the carrying armount may be impairad.

The Group's impairment test for
goodwill is based on G valug-in-use
calculation. The value-in-use
calcutation is based on a discounted
cash flow model. The cash flows ore
derived from the budgets and
forecasts for the next four years and
do nat include restructuring aclivities
that the Graup is not yet committed to
or significant future investments that
wili enhance the performance of the
assel or the cash-generating unit
(ceU) baing tested. The: recoverable
amount is most sensitive to the
discount rate used for the discounted
cash flow model as well as the
axpected future cosh flows and the
growth rate used for extrapolcticn
purposes. The key assumptions used
to determine the recoverable ormount
for the different CGUs are further
explained in Note 17,

3.5 Contingent consideration

The Directors assess the likelihood that
financiol targets will be achieved in
order to trigger the contingent
considerction to the previous owners of
the businasses we have acquired, to
quantify the passible range of that
contingent consideration, and to how
that contingent consideration should be
calculated and disclosad in the
consclidated financial statements. Due
to the inherent uncertainty in this
process, actuol liobilities may be
different from those ariginally estimated.

4.New and amended
accounting standards
and interpretations

Accounting standards or
interpretations which have
been adopted in the year

There were no accounting standards
or interpretations that have become
effective in the year which haod an
impact on disclosures, finoncial
pasition or performance.

Accounting standards or
interpretations issued but

notyet effective

There were no accounting standards or
interpretations issued which have an
effective date after the date of these
consolidated financial stoternents that
the Group reasonably expects to have
animpact on disclosures, financial
position or performance.
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5. Segment information

IFRS 8, Cperoting Segments, requires operating segments to be identified on the basis of the internal financial information
reported to the Chief Qperating Decision Maker (CODM). The Group's CODM is deemed to be the Board of Directors, who are
primarily respansible for the allocation of resources to segments and the assessment of performance of the segments.

The Group has two reporting segments — Residential Systermns and Cammercia! and Infrastructure Systems. The reporting
segments sell proeducts which are unique to that segment, and products which are common to both segments. Thay are
however arganised and distinguished as separate reparting segrments based on the nature of the end markets sarved.
There are no significant judgements in aggragating operating segments to arrive at the reporting segments. Inter-segment
sales arg or un arm's length basis in a manner similar to transactions with third parties. During the period, two acquired
businesses were added (o the Rasidential Systems segment and one to the Comrmercial and Infrostructure Systems
segment (see Note 18).

2021 2020
. commarcial & Commaercial &
Residential  Infroatructure Residential  infrastructure
Systems Systems Taral Systerns Systemns Total
£m £m £m £m
Segmental revenue 3780 2318 6038 ang
Inter-segment revenue {5.1) (10.4) (15.5) (128)
Revenue 372.9 20.4 594.3 3986

ying aperating profit~
-undartying items - segrmentol
Segmentol operating profit
Non-underlying items — Group

Qperating profit 304
Non-underlying items - finance costs j et (01_)
Finance costs (65)
profit before tax 628 238

* Underlying operating profit is stated before non-underlying itermns as defined in the Group Accounting Policies on page 138 and s the
measure of segment protit used by the Group's COOM. Details of the non-underlying items of £28.2m {2020: £11.9m) are set out below at
Non-underlying itemns before tax.

Balance sheet
31Dacember 2021 31December 2020
Totat Total Total Total
assets Habilities ossets fiabilities
£m £m £rm £m
Residential Systarns ... 8880 (o) 3695 - (813)
commercial and Infrastructure Systems T 307.6 (60.5) 2856 (479)
Total segment assets/(liabiliti 8726 (24)  8S51 - (1292)
Current and deferred L (485) 66 (ios)
Net debt excluding iease liabilties 77 o 523 (va7.2) 44] (589)
Total - Group 1.026.0 (408.3) 699.8 (198.9}
Met assots 6)7.7 5009
Capital additions
202 2020
£m £m
Residential Systerms o o 202 138
Total - Group 328 248
Right-of-use asset additions
2021 2020
£m £tm
Commercial and Intrastructure Systems T 27 06
Total = Group 5.4 1.5
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
2021 020
£m Em
Residential Systems U - SN - I
Commercial ond Infrastructure Systerms o o o 8.5 8.4
Total —~ Group 18.4 163
Depreciation of right-of-use assets
2021 2020
£€m €m
Residential Systems . - S SR
Commercial and Infrastructure Systems I 19

Total - Group 4.4 35

4



142

Genuit Group plc Annual Report & Accounts 2021

Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued

Non-underlying items before tax

Residennal Systems - omorbisation of MMGNQIDIGOSSENS | | . s o s o s s i 5
Residential Systerns ~ ocquisition costs

restructuring costs -
d of inventory fair vatue adjustment
Commercial and Infrostructure Systermns — amaortisation af intongivle assets

Residential Systerns -

Commerciol and Infrostructure Systems - restructuring costs
Commerciol and Infrastructure Systems - product liobility claim
UK operations

Group - ynwind of discount on contingent consideration T R -]
Gioup - gcguisitioneosts - 2 -
Total - Group 28.2 na
Geographical analysis
2021 2020
Revenue by destinotion £m £m
UK 5341 3548
Rest of Europe T a3t s
Restof World o D & S -1
Total ~ Group 594.3 3986
290 2020
Non-current aasets
UK
Restoffurope e
Rt o iy .. vt s+ " o5
Total = Group B15.7 5409

Non-current assets for this purpose consist of property, ptant and equipment, right-of-use assets, goodwill and other
intangible assets.

The Group has two customers (2020: twoe) which irdividuaily accounted for more than 10% of the Group's total revenue
during 2021. These custorners accounted for 13.0% and 10. 4%, respectively (2020:14.0% and 10.9%, respectively) and are
included in both reporting segments.

§. Operating profit

2021 2020
£m Em

Incomne statermnent charges
plontand equ
Depraciation of right-of-use assets

: enditure credit
Protit on disposal of property, plant and equipment

7. Auditor's remuneration

The Graup paid the following amounts to the Cormpany’s quditor in respect of the audit of the consolidated financial
staterments and for other services provided to the Group.

Auditor's rermuneration far audit sarvices:

2021 2020

Audit of the Compa
Audit of the Compa
Total audit fees

nnual fincacial statements
ubsidiaries

The Group paid the Company’s auditor £01m for audit reloted assurance services (2020: €01m).
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8. Non-underlying items
Non-undertying items comprised:

202 2090
Grass
£m
Cosg of sales: Unwind of inventery fair value adjustment 37
Cost of sales: Restructuring costs . 02
Cost of sales: Product licbility claim e “28

Ad'mmfstraﬁon oxpenses: Acqusmnnn costs ~ ccqunaltlon
and other M&A octmty

qunca costs: Unwind of discount on contingent
consideration - - - 0l - Ql
Jotal non-underlying items 28.2 5.9 341 .8 (1.0) 109

The unwind of the inventory fair value adjustment relatas to the fair value uplitt of the inventory acquired as port of the Adey
acquisition that has subsequently been sold.

Restructuring costs in 202 relate to the rationalisation of the number of operoting business units.
The product liability claim is associated with a historic acquisition.

Acquisition costs in 202 relote to the cequisitions of Nu-Heat, Plura ond Adey as well as costs assecioted with other merger
and acquisition activity and contingent consideration treated as remunaration in respect of the acquisition of Plura as
Hetailed in see Note 18.

The non-underlying tax charge inciudes £8.3m in respect of restating the deferred income tax liability on intangible assets
as aresult of the change in the main UK corporation tox rate {see Note 12).

Acquisition costs in 2020 relate to the contingent consideration treated as remuneration in respect of the acquisition of
bermavoid, as detailed in Note 18, and costs associated with the acquisitions of Nu-Heat, Plura aond Adey.

Restructuring costs in 2020 are 1n relotion to actions taken to mitigate the impoact of Covid-19, including 104 redundancies

9. staffcosts
Staff costs (including Cirectors}) comprised:
2021 2020
£m Em
1259 940

Wuges and saiaries
Socml secumy costs
Sther pension costs

S T
5 4 42
145.6 108.3

Staff costs in 2020 include @ net credit of £7.0m received under the UK Governmaeant's Coronavirus Job Retention Scheme
{CJRS). The Group withdrew from the CJRS on 31 August 2020.

The average monthly number of persons employed by the Group by segment was as follows:

2021 2020

Residential Systemns

Commercial and Infrastructure Systems o ., I,373
Total - Group 3,658 3056
10. Directors’ remuneration
Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out below:
2021 2020
Em £em
Fees e e ————— L 04 DA
Emolumems ‘ 33 b4
3.7 18

Further details of Directors’ remuneration are provided in the Annucl Report on Remuneration. The oggregote amount of
gains made by the Directors on the exercise of share options during the year was £0.4m (2020 £0.6m).
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1. Finance costs
2020 2020
£m £m
interestonbenkloan T e e e et e BB A2
Gelbt issue cost amartisation S . o5 Qs

Unwind of discount on contingent considerotion o =T T )
42 65
12. Income tax
{o) Tax expensereported in the income statement
2021 2020
£m £€m

cu.'rent mcome tax
UK rncome tox

88T 80

Sirsans inmametas T et s 2 2 e e e e i
Current incoma tax 10.0 . 51
Adjustment in respectof pr\or yecrs T e B ¥ S ) 3)
Total current incomae tax 10.4 48

Deferred income tax:

srences

tHects

Deferred income tax ) 7 7 10.4 03
Ad}ustment o respecrofpnoryeurs e e S et L e S 2 e e - o
Total deferred income tax .5 05
Total tax expense repartad in the income statement 21.9 5.3

Details of the non-underlying tax charge of £5.9m (2020: £10m credit) are set out in Note 8.

(b} Reconciliation of the total tax expense
A reconciligtion between the tax expense and the product of accounting profit multiplied by the UK standard rate of income
tax for the years ended 31 December 202! and 2020 is as follows:

2021 2020
€m £Em
Accounting profit before tax S, SN, S .o A

Accounting profit muluphad by the UK stundord rute of income tEx ot 19.0% (2020 _19 0%)

Eectsofsuperdeduction 0 08
Effects of other tax rates{credits (0.5) o1
Total tax expense reported in the income statemant 218 5.3
The effective rate for the full year was 34.8% (2020: 22.3%).)f the impact of non-underlying iterns is excluded, the underlying
income tax rate would be 176% (2020:17.6%).
(c) Deferred income tax
The deferred income tax inCluded in the Group balgnce shaeat is as follows:
on 2020
£Em £&m

Deforrsdincoma tax fiobilities/(assets)
Short-term timing differences N o o 413

(s)

Tox losses (18} (05)

48.5 10.8
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The Group offsets 1ax assets and liobilities if. and only if, it has a legally enforceable right to offset current income tax assets
and current income tax liabilities and the deferred income tax assets ond deferred income tox liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same tax authaerity.

The deferred income tax liability on short-term timing differences has increased by £32.2m as a result of the intangible
assets arising on the acquisitions of Nu-Heat, Plura ond Adey.

A reconciliation of deferred income taxes for the years ended 31 Decernber 2021 and 2020 is as follows:

202 2020
£€m
Oefarred income tax reported in the incomea statement ns
red incOMmE tax reported in other cormpranensive inco e ]
ym . . _ e (on (03]
Deterred incorme tax o&qdired' ] C CTTT T ea -
317 0.3

{d) change in corporation tax rate

The Finance (Na.2) Act 2015 reduced the main UK corporation tax rate to 19%, effective frorm 1 April 2017. A further reduction in
the main UK corporation tax rate to 17% was expected to come into effect from 1 april 2020 (as enacted by the Finance Act
2016 on 1S September 2018). However, legislation introduced in the Finance Act 2020 (enacted on 22 July 2020) repealed the
reduction of the rate, thereby maintaining the cusrent rate of 19%. Deferred income tax on the balance sheet at 31 December
2020 was tharefcre measured at 19%.

The Finance Act 2021 {enocted on 10 June 2028 included on increase to the main UX corporation tax rate ta 25%, effective
from 1 April 2023. Deferred income tax on the balance sheet at 31 Cecember 2021 was therefore measured ot19% or 25%
depending on when the deferred income tox asset or liabitity is expectsed o reverse.

(e) Unrecognised tax losses
No deterred income tax has been recognised on nan-trading lossas and other timing differences of £1.4m (2020: £0.7m) as

the Directors do not consider that they will be ulilised in the foreseeable future.

13. Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share amounts are calculoted by dividing protit for the year attributabie to the owners of the parent
company by the weighted avercge numbsr of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. The diluted earnings per shore
amounts are calculated by dividing profit for the year attributable to the owners of the parent company by the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of potential ordinary
sharas that would be issued on the convearsion of all the dilutive share options inta ordingry shares.

The caoiculation of basic and diluted earnings per share is based on the following:

2020 2020
Weighted average number of ordingry shares for the pu/pose of basic eamings per share ... 245,097,578 218122445
- O SEUIVE pOte [YSNABS e T e
weightad average number of ordinary shores for the purpese of diluted eornings per shars 248,266,416 220,667,760

Underlying earnings per share is besed on the result for the year atter tax excluding the impact of non-underlying items of
£34)m (2020: £10.9m). The Directors consider that this mecsure provides a better and more consistent indication of the
Group's underlying financial performance and more meaningtul comparison with pricr and future periods to assess trends
in our financial performance. The underlying earnings per share is calculated as follows:

20 2020
Undsrtying profit for the year attributable to the owners of the parentcompany (m) LLas
Underiying basic earningsper share(pence) 0 306
Underlying diluted earnings per share (pence) 30.2
14. Dividend per share
2021 2020
£m £m
share (2018: nil} ne -

]

er sha

Prupesed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of B.2p per share (2020 4.8p) i - na

Tha propased final dividend is subject to approval by shareholders at the Annual General Meeting and has not been
included as o fiability in thase consolidated financiol statements.
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15. Property, plant and equipment

Freahold Flant

land and ond other

buildings  equipment Total
£m £m £m

Ad
l;ﬁis ols 7)
Aéquié on of businesse: 0
Exchange odjustment
At 31 December 2020 54.3 2]4,_?__
Loy ®7)
acquisiionofbusinesses . 36 aa
Exchonge odjus':r'-ﬁ'e'r'{t' o o - (03}
At 31 December 2021 , 58.4 2919

Depreciation andimpairmentlosses
anuory 2020 .

Exchange adjustm
At3December2020
Provided during the year

Yansfer tointangible ossets T T

Exchange adjustment o

At 31 Decomber 2021

Net book valua

At 31 December 2021 493 102.4 151.7
At 31 December 2020 458 £8.4 134.2

Included in freehold lond and buildings is non-depreciable land of £17.7m (2020 £17.4m).

During 2020, the Group carried out a review of sts piant and other equipment register and removed assets with a gross cost
of £48.8m and associated accurnulated depreciation of £48.7m. These assets were no longer in use andfor fully
deprecioted.

Capital commitments
At 31 December 202), the Group hod commitments of £5.4m (2020; £1.2m) relating to plant and equipment purchases.

16. Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities

Lease
Right-ot-use assets Habilities
freehold
land Plant and
ond ather Motor
buildings  equipment vahicles Total
£m £m Em £m £m
AtlJonuary 2020 T 7075 T 702 as T (4]

anlhd of discount
Settiernents
Exchange adjustment
A1 3l December 2020 Y [1}] 129 (129)
A -
Acquisition of businesses
Deprecigtion
Unwind of discount
Settlerme
Exchange odjustrment
At 31 December 2021
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17. Intangible assets
Brand Custamsr Customer Oevelopment
Goodwlll Patents numes  relationships Licances  order book costs Total
£m £m £m £m Em Em £m £Em
A os
174 OBi .
Acquisition of bysinesses 1233 36.2 ) -

At 3| pecemnber 200 a67.7 39.5 66.5 n4.3 0.8
Amartisation and impairment losses

Transfer from tangible assets - - - - -

At 3] pecember 2021 - 15.4 19.2 13.4 0.3

Net book value

At 3| pecomber 2021 467.7 241 47.3 100.9 0.5 05 1.8 6428
At 3! Decernber 2020 345.4 223 8.0 95 0.6 ~ - 3938

Goodwill arising on the acquisition of businesses was increased by £122 3m following the acquisition of Nu-Heat (Holdings}
Limited, Plura Cormposites Limited, London Topce Limited [Adey) anc Tree Ground Solutions Limited as detoiled in Nota 18,

During 2020, goodwilt arising on the ocquisition of businesses wos reduced by £0.2m, following tinalisation of the calculation
of the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in Cctaber 2019, in respect of the alderburgh group of componies.

Impairment testing of goodwill

Goodwill is not amartised but is subject to annual impairment testing. Goodwill has been ailocated for impairmant testing
purposes to a number of cash-generating units (CGus) which represent the lowest level in the Group ot which goadwillis
mchitored for internal management purposes. Tha carrying amount of goodwill allocated to each of the CGUs is as follows:

31 Decernbar 3 December

2021 2020
cGU £m
Building Services & Internationat _ %38 335

Infrastruciure & Landscape

ventiiotion & Cimate 937

Adey

Nu-Heat 173 o

Others (comprising Surestop and Uister) T i - “Tad " 8o’
4877 3454

Impairment tests on the carrying amounts of goodwill are performed by analysing the carrying amount allocated to each
CGU against its value-in-use. Value-in-use is calculated for each CGU os the net present value of that CGU's discounted
future pre-tax cash flows. Thesa pre-tax cash flows are based on budgeted cash flows information for a period of one year,
eonstruction industry forecasts of growth for the following year and growth of between 274% to 280% thereatter (2020: 2.68%

to 2.80%).

A pre-tax discount rate of 10.4% (2020:10.0%) has been applied in determining the recoverable amounts of CGUs. The pra-tox
discountrate is estimated based on the Group’s risk adjusted cost of copital.

The Group hos applied sensitivities to assass whether any reasonably possible changes in assumptions could cause an
impairment that would be materia! to these cansolidated financial statements. The application of these sensitivities did not

Ccause animpairment of goodwill.
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18. Acquisitions
Acquisition-reloted deferred and contingent consideration comprised:

Npecember 31 December
20 2020

£m - £€m
Deferred ond contingent consideration on Plura aeguisition e e 83T
Contingent consideration an Permavoid acquisition 0.5 34

4.8 34
Acquisition-related cash flows comprised:

20 2020

£m £m

Operating cash flows - settlement of acquisitlon costs
Nu-Hest T mommmomommmomommm ey
Plura
Adey
Permovoid

Other—abortedccqulsmoncosts ettt s R A A 1 [ s s i “
6.9 12
0N 2020
£m £m
investing cash flows - settlement of deferred and contingent consideration e o
Aderpurgh” T T T T T T n s LT a3
P TS e sl e e S e o i
= 1.8
2021 202¢
£m Em
Investing cash flaws - ocquisition of businesses net of cosh at ocquisition
S A R A e s 7. sep T I
p s e e e T e
Kdey ) o - L e "‘__50'8.6”_ Lo e
Tres Ground Solutions T e+
236.4 -

Nu-Heat

On 2 February 202, the Group acquirad 100% of the voting rights ond shares of Nu-Heat (Holdings} Limited (Nu-Heat), the
leading supplier of sustainable underfloor heating solutions, air and ground source heat pumps, and other rengwable
heating systems, for @ consideration of £27.0m on o cosh-free, debt-free basis. The total cash consideration of £24.8m
included a payment of £67m for net cash on completion and was net of loans and borrowings at acquisition of £6.7m.
Additional debt and debt-like iterms armounted to £1.2m.

Details of the acquisition, including fair value adjustrnents, were as follows:

Fair
volus

Property, plant ond equipment
Right-of-use assets

Intangible gssets

Inventories

Trode and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Trade and other payables
Leans ond barrowings

Lease licbilities

Incorme tax payable

Deferred incorne tax liabilities ' B ' o {23)
Net identiliable assots 75
Goodwilt gn acquisition 173

Totai cash considerqtion 248
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The ‘Nu-Heat’ brand, order book and custorner relationships have been recognisad os specific intangible assets as a rasult
of this gcquisition. Fair value adjustments principally relate to the recognition of intongibie assets and deferred income tax
orising on these adjustments. The goodwill arising on the acquisition primarily represented the assembled workforce,
technical expertise and market share. The goodwill is aliocataed entirely 1o the Rasidential Systems segment.

The fair value of trade and other receivables was £0.7m. The gross amount of trade and other receivables was £0.8m
and it is expected that the full contractual amounts can be collected.

Post-acquisition Nu-Heat contributed £15.5m revenue ond £2 4m underlying operating profit which were included in the
Group income statement. If Nu-Heat had been acguired on | January 2021, the Group's results for the twelve months
ended 31 December 2021 would have shown revenue of £595.5m and underlying operating profit of £95.2m.

Acquisition costs of £0.4m were expensed and are included in non-underlying items in administration expenses.
Acquisition costs of £0.6rm were fully cash settled in the year, inciuding £0.2m that was included in trade and other
payables at 3l December 2020.

Plura

On 5 February 2021, the Group acquired SI% of the voting rights and shares of Plura Compaosites Ltd (Plure) tor an initic! cash
consideration of £1.25m, and a further payrment in respect of the option to acquire the remaining 49% of between £6.0m ond
£16.4m depending on the EBITDA performance of Plura in the 12-month period ending no earlier than 5 February 2024 ond no
later than 31 July 2024 Under the contractual arraongements, the Group's approval is required for il major operational
decisions. Based on this, the Graup has concluded that Plura Composites Lid is o wholly cwned subsidiary, and the Group
controls it with no non-contralling interests.

Plura provides @ range of products for utility companies, rcod and rail operators, network builders and designers in the
construction and maintenance of their netwoerks. Plura’s manufacturing expertise lies in pultrusion, comprassion moulding,
injection moulding and fabtications.

Details of the acquisition, iIncluding fair value adjustments, were as follows:

Fair
volug

Property, plant and equipment

:I.'o_:cné and borrowi riglsu
Leg '
Deferred income taxiiabilities
Notidentifiable assets

Less: estimated contingent consigeration ; {1.9)
Initial cash consideration 13

Customer relationships is the only materict intangible asset thot has been recognised as a rasult of this acquisition. Fair
value adjustments principally relate to the recognition of intangible ossets and deferred income tax ansing on these
adstrnents. The goodwill arising on the acquisition is immaterial.

The fair value of trade and other receivables was £1.8m. The gross amount of trade and other receivables was £1.8mand it is
expected that the full controctual amounts can be collected.

Post-acquisition Plura contributed £5.9m revenue ond £0.1m underlying operating profit which were included in the Group
income staterment. if Plura had been acquired on 1 January 2021, the Group's results for the twelve months enced
31 December 2021 would have shown revenue of £594.7m and underlying operating profit of £52m.

Acquisition costs of £0.4m were expensed and are included in non-underlying iterns in administration expenses. Acquisition
costs of £0.7m were fully cash settled in the yeor, including £0.3m that was included in trade and cther payables at
31 Decermber 2020.

Contingent censideration of £4.3m has been recognised ot 31 Decemper 2021 Of this, £1.9m is contingent on EBITDA
performance in the third yeor of trading following acquisition and has been included in the purchase consideration. The
balance of £2.4m has been included in non-underlying items in administration expenses und is contingent on EBITDA
performance in the third yeor of trading following acquisition as well as the cantinued employment of key personnel. This
second poyment is being accrued over the three-year period.

Contingent consideration was determined using the Directors’ assessment of the likelihood that tinanciail targets will be
achieved. There is no material difference between the estimated cash consideration and the fair value. The estimated cash
consideration s derived from the budgets and forecasts for Plura.
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Adey

On 10 February 2021, the Group acquired 100% of the vating rights and shares of Londen Topco Limited (Adey) fora
consideration of £210.0m on d cash-free, debi-free basis. Adey 13 the UK's leading provider of ragnstic filters, chemicols ond
related preducts, which protect against magnetite and other performance constraints in water-based heating systems and
improve energy efficiency, operating in predominantly residential end markets. The cash consideration of E86.6m included
a paymaent of £7.3m for net cash on completion and was net of loans gnd borrowings ot acquisition of £129.3m. Additional
debt and debt-like iterns amounted to £1.4m.

Details of the acquisition, including fair value adjustments, were as follows:

Foir
valus

Property plant and equipment T
Right-of-se gssets _

Deferred income tax ligbifities
Net identifiobte liabilities
Goodwill on acquisition

Total cash consideration

Customer relationships (€20.5m), the ‘Adey’ brond {228 8m} and patents {(£4.8m) have been recognised as specific
intongible assets os a result of this acquisition. The customer relationships have been recognised with usetul economic lives
of between 10 to 20 years due to the strength of Adey's relationships with key custormers. Fair value adjustments principally
relate to the recognition of intangibile assets and deferrad income tax arising on these adjustments. The goodwill arising on
the acquisition primarily represented the assembled workforee, technical expertise and market share. Tha goodwili is
aliocated entirely to the Residential Systems segment.

The fair value of trade ond other receivables was EILSm. The gross amount of trade and cther receivables was ER.8m and it
is expected that the full contractuat amounts can be collected.

Past-acquisition Adey contributed £56 I revenue and £18.1m underlying operating profit which were included in the Group
income statement. It Adey had been gcquired on | Jonuary 2021, the Group's results for the twelve months ended
31 Decembier 2021 would have shown revenue of £605.7m and underlying operating profit of £87.2m.

Acquisition costs of £2.9m were expensed and are included in non-underlying itams in administration expenses. Of the
£2.9m acquisition costs, £2.7m were fully cash settied in the yeor in addition to £0.4m that were inciuded in trade and other
payables at 31 December 2020 A further £0.2m is included in trode and other payables at 31 December 2021 ’

Tree Ground Solutions

On 3 May 2021, the Group acquired the remaining 50% of the share capital of Tree Ground Solutions BV (TGS), toking the total
shareholding to 100%, for a cash consideration of £0.2m (£0.25m) The cash consideration of £0.2m included an immaterial
payment for net cash on completion.

Detaits of the acquisition were as follows:

Inventories

\ recevabies
Trade and other poyables
Net identifiable gssets

Less: initial i
Goodwi
Total cash consideration
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There have basn no fair value adjustments following the acguisition. The goodwill arising on tha ocquisition primarily
represented the assembied workforce, technical expartise and market share. The goodwill is allocated entirely to the
Commerciol and Infrastructura Systems segment.

The foir value of trade and other receivables was €0 4m. The gress amount of trade and other receivables was £0.4m and it
is expected that the full contractucl amounts will be collected.

Post-acquisition TGS contributed £1.1m revenue ang £01m of underlying oparating profit which were included in the Group
incorme stotemant. tf TGS had been acquired on 1 January 2021, the Group's resuits for the twelve months ended
31 December 202t would have shown revenue of £594 9m and underlying operating profit of £953m.

Acquisition costs were negligible and have been expensed and included in non-underlying itams in gdministration expenses.

Permavoid

On 31 August 2018, the Group acquired 100% of the share capitat of Permavoid Limited (Permovoid), a specialist designer and
supplier of surface water managament solutians in commaercial, residential, and sports pitch cpplications, for an initial cash
censideration of £4.3m on a cash and debt-free, normalised working capital basis, and further contingent consideration
depending on the EBITDA performance of Permavoeid in tha two years to 30 Septembar 2C20.

During the year a payment of £2.5m was made thot was contingent on EBITDA performance in the second yaar of wrading
foftlowing acquisition and the continued smployment of key personnel. Contingent consideration ot fair value of £3.4m was
held on the balance sheet at 31 December 2020 and was accrued over the two-year period. A balance of £0.5m contingent
consideration is held on the balance sheet at 31 December 2021 with £E0.4m having been released non-underlying items in
administration expenses n the income statement. A further agreement has been made whereby up to £0 Smis poyable
contingent on EBIT performance for the year ending 31 December 2021. Accordingly, the aggregate consideration is
expected to be approximately £8.8m.

19. Investments

Details of Group undertakings
Details of the investments in which the Group holds 20% or more of the nominal value of any class of share capital at
31 December 2021 ¢re set out in Note 4 to the parent compony financial statements.

20. inventories
3ipecember 3l December
2031 2020
£m (2}
Rowmaterials ... e . - .28 ....1B3
Work in progress R 103 .18
Finished goods 46.6 287
B80.8 528

Allinventaries are carried at cost less a provision to take account of slow-rmoving and obsolete items. The provision at
31 December 2021 wos £12.0m (2020: £6.8m).

21. Trade and other receivables

31 ecemiar 3t Decembar

20 2020
£m £m
Trade receivables 69.7 516
fé .
Prepayments

76.7 816

Trade receivables are non~interest bearing and are generally settled on 30 days' credit,
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Expected creditlosses
The Group maintains a substantiak level of credit insurance covering a significant proportion of its trade receivables which
mitigates against expected credit losses. Therafore, such credit losses are not significant.

The ageing of trade receivables at the balonce sheet date was as follows:

31 Decembet 2021 31 Dacamber 2020
Allowance Allowancea
for expected for expected
Gross  creditlosses Total Gross  cradif lossas Total
£m Em £m £m £m Em
Not past due . i - arz (0.2) as 402 (o ...40)
(0.2) 26 97 (on)
Pust du_s_a__:i_l__'_fp _ap dcys o i (0.2) 53 08 (on)
Past due more than 80 days 11 (0.8) 0.3 20 {08)
A {1.4) 69.7 527 (11} 5.6

The movements in the aliowance tor expected credit losses of trade receivables comprised:

Af 31 December 2019

Utilised during the yaar

At 31December 2020

Acqunsmon or busmesses o
Craditad to the income staternant dunng the year cm
At 31 December 2021

22. Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprised:

31December 31 December

20 2020
£m £m
Cash at bank and in hand 52.3 441

Caosh at bank earns interest ot variable rates based on daily bonk deposit rates. The Group anty deposuts cash surpluses
with banks that have as a minimum a single A credit rating.

23. Sshare capital and reserves

Share capital
31 Decermber 2021 3 Dacember 2020
Number® € Number* £
AUthORiSed ShAT@COPINGL e e+ ot o et e s e e e e
Ordmcryshores of £0.00teach o T 7 288 248070 228 228466
Aiotted, calledupandfullypaid: | s o s e e s e e+ e e s 2 © s e s o e
Ordlnnfy shares of £0.00l each ) ) " 2a8 248,70 ) 228 228,466

* Millions of shares.

The ordinary shoares are voting non-redeemable shares and rank equally as to dividends, voting righits and any return of
capital an winding up.

Share premium

On W February 2021, the Group conducted a non-pre-emptive placing of 18,704,085 new ardinary shares at £515 per share
generating gross proceeds of £96.3m with issue costs of £2.7m. Net proceeds in excess of the nominal value of £936m hove
been credited to the share premium account. A further £0.m of listing fees have been incurred and charged to the income
statement in 2021

Capital redemptionreserve
Following the consolidation and subdivision of shares in 2014 the Cormpany’s defaerred shares were cancelfed. In order to
maintain the Company’s capital, a transfer was made from retained earnings to o capital redemption reserve qt thot time.

Ownshares
Own sharas represent the cost of Genut Group plc shares purchased in the market and held by the Company, and/or the
employee benefit trust (EBT), to satisfy the future exercise of options under the Group's share option schemes.

During the year the Group issued 1,000,000 shares (2020: $00,000 shares) to the EBT at the nominal value of £G.001.
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At 31 December 202, the Group held 965 {2020 965) of its own shares at an avercge cost of 420p (2020: 420p) per share. The
market value of these shares at 31 December 2021 was less than £0.1m (2020: less than £01m). The nominal value of each
share is £0.001.

The EBT held 353,585 shares at 31 Decernber 2021 {2020: 205,807) at an average cost of 01p (2020: 0.Jp) per share. The market
value of these shares at 31 December 2021 was £21m (2020: £1.2m). The nominal value of sach share is £0.001.

Hedging reserve
The hedging reserve contains the etfective portion of the cash flow hedge relationships entered into by the Group in respect
of interest rate swaps and forward foreign currency derivatives as discussed in Note 28.

Foreign currency retransiation reserve
The foreign currency retranslation reserve is used to record exchange differences arising from the translation of the financial

staternents of foreign subsidiaries.

Otherreserves

On 7 May 2020, tha Group conducted a non- pre-emptive placing of 26,966,300 new ordingry shares at £4 45 per share
generating gross proceeds of £120.0m. The plecing was undertaken using o cashbox structure. As ¢ rasult, the Group was
able to take relief under Section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 from crediting share premiurm and instead transfer the net
proceeds in excess of the nominal value to other reservas. Advisers’ fees of £3.5m have been netted off against the gross
proceeads. A further £0.1m of listing fees have been incurred and charged to the income statement in 2020.

Capital management

The primary objective of the Graup's capital management is to ensure that it maintains an appropriate capital structure to
SUPpPOrt its business objectives and maximise shareholder value. The Group regards shargholders’ equity ond net debt as its
capital, the Group's net debt is defined as cash ond cash equivalents, loons and borrowings, and laase liabilities. At 31
Decamiber 202, the Group had bank debt of £198.0m (20201 £60.0rn), an undrawn committed revoiving credit tacility of
£102.0m (2020: £240.0r), cash of £52.3m (2020: £44.1m), an uncommitted accordion facility of £50.0m (2020: nil) and lease
liabilities of £20.6m (2020: £12.9m). A key objective of the Group is to maintain sufficient liquidity {cash and committed bank
focilities) in order to meet its cash commitments including interest payments due on that debt. No changes were rmade o
the objectives, policies or processes during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 31 Decemiber 2020.

24. Share-based payments
Share options were granted by the Company under its various share option schemes as detailed in the table below:

31 »
Exercise December Lapsed/  Cecember Date
price 2020 Granted Dividend Exercised  forfeited 200 first Expiry
E Number  Number  Accrual Number Number Number exercisable date
2014 Snaresave (gronted 2077) 310 1B0es2 - - (2453 (583 - 1Nov2020 30 A4pri202
2014 Sharesave (granted 2018) 298 689,553 - - (5532837 (19327) 6,943 1Nov2021 30 April 2022

1,034,0
1,462,435 10ec 2023 3iMay 2024
998,276 31May 3025
104,165

LEH,085

(igs8)y {iasB02)

2014 171R {granted I0 Moy 2016)
2014 LT (gro -
2014 LTIP (granted 22 May 2017)

2014 TR (granted 2 May 2008)

2014 1TR {granted 30 April 2019) ~

- 142002
5973 - - -

5973 22Mo
12,647

s2608) 30 Apra2022 30
2353 22Nov 2022 22
- 633,899 22June 2023 22 June 2030

526,151 - -

.. 633899

20 Moy 2024 20 Mgy 2031
2 May :
osep TTha2ss)E T 18,437 20 Apnl 202130 Apri 2029
OSBP (gronted 22 June 2020) Nl &g0s | - ma T LTI mage 90 e 2028 22 jne 3030
5462953 1682038 451 {855225) {608,412} 5,680,806

- e7e918

The weighted overage share price at the date of exercise of these options was £5.64.
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these aptions was £6.40.
The weighted overgge share price at the date of exercise of these options was £5.78.
The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of these options wos £5.58.
The weighted overage share price at the date of exercise of these options was £6.15.

The waighted average share price at the date of exercise of these optians was £6.96.
The weighted average share price ot the date of exercise of these options was £5.81.

. The weighted gverage share price ot the dote of exercise of these optiens was £5.59.
. The weighted average share price ot the date of exercise of these options was £5.59.

PONDOH W

At 31 Dacermnber 2021, 292,541 (2020: 321,480) share options were exercisable at a weighted average exercise price of £119
{2020: £1.26) per shore.
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Sharesave Plan

Sharesave Plan options were granted to sligible employees on 21 Qetober 2021 at an exercise price of £5.78 per share, o 20%
discount to the average share price over the three business days preceding the offar. Participating employeas can exercise
their options to purchase the shares ocquired through their savings plans at the option price after three years. These
options have an exarcise date of 2024 to 2025,

Long-Term Incentive Plan {LTIP)

LTIP options were awardad to a number of senior executives on 20 Moy 2021 These aptions have an exercise date of 2024 to
2031. The vesting of each award is subject to the satisfaction of certain performance criteria, of which 25% is based on total
sharehalder return {the TSR elemeant), 25% is based on sustainabilily pertormance (the sustainability element) and 50% is
based on earnings per share {the EPS element). Further detoils of the scheme are provided in the Annuat Report

on Remuneration.

Defetred Share Bonus Plan (DSBP)
Therg weare no awards made under the DSBP in 2021

All thesea equity-settled, share-based payments are measured at fair value at the date of grant. The fair value determined
at the date of grant of the equity-settled, share-based payments is expensed to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the vesting period, based on the Group's estimates of shares thot will eventually vest, with a corresponding
odjustment to equity. Fair volue for the Sharesave Plan options is measured by use of a Black-Scholes rodel. Fair value of
the LTIP options is measured by use of a Monte Carlo model. The expected life used in the models has been adjusted, based
on managamaeant's best estimate for the eftects of non-transterability, exercise restrictions and benhavioural considerations.

The assumptions used for each share-based poyment were os follows:

2014

LTIP 2014
optiens sharasave
granted optians
20 May granted
2021

_...k888

€5.78

E‘)'('perptgc'!!\;blt;tilit-y ’
median volatility of the comp
Expected life (years)
Risk frae ]
Dividend yield

_I\jl-édion TSR pe}r\?_[mé nce of the comparator grcn_.xp:-m the date of grant
| edian)
Fair vatue per option

2019
LTe 2014
options Sharesove
granted options
22 June gronted
2020 2020
£4.40 £4.54

share price at the date of grant
Exercise price

€345
1818815

325

Foirvalue peroption 07 o £27) U
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The expected volatiity is based on histerical share price movernents. The Directors anticipote itis possible the performance
criteria in relation to the LTIP options may not be met.

202 2020
£m £m
22 1.4

Share-based payments charge for the year

25. Trade and other payables

31 Decamber 31 Dgcember

2021 2020
£€m Em
94.1 751

Trode payables
o
Accruals

ecurity costs

30.2 85

135.5 22

Trade payakbles are non-interest bearing and generoally settted on 30 to 60 day terms.

26. Financial liabilities

31 December 31 December

Flirl] 020
£m £m
Non-current loans and borrowings:
Bankloan e et et
~ principal R ...
. _(08)
Total non-current loans onc borrowings e e s = 2 i e e e 1974 5
Cash ct bank and in hand (52.3) (441)
Nat debt excluding leose liobiit.es 145.1 148
31 December 31December
202 2020
£m Em

Other financiol liabilities:

20.6

oA ] -
162.4 122

Derivative financial instruments

Bank loan
On 19 November 2018, the Group entered into an Amendment and Restaterment Agreement with various lenders in respect of

the Group's previous revolving credit facility agreement dated 4 August 2015, The bank loan, which comprised a £300.0m
revolving credit facility and £50.0m uncommitted accordion facility, was secured ang would have matured in November
2023 {with two further uncormmitted annual renewals through to November 2025 possible). The Group incurred £17m of debt
issue costs in respect of entering into the Amendment and Restaternent Agreement dated 19 November 2018 which were
capitalised and are being amaortised to the income statement over the term of the facility to November 2023

On 4 May 2020, the Group entered into d revised Amendment and Restatermant Agreement with its banking group to provide
the additional £50.0m Covid-19 facility for o period of 12 months, leaving the Group with £350 0m cf total revolving credit
facilities for tha next 12 months. The Group alse secured agresment from its banking group Lo ternporarily waive certain
requirements within the Groug's revolving credit facility and suspend the June 2020 quarterly leverage covenant test. The
Group incurred £0.3m of debt issue costs in respect of entering into the revised Amendment and Restatement Agreement
which were capitalised and armortised to the income statemeant aver the 12-month terrn of the facility. The facility expired in
May 2021

Interest was payable on the bank loan at LIBOR plus on interest margin ranging from 0.90% to 2.75% which is dependent on
the Group's leverage (net debt excluding lease liabilities as a multiple of pro forma EBITDA) and reduces as the Group's
leverage reduces. The interest margin at 31 December 2021 was 1.40% (2020: 140%). with effect from 4 January 2022, LBOR
was reploced by the Standard Gvernight Index Average (SONIA). Pra forma EBITDA for the year was £17.9m (2020: £59.6m),
ond is defined as pre-IFRS 16 underlying operating profit before depreciation, amoertisation and shara-based payment
charges, for the 12 months preceding the balance sheet date adjusted where relevant te include a full year of EBITOA from
acquisitions made during those 12 months.
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2021 2020

Pro forma EBITDA (12 months preceding the balonce sheet)

Share-based bbyméﬁis chorgé

. e e e e e i i e e e .. wee 596
ERBITDA fram acquisitions 23 -
nz9 596

At 31 December 2021, the Group had available, subject to covenant headroom, £102.0m (2020, £240.0m) of undrawn
committed borrowing facilities in respect of which ail conditions precedent had been met.

The Greup is subject to a number of covenants in relation to its bank loan which, if breached, would result in the bank loan
becoming irmmmediately repayable. Thase covenants specify certain maximum limits in terms of net debt, excluding lease
ligbilities, as a muitipie of pro forma EBITDA and interest caver. At 31 December 202, the Group was nat in breach of ony bank -
covenants. The covenant gosition was as follows:

Posltion at
Covenant 31 Decermnber
Covanant requireament 2021

Intarest cover (Underiying operating profit Finonce costs excluding debt issue cost arortisation)
tevarage (Net detit excluding leass liabilities : pro forma EBITDA)

The interest cover and leverage covanants remain at 4.0 and 3.0, respactively, throughout the remaining term of the
revolving credit facility 1o November 2023, though there exists the option 10 apply to extend the leverage covenant to 3.51 for
a limited period of time if the Group makes an acguisition,

Euro-Commercial Paper

On 1May 2020, the Group entered into a £100.0m Euro-Commercial Paper Programme with Citibank N.A. (acting 0s issuing
and Poying Agent) under the UK Gavernment’s joint HM Treasury and Bark of England Covid Corporate Financing Facility
{CCFF).on14 May 2020, the Company drew down £99.463m under the CCFF and issued £100.0m of Euro-Commercial Paper
to the Bank of England ot o coupen rate of 0.65% per annum maturing on i2 March 2021. On 8 September 2020, the Eure-
Commercial Paper was bought back for £99.710m inclusive of accrued coupon. The Company incurred minimal costs in
respect of entering into the CCFF, which have been chaorged to the income statement in 2020

27.Related party transactions
Compensation of key ronagement personnel (including Directors):

2021 2020

£m Em
Short-term employee benefits et e e S i R 8 £ s e ot o+ e s+ A8 23
Shore-based payments ’ oo 77 ozx 0.4

5.5 27

Key management personnel comprise the Exacutive Diractors and other key managers in the Group.



Business Strategic Financial
Cverview Report = ~ - ° T " Gdvernante - T TRemuneration Stotements

28.Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group's principal financial ligbilities comprise loons and borrowings, deferred and contingent consideration, lease
liobilities, derivative finoncial instruments and trade and other payables. The main purpose of these financial liabilities is
to finance the Group's operotions. The Group hos trade ond other receivables and cash thot ore derived directly from
its operations.

The Group is exposed to interest rate cash How, fareign currency exchange, credit and liquidity fisk.

The Group’s senior management oversees the mitigation of these risks which are summarised s follows:

Interest rate cash flowrisk
The interest rate on the Group's £300m revolving credit facility is variabie, being payable at LIBOR ptus a margin. With effect
frorn 4 January 2022, IBOR was replaced by the Standard Overnight Index average (SONIA).

In arder to reduce the Group’s exposura te potential future increases in interest rates, the Group previousty antered into
interest rate swaps which expired in August 2020, with interest payable at a fixed rate return of 1735% {excluding margin).

Foreign currency exchaonge risk

Foreign currency exchange risk is the risk that the fair volue of a financial instrument or future cash flows will fluctuate
becouse of changes in foraign currency exchange rates The Group's exposure to the risk of changes in foreign currency
exchange rates relates primarily to the Group's operating activities where the revenue or expense is denomingted ina
currency other than the functional currency of the entity undertaking the transaction

The Group enters into forward foreign currency exchange contracts for the purchase and sale of foreign currencies in order
to manage its exposure to fluctuations in currency rates, primarily in respect of US Bollar and Euro receipts and payments,

' Foreign currency exchange sensitivity

The toble below demonstrates tha sensitivity to a 10% changae in the Euro exchange rate versus Pounds Sterling, the
presentational currency of the Group usad for translation purposes, on the net assets and profit after tax of the Group. The
Group's exposure 1o foreign currency exchange rate changes for all other currencies is not material.

Effecton

Ettacton prafitatter

net assats tox

Changa in exchange rate £m £m
OB ! e e e e g e s g
1o% strengthening of Pounds Sterling: ogainstéuro o __{osm) (o)

10% weakenlng of Pouhds Sterling: ﬁénlﬁsi Euro

'I'd% weaken

Creditrisk

Credit risk is the risk that o counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or custormer controct,
leading to a finoncial loss. The Group is exposed to cradit risk from its operaung activities (primarily for trade receivables)
and from its financing octivities, including cash depaosits with banks.

Trade receivables

Customer credit risk is managed by each subsidiary subject to the Group's estobiished policy, procedures and controls
relating to customer credit risk management. Credit quolity of the customer is assessed based on an extensive credit rating
scorecard ond individual credit imits are defined in accordance with this ossessment. Outstanding customer receivables
are regularly monitored ond Gny shiprments t¢c mojor export customers are generatly covered by letters of credit or other
forms of credit insurance.

The requirement for impairment is analysed ot each balonce sheet date on an individual basis for major clients.
Additionally, a large number of minor receivables are grouped into homogenaous groups ond assessed for impairment
collectively. The ceiculation is based on actually incurred historical dota. The moximum exposure to credit risk ot the
balance sheet date is the carrying amount of each class of financial assets as disclosed in Note 21 which is adjusted far
forward-looking information.

The Group daes not hold collateral as security, The Group eveluates the concentration of risk with respect to trade
receivables as low. At 31 December 2021, 39% (2020: 39%) of net trade receivables were covered by credit insurance which is
subject to the normal policy deductibles.
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Notes to the Group Financial Statements continued

Financial instruments and cash deposits

The Group maintains strong liquidity through cash balances and deposits (£52.3m at 31 December 2021) and its undrawn
committed revolving credit facility (£102.0m at 31 December 2021) which matures in Novermnber 2023 (with two further
uncormmitted annual renewals through to November 2028 possible)‘

Credit risk arising from cash deposits with banks is managed in accordance with the Group's established treasury policy;
procedures and controls. Deposits of surplus funds are made onky with banks that have as a minimum a single A credit
rating. The Group’s maximum exposure 1o credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at 31 Dacember 2021 and
3t December 2020 is the carrying amaounts as illustrated in Note 22.

Liquidity risk

tiguidity risk is the risk that the Group will not be able to maet its financial obligations as they fall dus. The Group's approach
to managing liquidity is to ensure that it will always have sufficiant liquidity to meet its liobilities when due, under both
normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable losses or risking domage to the Group's reputation. The
Group hod cash and cash equivalents of £52.3m and undrawn and cormmiitted credit facilities of £102.0m at 31 December
202, ¢nd no debt maturities withir 12 months.

The toble below summarises the rmaturnty profile of the Group's financial liabilities based on contractual undiIScCouNtad payMents:

Jrol2 1ws
< Imonths manths years »Syears Total
31 Decamber 2021 £m £ £rm £m Em

.. .-

Bank loan - principal
Other financial liabilities:

a0 P
Beterred and contingent consideratian )

‘O'tﬁéi'“llcbllmesd'

1429 41 213.4 9.2 369.6
Jwol2 105
¢ 3 manths months years > 5 years Totak
3 December 2020 Ern £m £m £m £m
Bank loan - principa! o - - ~_ Boo - 600G

Other lighiities

1220 27 701 - 194.8
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Fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities
The book value of trade and other receivables, trade cnd other payables, cash balances, bank loan and other liabilities

equates to foir value.

The table below sets out the Group's accounting classitication of its other financial liabilities and their carrying amounts and
fair values:

Carrying Fair
value value
- £m £m
Forwaord toreign cutrency derivatives (designated os hedging instruments) . . L
Interast-bearing lxans and borrawings due aftar more than one yaar
(designated as financial liabil ties meosured ot omortised cost) o o o 197.4 197.4

measured at amortised cost) 20.6 206
Total at 31 Decembear 2027 2229 222.9
Carrying Faw
value volue
£m £m

Interest-pearing loans and borrowings dua atter more than one year
{designated os finangial liabiities meosured at amortsed cost)
Deferrad and contingent consideration ated cia lic
ecse liabilities (d
Total ot 31 Decerber 3020

The tair values were determined os foliows by reference to:

+ Forward foreign currency derivatives: quoted exchange rates.

- Deferred and contingent caonsideration: Directors’ assassment of the likelihood that financial targets will be achieved (see
Note 18).

- Lease liabilities: present vaiue of iease paymenits to be made over the leose terms.

Fair value hierarchy
The Greup uses the fallowing hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of fingnciol instruments by valugtion

technique:
Level I: quotad {unadjusted) prices in active markets for identical assets or liabifities;

Level 2: other techniques for which all inputs which have ¢ significant effect on the recognised fair value are observable,
gither dirgctly or indirectly; and

Level 3: techniques which use inputs which haove a significant effect on the recognised foir value that are not bosed on
observable market data.

The fair values disclosed above, with the exception of deferred ond contingent consideration which is categorised as Level 3,
all relate to items categonsed os Level 2.

There hove been no transfers in ony direction between Levels ), 2 or 3 in the yeors ended 3] December 2021 and 2020,
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Directors’ Responsibilities

Statement

In relation to the parent company financial statements

The Directors are responsible
for preparing the Annual Report
and the financial statements in
accordonce with applicable UK
law and regulations.

UK company law requires the Directors
to prepare financial statements for
each financial year. Under that law the
Diractors have alected to prepare the
financial statements in accordance
with UK-Adopted International
Accounting Standards {IFRSs).

Under company law the Directars must
not opprove the financial statements
unless they are satished that they give
o true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the Company and of the
profit or loss of the Company for

that period.

In preparing these tinancial
statermeants the Directors are
required to:

select suitabla accounting policies
in occordonce with 1AS 8, Accounting
Policias, Changes in Accounting
Estimates ond Errors, and then apply
them consistently;

make judgements and accounting
estimates thot are reasanable

and prudent;

present information, including
accounting policies, ina

manner that provides relevant,
reliable, comparable ond
understandabie information;

provide additional disclosures
when compliance with the specific
requirements in IFRSs is ingufficient
ta enable users to understand the
impact of particular transactions,
other evants ond conditions on the
Companys financial position and
financiol performance;

state whether IFRSs have been
followed, subject to any matericil
departures disclosed and explained
in the financial statements, and

prepore the financial statements
an the going concern basis unless
it is appropriate to presume that
the Company will not continue

N BUSINess,

The Directors are respansible for
keeping odequate accounting records
that are sufficient to show and explain
the Cormparny's tronsactions and
disclose with reasonable accuracy at
any time the financial position of the
Company and enabile them to ensure
that the financial statements comply
with the Companies Act 20086. They are
also rasponsible for sofeguarding the
assets of the Company and hence

for taking reasonable steps for the
prevention and detection of fraud

ond other irregularities.
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Company Balance Sheet

At 31 December 2021

31 Decamber 31 December
202
Notas £m £rm

Non-current assets .

2485

IQ\festme'hrs 7 o
5 190.9

Amounts owed by subsidiary undenakings and other recevables

Total assets

(51.4)

Amounts owed to éﬁbsidiary dn&é}idkiriéé and oth

436_.4_ o

1968
4344

(iz00)"

Not assets 385.0

3ig4

Copital and reserves

Capital redemption resarve
Retained earnings 173.6 196.6
Total aquity 385.0 3144

ncluded in retained earnings is a toss for the yeor of £5.5m (2020: £3.5m loss}).

Tha financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of Diractors ond signed on its behalf by:

Joe Vorih
Director
15 March 2022

Paul James
Director
15 Mareh 2022

Company Regfsti

16t
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Company Statement
of Changes in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 202]

Equity Capltat

share Shara rademption own other Retained Total

capltal premium reserve shares reserves eumings equlty

£m £m £m £m £m £m £m

At 31 December 2019 02 - 1 - - 1965 1978

Loss for the year - - - - - (35) (35)
Total comprehensive income for theyear e e T - - @s) . Bs]
Issue of share capital ) - - - 200
T . (38)

- - - 14

Share-based pcymenté excess tax benefit - - - 01
At 31 Decemnber 2020 02 - 11 - Ne.5 196.6 3144
Loss for the year - - - - - (5.5) {5.5)
Total comprehensive incomefortheyear - - - = o8 _  (58)
N T T L o L (2.7) (21.7)

Dividends paid o T

T_ronsoction costs on issue of shore Eqpitcl
Shao

Shore-bosedpaymentssatted = R
Share-Dased pOyMents excess tax bematit - - - - - (0.1} (o)
At 31 December 202 0.2 936 1 - 6.5 173.6 385.0
‘_ 13
* -
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Company Cash
Flow Statement

For the year ended 31 December 2021

3 December 3i Cocember
202 2020
£m £€m

Net finance cost

g foss

1saction costs 6n issus of share capital
-cash iterns: Share~-based payrnents L
rating cash flows befare movemnent in working cupit'ﬁ'l

Movernent in working capital:

eivables .
Poyqhles e e, 0 DO)
Inter-group balances ’ {69.0} (14.3)
Nat cash flows from aperating activities (73.9) (e2)
Financing activities . e+ e e e o e e+ et e n
Issub of share copital B . o 963 1200

Transoctian costs on issue of share capital
Issue of Euro-Commercial Poper

Buyback of Euro-Commercial Poper
bividends paid

Proceeds from exercise of shore options

Net cash flows from financing activities

ge In cash and cosh equivalents
cash equivalents at | January
Cash and cash equivalents at 3! Dacember
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Notes to the Company
Financial Statements

For the year ended 31 December 2021

1. Authorisation of financial
statements

The parent company financial
statements of Genuit Group pic
{formerly Polypipe Group plic} (the
‘Company’) for the year ended 31
December 2021 were authorised for
issue by the Board of Directors on 15
March 2022 and the balance sheet
was signed on the Board's behalf by
Joe Varih and Paul James.

Genuit Group plc is & public limited
company incorporated and domiciied
in England and Wales. The principal
activity of the Company is that of a
holding company.

2. Summary of significant
accounting policias

The bosis of preparction and
accounting policies used in praparing
the historical financicl information far
the yeor ended 31 December 202! are
set out below. These accounting
policies have been consistently
applied in all material respects to all
the periods presented.

2.1Basis of preparation and
statement of compliance with
IFRSs

The Company’'s financial statements
have been prepared in accordance
with Uk-Adopted Intemational
Accounting Standards (Uk-Adopted
IAS). In preparing the Company's
tinancial statements the Directars
have cansidered the impact of climote
change. This included an assessment
of nvestments and how they could be
impacted by measures taken tc
address global warming. No issues
were identified that would impact

the carrying values of such assets or
have any other impact on the
financial staterments.

The accounting policies which follow
set out those policies which apply in
preparing the financial staternents for
the year ended 3! Cecember 2021

The Company’s tinancial statements
have been preparad on a historical
cost basis. The financial statements

are presented in Pounds Sterling and
all values aro rounded o one decimal
place of o milion {£m) unless
otherwise indicated. No income
statement or stotement of
comprehensive income is presented
by the Company as permitted by
Section 408 of the Companies Act
2006. The resuits of Genuit Group plc
are included in the consclidated
financial statements of Genuit
Group plc.

2.2 Going concern

The Directors have made enquiries into
the cdequacy of the Company's
tinancial resources, through o review of
the Group's budget and medium-term
financial plan, including cash flow
forecasts. The Group has modelled o
ronge of scenarios, with the base
forecost being one in which, over the 18
months ending 30 Juna 2023, sales
volumes grow in line with or
moderately above external
construction industry forecasts.

In addition, the Directors have
considered several downside
scenarias, including adjustments to
the bose forecast, a period of
significantly lower tike-for-fike sales,
profitability ond cosh flows. Consistent
with our Principal Risks and
Uncertainties these downside
scenarios included, but were rot
limited to, loss of production, loss af
major customer, product failure,
recession, increases in intarest rates
ond increases in raw material prices.
Downside scenarios alsoincluded a
combinatian of these risks, and reverse
stress testing. The Dirgctors have
considered the impact of climate-
reloted motters on the going concern
assessment and it is not expected to
have a significant impact on the
Group's going concern

At 31 December 2021, the Group had
available £102.0m of undrawn
committed borrowing focilities in
respect of which all conditions
precedent had been met. These
borrowing facilities are available until
at lecst November 2023, subject to
covenant headroom. The Directors are

sctistied thot the Group has sufficient
liquidity and covenant headroom to
withstand reasenable variances to the
base forecast, as well as the downside
scenarios. in addition, the Directors
have noted the range of possible
additional liquidity options avaiiable to
the Group, should they be required.

As @ result, the Directors have satisfied
themselves that the Company has
adequate financial resourcas to
continue in operational existence fora
period of at least the next 15 months.
Accordingly, they continue to adopt
the going concern basis in preparing
the fingncial statements.

2.3investments

Investrnents in subsidiary undertakings
Qre held at historical cost less any
applicable provision for impairment,

2.4 Share-based payments

in the case of equity-settied schemes,
the foir vaiue of options granted is
recognised as an employee expense
with o corresponding increose in
equity. The fair value is measured at
the date of grant and spreod over the
period during which the employees
become unconditionally entitied to the
options. The vaiue of the options is
measured using the Black-Scholes
and Maonte Carlo models, taking into
account the terms and conditions
(including market ond non-vesting
conditions) upon which the options
were granted. Non-market vesting
conditions are taken into account by
adjusting the number of equity
instrumeants expected to vest at each
balonce sheet date so that, ultimately,
the cumulative amount recognised
over the vesting period is based on the
number of options that eventually vest.
No expense is recaognised for awards
that do not uitimately vest, except for
equity-seltied transactions where
vasting 15 conditiona! upon a market or
nen-vasting condition, which are
trected as vesiing irrespective of
whether or not the market or non-
vesting conditionis satisfied, provided
that all other performance and/for
service conditions are satisfied.
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The financial effect of awards by the Company of options over its equity shares to employees of subsidiary undertakings cre
tycognised by the Company inits individual inanciol staterments. In porticular, the Company records an increase in its
investment in subsidiaries with a corresponding adjustment to equity eguivalent to the [FRS 2 cost in subsidiary undertokings.

2,5 Cashdividend

The Company recognises o fiability to pay a dividend when the distribution is authorised and the distribution is no fonger at
the discretion of the Company. Under UK company law a distribution is authorised when it is approved by the shareholders.
A corresponding amount is then recagnised directly in equity.

2.8 Own shares

The Campany operates an employee benefit trust (EBT). The Company, andfor the EBT, hokds Genuit Group plc shares for the
granting of Genuit Group ple shares to employees and Diractors. These shares ora recagnised at cost and presented in the
bolance sheet as a deduction from equity. No profit or loss is recognised in the income statament on the purchase, sale,
issue or cancellation of these shares. No dividends are earned on these shares.

2.7 Financialinstruments

The Company policy for accounting for financial instrumenits is consistent with the Group policy detailed in Note 214 of the
Group's consolidoted financial statements. A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise te a finoncial asset of one
entity and o financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. The Company’s only financiol assets are amounts owed
by supsidiory undertakings (see Nots 5.

3. Dividend per share
2621 2020
£m £m
Amounts recognised as distribulions to equity noldars in the yaar: e o .
Final dividend fof the year ended 31 Decernber 2020 of 4.8p per share (2019:nil) R -
Interim dividend for the yagr ended 3t December 2021 of 40p per share (20200}~~~ . e
— 217 -
Proposed final dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 of 8.2p per share (2020: 4.8p) 20.3 ng

The proposed final dividend is subject to approvol by shareholders at the annuol General Meeting and has not been
included as a liability in these financial statements.

4.Investments
Sharesin
subsidiary
undertakings
Em
Cost

At) January 2020

Agditions - share-based payments
At 31 December 2020

Additions - shara-bosed payments

At 31 December 201 2455
Net book value

At 31 December 2021 2455
At 31 December 2020 - i L 2438
Al'1 January 2020 o mr o e T a7

In 2021, on adjustment in respect of share-based poyments of £1.7m (2020: £1Im) was made to shares in subsidiory
undertakings, representing the financial effects of awards by the Company af options over its equity shares to employees of
subsidiary undertakings. The total contribution to date was £6.3m (2020: £4.6m).
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

The companies in which the Company had on interest at 31 December 2021 are shown below:

Proportion

of vating

rights and

Name of company Country of incorporation Hoiding shores held

AAA Holdings lented" England&waies Qrdinary £ 100%"

Adav Holdlngs (2008) lerted‘" e Englond &Wcres . ominary €
Adey Innovation Lu-mtec!2 L England & Watles Ordinary £1

. Ordnoyer | 100%

¢ China

“ o
Alpha Scientific Lta? I v ENQlond&Wales .. Drdinory 0.0 100% .
Drain Products Eu«ope BV? The Netheriands

JEngand&Woles | Ominoyf | S0%

Ordincry £}

Equof!o_thd" ]
Ferrobventllanon Ltd‘ o N o England & wales

Hayes Pipes (Uisterdlimite® 0 Nerthemiglond | Odinory€l 100%
HomeVentllatlon(lrelcnd)umlted" o  Northernirglong ‘Ordinary £1

Insulated Damp-Praof Course Limited! .. EngondSwales | Odnoyfl

Lor\don Bldco L-rrmed21 ) ) England & Wales . Ordinary €1

glond&Woles " Ordinary EDOI-£1 100%"
England & Wales Orclrncry £l 100%"

Nuolre leneu' e Eglond &Wales ~ Ordinary £} o 00%"

Nu-Heot(Holdings) imitee T T epgignd & wales
T engondawales " odmarygor o l00%

England &Wales Ordlnary £0.94 - £l

E_U_-Mmquisa_;_amﬁaum;te‘a‘%‘j_jj_“j'__"‘“"‘ R __fnglond&weles  Odnaygl | 100%

Oracstar Limited' - England & Wales o Ordinary €1 g%

Permaveid Technctogies Limited" T T Englandswoles o Crdnoy€l o i00%
Permavoid Tachnclogies (UsA) Limitea! . o England & Wales e QOrdinary £1 00%"

Piperoldings pic! 0I0S e STHNONYEL 00%
Pipe Holdings | plc! S Englond &Woles o V_Ordlnoryi:lr o 100%°

Pipe Holdings 2 Lir‘rgi{;jd:"'” i England & Wales inary €

ngongswales | Cuinayd)
England & Wales Ordinary £l

‘Ordinary £01
Ordinary E1

Polyplpe lelted‘ o e
Polypipe Buurdlng Producrs lelled' _England & Wales

_England &Wales

Polypipe Civils Limite: | . Ot
Palypipe Commerciel Building Systems Limited’ o EnglONASWoles .. Cinaryel o 100%
Polypipe Group 1 Limited (formerty Genuit Group Limited) England & Wales 7 ordinary £001
Polypipe (ireland) Ltd® ern comme COrdinary €
afia SRL* R . ' Ordlnory €052
PolypipeMiddieEastFZE>  —  United Arabfmirates Ordinary ImUAEDIhams
Polypipe TDI. Limited' - Englond & hYc_feé o _ Ordinary €1 o
Polypipe Terrain Limited'
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B Praportion
voting
rights and
Nome of company Country oIt P Holding sharas heid
Palypipe Terrain Haldings Limited' England & Wales Ordingry £ 0o%
Polypipe Trading Limitad® England & wales
Palypipe (Ulster} Limited® . Northern ireland o :
Polypipe Ventilation Limited' e e s+ oo e e ENQIOND S WOISS o DTOIMAY EY OO
Robarnatic Limited! England & Waoles " Crdinary £

_Englond & wales ) " “Ordinary £
T The Netherlands ~ordinaryel
Englond&wales rdinary £
The Netheriands __ Ordinary €10 %
Water Monagemant Solutions LLC'® T qatae Ordinary 1,000 Qatari Riyals  49%

All the companies operate principally in their country of registration and in the same class of business as the Sroup.

* The shares in the undertakings marked with an asterisk ore held by subsidiary undertakings.

T we report that these companies are excluded from the obligation to carry out the audit required under Secticn 4794 of the Companies
Act 2006 becouse dota in the occeounts of these companies shall be guaranteed by Genuit Group pic under Section 479C of the
Companies Act 2006.

Registered offices of subsidiaries:

1 4 victorio Pioce, Holbeck, Leeds, LS SAE.

2. Unvt 2 5t Modwen Park, Haresfield, Stonehouse, Gloucestershire, GL0 362

3. PO Box 38664, Pitisburgh, PA, 15328, United States of America

4. 1198 Rue de Calombes, 92600 Asnieres Sur Sewne, France.

5. Roorn 308-18, No. 998, South Shen Bin Road, Min Hang District, Shanghai, Ching.

6. Ballybrack, Kilmacthomas, Co. Waterford.

7. Kattenburgerstraot 9, 1018, JA, Amsterdam, Tha Netherands.

8. Dromore Road, Lurgan, Co. Armagh, 8766 7HL.

9. 19 Bedford Straet, Belfast, BY2 7EJ.

10.251 Littte Falis Drive, Witmington, Deloware, 19808-1674, United States of America.

1t 15 Boulevard FW. Raifteisen, - 2411 Luxembourg.

12.unit 5 Johnsons Estate, Tarran way South, Tarran Industrial Estate, Moreton, Wirral, Merseyside, CH46 4TP.
13.Unit 14 Burnett industrial Estate, Cox's Green, Wringion, Bristol, Samerset, BS40 SQP.

14.Localite Pianmercoto 5C-D-H, 16044 Cicagna, Genova, Raly.

15.PO Box 18679, Showroom A2 SR 07, First Al Khail Street, Jebel Ali Free Zone, Dubai, United Arab Ermirates.
16.Lave! 15, Commarciol Bank Ploza, wast Bay, Doha, Qatar,

5. Amounts owed by subsidiary undertakings and other receivables

Jloecember 31 December
200 2020

£m Em
Amounts owed by subsidiory undertakings R e '898 1898
Deferrsd income 10 e e e e e
Prepayments 0.3

190.9 1305

N materici affowance for expected credit i0sses is deemead necessary in respect of amounts owed by subsidiary
undertakings.

6. Amounts owed to subsidiary undertakings and other payables

3 December 31 December
200 2020

£m £m
Amounts owed to subsidiory undertakings ) 50.2 9.2
Ot payadlas | e S -
5.4 120.0
7.share capital and reserves
Share capitat
31 Dacember 2021 3t becember 2020
Number** £ Number** £
Authorised share capital: » o o
Ordinary shares of £0001each T T oI T T e 248070 298 228466
Allotted, callad up and fully paid: -
Ordinary shares of £0.001 aagh 7T T T 248 28870 225 228486

** Millions of shares.
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Notes to the Company Financial Statements continued

The ordinary shares are voting non-redeemable shares and rank equally as to dividends, voting rights and any return of
capitol on winding up. Detaoits of share options in issue on the Company's share capital and share-based payments are set
out in Note 24 to the Group's consolidated financial statements,

Share premium

On 1Y February 2021, the Company conducted a non-pre-emptive placing of 18,704,085 new ordinary shares at £5.15 per
share generating gross proceeds of £96.3m with issue costs of £2.7m. Net proceeds in excess of the nominal volue of £83.6m
hove been credited to [he share premium account. A further £0.m of listing fees have been incurred and charged to the
income staternent in 2021

Capital redemption reserve
Foltowing the consolidation and subdivision of shares in 2014 the Company's deferred shares were cancelled. In order to
maintain the Cormpaony's capital a transfer was macde from retained earnings to a capital redemption reserve at that time.

Ownshares

Own shares represent the cost of Genuit Group pic shares purchased in tha market and heid by the Cormpany, andfor the
empioyae benefit trust (EBT), to satisty the future exarcise of options under the Group's share option schemes. These shares
are recognised ol cost and presented in the balance sheet as o deduction from equity. No profit orloss is recognised in the
incarme statement on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of these shares. Mo dividends ore earned on these shares.

During the year the Group issuad 1,000,000 shares (2020: 500,000 shares) to the EBT at the nominal value of £0.001,

Otherreserves

On 7 May 2020, the Company conducted o non-pre-emptive placing of 26,966,300 new ordinary shares at £4 45 per share
genarating gross proceeds of £120.0m. The placing was undertaken using a cashbox structure. As aresult, the Company
was oble to take ralief under Section 612 of the Companies Act 2006 from ¢rediting share premium and instead transfer the
net proceeds in excess of the nominal value to other reserves. Advisers’ fees of £3.5m have been netted off against the
gross proceeds. A further £0.Jm of listing fees hove been incurred and charged to the income statement in 2020

8. Profit for the financial year

Genuit Group plc has not presented its own income statement as permitted by Section 408 of tha Companies Act 20086,
The loss for the year dealt with in the financial statements of the Company was £5.5m {2020: £3 5m loss for the year).

The anly ermployees remunerated by the Company were the Directors of the Company. Remuneration paid to the Directors
is disclosed in Note 10 to the Groupy's consalidated financial statermants.

Amounts paid to the Company's auditor in respect of the audit of the financial statements of the Company are disclosed in
Note 7 to the Group’s consolidated financicl statements.

Fees paid to the auditor for non-audit services to the Company itself ore not disclosed in the individual financial statements
of the Company because the Group's consolidated financial statements are prepared which are required to disclose such
fees an a consolidated basis. These are disclosed in Note 7 to the Group's consolidoted financial statements.

9. Related party transactions
The following table provides the analysis of transoctions that have been entered into with related parties:

31 Cecember 2021 31 Cecember 2020
Rechargas Amecunts Amounts
(ta)ftrom owed to Recharges awed to
relatad reloted from relateg retated
parties parties porties parties
Em £m £€m €m
Polypipe Limited (69.0} 50.2 149 He2
Amounts Amounts

owed by owed by

Loan reloted Loon relqared
advonced parties advanced parties
£Em £m £m £m

Pipe Holdings 1 pic:

Preference shares

Pipedadingstmited " . .. ...
Pipe Holdings pic

994
- 189.9

Other related party transactions are disclosed in Note 27 to the Graup's consolidated financial statements.
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Registrar services

Qur sharsholder register is manoged
and administered by Link Group.

Link Group should be able to help
"you with most questions you have

in relation to your holding in Genuit
Group plc shares.

Link Group can be contacted ot

Link Group

10th Floor

Central Square

29 wellington Straet
Lteeds

LSl 4DL

wWww linkgroup eu

Shareholder helpline for information
relating to your shares call;

+44 (0)371 664 0300

Wabsite heipling for information

on using this website coli:

+44 (0}371 664 039

Calls to 0371 are chorged at the

standard geographic rate and will vary

by provider. Calls outside the United
Kingdom are charged at the
applicable international rate.

We are open between 09:00-17.30,
Monday to Friday excluding public
holidays in England and wales.

e-mail: enquiries@linkgroup.co.uk

In addition, Link offers o ronge of other

services to shargholders including o
share dealing service and a share
partal to manage your holdings.

Share dealing service

A share dealing service is availoble
to existing shareholders to buy or
sell the Company's shares via Link
Market Services.

Online and telephone decling facilities
provide an easy to access and simple
to use service.

For further information on this service,
or to buy or sell shores, please contoct:

www.linksharedealcom -
online dealing
0371664 0445 - telephone decling

email: info@linksharedeol.coin

Please note that the Directors of

the Compony are not seeking to
encourage sharaholders to eithar buy
ar sell thair shares. Shoreholders in ony
doubt as to whot action to take are
recommended to seek financial
advice from an independent financial
adviser authorised by the Financial
Services and Markets Act 2000.
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Principal Group
businesses

UK

Polypipe Building Products
Broomhouse Lane
Edlington

Doncaster

South Yorkshire

DNI2 1ES

Neale Road
Doncaster
South Yarkshire
DN2 4PG

Polypipe Ulster
Dromore Road
Lurgon

Co. armagh
BT66 7HL

Polypipe Cwils and Green Urbanisation

Charnwood Businass Park
North Road
Loughborough

LEM ILE

Holmes Way
Horncastle
LNG 6JW

Potypipe Building Services
New Hythe Business Park
College Road

Aylesford

Kent

ME20 7F)

Nuaire

Western Industrial Estate
Caerphilly

CF&3 iNA

Domus ventilation
Cambyia House
Caerphilly Businass Park
van Road

Caarphitty

CF83 3eD

Manthorpe Building Products

Brittgin Drive

Codnor Gate Business Park
Ripley

DES 3ND

Alderburgh
Solutions House
Dane Street
Rochdale

Ot 4Ez

Nu-Heaqt

Heathpaork House
Devonshire Road
Heathpark Industrial Estate
Honiton

Devon

£X14 15D

Adey innovation
Unit 2

St Modwen Park
Horesfield
Stonahouse
Gioucestershire
GLIO 3EZ

Plura Cormposites

Unit 5 Johnsons Estate
Tarran Way South

Tarran Way Industrial Estate
Moreton

Wirral

CH46 4TP

Palydeck

unit 14

Burnett industrial Estate
Cox's Green

Wrington

Bristol

BS40 5QP

Mainland Europe

Polypipe Italia

Localita Pianmarcate 5C-D-H
16044 Cicagna, Genava

[1{e13%

Permaovoid
Kattanburgerstroat 5
1018, Ja

Arnsterdam

The Netherlands

Middie East

Polypipe Middle East FZE
PO Box 18679
Showrcom A2 SR 07
First Al Khail Street
Jebel Ali Free Zone
Dubm

United Arab Ernirates

contact details
and advisers

Campany registration number
and registered office
06059130

4 Victoria Place
Hotheck

Leeds

1511 BAE

independent auditor

Ernst & Young LLP
1Bridgewater Place
water Lane

leeds

LSI BQR

Principol bankers
Uoyds

sheffield

RBS

Leeds

NatWest

Leeds
Santander
Leeds

Citibank
London
Danske Bank
Belfast

Bank of Ireland
Manchester

Registrar and transfer office

Link Group

10th Floor

Central Square

29 wellington Street
leeds

LS140L

Stockbrokers

Dautsche Bank AG
Numis Securities Limited
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